
Trust Headquarters:  Bedruthan House, Royal Cornwall Hospital, Truro, TR1  3LJ 
Tel:  01872 252902    Fax:  01872  252944

Trust Board Meeting in Public 
Meeting of the Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Board 

Thursday 4 February 2021 09.45 – 14.00 
Held Via Microsoft Teams 

Members of the Public are invited to join via Teams Live at the following 
link: http://bit.ly/RCHTPublicBoardFeb2021 

No. Item Page 
no. 

Accountable Officer Approx. 
time 

Min 
No 

N/A Chairwoman 09.45 20.232 

6 Chairwoman 09.47 20.233 

14 Chairwoman 09.50 20.234 

33 Chairwoman 09.55 20.235 

1. Welcome and Apologies for 
Absence:
• Susan Bracefield, Chief Operating 

Officer

2. Declaration of Interest / Register of 
Board Members Interests
Members of the Trust Board and other 
persons attending are asked to declare 
any interests they may have in the 
business on the public agenda
(Standing Order 22 refers). Unless the 
Trust Board agrees otherwise in the 
case of a non-prejudicial interest, the 
person concerned shall withdraw from 
the meeting room and play no part in 
the relevant discussion or decision

3. Minutes of the Previous Board 
Meeting:
To approve the minutes of the meeting 
held 7 January 2021

4. Matters Arising & Action Log
To review the minutes for matters 
arising and receive an update on 
actions.

5. Chairwoman and Chief Executive 
introductory remarks
 

Chairwoman and Chief 
Executive 

10.00 20.236 

Page 1 of 294

http://bit.ly/RCHTPublicBoardFeb2021


2 

6. Patient Story
To note the patient story

N/A Joint Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and 
AHPs 

10.10 20.237 

7. Covid-19 update (Verbal)
To discuss a verbal presentation /
update on the response to Covid-19

N/A Acting Director of 
Operations 

10.30 20.238 

STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE 

8. Integrated Performance Report
To discuss for assurance the key
performance indicators, noting that the
IPR was discussed by January
Committee’s

36 Chief Executive 10.55 20.239 

9. Month 9 Finance Report
To discuss and note the Month 9
Finance report

90 Director of Finance 20.240 

BREAK (15mins from 11.25) 

10. Committee Assurance Reports
(verbal)
To receive any issues for exception
reporting to the Board from Committee
Chair’s on recent meetings not
otherwise discussed through other
items on the agenda. Reports for
noting (not requiring discussion) by the
Board are also included in this section.

i) Charitable Funds Committee
• RCHT Charity Annual Report

and Accounts

ii) Audit and Risk Assurance
Committee

iii) Finance and Performance
Committee

iv) Quality Assurance Committee and
Joint Quality Assurance Committee
• Ward to Board Report

v) Integration Committee

98 

158 

Committee Chair’s 11.40 20.241 
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QUALITY AND PEOPLE 

11.  Kickstart Scheme  
To approve acceptance of the grant for 
the Kickstart scheme 
 

174 Director of People and 
OD 

12.00 20.242 

12.  Ockenden Review Report and 
Response 
To receive the Ockenden Review 
Report and discuss it in the context of 
the Trust’s position re maternity safety 
 

180 Joint Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and 
AHPs 

12.05 20.243 

13.  Infection Prevention and Control: 
13.1 Board Assurance Framework 
13.2  NHS England Key Actions: 
Infection Prevention and Control 
and Testing 
To discuss the Board Assurance 
Framework for Infection, Prevention 
and Control and note the NHSE Key 
actions 

197 
 
236 

Joint Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and 
AHPs 

12.25 20.244 

14.  Freedom to Speak Up Guardian Q3 
Report 
To discuss the quarter 3 report from 
the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian 

243 Freedom to Speak Up 
Guardian 

12.40 20.245 

Break (15mins from 13.05) 

GOVERNANCE AND RISK 

15.  Board Assurance Framework and 
Corporate Risk Register 
To discuss the Board Assurance 
Framework and Corporate Risk 
Register 
 

252 Director of Integrated 
Governance 

13.20 20.246 

16.  Consideration of Risk 
To identify any risks raised during the 
meeting that may need to be escalated 
to the Board Assurance Framework or 
Corporate Risk Register 

N/A Director of Integrated 
Governance 

13.35 20.247 

17.  Board Calendar of Meetings, 
Glossary of Terms and Work 
Programme  
To note the Calendar of Meetings for 
2021/22, glossary and work 
programme 

290 Company Secretary N/A 20.248 
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QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
When the Trust is using Teams Live to live stream the meeting the following Protocol 
applies to questions from members of the public: 
• Members of the public are welcome to raise questions throughout the meeting and they will be 

taken at the end of the meeting at item 21. 15 minutes is allocated for questions from the 
public.  

• Questions at the meeting must relate to papers being presented on the day. 
• Questions should be kept brief and to the point. 
• There is no need for questions to be submitted in advance, although this may mean that it is 

not always possible to provide an answer at the meeting. In that case, the questioner’s contact 
details will be requested for response. 

• Questions will be taken in rotation, to ensure those wishing to raise questions have equal 
opportunity, within the limited time available – if a member of the public asks more than one 
question their first question will be asked and then their remaining question/questions returned 
to if no other members of the public wish to raise one and if it is within the time allocated for 
the item 

• We will endeavor to provide a response at the meeting which will be offered by a member of 
the Board to the Chair. 

• An answer to an oral question under this procedure will take the form of either: 
o A direct oral answer; or 
o If the information required is not easily available a written answer will be sent to the 

questioner, circulated to all members of the Trust Board and included in the minutes of the 
meeting.  

• Questions and answers will be reflected in the minutes of the meeting. 
• Questions need not be answered if the Chairwoman considers that they: 

o Are not on any matter that is within the powers and duties of the Trust; 
o Are defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
o Are substantially the same as a question that has been put to a meeting of the Trust Board 

in the past six months; 

 

18.  Questions from the Public 
Up to 15 minutes is allocated for questions 
from the public 

Chairwoman 13.40 20.249 

19.  Evaluation of Effectiveness of the Meeting: 
• What worked well? 
• Even more effective if? 

Chairwoman 13.55 20.250 

20.  Date of Next Meeting: 4 March 2021   14.00 20.251 

21.  Move to Board in Committee  
The Board will now take a short break and move into its private session 
to consider matters deemed confidential, as per the motion on notice at 
the end of the agenda 

 20.252 
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o Would require the disclosure of confidential or exempt information.  
 
Notice of Motion:  That, under the provision of Section 1, Sub-Section 2, of the Public Bodies 
Admission to Meetings Act, 1960, the public will be excluded from the meeting as the Trust is in 
Committee on the grounds that publicity would prove prejudicial to the public interest by reason of 
the confidential nature of the business to be transacted.  The issues to be discussed involve, for 
example, matters relating to individuals and patient confidentiality. 
One of more the following criteria must be met to for a Trust Board in Committee discussion: 

• The document contains employee identifiable information; 
• The document contains patient identifiable information; 
• The document contains information relating to legal proceedings; 
• The documentation is in draft format for future publication / remains in early stages of 

development; 
• The documentation is commercially sensitive 
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 REGISTER OF BOARD DIRECTORS’ DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

January 2021 
Shaded blue are voting members of the Board 
Executive Directors 

NAME DATE OF 
DECLAR
ATION 
 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

Kate Shields  
Chief Executive 

28.02.19 - - - - - - 

Karl Simkins 
Director of 
Finance 

15.12.20 Ongoing Healthcare Financial 
Management 
Association (HFMA) 

Member of HFMA 
Financial Management 
& Research committee 
Attendance at HFMA 
Policy events 
(Unpaid) 

Professional 
advice to NHS 
and other 
healthcare 
finance staff. 
Publications 
production and 
training & 
development 
events 

Both 
Charitable 
& Profit 
Making 
arms 

Involved in providing 
professional contributions 
to publications & products 
which are sold to the NHS. 
Provide professional 
advice to the committee 
which could be used in 
formal responses to 
external organisations e.g. 
DH & Monitor 
Healthcare 

Healthcare Financial 
Management 
Association (HFMA) 

Chair / Member of 
HFMA System Interest 
Group 
(Unpaid) 

Professional 
advice to NHS 
and other 
healthcare 
finance staff. 
Publications 
production and 
training & 
development 

Both 
Charitable 
& Profit 
Making 
arms 

Involved in providing 
professional contributions 
to publications & products 
which are sold to the NHS. 
Provide professional 
advice to the committee 
which could be used in 
formal responses to 
external organisations e.g. 
DH & Monitor 
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NAME DATE OF 
DECLAR
ATION 
 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

events Healthcare 
Sally May 
Director of 
Finance 

12.02.19 15.12.20 Cornwall 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Director of Finance 
dual role with the Trust 
and the Royal Cornwall 
Hospitals NHS Trust’ 

NHS 
Foundation 
Trust 

NHS  To be managed as 
appropriate 
 

Kim O’Keeffe 
Joint Director of 
Nursing, 
Midwifery & AHP 

09.07.20 Ongoing Cornwall 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Joint Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and 
Allied Health 
Professionals 

NHS 
Foundation 
Trust 

NHS To be managed as 
appropriate 

Ongoing University of 
Plymouth 

Honorary Associate 
Professor of Nursing 
 

Higher 
Education 
Institution 

Non-Profit 
UK 
University 

The duty to declare a 
possible conflict of interest 
will be judged and made 
for individual activities that 
present in this role. This 
would cover educational 
and research topics in the 
main 

Allister Grant 
Medical Director 

15.06.20 Ongoing RCHT Consultant 
Hepatologist and 
Medical Director 

RCHT / NHS NHS Employer 

Susan Bracefield 
Chief Operating 
Officer 

08.07.20 - - - - - - 

Thomas Lafferty 
Director of 
Strategy and 
Performance 

08.07.20 Ongoing TWL Associates Director Governance 
Consultancy 

Profit 
Making 
(Inactive)  

No 

Kerry Eldridge 
Director of 

12.06.20 Ongoing Paradigm Shift 
Properties Limited 

Director  Property 
renovation 

Limited 
Company 

No 
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NAME DATE OF 
DECLAR
ATION 
 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

People &O – Profit 
Making 

Ongoing Norfolk Stores 
Limited 

Director Village grocery 
store and Post 
Office 

Limited 
Company 
– Profit 
Making 

No 

Bernadette 
George 
Director of 
Integrated 
Governance 

15.06.20 - - - - - - 

Kelvyn 
Hipperson 
Chief Information 
Officer 

23.06.20 Ongoing Cornwall 
Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Information 
Officer 

NHS 
Foundation 
Trust / 
Healthcare 
provision 

NHS  To be managed as 
appropriate 
 

Sian Millard 
Company 
Secretary 

08.07.20 - - - - - - 

Karen Kay 
System Director 
for Urgent and 
Emergency Care 

16.06.20 Ongoing Kenow Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group 

Substantive 
Employment 

NHS 
Commissioner 

NHS Substantive Employment 

Ongoing Royal Cornwall 
Hospitals NHS Trust 

System Director for 
Urgent and Emergency 
Care 

NHS Acute 
Trust 

NHS The role requires me to act 
on behalf of and balance 
the interests of all partner 
organisations across the 
UEC system, specifically 
acting on behalf of RCHT, 



 

 4 

NAME DATE OF 
DECLAR
ATION 
 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

CFT, Cornwall Council and 
Kernow CCG 

 
Non-Executive Directors 

 
NAME DATE 

OF 
LATEST 
DECLAR
ATION 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

Mairi McLean 
Chairwoman 

05.11.20 Ongoing Manage Europe Chief Executive Governance 
and leadership 
consultancy 

Profit  To be managed as 
appropriate 

Ongoing The Safeguarding 
Community 

Managing Partner Safeguarding 
governance and 
practice and 
tech solutions - 
Consultancy 

Non-Profit None 

Ongoing Schumacher 
Institute  

Fellow Multiple – 
Interest in 
infrastructure 
resilience - 
Consultancy 

Charity  None 

Ongoing Stephens Scown 
LLP 

Provide consultancy 
and mentoring 

Governance 
and leadership 
consultancy 

Profit Stephens Scown LLP 
occasionally provides legal 
advice to the Trust. Interest 
to be managed at 
appropriate points 
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NAME DATE 
OF 
LATEST 
DECLAR
ATION 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

Paul Hobson 
Non-Executive 
Director 

12.06.20 Ongoing CSW Group Ltd CEO / Director Developing 
people 

Not for 
profit 

None 

Ongoing Ansome Ltd Founder/Director Healthcare 
consulting and 
advisory 

Profit 
making 

Unlikely 

Sarah Pryce 
Non-Executive 
Director 

12.06.20 Ongoing The Critical Friend Owner Consultancy 
specialising in 
business 
coaching, 
leadership 
development, 
resilience 

Profit 
Making 

None currently but could 
secure work with an NHS 
supplier or partner 
organisation.  Have 
previously carried out 
some work for Healthwatch 
Cornwall. 

Ongoing Oxford Innovation Business Coach Coaching 
support for high 
growth business 
in Cornwall 

Profit 
Making 

None currently, but could 
secure work with an NHS 
supplier or partner 
organisation. 

Ongoing Kernowforno Director Event catering Profit 
making 

None 

Concluded  Cornwall Air 
Ambulance Trust 

Chairman Air Ambulance Charity Negotiations around RCHT 
seconding doctors on 
helicopters. New heli 
appeal and RCHT charity 
could potentially lead to a 
conflict. 

Margaret 
Schwarz 
Non-Executive 
Director (left 

30.07.20 01 Nov 
2016 - 1 
January 
2021 

Cornish Mutual 
Assurance Co 

Governance Lead General 
Insurance 

Mutual None 
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NAME DATE 
OF 
LATEST 
DECLAR
ATION 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

01.01.2021) 01 Nov 
2016 - 1 
January 
2021 

Cornwall Foundation 
Trust 

Non-Executive Director Health Care 
Provision 

NHS  To be managed as 
appropriate 

2020 - 1 
January 
2021 

System Chair of System Joint 
Quality Assurance 
Committee 

Health Care NHS To be managed as 
appropriate 

Gillian Vivian 
Non-Executive 
Director (left 
09.10.2020) 

28.05.20 10 October 
2018 – 9 
October 
2020 

Alliance Medical Independent reporter Radiology 
services to NHS 

Profit They provide PETCT on 
RCHT site 

10 October 
2018 – 9 
October 
2020 

In Health Advisor on PETCT 
Thames Valley 

Radiology 
services to NHS 

Profit None known 

10 October 
2018 – 9 
October 
2020 

DMC Ltd Independent reporter Radiology 
services to NHS 

Profit None known 

10 October 
2018 – 9 
October 
2020 

Plymouth Hospitals 
University Trust 

Covid-19 returnee Clinical  NHS None 

10 October 
2018 – 9 
October 
2020 

AAA UK (subsidiary 
of Novartis Ltd) 

Consultant Provision of 
radio-isotopes 
services to NHS 

Profit  Unlikely 
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NAME DATE 
OF 
LATEST 
DECLAR
ATION 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

Richard 
Stephenson 
Non-Executive 
Director 

12.06.20 Ongoing University of Salford Emeritus Professor Higher 
Education 
(Charity) 

Honorary 
position 

None 

Sarah Newton  
Non-Executive 
Director 

01.10.20 Ongoing Health and Safety 
Executive 

Chair Regulatory / 
Public Body 

Public 
Body 

None  

Adam Broome 
Non-Executive 
Director 

11.11.20 Ongoing Self-employed  Coach/Trainer Coaching / 
Training 

Profit None 

Ongoing Member of 
Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance 
and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) South West 
Region 

Member of Council 
(Voluntary) 

Supporting 
CIPFA 
Members/Traine
es in South 
West 

Charity None 

Rob Leighfield 
Associate Non-
Executive 
Director (left 
15.10.2020) 

12.06.20 15 October 
2018 – 15 
October 
2020 

Jamie Lewington 
and Co Ltd 

Management 
Consultancy  

Financial Advice 
and wealth 
management 

Profit 
Making 

No 

15 October 
2018 – 15 
October 
2020 

St Anne’s Nursing 
Home 

Chef Residential 
home 

Profit 
Making 

No 

 Samaritans Volunteer Emotional 
Support to 
callers 

Charity No 
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NAME DATE 
OF 
LATEST 
DECLAR
ATION 

RELEVANT 
DATES 

ORGANISATION ROLE(S) ACTIVITY STATUS ANY THAT COULD LEAD 
TO CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST 

Ruth Allarton 
Associate Non-
Executive 
Director 

12.06.20 Ongoing Health Education 
England 

Consultancy Public body Public 
body  

None 

Concluded Chartered Society of 
Physiotherapy 

Consultancy Professional 
Body 

Charity None 

Richard Smith 
Associate Non-
Executive 
Director 

12.06.20 Ongoing University of Exeter 
Medical School 

Deputy Pro Vice 
Chancellor and 
Professor in Health 
Economics 

Higher 
Education 

Profit None 

Ongoing South West 
Academic Health 
Science Network 

Non-Executive Director National 
network set up 
by NHS 
England to 
identify, adopt 
and disseminate 
innovative 
healthcare 

Limited 
company 

None 
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Minutes of the Trust Board Meeting in Public of the Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS 
Trust held on Thursday 7 January 2021 at 10.00 – 13.35 via Microsoft Teams (virtual 

meeting software) 
 
 
Voting Directors Present:    
Mairi McLean (MM), Chairwoman (MS Teams) 
Kate Shields (KS), Chief Executive (MS Teams) 
Sarah Pryce (SP), Non-Executive Director (MS Teams) 
Paul Hobson (PH), Non-Executive Director (MS Teams) 
Richard Stephenson (RSt), Non-Executive Director (MS Teams) 
Sarah Newton (SN), Non-Executive Director (MS Teams) 
Adam Broome, (AB), Non-Executive Director (MS Teams) 
Kim O’Keeffe (KOK), Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery & AHP and Deputy Chief Execu-
tive (MS Teams) 
Allister Grant (AG), Medical Director (MS Teams) 
Karl Simkins (KSim), Director of Finance (MS Teams) 
Thomas Lafferty (TL), Director of Strategy and Performance (MS Teams) 
 
Non-Voting Directors Present: 
Ruth Allarton (RA), Associate Non-Executive Director (MS Teams)  
Rich Smith (RSm), Associate Non-Executive Director (MS Teams) 
Kerry Eldridge (KE), Director of People and Organisational Development (MS Teams) 
Bernadette George (BG), Director of Integrated Governance (MS Teams) 
Kelvyn Hipperson (KH), Chief Information Officer (MS Teams) 
Karen Kay (KK), System Director for Urgent and Emergency Care (MS Teams) 
 
In Attendance: 
Ricky Daniel (RD), Interim Director of Estates (MS Teams) 
Robin Jones (RJ), Acting Director of Operations (MS Teams) 
Caroline Ellis, Admiral Nurse (MS Teams) (for item 6, minute 20.216) 
Mark Jadav, Clinical Lead (MS Teams) (for item 11, minute 20.221) 
Lynsey Neave (LN), Deputy Company Secretary (minutes) (MS Teams) 
 
The order of the minutes may not reflect the order of the discussion 
 
 
20.211 Welcome & Apologies for Absence 

 
 a. The Chairwoman: 

 i) reminded the Board that the meeting would be recorded and made available on the 
Trust’s YouTube channel for a period of one month 

 ii) conveyed New Year’s wishes to the Board and members of the public joining the 
meeting 

 iii) noted the length of the agenda which reflected the scale of work underway at the 
Trust 
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 b. Apologies for absence were noted from Margaret Schwarz, Non-Executive Director and 
Susan Bracefield, Chief Operating Officer. Deputies were in attendance as appropriate. 

 
20.212 Declaration of Interest / Register of Board Member Interests 
 
a. The Board noted the Register of Interests and no new interests were raised. 

 
b. Directors declared no interests in relation to items on the agenda.  
 
20.213 Minutes of Previous Board meeting 
 
a. The minutes of the meeting held on 3 December 2020 were approved as an accurate 

record without amendment. 
 
20.214 Matters Arising and Action Log 

 
a. Alongside the written updates in the Action Log, the Board noted the updates provided 

to actions: 
i) 20.196 ei – discharge to assess indicator for the Integrated Performance Report: 

The Director of Strategy and Performance confirmed that the new indicator would 
be available from March 2021 

ii) 20.163 di) – training for doctors: the Medical Director confirmed that mandatory 
training sessions had been sent to all consultants and was live on ESR (the staff e-
learning site). Mandatory online training was available separate to this and would be 
delivered via MS Teams by the end of January) 
 

b. The Board agreed to close all actions proposed as complete 
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20.215 Chairwoman’s and Chief Executive’s Opening Remarks 
 

 a. The Chairwoman made some introductory comments and the Board noted: 
 i) the Covid-19 pandemic, its impact on society and individuals with thanks to all staff 

for their efforts  
 ii) the reappointment of Karl Simkins as Director of Finance following the Joint Director 

of Finance’s (Sally May) return to her substantive position with Cornwall Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust (CFT); the Chairwoman conveyed thanks on behalf of the 
Board to Sally May for her services to the Trust  
 

b. The Chairwoman invited the Chief Executive to make opening remarks and the Board 
noted: 
i) the Chief Executive’s written report as included in the pack 
ii) the Trust was starting to see the most challenging time in its history and the dedica-

tion and hard work of staff and colleagues across the system to do their best to care 
for the people of Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly   

iii) the recently published Ockenden Review of maternity safety at Shrewsbury and Tel-
ford NHS Trust and the resulting recommendations for all Trusts 

iv) included in the Chief Executive’s report was a link to the full report for the Board’s in-
formation 

v) the Trust had responded in mid-December to seven immediate and essential actions 
from the Ockenden Review that were required of all maternity services as a result of 
the report and reported compliance in all areas except for having a lead consultant 
for foetal monitoring; a lead midwife was in place 

vi) Trust staff were continuing to work through the recommendations from the report, 
alongside requirements for the Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trust Maternity Safe-
ty (CNST maternity) to ensure alignment 

vii) Sarah Newton, Non-Executive Director, would be the Board’s Non-Executive Mater-
nity Safety Champion, alongside the Executive Maternity Safety Champion, the Joint 
Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs 

viii) a consultation by NHS England on transformation of urgent and emergency care in-
cluding models and measurements; the Trust would coordinate a response  

ix) a consultation by NHS Improvement on the future potential models of Integrated 
Care Systems which was due to close on 8 January 2021; the Trust had contributed 
to a System-wide response which would be submitted on behalf of all system leaders 

x) the incredible work of Roz Davies, General Manager, who had pioneered the recy-
cling of single use face-masks, making RCHT the first Trust in the country to take 
such an innovative approach to recycling single use personal protective equipment  

xi) that the Finance team had been shortlisted for three awards in the recent Healthcare 
Financial Management Association (HMFA) awards and the Costing Team won the 
Costing Award for their innovative ways of improving data quality and raising the pro-
file of costing; the Board conveyed its warm congratulations to the team 

xii) the awarding of the British Empire Medal to the Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery 
and AHPs; the Board conveyed its warm congratulations 
 

c. The Board raised no questions or areas of challenge 
 

d. The Board resolved to: 
i) congratulate Roz Davis, General Manager, for her work on recycling single use 

PPE and to the finance team for their nominations and award 
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ii) congratulations to the Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs on awarding 
of her British Empire Medal 

iii) note the report from the Chief Executive  
 

 
20.216 Patient Story 
 
a. The Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs introduced this item and was joined 

by Caroline Ellis (CE), Admiral Nurse, who presented on the Admiral Nurse Service: 
 

b. The Board noted: 
i) the valiant work of the Admiral Nurses and specifically the incredible work of CE in 

her service to the Trust and leadership of the service 
ii) the patient story as read out by the Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs 

which related to a patient/their family’s experience of the Admiral Nurse Service 
iii) the history of Admiral Nurses and the service offered by the Admiral Nurse team 
iv) the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on patients – physically, mentally and emotion-

ally – and the changes made to the service as a result 
v) how staff and teams have worked flexibility to switch services to where it is needed 

to address feelings of isolation and frustration for patients and their families 
 

c. The Board discussed: 
i) NED challenge (SN): whether the funding for the Admiral Nurse Service was now 

secure, noting that it had started in Cornwall due to the fund-raising efforts of a local 
resident. The Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs confirmed that the fund-
ing was secure and the focus was now on building upon the service for the future 

ii) NED challenge (RSt): whether future need for the service had been mapped against 
future resource requirements. The Chief Executive responded that the need had not 
yet been mapped against resource and that, as a population need issue, the future 
requirement would be raised through the Integrated Care System. There was a 
known significant need for dementia services in the county as a result of an aging 
population, especially to ensure early intervention, and to improve connections with 
the voluntary sector 

iii) the opportunities through integration with CFT to address needs such as this through 
a better coordinated approach to ‘body and mind’ 

iv) the amazing work of CE and the team and thanks for their work 
 

d. The Board resolved to:  
i) convey thanks to Caroline Ellis and the Admiral Nurse service team for their incred-

ible work throughout the pandemic 
ii) note the story on the Admiral Nurse Service 

 
 
20.217 Covid-19 Response Update  
 
a. The Acting Director of Operations verbally briefed the Board using a slide deck on the 

status of the Trust’s response to Covid-19 and the Board noted: 
i) the increasing infection rate across the county and nationally 
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ii) that there were currently 56 in-patients with Covid-19 and there had been 18 more 
deaths since the last meeting, taking the total of number of in-patients at the Trust 
who had passed away to 96 

iii) the approach to managing the response and recovery, driven by the four-phase 
plans to respond to critical care need 

iv) the Trust was readying for expansion of critical care and redeployment of non-clinical 
staff to support front-line services  

v) all processes for escalation and de-escalation of response had clinical check-points 
to ensure a clinically-led, structured response to Covid-19 

vi) as the levels of Covid-19 increased in the hospital, more routine, elective work would 
need to stand down, as seen in other parts of the country  

vii) the clinical route to decisions about cancellations through assessment of patients by 
clinical leaders 

viii) cancer patients and urgent cases would remain protected as they were during the 
first wave  

ix) use of the collaborative staff bank via Kernowflex and work with the Department for 
Work and Pensions (DWP) to bring in more care buddies who would become Health 
Care Assistants of the future 

x) that together with the tremendous community response for the Trust’s vaccination 
sites, over 1500 applications, including volunteers, had been received to support 
Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly (IoS) communities receive their Covid-19 vaccine as 
quickly as possible 

xi) the changes to the visiting policy and additional restrictions put in place to respond to 
the national Tier 5 and lockdown, as agreed by Clinical Practitioners Cabinet, with 
certain exemptions including for maternity (12 and 20 week scan) and end of life pa-
tients, in order to reduce footfall and keep the site as safe as possible 

xii) the focused DWP partnership work via the Kickstart Programme aimed at young 
people to ensure career opportunities for Cornwall and IoS communities; the work 
which was undertaken with all care partners across Health and Social Care in all set-
tings had identified 150 placements which could be extended over time  

xiii) an update on delivery of the Covid-19 vaccine which had started at RCHT, working 
with system partners, on 9 December 2020; government instructions on priority 
groups was being followed  

xiv) a reminder of the approach to recovering elective care and impact of increasing 
Covid-19 cases on recovery 

xv) impressive leadership from the Trust’s Clinical Directors with regards the clinical pri-
oritisation of waiting lists (harm review) and the way triumverates were working to-
gether 

xvi) performance with regards referral to treatment (RTT), 52 week waits, diagnostics 
and cancers and the expected impact on recovery, especially with regards RTT and 
52 week waits, of the increase in Covid-19 cases and resulting impact on capacity; a 
revised trajectory would be provided for the next Board meeting  

xvii) diagnostics were protected at this time to reduce the risk of harm 
xviii) cancer activity remained a priority from an elective perspective and the expected 

drop in performance for November, noting that breast cancer patients were still being 
treated within target 

xix) the key risks to the Trust in particular with regards capacity and minimising harm 
xx) the impact of Covid-19 on staff absence and subsequent impact on recovery 
xxi) the challenges faced by the Trust, especially with regards anticipated Covid-19 

surge and impact on recovery and capacity  
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b. The Board discussed: 

i) NED challenge (MM): confirmation that any cancellations of elective care were clini-
cally reviewed before being enacted. The Acting Director of Operations confirmed 
that was the case and the harm review process was being enacted 

ii) NED challenge (MM): whether, with regards the challenge on capacity, the Trust was 
pulling on recently retired NHS staff. The Acting Director of Operations confirmed 
that the Trust was not yet pulling on the recently retired but the Trust was readying 
staff for the expected surge including redeployment opportunities for non-clinical staff 
and members of the Executive team were also looking at what they could do to help. 
The Trust was to provide mutual aid to the county’s care/nursing homes to support 
the community and help reduce the number of admissions needed to hospital. Staff 
volunteering for redeployment were being supported through a training package and 
there was a workforce wellbeing programme for staff   

iii) NED challenge (PH): enormously reassuring that the response was clinically-led. 
Whether the Trust was seeing similar levels of support from the community during 
the first wave and if not whether anything more needed to be done to support staff. 
The Acting Director of Operations noted that the Trust was not seeing the same level 
of support via donations but that it had encouraged kind offers of food from the 
community to be redirected to local foodbanks; at this stage, any kind donations that 
the community may wish to make would be best directed through the RCHT Charity. 
The Trust was focusing on supporting staff and would welcome volunteer networks 
working outside of the hospital helping to ensure that only people who needed inter-
vention in an acute setting came into hospital to reduce footfall 

iv) NED challenge (SN): what the timeline was for finalisation of the Progressive Recov-
ery Unit. The Chief Executive responded that work had started on the development 
but that unfortunately asbestos had been discovered which meant it would not be 
available as an additional space this winter 

v) NED challenge (SP): how standing down of elective activity was being proactively 
communicated to patients. The Acting Director of Operations confirmed that every 
patient who was cancelled would be communicated with directly and offered individ-
ual patient support. With regards wider communications, work was underway across 
Cornwall to explain the focus on clinical urgency and to make clear alternative care 
pathways available through, for example, through GP’s and NHS 111  

vi) NED challenge (MM): assurance requested on the effectiveness of infection control. 
The Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs confirmed that the Trust was clin-
ically- and infection, prevent and control (IPAC)-led. When moving wards or path-
ways there was continuous discussion with clinicians and IPAC on how best to keep 
patients safe. The flexibility of staff was key to those resulting actions. The Chief Ex-
ecutive commented that IPAC actions were also linked to lateral flow testing for staff 
(including those employed through Kernowflex) to help minimise the risk of asymp-
tomatic spread. The Trust had a baseline understanding of the level of infections 
across the Trust and where outbreaks occurred, the IPAC team led robust contact 
tracing to close down the route of onward transmission. The IPAC team set the ob-
jective to identify an entire red ward and clinical leaders came together to identify the 
ward and then IPAC ratified the solution. Thanks conveyed to Lisa Duckham for her 
role in coordinating the roll-out of lateral flow testing 
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vii) NED challenge (RSt): whether NHS 111 resource was geared up for the potential in-
crease in demand. The Chief Executive responded that NHS 111 had reduced the 
impact on urgent and emergency care pathways by 30%. The difficulty at times of 
peak and surge was that call handlers across the country were redirected to areas of 
most need and as such the county would sometimes lose call handlers if demand 
was lower in Cornwall than areas with high demand. Kernow Clinical Commissioning 
Group were monitoring the situation and seeking to address gaps. The NHS 111 po-
sition was reviewed during Silver calls by the system. The Chief Executive thanked 
system partners for their support over the Christmas period including NHS 111 col-
leagues who stepped in to support Urgent Treatment Centres and Cornwall Partner-
ship NHS Trust who opened an additional ward  

viii) the Board reported its assurance that appropriate actions being taken to respond to 
Covid-19 and look after staff and patients 

 
c. The Board resolved to: 

i) note the update on Covid-19 response/recovery  
ii) thank the Acting Director of Operations and all teams for the work being undertaken 

by the Trust in response to the pandemic 
 

 
STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE 
 
20.118 Integrated Performance Report 

 
a. The Chief Executive Introduced this report and the Board noted: 

i) the error in the cover report which had stated the report related to August data but it 
was in fact data for November 

ii) cancer standards were being maintained, supported by excellent diagnostics 
iii) length of stay was increasing which reflected the level of saturation across Cornwall.  
iv) the number of falls had decreased but moderate harm from falls had risen  
v) 83 days since last never event and work continuing on the relevant actions across 

the Trust  
vi) financially, the Trust was working to the control total that had been given  
vii) substantive staffing had increased and would increase further over the next six 

months; testament to the work of the People and OD team 
viii) operating within the parameters of agency spend due to reducing reliance on bank 

and agency; acknowledged the work of Kernowflex staff to support across the county 
 
 

a. Brilliant Care (Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs; Director of Integrated 
Governance, Medical Director and Acting Director of Operations): 
i) falls had substantially decreased which gave confidence in the integrated falls im-

provement plan with CFT, however moderate harm from falls had increased (4). 
Those moderate harm cases were being reviewed. The Trust had also reviewed the 
number of falls in those who had been deemed medically fit for discharge and were 
waiting for a care pathway – 17 had been identified during November 

ii) closely monitor the Emergency Department (ED) safety checklist which highlights 
fundamentals of care – this was running at 97%; there was an increase in patients 
receiving hourly pain relief and a slight drop in documentation; for the latter, an issue 
had been identified in relation to use of stickers and was being addressed 
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iii) there had been nine c-difficile cases (stomach upset, often linked to antibiotics), four 
of which occurred at the Trust; investigation had not identified any common theme 
and suggested they were unavoidable. A ‘fresh-eyes’ review was expected from the 
new consultant nurse for infection, prevention and control to provide added assur-
ance 

iv) staffing was monitored closely with regards planned versus actual, managed through 
twice-daily staffing meetings, support from the Kernowflex team and work across 
acute and community settings to share and redeploy staff 

v) the Medical Director had commissioned a root cause analysis with regards the ED 
sepsis measure of patients receiving antibiotics within one hour, given a drop in per-
formance in September. The work had identified an improvement to the measure 
from 76% to 82% however that was still below target. The common theme identified 
was that some patients were being moved from the Rapid Assessment Treatment 
(RATs) areas into the main ED without receiving antibiotics and there was then some 
delay in using the screening tool for some of those patients. Training was being 
rolled-out to address the issue and was being monitored via the ED sepsis group 
and action plan  

vi) stroke performance had fallen with regards the target of four hours due to significant 
operational pressures and lack of rehabilitation beds in the community  

vii) Duty of Candour was now at 100% 
viii) there had been a dip in complaints performance and as a result of a detailed im-

provement programme this had improved to 69%, but was still below target; work 
continued with Care Groups to further improve  

ix) referral to treatment, diagnostics and cancer performance had been covered via the 
Covid-19 update item 

x) ED performance and ambulance handover was still below target and was impacted 
by outflow from the organisation and Covid-19 rules with regards the need to test pa-
tients on arrival to determine their in-hospital red/green pathway. Ambulance holds 
were important as delays impacted not only the person waiting to be admitted to 
hospital but those waiting in the community for an ambulance to attend; the Trust 
was working with South West Ambulance Service NHS Trust, Cornwall Partnership 
NHS Trust, and social care to ensure as many ambulances as possible could stay on 
the road 

xi)  that although patients waits were longer in ED, the ED safety checklist was being 
undertaken on time and triage remained on track 
 

b. Brilliant People (Director of People and OD) 
i) work through the shared bank to redirect resource across the system to help ensure 

patients were cared for as close to home as possible 
ii) the Trust’s low turn-over rate and on-boarding of new starters 
iii) 98% use of the apprenticeship levy and work to support other organisations in the 

county to make best use of the levy across Cornwall and IoS 
iv) the new partnership with DWP and work across three workstreams, with confidence 

that by March the Health Care Assistants target would be reached 
v) areas of concern remained in relation to staff appraisals and compliance with man-

datory training; the latter was impacted by Covid-19 where the focus of training had 
been redirected to redeployment  

 
c. Brilliant Improvement (Director of Strategy and Performance) 
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i) with regards QI (quality improvement) training, most members of the QI hub had 
been redeployed to support the Covid-19 response however targets for the training 
were still being met 

ii) the Trust was ahead of target on the number of live innovations against the trajectory 
articulated in the Innovation Strategy, with a focus on green innovations 

iii) the two research and development metrics were trending ahead of trajectory on re-
cruitment to trials and research income; this was mainly due to engagement with two 
Covid-19 related studies and signaled the first time in recent history that the Trust 
was projecting a clear ‘profit’ from the research and development department  

iv) the digital section of the report needed more work to focus on the most impactful in-
dicators as the amber ratings were not reflective of the work undertaken and its im-
pact  
 

d. The Board discussed: 
i) NED challenge (AB): the timescale for improving stroke access within four hours. 

The Acting Director of Operations stated that there were a number of actions under-
way through the Site Office with regards prioritising stroke patients and Kernow CCG 
were supporting increase of capacity  

ii) NED challenge (MM and SP): when would the ongoing issue with appraisals and 
mandatory training be resolved, what mitigations were being put in place and were 
other Trusts experiencing the same challenges. The Director of People and OD re-
sponded that with regards mandatory training the biggest area of concern was man-
ual handling and a number of options were being worked through with the health and 
safety team to mitigate the issue. A formal peer review had been secured, with a 
team recognised as providing outstanding mandatory training in the South West, and 
bench-marking was underway. An additional space was required for manual han-
dling and options were being progressed with the support of the Interim Director of 
Estates. Nationally, there was a reduction of appraisal and mandatory training com-
pliance, with a high level of sickness across other Trusts.  

iii) NED challenge (RSt): was there any indication that research and development might 
be suspended with the greater prevalence of Covid-19, notwithstanding the Covid-19 
research itself. The Director of Strategy and Performance responded that there was 
no such indication at the moment and confirmed that a significant proportion of non-
Covid-19 related research related to oncology where a new contract had just been 
won.  The impact of Covid-19 on research and development activity would be moni-
tored acknowledging that it represented a risk  
 

e. The Board resolved to note the Integrated Performance Report for the period to 30 No-
vember 2020 

 
20.219 Month 8 Finance Report 
 
a. The Director of Finance introduced this report and the Board noted: 

i) the positive revenue positon with an improvement of £400k against plan 
ii) at present the forecast for the year end remained on plan at a £5.9m deficit; this was 

to allow for an increase in activity, costs associated with winter pressures or to pro-
vide for any lost income under the Elective Incentive Scheme as a result of activity 
being below plan. 

iii) however, the forecast could reduce from Month 9 if activity levels did not increase 
and the activity and capacity and other reserves were not expected to be fully used 
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iv) the Trust was projecting forward in light of the operational position with Covid-19 and 
would be undertaking a formal forecast at month 9   

v) Finance and Performance Committee had noted the financial plan to which the Trust 
was working towards comprised two elements: an assumption of Covid-19 neutrality 
(which was not reflective of the current reality) and the associated risks in the current 
context, and the framework of system based finances  

vi) the Trust held cash of £45.6m at 30 November; this was much higher than normal 
due to the cash advances being received in advance of each coming month 

vii) regular meetings were taking place between the Director of Finance of the System 
and the Director of Finance of CFT and that the collective system position would be 
reconciled once month 8 reporting had been received by the boards 

viii)the capital programme totaled £59m with the core traditional programme (capital de-
partmental expenditure limit , CEDL) comprising £17m and the remaining balance 
being the major capital builds at the Trust (e.g. MRI/oncology) 

ix) the controls in place to manage each of the programmes 
x) the defined programme identified for the Progressive Recovery Unit (PRU) for the 

remainder of the 20/21 financial year and into 2021/22 
 

b. The Board discussed: 
i) the key risk, as discussed by Finance and Performance Committee, to the revenue 

position in relation to the Trust’s response to Covid-19 given the assumption within 
the plan of Covid-19 neutrality (RSt)  

ii) that should levels of Covid-19 be higher than anticipated, the Trust risked not deliver-
ing activity targets and losing income through the Elective Incentive Scheme (RSt) 

 
c. The Board resolved to: 

i) note the financial position for the period to 30 November 2020 
 
20.220Committee Assurance Reports 
 
a. The Board noted the following summaries from its Committees: 

 
b. Remuneration and Appointments Committee (11 and 22 December 2020) 

i) considered a proposal to bring in additional senior HR support while the Director of 
People and OD undertakes additional duties with regards the System Lead for Work-
force and OD and requested the proposal be re-submitted for consideration following 
clarification of a number of points; resubmitted proposal was subsequently approved 
subject to NHSI approval 

ii) confirmed Karl Simkins as the Trust’s Director of Finance  
iii) approved an extension of one year to the secondment of Karen Kay in her role as 

System Director for Urgent and Emergency Care 
iv) requested a detailed spreadsheet setting out Director’s salaries, on-costs and con-

tract status, including secondment details, to ensure that decisions in regards any 
changes were made in a proactive and timely way 
 

c. Finance and Performance Committee (14 December 2020) 
i) no items to escalate to the Board by exception 
ii) considered a number of items on Board in Public or Board in Committee agendas 
iii) recommended for approval the Emergency Department/RATs Full Business Case, 

noting that capital spend was on track and the need for a revenue forecast 
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iv) reviewed the Month 8 finance report, noting that agency spend had increased slightly 
but was still sitting below plan 

v) challenged the standing down of performance reviews due to operational pressures  
vi) received a presentation on the interim strategic estates master plan and noted it as a 

useful contextual reference point for all work capital works across the trust 
vii) considered provisional full business case for the Progressive Recovery Unit, noting 

the delay to the overall timescales for completion due to the discovery of asbestos 
on the site  

viii) considered the critical care business case, noting the revenue cost investment and 
the requirement to therefore seek system-level support  

ix) received a briefing on the pathology service and its relocation, which was linked to 
the Women’s and Children’s build, and that a proposal would come forward for con-
sideration in early 2021 

x) received the standard procurement report, noted strong performance and discuss 
the potential impact of Brexit on supply chains  

xi) a request from the Committee to receive a full revenue forecast  
xii) noted the excellent work of the costings team and their recent award 

 
d. People and OD Committee (15 December 2020) 

i) received and noted the non-medical education annual report, which highlighted the 
response to the pandemic and maintenance of work experience and apprenticeships 

ii) discussed challenges around mandatory training and particularly manually handling, 
which were exacerbated by the impact of Covid-19 and related measures; the Com-
mittee challenged and requested additional assurance on mandatory training 

iii) reviewed the brilliant people report which included an update on professional stand-
ards and Integrated Performance Report data and requested that going forward a 
separate report on professional standards be prepared 

iv) noted and welcomed the staff survey response of 59% 
v) received a briefing and requested further assurance on plans for financial wellbeing 

for staff on  
vi) received updates on the people and organisational development restructure, the 

concept of a just and learning culture and progress on the HR system reset project 
 

e. Quality Assurance Committee and Joint Quality Assurance Committee (16 De-
cember 2020) 
i) the RCHT Quality Assurance Committee was being chaired by Richard Stephenson 

on a temporary basis while Margaret Schwarz was Acting Chair of Cornwall Partner-
ship NHS Foundation Trust 

ii) at the Joint Committee meeting:  
• reviewed visiting guidance in light of the pandemic and the process for review 
• received the safeguarding adults annual report and commended the work under-

taken by the entire system over the previous year; the Committee would continue 
to review performance and the resources required through the quarterly safe-
guarding reports 

• received an update on the mass vaccination programme 
• reviewed the work programme for the committee over the coming year and as-

pired to consolidate and expand business considered by the joint meeting and, in 
doing so, reduce the overall time for each individual committee 

iii) at the RCHT Committee meeting: 
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• received the health and safety update report, noting the areas of risk with regards 
capacity, vacancies in the team and the risk with regards manual handling, noting 
plans to identify a suitable physical space  

• reviewed harm review performance and performance with regards 52 and 78 
week waits, noting the impact of Covid-19  

• noted the new national guidance with regards harm reviews which had been sus-
pended in favour of a risk-based approach; the Trust’s approach to a risk-based 
harm reviews was already being undertaken in this way  

• received an early briefing on nosocomial infection rates  
• reviewed the incident review and learning group report and never event im-

provement plan, including early actions resulting from the recent Care Quality 
Commission targeted inspection and were assured on the plan and its delivery   

• received the ward to board report for quarter two and discussed areas of chal-
lenge including falls  

• received several standard quarterly reports for review including Learning from 
Deaths quarter two report and the quarterly Dementia Report; for the latter, the 
Committee noted that delirium reporting was now included and that there had 
been positive engagement with relatives throughout the pandemic 

 
f. Integration Committee (18 December 2020) 

i) the Chairwoman reminded the Board that the Integration Committee (CFT) was a 
committee in common between RCHT and Cornwall Partnership Foundation NHS 
Trust ; the committee reported into both Boards 

ii) the proposed integration of the two organisations was subject to regulator approval 
of the Strategic Case which was submitted in the autumn last year; an outcome was 
expected by the end of January/early February on whether the organisations could 
proceed to the Full Business Case stage 

iii) standing items which were received at every meeting including the programme up-
date report which covered progress by each workstream and the programme risk re-
port – there were no significant issues of concern however there was further discus-
sion about the capacity challenges to resource the transaction and plans to mitigate 
those; the Committee was satisfied with the plans in place 

iv) approved the draft agenda for the next Board-to-Board informal (which are sched-
uled on a quarterly basis) which would focus on learnings from other trusts who had 
been through an integration and discussions of the developing clinical and opera-
tional models 

v) suggested a buddying scheme with the CFT board which was supported 
vi) noted the recent board informal on Monday 4 January was positive  

 
g. The Board raised no questions or areas of challenge 

 
h. The Board resolved to: 

i) note the reports from the Committees 
ii) note the Ward to Board report, which had been considered by Quality Assurance 

Committee 
 

20.221 Emergency Department/Rapid Assessment Treatment Centre Full Business 
Case   
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 a. The Director of Strategy and Performance introduced this item and was joined by Mark 
Jadav, Clinical Lead. The Board noted: 

 i) the governance route for the business case, noting that it was recommended to the 
Board for approval by Finance and Performance Committee 

 ii) that at beginning of the year, the Board had decided to prioritise this capital scheme 
as a result of concerns raised about the emergency department infrastructure by the 
Care Quality Commission; £2.09m of Trust capital had been allocated to supplement 
additional capital received from the Department of Health and Social Care 

 iii) the Emergency Department (ED) expansion was now open and operational and the 
Rapid Assessment Treatment (RATs) unit would be ready from April 2021 

 iv) a small underspend was expected on the capital budget however the project posed a 
revenue risk  

 v) a temporary portakabin had been secured as a rest area for staff in advance of a fu-
ture bid for a permanent solution using the old Clinical Decision Unit (CDU) footprint 

 vi) phase 3 of the project would be subject to a separate business case and would re-
lates to the Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) and paedeatric accommodation, linked 
to the Women’s and Children’s hospital build 
 vii) the new ED build was meeting all requirements and has capacity now for six rather 
than three critically ill patients at any one time, including a paedeatric room as well 
which could also accommodate adults  

viii) all equipment was also housed better in the new space meaning it was on hand 
more readily and available in each cubicle in priority order  

 ix) two negative pressures rooms were now available in the resuscitation area so that 
patients could be intubated safely 

 x) patients had commented positively on the new area, noting that it felt calm which 
was all the more important during what could potentially be the worst moment of their 
life  

 xi) the Finance and Performance Committee had recommended the business case for 
approval to the Board however had acknowledged the revenue pressures for the fu-
ture and the need to identify a solution in that regard 
 xii)  a 360 degree walkthrough of the new ED space was available 
at https://my.matterport.com/show/?m=5TvpohZwy56   

 
 b. The Board discussed: 

 i) NED challenge (SN): assurance requested that the Trust ambitions with regards sus-
tainability and reduction of carbon impact was included in the design of the new 
space and for the upgrading/building of future facilities, including promotion of the lo-
cal workforce through the Trusts build programme. The Director of Strategy and Per-
formance confirmed that as a minimum the Trust was targeting good or very good in 
BREAMM building standards. Community benefit via local contractors was a key 
principles of the Trust’s estates programme and the Trust had ensured that the Stra-
tegic Partner contract elements of the work they were engaged in locally to boost lo-
cal employment opportunities   

 ii) praise for the new ED space and acknowledgement that the scheme would come in 
under budget for capital 

 iii) the financial implications into 2021/22 and clarification that the business case related 
to the existing Phase 1 of the scheme; that future phases would be subject to addi-
tional business  

 iv) that the revenue consequences of the business case would have been lower were it 
not for the impact of the Covid-19 environment  
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 v) the revenue consequences as a pre-commitment into 2021/22 was noted  
 

 c. The Board resolved to: 
 i) note the previous e-governance approval of the Strategic Outline Case for phase 1 

capital and total capital of £4.9m as set out in the Trust’s capital plan, including 
£2.8m of additional DH funded Public Dividend Capital linked to the Covid-19 re-
sponse;  

 ii) approve Phase 1 of the Full Business Case Reconfiguration of the RCHT Emergen-
cy Department, footprint to improve patient safety, experience and outcomes  

 iii) note the forecast underspend of £103k against the total capital budget in 2020/21; 
with a need for capital expenditure of £298k in 2021/22 for Phase 1 of the project  

 iv) note the revenue costs up to the 31st March 2021 outlined in the case related to 
phase 1, totalling £0.185m and note that for 2021/22 planning the full year resource 
impact will be considered and brought back for approval to the Finance and Perfor-
mance Committee / Trust Board as required 

 v) support the design of the phase 2 works programme and business case noting the 
implementation of the works will be subject to the overall capital prioritisation pro-
gramme for 21-22.  

 
 

QUALITY AND PEOPLE 
 
20.222 Outcome Letter of CQC Targeted Inspection of RCHT – Never Events 
 
a. The Chief Executive introduced this report and the Board noted: 

i) the Trust had declared eight Never Events in a six month period and had thought 
swift, appropriate actions had been taken but a Care Quality Commission (CQC) tar-
geted inspection in response to the Never Events had identified weaknesses in some 
areas 

ii) the CQC’s initial feedback letter to the Trust as included in the report which noted 
areas of good practice and identified a number of areas where further work was re-
quired 

iii) the CQC had requested that their initial feedback letter was acknowledged and dis-
cussed during the public session of the next Board meeting (which was the January 
meeting of the Board) 

iv) that the Never Events and outcome of the inspection reflected the Trust’s continued 
journey of improvement to do the best for the people of Cornwall and Isles of Scilly 

v) an overview of the CQC’s findings including that : 
i. staff were clear on how to undertake incident reporting  
ii. there was a no blame culture at the Trust and the Chief Executive was visible 
iii. areas for development included: 

1. an overly cautious approach taken to checking surgical sights by call-
ing consultants out of clinics which in itself caused additional safety is-
sues – overly cautious in checking dermatology sites e.g. calling con-
sultants out of clinics to double-check which could cause its own safety 
issues 

2. the Trust was not as responsive as it could be to undertake the actions 
required to improve, for example there was a known concern in derma-
tology about the timing of some appointments; discussions had been 
had but immediate actions not taken  
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3. gaps in relation to clinical governance at Care Group level and a lack of 
sharing of learning from never events across the Trust 

vi) the Chief Executive had chaired a quality improvement event with all teams involved 
in the never events and Care Groups in attendance  

vii) weekly Care Group meetings were in place to review and confirm all actions. For ex-
ample, dermatology appointments had been changed and clinicians reported positive 
improvement  

viii) there would initially be a separate action plans for the outcomes from the most re-
cent CQC targeted inspection regarding the never events and the regular CQC ac-
tion plan; they would then be combined into one plan  

ix) already uploaded onto ESR (electronic staff record) is some of the education that 
can be done online to support the actions 

x) the need a forward facing way of testing that all changes are being embedded within 
a safety culture and understand the human factors are core to a safety culture  

xi) looking at physical reminders to staff including ‘how are we doing’ boards to become 
digital, including all staff reminded how long since the never events  
 

b. The Board discussed: 
i) thanks conveyed for the honest and full report on the issues and the actions 
ii) NED challenge (RSt): whether the mutli-site relationship at the Trust had been im-

pacted due to Covid-19. The Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs stated 
that Covid-19 had not impacted cross-team working and teams were continuing to 
work across the three sites. There was some system-wide learning about how the 
WHO checklist is applied and would be working with system-wide quality group in 
that regard, especially highlighting human factors.  

iii) NED challenge (SP): with regards the dermatology never events, whether the re-
sponsive nature highlighted the risk of ‘knee-jerking’ a reaction as a result of eager-
ness to solve a problem inadvertently exposing the Trust. The Chief Executive 
agreed and noted that some of the issues could have been avoided by active listen-
ing to understand the concerns raised by staff and the impact of staff feeling vulner-
able to something going wrong 

iv) NED challenge (MM): whether enough was being done to enable patients to speak 
up about issues and the concept of them as a team member. The Chief Executive 
rescognised that there is a power dynamic between patients and clinicians which 
needs to be taken into account and more training required to level that playing field 
and better hear patients’ voice as directive partners in their care  
 

c. The Board resolved to: 
 note the CQC’s initial feedback letter dated 14 December 2020i)  

 
20.223 Learning from Deaths Q2 Report 2020/21 
 
a. The Medical Director introduced this report and the Board noted: 

i) the report set out the Trust’s policy, approach, quarterly data and learning points re-
garding learning from deaths 

ii) the report had been reviewed by the Mortality Review Oversight Group and Clinical 
Effectiveness Group, both which had wide clinical representation 

iii) the Trust’s mortality position continued to be ‘green’ with the Hospital Standardised 
Mortality Ratio (HMSR) increasing slightly to 98.16 which remained positively below 
the national average of 100 
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iv) in quarter two there were 12 priority deaths, where the categories of priority deaths 
are set out under National Guidance on Learning from Deaths 

v) two alerting red flags in relation to fractured neck of femur and other perinatal condi-
tions 

vi) with regards the red flag for fractured neck of femur, no significant emergent themes 
had been identified and the Trust was still on track to complete all actions following 
the March 2020 review by the British Association of Orthopaedics 

vii) the report had been reviewed by Quality Assurance Committee in advance of coming 
to Trust Board 

viii)plans were progressing for Medical Examiner roles; by March seven roles were ex-
pected to be in place with representation from across Cornwall to give good over-
sight of mortality in the county  
 

b. The Board discussed: 
i) NED challenge (AB): what the timescale was with regards the outstanding case from 

December 2019 (section 7 of the report. The Medical Director explained that the 
case remained outstanding due to missing case notes and he would chase the Care 
Group for an update on status  

ii) the clarity of the graphs in relation to expected and observed deaths and whether the 
figures reported were exceptional or not (KS)  
 

c. The Board resolved to: 
 i) note the Q2 Learning from Deaths report for information as part of its board assur-

ance arrangements. 
 

 d. The Board agreed the following action: 
 i) Medical Director to clarify in next quarterly Learning from Deaths report whether the 

expected and observed deaths as showed in the chart were exceptional or not 
against comparators 
 

20.224 Year 3 Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts (CNST) Maternity Incentive 
Scheme – progress update 

 
a. The Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs introduced this item and the Board 

noted:  
i) CNST was suspended during pandemic and relaunched in October 2020 and a new 

submission date of July 2021 advised 
ii) That CNST maternity reporting came to the Board via Quality Assurance Committee 

and additional reporting requirements, alongside the requirements from the Ock-
enden Review, would mean the Board would receive more frequent reports  

iii) the current progress against compliance, with a focus on safety actions 4 and 8  
iv) the conditions with regards submission of the Board’s declaration of compliance as 

set out in the report and the associated timelines 
 

b. The Board raised no questions or areas of challenge. 
 

c. The Board resolved to 
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i) receive and note the contents of the report and the current progress against the 
2020/21 submission 

ii) note the report on maternity staffing (Birthrate Plus) undertaken in January 2020 
which is part of the evidence required to demonstrate safety action 5, ‘Can you 
demonstrate an effective system of midwifery workforce planning to the required 
standard?’, and the associated timelines 
  

Governance and Risk  
 
20.225 E-governance decision 
 
a. The Board resolved to note the e-governance decision taken in December with regards 

Non-Executive Director appointments to Committees 
  
20.226 Consideration of Risk 
 
a. From the discussions of the meeting, the Board considered that a review of the following 

risk would be undertaken by the Director of Integrated Governance and reflected on the 
Board Assurance Framework and/or Corporate Risk Register: 
i) Director of Integrated Governance to work with Acting Director of Operations to re-

flect increase in Covid-19 positon and impact on referral to treatment 
 

20.227 Board Calendar of Meetings, Glossary of Terms and Work Programmes 
 

a. The Board resolved to note the Calendar of Meetings for financial year 2021/22, the 
work programme and the glossary of terms  

 
20.228 Questions from the Public 
 
a. The Board noted that members of the public viewing the meeting on MS Teams Live 

had been engaging in the ‘Q&A’ function and one individual had raised a question. As 
this was a Teams Live event, questions were permitted during the meeting and taken at 
this item. The questions raised and answered were as follows: 

 
• Question (Jane Bernal): The work of Admiral Nursing is great. It seems a highly 

qualified and committed nursing team can offer a great deal to families supporting 
someone with dementia. To what extent can, or should this work be picked up by 
generic staff with many other responsibilities? What is being done to estimate the fu-
ture need for this specific service, and to ensure that this excellent service is availa-
ble to all who need it? 
 

• Answer (Chief Executive and Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and AHPs): 
The Trust was conscious of a rapidly aging population and dementia was commonly, 
but not always, a condition of older age. There was a need to have staff with a level 
of ability to engage with all patients and who can cope with patients who are fright-
ened and anxious, part of fundamentals of care. The Trust would like all staff to be 
able to have access to people who are expert in dealing with dementia and had a 
Dementia and Delirium Lead Nurse to help provide education and training across the 
board. The role of carers being an active member of the MDT team was invaluable. 
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• Question (anonymous): How is the Trust supporting staff with Long Covid-19 Syn-

drome?  
 

• Answer (Chief Executive): The Chief Executive responded that the Trust identified 
early on that some staff had long-Covid-19 symptoms and put in place arrangements 
with occupational health to support them. Kernow Clinical Commissioning Group 
(KCCG) had also asked the Trust to provide a long-Covid-19 service for the commu-
nity, which would also include staff; this piece of work was being led by the occupa-
tional health lead. The service was currently being scoped to determine the level of 
need and would require multidisciplinary support.  
 

• Question (Ian Dean): The integration buddy concept discussed at board level 
sounds great, I wonder if this could be considered for a broader group of senior op-
erational leaders at each Trust? 
 

• Answer (Director of Strategy and Performance): Agreed with that suggestion and 
proposed, particularly with regards the cultural journey to bring the organisations to-
gether, to raise the idea at the forthcoming meetings of the Executive Integration 
Group and Integration Committee. 
 

• Question (W): What steps are being taken to ensure many people who need a fully 
qualified Admiral Nurse can see one?  
 

• Answer (Chief Executive): This is part of closer working with Cornwall Partnership 
NHS Foundation Trust (CFT) with a need to ensure sharing of resource across 
Cornwall to appropriately support patients that’s wider than Admiral nursing. An 
email referral scheme was also available 
 

• Question (anonymous): I am a new RCHT (3 months) and I have felt overwhelmed 
at times during my time here, especially with COVID. I wanted to know if there is a 
support hub specifically for apprentices so we can have extra support during this try-
ing time. 
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• Answer (Director of People and OD): Would urge the individual to contact the Ap-
prenticeship Lead, Nicola Pryke, to ensure they are fully supported. There is also an 
all staff help-desk open 8am-8pm seven days a week as part of the Covid-19 re-
sponse 
 

20.229Evaluation of Effectiveness of the Meeting 
 

 a. The following comments were received by Board members: 
 

 i) What worked well: 
 • Good quality reports  
 • Hearing from staff through the presentations received and to hear their deep 

passion for the Trust and the people they care for  
 • The evidenced clinically-led approach to the initiatives put to the Board 

 
 ii) Even more effective if: 

 • Presentations were more succinct 
 
 
20.230 Date of Next Meeting 
 

 a. The Board noted the date of the next meeting as 4 February 2021 
 

20.231 Move to Board in Committee 
 

 a. The Chair advised the public that the Board would be moving into its private session per 
the Motion on Notice set out on the Agenda.  

 
 
The minutes were duly approved by 
 

Name  

Signature  

Date  
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KEY:
Action complete or proposed complete
Action in progress
Action overdue/incomplete

Min Ref Action Lead Status Due date Update

20.218 i)
Committee Reports: Chairwoman to write to 
the costings team on behalf of the Baard to 
congratulate them for their recent award

Chairwoman Proposed complete Jan-21 Update January 2021: Chairwoman wrote to the Costing 
team on behalf of the Board

20.218 ii)

Committee Reports: Chairwoman to progress 
discussions with Cornwall Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust on buddying Non-
Executive Directors together to support 
integration

Chairwoman In progress Feb-21 Update January 2021: The Chairwoman has had an initial 
discussion with CFT on the buddying proposal for NEDs

20.223 i)

Learning from Deaths Q2 Report: Medical 
Director to clarify in next quarterly Learning 
from Deaths report whether the expected 
and observed deaths as showed in the chart 
were exceptional or not against 
comparators

Medical Director In progress Apr-21 Update January 2021: This will be addressed in the quarter 
3 report

20.226 ai)

Consideration of Risk: Director of Integrated 
Governance to work with Acting Director of 
Operations to reflect increase in Covid-19 
positon and impact on referral to treatment

Direcfor of 
Integrated 

Governance
Proposed complete Feb-21 Update Janaury 2021: Complete and no material change as 

per update to Audit and Risk Committee

20.199 ei)

Integrated Performance Report: Indicator(s) 
regarding Discharge to assess to be 
included in Integrated Performance Report 
given challenge in this area

Director of Strategy 
and Performance In progress Mar-21

Update December 2020: the measure is in development as 
part of the ‘flow’ programme. Work is ongoing with 
NerveCentre to get us to a position where we can report this 
from a final assessment (currently being built). It will be in 
place from March 2021

20.186 di)

Risk Management Strategy and Policy: 
Director of Integrated Governance to 
present at future Board Informal on a 
cultural improvement programme with 
regards the organsiational approach to risk

Director of 
Integrated 

Governance
Proposed complete Jan-20

Update November 2020: Date to be arranaged with 
Company Secretary - either January or February 2021          
Update Janaury 2021: Scheduled for 28 Janaury Board 
Informal

TRUST BOARD IN PUBLIC ACTION LOG

Nov-20

Dec-20

Jan-21
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KEY:
Action complete or proposed complete
Action in progress
Action overdue/incomplete

Min Ref Action Lead Status Due date Update

TRUST BOARD IN PUBLIC ACTION LOG

20.186 dii)

Risk Management Strategy and Policy: 
Director of Integrated Governance to bring a 
review of Risk Appetite and the BAF to 
quarterly Board informals

Director of 
Integrated 

Governance
Proposed complete Jan-20

Update November 2020: Date to be arranaged with 
Company Secretary - either January or February 2021            
Update Janaury 2021: Scheduled for 28 Janaury Board 
Informal

20.163 di)
Learning from Deaths: Medical Director to 
enhance learning disability training for 
doctors

Medical Director Proposed complete Dec-20

Update October 2020: Medical Director to update the Board 
at the December meeting
Update November 2020: 
1. Learning Disability and Autism Lead in the Safeguarding 
team provides two study days a year for health professionals 
professionals and this will include communications targeted 
at Doctors and supported by the Medical Director
2. More training required and actions being taken to provide 
more training for doctors on the importance of detailed TEP 
information;
3. LD team undertaking a review of all TEPs in place at the 
Trust for a person with a Learning Disability and/or Autism to 
identify any inappropriate TEP forms, then work with the 
individuals to make improvements;
4. LD team working with Primary Care and Kernow Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) to look at the adequacy of 
TEPs in the Community and to work with colleagues to 
prevent this happening;
5. Inappropriate TEPs to be used in training as examples;
6. Easy Read materials produced for patients when TEPs are 
being discussed;
7. LD team working with Learning and Disability regarding 
online mandatory LD training pack.
Update December 2020: all actions being progressed. New 
training re autism was taking place and that Treatment 
Escalations Plans were business as usual. Medical Director 
to review all other actions and provide further assurance by 

Apr-20
Mar-20
Feb-20

May-20
Jun-20
Jul-20

Oct-20
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KEY:
Action complete or proposed complete
Action in progress
Action overdue/incomplete

Min Ref Action Lead Status Due date Update

TRUST BOARD IN PUBLIC ACTION LOG

20.34

Guardian of Safe Working Hours: People and 
OD Committee to receive an update on the roll 
out of the Safer Staffing model across medics 
which would be reported through People and 
OD Committee in the next Guardian’s quarterly 
report.

Medical Director In progress
01/05/2020       

(revised date to 
March 2021)

Update March 2020: To be included in the next Quarterly 
Report from the Guardian of Safe Working Hours to People 
and OD Committee and on to the Board (May 2020)                                                                                      
Update May 2020: This discussion and subsequent action 
was just pre-covid and has been superseded by the 
requirement for the consultant rotas to be very fluid 
necessitated by a rapid change in the ward bases of various 
teams. It is a piece of work that we will need to come back to 
once the ‘new normal’ has been established and we have 
fully rolled out the e-roster and medi-roster systems.                           
Update July 2020: Still on hold and reviewed regularly at 
QAC                                                                                             
Update October 2020: update provided at October Board. In 
order to roll out safer medical staffing all medical staff need 
to be on the appropriate roster. Work on the medical roster 
has been impacted due to Covid-19. Director of People and 
OD confirmed key milestone to have all medical staff on 
roster by March 2021. Update on rostering considered by 
People and OD Committee on 27 October 2020                                              
November 2020: Revised due note noted and accepted and 
action amended from showing as overdue to 'in progress'                                                                                                 

Jan-19
Jul-19

Dec-19
Nov-19
Sep-19
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Executive Summary 
 

Meeting: Finance and Performance 
Committee 

Date: 04.02.21 

Report Title: Integrated Performance Report – 
August Data  

Agenda 
Item: 

 

Author: Justine Mills – Trust Performance Officer  
Jo Davis – AD Commissioning, Performance and Intelligence 

Executive Lead: Thom Lafferty – Director of Strategy and Performance 
 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives Tick 

box(es) 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

X 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

X 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

X 

  
Purpose of the Report  
Approve   Discuss  Note X 
This is a monthly report to provide assurance to the Trust Board on performance 
against the full suite of KPIs that monitor delivery of the most integral elements of 
quality, safety, efficiency and effectiveness in line with the Trust’s strategic 
objectives.  
  
Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
This report goes to Quality Assurance, Finance and Performnce and People and OD 
Committees.   
  
Summary of key points  
A full executive summary is provided below in addition to the excel report that is the 
main IPR 
 
What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
Are there any further actions that the Trust Board members would like to see in to 
address any areas of concern as a result of the performance outlined in this report?  
  
Key risks 
The IPR is a fundamental part of the Trust Board Assurance framework and the 
narrative and data within the report provides information on risks that occur in the 
delivery of our services.  
  
Recommendations and reasons  
The Board is recommended to: 
• note and discuss the month 8 integrated performance report    
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Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

There is a wide range of performance issues considered 
at the Performance Meetings which pertain to the delivery 
of services by our diverse staff base to a diverse range of 
patients. All new service developments and significant 
service changes are assessed for Equality and Quality 
impact. No concerns have been identified this month. 

Environmental 
considerations 

No direct implications. 

 

 

Executive Summary for IPR: January Report on December Data 

This report covers the Trust’s performance against our key indicators which are categorised 
under Brilliant Care, Brilliant People and Brilliant Improvement. More detail is available in 
the relevant section of the report. 

In light of the increased covid-19 activity, this month the IPR is presented in a similar 
temporary streamlined format to that which was used during the first wave of covid-19. This 
focuses on a reduced suite of core indicators to reflect the Trust’s main safety and 
performance priorities. 

Brilliant Care: December has continued to be a challenging month operationally for the 
Trust due to ongoing flow issues and the increasing impact of covid-19. Operational flow in 
and out of the Emergency Department (ED) has experienced ongoing issues resulting from 
reduced bed capacity within the Trust and system-wide and reduced capacity in ED as a 
result of social distancing and infection control measures, resulting in ambulance delays, 
reduced ED 4 hour standard performance, and 12 hour trolley waits. The importance of our 
Covid precautions remains an absolute priority with regards to patient flow, as described in 
previous months. In terms of inpatient flow, length of stay has remained similar (but in the 
context of reduced capacity).  
 
The Stroke Service is seeing a higher volume and acuity of patients compared to the last 7 
years’ monthly average, resulting in continued outlying of patients and reduced performance 
on several indicators. Systemwide actions are being undertaken to increase the volume of 
rehabilitation available within the community to facilitate timely discharges. However, the 
Stroke Service has achieved an ‘A’ rating for the first time for care of stroke patients in 
Cornwall in the recent Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP) for the periods 
of April-June and July-September 2020, the first time that this has ever been achieved in 
Cornwall.  
 
Zero ‘never events’ occurred in December, continuing the positive position following the 
internal Quality Summit held in October. The ‘RAG’ rating for this measure has been 
amended following a review of CQC actions to fall in line with the CQC Improvement Plan. 
The number of falls has increased this month, with 7.97 falls per 1,000 occupied bed days, 
which was anticipated due to the increase in social restrictions on our communities 
increasing frailty and subsequently a rise in inpatient falls. This has been witnessed across 
the South West since the pandemic started.  Pressure ulcer incidence rate remains low 
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despite higher patient acuity. Clostridium Difficile continues to be above tolerance; a review 
of current practices has taken place and two recommendations have been made. Whilst 
delays in responding to complaints continue to improve, a comprehensive action plan 
remains in place, including offering individually tailored training to staff and stakeholders. 
However, overdue serious incident reports have increased this month. The HSMR and SMR 
(mortality ratios covering in-hospital deaths, reported three months in arrears) have 
decreased slightly (as was observed nationally), and remain below the national 
benchmarks.  

The impact of COVID-19 in terms of increased patient waiting times continues to be evident, 
although the overall proportion of patients waiting less than 18 weeks has improved from 
76% to 77%, although the number of patients waiting over 52 weeks has increased, with the 
position on both benchmarking positively nationally. The position against previous years’ 
activity levels for the new national NHS aims shows that elective and diagnostic activity are 
exceeding recovery trajectories. Whilst outpatient activity volume continues to increase and 
has achieved the highest levels yet, it hasn’t yet reached the (challenging) 100% overall 
requirement. There are a variety of challenges affecting services in the context of increasing 
covid activity, including the loss of some outpatient community hospital delivery space as 
this is used for covid-related activity as part of system plans. Limited inpatient capacity has 
resulted in an in-month increase in patients who weren’t able to be rebooked within 28 days 
following a cancelled operation. Although some routine activity has been stood down in 
January as covid-19 has further increased, outpatient diagnostics continue to remain 
operational.  

The outpatient transformation programme continues to work with specialties to increase the 
volume of activity being delivered as well as to transform the way in which care is delivered. 
The Trust is implementing hybrid clinics to ensure outpatient activity can continue during the 
third lockdown.  We are working closely with both NHS and independent sector partners to 
ensure capacity remains targeted towards the most clinically urgent patients and that new 
models of care are developed across Cornwall to achieve the most effective use of our 
collective resources.  

Cancer standard performance has deteriorated in month. Contributory factors include 
reduced referral rates and deferred treatment due to patient choice, but also a capacity 
shortfall in breast on the two week wait pathway. 31 and 62 day treatment pathways 
continue to achieve target. Surgical capacity remains a challenge for all treatments; 
however, the Trust continues to prioritise cancer pathways and provide some mutual aid to 
Peninsula partners. Diagnostic performance continues to steadily improve, with plans in 
place for those specialties of concern.  

Brilliant Improvement: The Phase 3 Financial Framework has been implemented, 
resulting in a new financial reporting period covering 1st October 2020 to 31st March 2021.  

The Trust is achieving against plans, and is forecasted to deliver the planned position of a 
deficit of c£5.9 million by the end of the financial year. 

Brilliant People: Staffing numbers increased by 70 in month overall, mostly in substantive 
staffing. Sickness absence remained relatively steady in December reflecting normal 
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seasonal fluctuations (in fact absence was lower than in the previous 2 Decembers). 
However it is expected this will increase significantly in January with increases in absences 
related to covid-19. Stress related absences increased further, with The Winter Wellbeing 
campaign and programme continuing to be offered as one way to address. Some Care 
Groups are arranging for bespoke mental health sessions with an external provider (Sky 
Bounders) to provide staff with better care and support. Personal wellbeing recovery 
templates are being shared across Care Groups for local adaptation. 

The Trust continues to face significant difficulties in achieving standards for mandatory 
training as well as appraisal compliance, with social distancing requirements, increased 
operational pressures and Covid-19 related absences continuing to have an adverse impact 
in December with deterioration in both measures. The Learning and Development team 
have maintained the volume of mandatory training available via our virtual platform MS 
Teams where e-learning is not appropriate. 
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Strategic Objectives & Pledges

 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE PLEDGE

Pledge RAG key:

Red

Amber

Green

We have an open, inclusive and partnership approach to working with our brilliant people

Brilliant People
(Reviewed by the People and OD 

Committee)

Brilliant Care
(Reviewed by Quality Assurance 

Committee)

We provide care that is consistently safe and avoids harm

We listen and learn from patients, their families and carers, and treat them with compassion and respect

We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

We work with our health and care system to improve the health of our community

Brilliant Improvement
(Reviewed by Finance and 

Performance Committee)

RAGs are based on the latest available months' data. Most key performance indicators (KPI) have an absolute target (green), and a 'step' threshold (amber, which is close result for 

month, but not better than the target). Anything that is below the 'step target' is graded red.

For the number of KPIs under this pledge that have a target, there are more 'red' (missed both absolute target and step threshold)

For the number of KPIs under this pledge that have a target, there are more 'amber' (missed absolute target but met step threshold), or there are an equal number of green KPIs and red KPIs

For the number of KPIs under this pledge that have a target, there are more 'green' (met or better than absolute target)

Pledges that have fewer than 3 key performance indicators (KPIs) are not given a RAG status. Pledges that have more than 3 KPIs, but less than 3 of them have targets, are not given a RAG status.

We provide an environment that is clean and welcoming

We celebrate achievement and will create a culture that enables continuous improvement

We are open and honest with people about their care

We provide development to help colleagues learn and grow

We provide an environment that supports colleague safety, health & wellbeing

We create a safe environment so colleagues feel supported to speak up

We provide great leadership and support to help colleagues be the best they can be

We make good use of the resources that are available to us

We use innovation and digital technology to improve the quality, experience and cost of our care

We are growing the Trust’s national reputation for excellence in research and development

We are true to our values and create a brilliant place to work

We make sure colleagues receive feedback to know how they are doing

We ensure that everyone has the capability to pursue quality and improvement for our patients

1
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Executive Summary

See exec summary on word based front sheet  

2
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Strategic Objectives: Summary Scorecard

Strategic Objective Metric
20_21 Target/ 

Standard
19/20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Variation YTD 20/21 Sparkline

Serious incidents (monthly) 6 9 10 13 1 4 +3 7

 Patients who met the criteria and were screened for sepsis - ED 90.00% 82.25% 100.00% 100.00% #N/A in arrears #N/A 100.00%

 Patients who met the criteria and were screened for sepsis - other admitting 

areas 
90.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% in arrears 0 100.00%

 Patients who met the criteria and were screened for sepsis - Inpatients 90.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% in arrears 0 100.00%

Infection control: C-difficile cases 64 82 10 5 9 4 -5 55

 28 day re-booking breaches (monthly) 7 9 3 5 6 14 +8 10

 Treliske ED attenders - 4 hours arrival to discharge, admission or transfer 95.00% 71.51% 65.02% 65.49% 68.30% 59.30% -9.00% 76.80%

 Cancer treated within 62 days target 85.00% 85.58% 92.90% 88.96% 91.49% in arrears +2.53% 88.94%

 RTT Incomplete - % within 18 weeks 92.00% 85.51% 69.02% 73.92% 76.67% 77.47% +0.80% 67.58%

 Proportion of patients receiving one of the 15 key diagnostic tests within 6 weeks 99.00%
96.21% 72.12% 81.00% 87.82% 89.09%

+1.27%
66.28%

 RTT waits over 52 weeks for incomplete pathways 1 7 332 389 436 527 +91 527

SHMI 94.04 96.32 in arrears in arrears in arrears +2.28 96.32

Crude Mortality 9.69 10.40 10.30 10.40 10.30 -0.10 10.27

Agency spend vs plan (£m) 10.2 1.80 3.68 4.58 5.42 6.30 +0.88

Capital spend against plan (£m) 23.2 25.8 13.83 15.60 19.80 24.09 +4.29

Year to date financial position 2.4 0.0 0.9 0.94 0.80 -0.14

Year end forecast financial position n/a 6.86 5.90 5.90 0.00

 Staff turnover 7-11% 9.26% 8.10% 8.20% 8.90% 9.00% +0.10% 8.68%

% Appraisals completed of eligible staff 95.00% 78.77% 76.30% 76.00% 74.30% 71.80% -2.50% 75.53%

% Mandatory training completed 90.00% 89.15% 84.80% 83.90% 83.10% 82.70% -0.40% 85.77%

 % Sickness absence 3.75% 4.43% 3.80% 3.93% 4.05% 4.03% -0.02% 3.93%

Brilliant Improvement
(Reviewed by Finance and 

Performance Committee)

Brilliant Care
(Reviewed by Quality Assurance 

Committee)

Brilliant People
(Reviewed by the People and 

OD Committee)

3
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Brilliant Care 
We provide care that is consistently safe and avoids harm

 

Dec-20

9

The haospital acquired pressure ulcer incidence rate decreased by two in December, and is under the 
threshold. The rates remain low however despite high activity and patient acuity. 
  
There was one category 3 pressure ulcer reported in West Cornwall Hospital which is under investigation, 
and two Deep Tissue Injuries which will be monitored weekly whilst inpatients. Virtual training and the harms 
surgeries continue to support staff in clinical areas. Work is in progress to reduce heel pressure ulcers 
promoting heel offloading and the use of preventative heel boots for vulnerable patients. 
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Brilliant Care 
We provide care that is consistently safe and avoids harm

Dec-20

131

Dec-20

3

The number of falls for December are significantly higher than November with 131 falls reported. The 
number of falls per 1,000 occupied bed day is 7.97 the highest ever recorded previously 6.97. 
  
This was anticipated due to the increase in social restrictions on our communities increasing frailty and 
subsequently a rise  in inpatient falls, which has been witnessed across the South West Falls Network since 
the Coronavirus pandemic started. This means with the ongoing social restrictions in place, the number of 
inpatient falls may continue to stay elevated/increase. 

Three moderate harms occurred in December. The injuries sustained were a fractured neck of femur, the 
second injury sustained a fractured fibula and the third injury sustained a fractured neck of femur.  
  
All harms are still under investigation at this time. 
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Dec-20

0

Dec-20

4

There were no Never Events reported in December.   
 
The RAG thresholds for this indicator have been amended to maintain focus following a review of CQC 
actions, to fall in line with the Trusts CQC Improvement Plan: The Trust remains red if there have been any 
Never Events reported within the past three months, amber if zero Never Events for 3-6 months, and green if 
zero Never Events for over 6 months.  

There were four Serious Incidents reported and all are under invesitgation. 
 
The SIs for December are as follows: 
  
2020/24613: Treatment delay (Theatre Direct) 
2020/23056: Treatment delay (Gynaecology Outpatients) 
2020/24221: Adult safeguarding (Emergency Department) 
2020/23561: VTE (Lowen Ward) 
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SIs breached 8
Dec-20

A total of 13 serious incident reports were due with KCCG during December 2020.  Five of these reports were 
submitted within the 60 day deadline. The remainder are being followed through to completion. 
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Screened 100%

Antibiotics within 1 hr 80%

Screened 100%

Antibiotics within 1 hr 100%

Oct-20

Nov-20

This indicator has a national target. Emergency Department Sepsis screening is identified via a monthly audit which is 
typically reported two months in arrears. This audit identifies all patients within the month being audited that were 
diagnosed with potential sepsis. The department are currently reporting 3 months in arrears due to a lack of ringfenced 
administration. The audit in October was based on 61 patients, all were screened for sepsis. Due to concerns in the dip 
in performance in ED in September, a deep dive was completed on the data.  
 

Of the audited patients the following was identified: 
3 cases were not red flag sepsis – removed from audit. 3 cases had no scanned notes – unable to comment further. 
 

With the 3 cases removed and the 2 cases that were re-audited as “Green” (within 1hour), the new monthly 
performance for September is 82% treated with antibiotics within 1 hour. 
A theme in the delayed cases was no completion of the paper screening tool. In one case the screening tool was 
incorrectly completed. In one case, the patient was moved from RATS to the cubicle prior to antibiotics and then failed 
to receive timely treatment. One case was screened but not acted upon. One person could not be cannulated. The 
themes will be discussed with the sepsis improvement group to establish ways to feed back to the staff after missed / 
delayed treatment, and to get timely feedback from staff as to reasons for non-compliance with 1-hour sepsis care 
bundle.   

This indicator has a national target. Sepsis screening for other admitting areas is identified via a monthly audit reported 
two months in arrears. As from December 2019 up to 50 patients notes (where available) have been audited. All audit 
results need to be seen in the context of the small numbers of patients with a potential diagnosis of sepsis. 
  
In November of the 20 patients audited, one had a diagnosis of potential sepsis and they had their antibiotics within an 
hour 
  
Due to the introduction of automatic sepsis screening on NerveCentre, all patients are now screened resulting in 100% 
compliance. 
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Screened 100%

Antibiotics within 1 hr 100%

Dec-20

91.00%

Nov-20
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Sepsis Audit- Inpatients 

Actual Standard Antibiotics within 1 hour

This indicator has a national target.  
 
Medicines reconciliation remains consistently high at 91% for reconciliations completed during admission, 
above the 80% target.  
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 Medicine reconciliation 

This indicator has a national target. The sepsis audit for inpatients is based on 50 randomly chosen patients. This has 
changed from previous (Apr’19 – Nov’19) when it was 20. All audit results need to be seen in the context of the small 
numbers of patients with a potential diagnosis of sepsis. In November, 3 of the 50 patients audited had suspected 
sepsis. They all had antibiotics within an hour of diagnosis of potential sepsis. 
  
The lead Sepsis Nurse has been seconded to assist with the setting up of the Covid Vaccination Clinics. This means that 
only the monthly audits will be completed. The QI project that should have commenced in December will now be 
supported with the Lead Nurse for Quality, safety and Innovation, noting that there may be a reduced ability to get 
traction with this due to competing priorities and the response to Covid-19. 
  
A challenge is collecting data from multiple sources and some of that being reliant on trawling through patients 
medical notes. Workstream membership reduced due to Covid pressures to involve key individuals only, who are 
aiming to meet by the 23rd January 2021. The driver diagram and the Project Overview Document will be shared, and 
Nerve Centre will be present at the meeting to commence the move to digital collation of patient interventions, 
thereby demonstrating performance. 
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Dec-20

91.00%

There were several improvements across ED safety checklist measures during last month including: Vital signs 
measured as per NEWS, hourly pain scores, Sepsis Bundle completed, NOK aware and risk assessments completed. 
  
ECG within 15 minutes and Sepsis bundles are still under the desired percentage for performance. The department has 
QIs projects currently underway to address both areas and meet on a regular basis. Volume and holding ambulances 
still remain a factor in being unable to achieve targets.  
 
To support ECGs, ED doctors will be required to sign, date and time a document to evidence ECGs within 15 minutes of 
arrival. These forms will be scanned to aid the audit trail.  
 
All chest pains will receive another ECG on entering the department, to provide the safety and assurance that, for 
example, acute MI's are not missed. Sepsis bundle reminders continue to be added to the safety brief. 
 
Discussions regarding adding hourly checklists to NerveCentre are taking place. Currently hourly checklist starts on 
arrival, regardless of whether the patient is held in an ambulance. Having a NerveCentre based form is expected to 
improve pain scores, regular medication documentation, and Next of Kin being informed. 
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Dec-20
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MRSA 

Actual Tolerance

This indicator has a national target.  
 
Zero MRSA bacteraemia attributed to the Trust were reported in December. 

One MSSA bacteraemia was reported during December, which is within normal variation. 
 
The case is still under review however the source is thought to be endocarditis. 
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Cdiff Cases 4

Tolerance 6

Cdiff cumulative 55

Tolerance 55

Dec-20

Dec-20

This indicator has a national target.  
  
Four cases of C. difficile were reported in November, all of which are hospital onset healthcare associated (HOHA). 
 
All of the HOHA cases are still under review. Initial findings suggest no lapses of care have been identified. 

This indicator has a national target.  
  

The Consultant Nurse for Infection Prevention and Control is now in post has conducted a 'fresh eyes' view of current 
practices. Preliminary findings have not identified any areas for improvement, however the following 
recommendations have been made: 
  

- To ensure that the RCA takes place in a timely manner, a new process is currently being trialled. Each Friday any 
patient who has a positive result within the last 7 days will be reviewed on the C.Diff ward round. This will involve the 
Consultant Microbiologist and a member of the IPAC team visiting the ward and undertaking the RCA with the clinical 
team while also reviewing the patient’s current symptoms and treatment.  
  

- From the review it was identified that although the rooms are deep cleaned with a chlorine product they rarely got a 
HPV misting. This is due to the machines being of an older model and requiring several hours to undertake the cycle. 
Discussions have taken place with the head of facilities and a scoping exercise is taking place to look at alternatives on 
the market. 
  

- Antimicrobial stewardship audits to continue with feedback to specialties.  
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Dec-20

5

E.coli 5

Klebsiella 0

Pseudomonas 0

All Organism Total 5

Dec-20

Five Gram-negative bacteraemia were reported in December, all of which were E.coli bacteraemia. All cases 
are under review.  
 
Of those reviewed to date the source of one is under review; two are thought to be urinary tract not (long 
term catheters in situ), and the remaining three cases the source is unknown.  

Gram-negative bacteraemia reduction remains a challenge across the County and is being led by the CCG. 
There are three key areas of focus across the county: hydration; reduction of urinary catheters; and 
hepatobiliary pathways. 
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Crude mortality 10.3

HSMR 98.49

SMR 86.00

Oct-20

Dec-20
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 Crude Mortality The Crude Mortality provides an up to date number of deaths in-hospital, and is a useful predictor of 
HSMR (which runs several months behind due to collation and aggregation of mortality at a national 
level). This shows the rate of deaths in hospital per 1,000 spells (elective and non-elective). It’s 
calculated locally and provides a 12 month rolling average. 
  
The Crude Mortality trend for RCHT has seen a slow increase over the past 6 months, with a 0.1 
reduction in December bringing the Trust to 10.3. Due to the imbalance between elective and non-
elective admissions, crude mortality would be expected to increase. Mortality is anticipated to 
increase over the next month due to Covid-19. 
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 HSMR and SMR  

HSMR SMR

The overall rolling 12 months HSMR increased during the Covid-19 period with a 0.14 drop in October. 
Overall, the HSMR remains below the latest national benchmark 101.2, and below the South West 
average of 105.7 (the threshold is 100 - lower is better).  
 

Due to Covid-19 a large number of elective admissions have been cancelled or deferred over the main 
lockdown period at the start of the year. Each admission counts a small part towards the Trust’s expected 
death figure for HSMR. 
  

Elective admissions do not carry as much risk as emergency admissions and do not count so much 
towards the expected deaths, however when the number of admissions falls, this has a significant impact 
on the expected deaths for the Trust.  
 

The Standardised Mortality Ratio (SMR) is the ratio of the number of deaths in hospital within a given 
time period, to the number that might be expected if the hospital had the same death rates as some 
reference population. The SMR dropped from April compared to the HSMR, indicating that there is 
significant variation with the hospital based version of this benchmark. This is due to Cornwall seeing a 
lower rate of deaths compared to other areas during Covid-19 combined with the reduction in inpatient 
activity and elective surgery. 
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Brilliant Care 
We provide care that is consistently safe and avoids harm

Actual vs Planned 90.01%

Actual vs Planned 90.54%

Dec-20

Dec-20

Planned vs actual registered nurse hours remain within acceptable limits. Recruitment to substantive 
staff remains key priority to reduce the vacancy gap. This will continue to be monitored as our Covid-
19 escalation response increases in line with our Covid-19 plans. 

Planned vs actual unregistered nurse hours remains within acceptable parameters, although not 
increased in month. HCA recruitment remains a top priority in line with the CNO England’s call for 
zero vacancies by the end of March 2021. Additional resource has been sourced to support 
recruitment and nurse shielders have been pulled into supporting the interview process to increase 
the number of starters in line with the plan.  

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
e

c-
1

9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
e

c-
2

0

Actual vs Planned Registered Nurses (hours) 
 

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

105%

110%

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9

D
e

c-
1

9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

D
e

c-
2

0

Actual vs Planned Unregistered Nurses (hours) 

15

Page 55 of 294



Brilliant Care 
We are open and honest with people about their care

Dec-20

33.00%

Dec-20

74.00%

This indicator has a national target.  
  
The number of complaints responded to within the agreed timescale has increased to 74% for December. 
This is an improvement following previous month's performances and is hoped to continue to improve with 
the implementation of administrative and apprentice support in the Care Group governance teams. 
  
Specialist Medicine, Specialist Services and Surgery, Women's, Children and Sexual Health, St Michaels 
Hospital and West Cornwall Hospital Care Groups responded to 100% of their complaints on time. 
Anaesthetics, Critical Care and Theatres and Clinical Support did not close any complaints in December. 
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 Complaints responded to within agreed timescale 

% responded to within timescale Standard

This indicator has a national target.  
  
Compliance for Duty of Candour for December is 33%.   At 19th January, the compliance with Duty of 
Candour for December was 63% (14/22). Eight out of 22 incidents were overdue, and these relate to 
infection prevention, patient fall and VTE investigations. These are being tracked through to 
completion via the central governance team. 
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Brilliant Care 
We listen and learn from patients, their families and carers, and treat them with compassion and respect

Formal complaints 22

Informal complaints 89

Dec-20
This indicator has a local target.  
  
There were 22 formal complaints received in December - half of the amount that were closed and 10 less 
than in November. There were also 89 informal complaints, an improvement from 116 in November.  
  
This can again be attributed to changes in procedures around COVID-19, such as rescheduled, delayed or 
cancelled appointments, and communication with families during visitor restrictions.  
  
Communication with relatives and carers, and communication with the patient remained the top themes of 
complaints for December.  
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Brilliant Care 
We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

Breaches 14

Urgent >1 0

Dec-20

0.67%

Dec-20
There were 14 breaches of the 28 day rebooking standard in December compared with 7 in the same month 
last year. Two breaches were due to insufficient time with complex cases taking longer than expected (one 
completed at the end of December), four were due to no routine beds, two due to no HDU/ITU beds, two 
staff unavailability/sickness, two patients unwell, one unavailable equipment, and the last required a location 
change due to patient comorbidity. With Covid, there is very little flexibility with accommodating patients 
due to 3 day isolation and swabbing restrictions.  
  

Six patients were day cases, and six of the cancellations have been subsequently completed.  
  

Organising the number of patients to book on a theatre list can be difficult as there are sometimes 
unforeseen delays. To reduce this risk, doctors are required to approve their theatre lists before they 
proceed. Systems are also in place whereby the theatre team managers are informed of any prospective 
cancellations to ensure all possible alternatives are considered before the cancellation goes ahead. Should 
the cancellation still take place, the Trusts Chief Operating Office is informed. Performance will deteriorate in 
January due to standing down elective procedures in response to increased Covid-19 levels. 
 

There were zero urgent operations cancelled more than once.  
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 28 day re-booking breaches & urgent operations 
cancelled more than once 

Breaches Urgent More than Once
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 Percentage Cancellations on same day 
The Trust is within the target cancellations on same day as operation, cancelling 36 operations during 
December.  
 
10 cancellations were due to no routine beds, with the Trust proactively prioritising emergency admissions 
over routine procedures. Other reasons for on the day cancellations were primarily insufficient time (complex 
cases taking longer than expected), unavailable equipment, staff sickness, emergency priorities, staff 
unavailability, Black Alert (1) and no HDU/ITU beds (1). 
 
Every on the day cancellation risk is highlighted to the ACCT General Manager to work to avoid the 
cancellation. In the event the General Manager is unable to prevent the cancellation, the cancellation has to 
be approved by the Chief Operating Officer before the cancellation can be made. 
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Brilliant Care 
We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

Dec-20

81.53%

TR 59.30%
WC 96.80%

Dec-20

This indicator has a national target.  
 
System performance against the emergency 4 hour access standard has deteriorated from 86.16% to 81.53%, and 
remains non-compliant against the 95% standard. 
 
ED attendances were up +4.4% (+466) compared to Nov'20, and down -32.7% (-5,429) compared to Dec'19. All 
emergency arrivals were up +4.8% (+313) compared to Nov'20, and -29.6% (-2,879) lower than December last year.  
 
Actions within the Trusts' remit are listed below for TR and WC sites. The implications and associated actions are 
summarised in the commentary on subsequent charts. 
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 ED & MIU (from July17) attenders -  4 hours arrival to 
discharge, admission or transfer 

This indicator has a national target. Type 1 ED performance for December at Treliske was 59.3% (35.7% below target) and WCH 
performance 96.8%. There were 10 OPEL 4 days, 19 OPEL 3 days, 2 OPEL 2 days and zero OPEL 1 (green) day during December. 152 
heralded patients from Think 111 were streamed from Treliske ED to MIUs during December. The majority of breach reasons were 
attributed to patients awaiting a bed (52.29%), waiting for Specialist review (12.04%), and waiting diagnostics (9.85%). 10.55% 
waited to see an ED doctor, and 2.79% waited for transport. A further 2.79% were resus or complicated patients. APD (aggregated 
patient delay) increased by 3,879 hours in December and shows the majority of delay and breaches occurred due to flow issues 
waiting for beds downstream (6,462 hours delay), patients waiting for specialist review (1045 hours delay), waiting for ED Doctor 
(838 hours delay) and patients waiting for diagnostics (712 hours delay).  
Actions to be undertaken are:  
- Continue to develop Trustwide Quality Improvement Delivery Board APD programme board (flow in, through, out), GM's and 
input from CD's and Speciality leads  
- Continue to focus on not using SDMA as overnight inpatient ward, as this negatively impacts on the next days' medical take which 
is pushed into ED resulting in further ED crowding and reduced capacity 
- Rapid Covid-19 swabbing within ED in conjunction with Pathology is now in place over weekends, an Assistant Practioner will be 
seconded to support, along with four Samber analysers coming online in January to ensure timely flow into beds 
- Review of non-admitting breaches has been undertaken, resulting in 10 specific actions to be driven forward 
- We are reinforcing the 60 minutes SOP for specialties to reduce admission delays from ED, escalating at 30 minutes 
- Holding twice-daily (up from weekly) discharge and flow recovery meetings with senior managers, and weekly ED flow meetings 
with a range of input including SWAST, in order to improve ED performance by reducing blockages. 
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 TR & WC ED attenders -  4 hours arrival to discharge, 
admission or transfer 

Actual TR Actual WC Standard
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Brilliant Care 
We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

Dec-20

49.12%

Over 30 59

Over 60 14

Dec-20

This indicator has a local target. Ambulance delays (in terms of the percentage waiting over 15 minutes) has increased from 
31.75% to 49.12%. Ambulance conveyances were -5.0% lower than same period last year, however 9.7% higher than 
November, with a 10.2% increase of higher acuity patients compared to previous month. The Emergency Department teams 
continue to work with SWASFT and the CCG to agree joint actions that dove tail with the Flow In workstream, with continued 
focus on the need to stream patients away from ED and use alternative options. Time to triage was 85.4% for ambulance 
patients therefore work continues to be undertaken to minimise delays from arrival to handover, particularly around flow 
from ED to create capacity. Four RATs bays are now operational (up from 3). A review has been undertaken to ensure the 
Trust follows best practice as stipulated by SWAST, with the exception of cohorting red and amber Covid-19 patients. 
Actions to be undertaken are: 
- Undertake an audit of patients streamed away from ED. Contact Exeter Hospitals for lessons learnt and best practice 
- Implement change and refine process to ensure daily validation and reporting process is accurate (daily) 
- Refine handover SOP, along continued audits undertaken by both ED and SWAST to ensure both teams are following 
process 
- Trust Care Groups looking to create capacity to pull admitted patients from ED, to facilitate more space in ED to support 
ambulance offloads 
-Reviewed the referral and transfer process to CATUs with the frailty nurses at the front door to support ED and Acute GP 
pathways. 

This indicator has a local target. There were 14 over 60 minute ambulance breaches during December, and the number 
of over 30 minute delays increased back up from 32 to 59. 
 
Whilst better performance than October, ED delays continued to be due to a mix of surge in demand, higher acuity and 
blocked flow from the department downstream. Conveyance delays to wards were due to inpatient capacity and 
awaiting Covid-19 swab results, where for the third month in a row SDMA (direct medical take ward) was used as 
escalation for inpatient capacity on 2 occasions (and therefore full). 
 
Where ED capacity is full, the highest acuity patients are prioritised and pulled into the department first, and lower 
acuity patients remain waiting on ambulances. ED clinicians triage patients on the back on an ambulance, and where 
appropriate or available, treatment also starts on the back of the ambulance for patients waiting to be transferred into 
the department. 
 
The ED team continue to work with SWASFT colleagues to further reduce waiting ambulances, including appropriate 
handovers to the right place, and it is expected that this will improve as the Trust continues to focus on providing 
alternative system pathways, however high demand and flow blocks will have a negative impact on improvement.  
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 Ambulance delays -% waiting over 15 minutes 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

D
e

c-
1

8
Ja

n
-1

9
Fe

b
-1

9
M

ar
-1

9
A

p
r-

1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

A
u

g-
1

9
Se

p
-1

9
O

ct
-1

9
N

o
v-

1
9

D
e

c-
1

9
Ja

n
-2

0
Fe

b
-2

0
M

ar
-2

0
A

p
r-

2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0
Se

p
-2

0
O

ct
-2

0
N

o
v-

2
0

D
e

c-
2

0

 Ambulance handover delays - 30 & 60 minutes 
 Over 30 Mins Over 60 Mins

Trajectory over 30 Trajectory over 60

20

Page 60 of 294



Brilliant Care 
We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

Dec-20

0.70%

Dec-20

20

This indicator has a national target.  
  
In November, 0.70% of patients attending either ED or UCC left without being seen – this remains well within the 5% 
standard. The latest available national figure was 2.0% in September.  
  
The Trust, with system partners, have continued to use social media and traditional advertising to promote the full 
range of urgent and emergency services available to patients, enabling them to choose services well which usually 
results in fewer patients attending ED unnecessarily. The majority of our Minor Injury pathways continue to be 
redirected to Community MIU's with the help of the 111 program 'Think 111 First'. 
 
The Emergency Department Digital Integration (EDDI) Project is working with Think 111 to be able to book patients into 
the ED department and went live on 2nd December. This has been successfully implemented, with initial feedback that 
appropriate patients are being booked into the appointments, and a few doctors have requested to have access to 
summary care records, to be able to provide a holistic review of patients. Accessing the right care in the right place is 
expected to further reduce attenders leaving ED without being seen. 

This indicator has a national target. During December, the 95th percentile wait for time to initial assessment (triage) 
increased from 19 minutes to 20 minutes, remaining above target due to increasing demand of ambulance conveyance 
with lack of flow from the RATs area (rapid access and treatment) due to overcrowding caused by lack of flow from the 
department downstream, as well as periods of surge. Whilst this is outside the 15 minute target, this is considerably 
lower than the 27.9 minutes reported in December last year. 
 
The ED internal professional standards, as previously mentioned, are being assessed each day by the ED management 
team to act early on issues impacting on their delivery.  
 
Consultant led MDT 2 hourly board rounds,  and an hourly nurse-led review, continue to support early identification of 
inbound ambulances, delays in flowing patients out of the department to ensure RATS has at least one space at all 
times. Surge action cards have been refreshed and circulated to all teams. 
 
The first phase of ED building work (Resus expansion from 3 to 6 spaces) was completed by end of October and is in 
use. The next phase of ED building work has commenced to extend the RATs footprint from 3 cubicles to 5, and 
continues to be expected to be completed by March. Additional space is expected to positively impact initial 
assessment time, providing flow downstream does not continue to hamper the department. 
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Dec-20

48

Dec-20

% Complete within 24 

hrs from March 19
73.52%

% complete within 

24hrs in month
51.82%

% correspondence & 

eDischarges complete 

in month

78.70%

This indicator has a local target. Median time from arrival to treatment in ED deteriorated by 4 minutes to 48 minutes, 
compared to the previous month (44) and 65 same month previous year. The latest available national median figure 
was 52 minutes in September against a national standard of 60 minutes. With delays occurring at triage, reduced flow 
from RATs and challenge to transfer patients waiting for a bed out of the department, a natural negative impact 
occurred on treatment times, however clinicans working in the back of ambulances has helped mitigate long treatment 
times and keep performance below threshold.  
Actions taken: 
- ED have continued the increase in middle grade cover on the twilight shift to support peaks in demand 
- Review current clinical model of UTC GP's and ENP's based in the Community for the next 6 months: This is affecting 
WTBS times overnight, focus is on extending CRCH to 2am and streaming patients way from Treliske. Longer opening 
hours is still in discussion with CFPT. 
- Daily review and validation of reported delays  
- Execs need to actively push Care Groups to pull admitted patients from ED, to facilitate more space in ED to support 
ambulance offloads 
- Continue to develop Trust wide QIDB APD programme board (flow in, flow through, flow out), GM's and input from 
CD's and Speciality leads, which will include plans to set escalation triggers to ensure internal and external support 
from Medical teams is secured. 
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eDischarge summaries  
%  complete within 24hrs from March 19

% complete within 24hrs in month

% correspondence & eDischarges complete in month

The measures are: The proportion completed within 24 hours of discharge in month (irrespective of backlog), total 
completed in month of discharge (irrespective of backlog and 24 hour timeframe), and proportion completed within 24 
hours from March 2019 (backlog position). 
  
There was a slight deterioration in backlog performance in December with 73.52% completed within 24 hours of 
discharge compared to 73.54% in November 2020. For in month discharges, 51.82% of discharges in December had a 
summary completed within 24 hours (+3.19%), with 78.70% completed in month within and outside of the 24 hour 
time frame (-0.17%), resulting in 27.1% of in month e-discharge summaries being added to the backlog. (+0.3% more 
than November). 
  
Junior doctor follow-up engagement remains an issue. To improve this, e-discharge summary training is to be added to 
F1&2 training sessions. This has been scheduled to start in March 2021. The draft SOP has been subsequently amended 
and is expected to be finalised by end of January. Link to primary care has been made through KCCG to progress the 
project across the system, ensuring end user needs are kept in focus and demonstrate RCHT’s commitment to 
improving current performance.  
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Dec-20

10.19%

Dec-20

3.50

This indicator has a local target. Morning discharge performance deteriorated further from 10.58 to 10.19%, 
remaining considerably lower than the Trust target of 30%. 
 
The site team continue to encourage the Care Groups for early discharge, with Care Groups asked to identify 
people for the discharge lounge the night before, and the discharge lounge opening for longer hours when 
flow dictates need. Care Groups continue to follow the 'golden patient' principles with additional focus due to 
Covid-19 risks, and potential discharges are challenged by clinical teams as to why they cannot be transferred 
to the discharge lounge to improve this measure and prevent delays in ED.  
 
Discussions continue with system partners to facilitate timely discharges, combined with regular bed 
escalation processes and attachment of right Clinicians to right place. Specialist Medicine are implementing 
flow improvement processes and will be meeting with Consultants in January to discuss how to pull 
discharges forward in the day. Capacity has been improved to support Manager of the Day processes. There 
are concerns regarding the timely discharge of outliers. For every discharge that fails, an audit is undertaken. 
Poor and failed discharges identified are investigated by Care Groups. 

This indicator has a local target. Overall, average length of stay (LOS) improved slightly in December, with an 
average of 3.50 days per patient -0.07), compared with 3.2 days average over the past two years. We expect 
average LOS to increase over time to align back to normal averages, this is concerning heading into Winter 
with a Covid-19 related reduction of 55 beds. 
  

The small decrease in average LOS is attributable to a -0.71 reduction in elective care LOS (-0.38 days vs same 
month last year). In comparison, emergency average LOS has increased 0.03 days (and 0.12 days vs same 
month last year). The proportion of non-electives with a LOS less than 48 hours increased in December, with 
60.6% of non-elective activity having a LOS less than 48 hours, compared to 59.6% in November, and 59.3% in 
Oct'20 (61.9% Dec'19). 
  

Community capacity has increased which is facilitating earlier discharge, allowing step-down for patients 
awaiting packages of care. One community hospital is now Covid-19 'red' with 28 beds facilitating step down 
when required for Covid positive patients. The Trust has integrated the Flow Hub with the Bed Bureau to 
streamline processing. Daily system meetings to discuss requirements, facilitate delayed transfers of care, 
and pull patients from the hospital are ongoing. In January, STEPs will be moving from a 5 day service to 7 day 
service which will have a further positive impact. 
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Nov-20

89.82%

Nov-20

98.97%

This indicator has a national target. Cancer metrics are reported two months in arrears. The Trust did not 
achieve the 93% standard with only 89.8% of cancer patients being seen within 14 days during November 
2020. This was as a result of the significant increase in Breast referrals. Breast capacity is currently at 
maximum, with demand outweighing capacity. 
  
The Trusts' ability to see patients within the first 7 days reduced in November but Specialties are continuing 
to manage capacity and frequency to improve the sustainability of seeing patients in the first seven days to 
support both the 28 day and 62 day standards. 
  
All teams are now required to provide a five day booking window to allow for an element of patient choice 
which will still enable 80% compliance with the seven day local target. The booking office is escalating when 
they are unable to book patients within seven days and a daily report is being tested to allow real-time 
management of this and until this daily information is available, control over such a tight booking window will 
not be possible. 

This indicator has a national target. The Trust met the 96% standard with 99% of cancer patients being 
treated with 31 days during November 2020. 
  
This has been maintained throughout the year, however it continues to be monitored via the weekly 
operational meeting which manages cancer and RTT, and detailed patient level escalation processes remain 
in place through the weekly action boards with specialties. It is anticipated that the standard will continue to 
be met, however surgical capacity remains a challenge for all treatments but the Trust continues to prioritise 
cancer pathways. The current Covid-19 wave may impact on our ability to maintain this standard due to bed 
availability. 

70.0%

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

N
o

v-
1

8
D

e
c-

1
8

Ja
n

-1
9

Fe
b

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9
M

ay
-1

9
Ju

n
-1

9
Ju

l-
1

9
A

u
g-

1
9

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9
D

e
c-

1
9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0
M

ay
-2

0
Ju

n
-2

0
Ju

l-
2

0
A

u
g-

2
0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

 Cancer 2 week wait 

86.0%

88.0%

90.0%

92.0%

94.0%

96.0%

98.0%

100.0%

N
o

v-
1

8
D

e
c-

1
8

Ja
n

-1
9

Fe
b

-1
9

M
ar

-1
9

A
p

r-
1

9
M

ay
-1

9
Ju

n
-1

9
Ju

l-
1

9
A

u
g-

1
9

Se
p

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
1

9
D

e
c-

1
9

Ja
n

-2
0

Fe
b

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0
M

ay
-2

0
Ju

n
-2

0
Ju

l-
2

0
A

u
g-

2
0

Se
p

-2
0

O
ct

-2
0

N
o

v-
2

0

 Cancer treated within 31 days target 

24

Page 64 of 294



Brilliant Care 
We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

Nov-20

91.49%

Nov-20

83.33%

This indicator has a national target. Cancer metrics are reported two months in arrears. The Trust met the 
85% standard in November 2020, with 91.5% of cancer patients being treated with 62 days.  
  
The Trust is maintaining performance against this standard, however there are aspects of the timed 
pathways which require further refinement to ensure the Trust do not have avoidable breaches. 
  
The timed pathways are being used to analysis patients on the daily PTL and identify specific areas of 
improvement. Some pathways changes are already planned which will see a drop in avoidable breaches 
(Prostate, Lung and Colorectal) this was not expected to be evident until January submission but with the 
current COVID wave, the improvement may be delayed due to patient and clinical deferrals. 

This indicator has a national target. Cancer metrics are reported two months in arrears. The Trust did not 
meet the 90% standard in November 2020, with 83.3 % of cancer patients being treated with 62 days. 
However activity volume is still only at 60% of 'normal' levels, and breaches were due to patient choice. 
  
Following the reinstatement of the screening programmes, the activity numbers will remain very low for at 
least a few months. Screening services are not anticipated to be stood down in the current COVID wave 
although uptake may reduce slightly. 
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62 days of urgent referral from national screening 

service  
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Nov-20

99.09%

2WW 81.89%

Screening 67.97%

Breast Symptomatic
98.73%

Nov-20

The Trust has maintained performance on this indicator with November performance at 99.1% against a 
target of 100%. One patient breached who was referred back to the Trust from a Tertiary Centre on day 90, 
but the patient was treated in December. The Cancer Alliance has set a maximum threshold of 4% of total 
PTL size; the Trust is sustaining and achieving less than 1%. 
  
Cancer pathway patients are monitored and escalated daily, and are prioritised for discussion within weekly 
monitoring meetings in order to ensure those who are clinically urgent are prioritised for treatment. 
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2WW suspected cancer patients, treated within 104 
days of referral 
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Cancer referral to diagnosis within 28 days  

2WW Screening Standard Breast symptomatic

This indicator has a national target of 75% and is new for financial year 2020-21. The combined performance 
for November was 82.9%. 
  
The Trust has been shadow monitoring this new measure for over 24 months which has led to the 
development of the timed pathways so we would expect to consistently perform above the national standard 
of 75% for 2WW and breast symptomatic. 
  
The screening pathway will remain a challenge until referral rates have returned to normal and the timed 
pathway work is extended beyond the trust into screening services. No actions can be delivered for this; 
however pathway improvement in collaboration with screening hubs is underway. 
  
Although sustaining performance against this standard, the timed pathway work will also see improvements 
to the 28 day standard, particularly in Colorectal and prostate which are our lowest performers against this 
standard. 
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Dec-20

26,373

The overall RTT waiting list has increased by 155, from 26,218 to 155, with the over 18 week backlog 
increasing by 0.8% (+196). This is in line with historic December activity and performance. This position is 
being closely monitored daily. 
  

31 of the 53 treatment functions improved in December. The treatment functions with the worst 
deterioration are Orthopaedics, Dermatology, Cardiology and Gynaecology. The Treatment functions with 
the biggest improvement are Oral Surgery and General Surgery. 
  

The Trust continues to focus on seeing and treating patients with the highest harm risks and urgency first, 
whilst reviewing all patients waiting to ensure no harm. Specialty level recovery plans and trajectories are in 
place, and monitored through the weekly Exec-level RTT & Access meeting, as well as monthly workshops. 
Ongoing work also continues around theatre productivity to maximise capacity (activity is increasing month 
on month), as well as continuing to utilise independent sector capacity such as the Duchy and Probus. We are 
routinely validating our waiting lists to ensure patients still require treatment and their reported pathway is 
accurate.  14000
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Dec-20

89.09%

Dec-20

527
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 Proportion of patients receiving one of the 15 key 
diagnostic tests within 6 weeks 
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 RTT waits over 52 weeks for incomplete pathways 

Actual Standard Trajectory

This indicator has a national target. Diagnostics performance improved by 1.3% on November position (87.8%) to 
89.0% in December. Areas of concern are Echocardiography (56.1%, down -17.1%), Urodynamics (51.1%, up 4.0%), 
Colonoscopy (78.0%, up +24.8%), Audiology (80.5%, +20.2%), Gastroscopy (83.1%, +9.7%), and Sleep Studies (94.1%, -
1.5%). Colonoscopy, Gastroscopy and Flexi Sigmoidoscopy are all improving well in line with trajectories. The Urology 
service have recruited a GP with special interests who commenced post on 1st December and has a month of training. 
An increase in activity is expected for mid-January.  
 
All areas of diagnostic imaging continue to perform well while balancing the need of increased inpatient demand, Covid 
management, outpatient lists and unplanned service disruption. CT and MRI are the areas that require most focus 
based on volume and capacity. The department hit its RTT reportable target of 99% in December with all reportable 
areas above 98%. January to date has proved more challenging but reflects the wider operational pressures, 
particularly rising Covid numbers. Capital investments: Both CT projects are delayed however progressing. Nuclear 
Medicine (although not a reportable function) continues to be challenged by a number of risks. Two of which are to be 
considered at building brilliance this month. An investment paper has been submitted to cover workforce gaps along 
with a request to meet changing and new demands on the services. Operational board will consider this paper on the 
28th of January. Although routine activity has been stood down in January, outpatient diagnostics continue to be 
operational. 

This indicator has a national target. The figure reported here is an un-validated position. The number of 52 week waits 
is currently 527 for December (+91). 
  
34 have been cancelled due to Covid-19. 10 breaches are awaiting diagnostics. 77 of the breaches were booked and 
cancelled by the patient due to concerns over Covid-19. 11 were not attended (DNA/patient choice/patient unwell). 4 
were cancelled by the hospital due to unwell staff/no beds/priority patient. 261 of these breaches are under 
Orthopaedics, 113 under Urology, 27 ENT, 26 General Surgery, 19 Upper GI Surgery, 16 Vascular, 13 each for 
Cardiology, Ophthalmology and Oral Surgery, and 11 under Neurology. 
  
The number of 52 week waits are expected to increase further during January across multiple specialties due to the 
Covid-19 requirements to step down elective activity, however we are making significant progress compared to where 
we would be with no action. The Trust is utilising other sites to help expedite routine patient care quicker, as well as 
continually exploring the theatres template for opportunities to increase activity. Specialty level recovery plans and 
trajectories are in place, to undertake as much urgent, cancer and long wait activity as possible within the Covid-19 
constraints.  
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Dec-20

77.47%

This indicator has a national target. The figure reported here is an un-validated position, due to the cross-over 
of RTT sign off and IPR publication.  
  
Performance improved from 76.67% to 77.47% (+0.8%) which is better than the national average of 60.6% 
(Sep'20). The Trust is 1.53% below the revised trajectory. The Trusts 92nd centile waiting time at the end of 
December remains at 39 weeks and continues to perform well against the national average (45.1 weeks 
November 2020). The impact of the theatre template, which includes Duchy activity, continues to offer 
mutual aid for Urology cancer pathways to Derriford.  
  
The Trust continues to work on maximising use of independent sector capacity, outsourcing options where 
available as well as longer term, and working on delivering new models of care. All patients over 18 weeks are 
reviewed routinely on a weekly basis including harm reviews. Weekly meetings occur to expedite these 
patients where possible.  0.0%
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We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

19/20 831
20/21 745
20/21 % 89.65%

19/20 5,140
20/21 4,622
20/21 % 89.92%

Dec-20

Dec-20
This new indicator shows progress against the recovery activity requirements as set out for the NHS in terms 
of Covid phase 3. 
 
For inpatient electives, providers are expected to achieve at least 90% of last year's activity for both 
overnight electives and outpatient/ day case procedures (increased from 80% in September). This assumes 
no significant impact from Covid-19.  
 
For inpatient electives activity this was achieved in December  (90%). 

This indicator shows progress against the recovery activity requirements as set out for the NHS in terms of 
Covid phase 3, with a target of 90%, which was met in December (90%). 
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We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

19/20 40,604
20/21 38,244
20/21 % 94.19%

19/20 11,491
20/21 11,617
20/21 % 101.10%

Dec-20

Dec-20

This indicator shows progress against the recovery activity requirements as set out for the NHS in terms of 
Covid phase 3. 
  
For outpatients, providers were expected to achieve 100% of last year's activity for consultant delivered 
outpatients from September. This assumes no significant impact from Covid-19.  
  
This continues to increase month on month, with the year on year comparison rising from 88% for November 
to 94% in December. 
 
High volume specialties most adrift included Trauma & Orthopaedics (-929, 75%),  Physiotherapy (-724, 67%), 
Ophthalmology (-668, 86%), Orthoptics (-397, 60%) and Audiology  (-378, 79%). 

This indicator shows progress against the recovery activity requirements as set out for the NHS in terms of 
Covid phase 3. 
  
For diagnostics, providers were expected to achieve 90% of last year's activity for diagnostics from 
September, increasing to 100% in October. This assumes no significant impact from Covid-19.  
  
At a top line level this requirement is being achieved (although the subset of diagnostics within which this is 
being monitored may be subject to change which may affect the position).  
  
Diagnostic activity improved from  97% in November to 101% for the December comparison. 
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We provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have to spend in our care

Dec-20

5.30%

Dec-20

100.00%

This indicator has a local target. Net emergency readmissions within 28 days increased from slightly from 
5.0% in November to 5.3% in December. This is again above the Trusts' internal challenging target of 4.8% 
(which is what we want to achieve), but remains an improved position compared to other comparable 
months.  
  
An action plan is in place to support frequent attenders, particularly those with mental health issues who are 
regularly admitted requiring repair surgery from self-harm. The Trust is continuing to review this in line with 
the impact of Covid-19. 
  
The General Managers for each of the medical care groups continue to review of every patient readmitted 
within 28 days of their discharge, and meet to discuss themes and learning to develop improvement plans to 
put in place. The details of these patients re-admitted within 28 days are then reviewed by clinicians to access 
the key learning points and opportunities to make changes for the future.  
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 Net emergency readmissions within 28 days 

This indicator has a local target. The percentage of patients with fractured neck of femur (NOF) operated on 
within 36 hours for November was 93%, improving to 100% in December. This performance exceeds the 80% 
target. 
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Dec-20

54.32%

Dec-20

78.02%

This indicator has a national target. An improvement of 13.16% is evident in December however performance remains 
below target. 
 
Due to the reasons mentioned above, the stroke nurses and Matron are focusing on completing a daily exception 
report to identify reasons and trends for delays. 
 
We continue to implement a local plan to reduce the number of wards that these outlying patients go to, to ensure 
continuity of care and reviews within the Specialty are maintained. Systemwide actions are being undertaken to 
increase the volume of rehabilitation available within the community to facilitate timely discharges and reduce outliers. 
Recruitment opportunities are being discussed, with the potential to recruit a Stroke Nurse Consultant, as recruitment 
for Stroke Consultant posts remain challenging. This measure will not improve whilst the service has stroke patients 
outlying on non-stroke wards. 
 

The national target is 90% however the Trust has an interim target of 70% as part of our drive to provide excellent stroke 
care, the stroke service has rebased most of its' targets encourage improvement in service provision.  
The Stroke ward continues to be ring-fenced resulting in few medical patients blocking beds, however December continued 
to see above average demand on the Acute Stroke Service at RCH (81) and within the community, with an additional 12 
stroke patients (+17%) above the last 7 year monthly average. This demonstrates that the demand on the service continues 
to be exacerbated with more stroke patients needing treatment and higher acuity levels, resulting in more patients waiting 
for stroke beds to become available. This has inevitably meant that stroke patients have continued to be outlied in 
December as the unit remains at well over 98% capacity; 36 patients did not arrive to the stroke unit within 4 hours in 
December, an improvement of 4 compared to November. The most common reason for delay was due to no stroke bed 
availability (14 patients), 13 of which were outlied onto other wards. Nine patients were delayed due to a delayed diagnosis 
of stroke, seven with very complex diagnosis and two due to volume of activity in ED. These patients are being reviewed by 
the Stroke Consultants. Flow out into CPFT community hospitals for rehabilitation (CRCH and Bodmin) has improved, 
resulting in a decrease in length of stay from 5.3 days to 4.0 days. The volume increase in stroke patients and delays to the  
unit have resulted in poor performance, combined with reduced nursing team (25% reduction due to sickness absence and 
vacancy). 
Actions to be undertaken are: The CCG have confirmed that this is one of their top agenda items and are currently working 
on a project to tackle this from a system point of view. Therapies have a business case being progressed to increase the 
number of staff to support community hospitals for early discharge.  
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Dec-20

98.77%

Dec-20

75.95%

This indicator has a national target. The Trust has increased its target to align with the national average, now 
95%. 
  
This metric remains above threshold, with continued strong performance. One patient did not get CT 
scanned within the 12 hour window due being admitted as a complex diagnosis. 

This indicator has an internal target. We continue to see an upward trajectory thereby indicating that the 
actions implemented appear to be addressing the concerns in this area.  
 
The previous action of implementing a revised Standard Operating Process (SOP) is now live. This SOP will 
ensure that accountability for this is shared among both departments, therefore improving the intervention 
and its timing. The Service continues to exception report: Nine patients were delayed due to delayed 
diagnosis or not being admitted as a query stroke, two were not completed by ED (which is now covered 
within the SOP), and one was a query Covid-19 positive patient. Five patients had no reason listed - these are 
being audited to identify. 
 
Actions to be undertaken are: 
Service Manager to continue to monitor progress of the Stroke/ED training programme being led by a Stroke 
Nurse. An action plan to tackle the wards' contingency plan for when a Stroke Nurse is absent continues to be 
developed and is discussed within the Stroke Governance Board.  
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Dec-20

93.75%

Dec-20

35.38%

This indicator has a local target. The metric was achieved in December.  
 
Service redesign is ongoing with therapy teams in the community; this may have a small positive impact on the stroke 
therapies service going forwards.  
  
The community therapy business case, including the community therapy workforce model, has been submitted and is 
awaiting approval. 
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% of outpatient non face to face appointments 
attended 

This is a new national KPI for the financial year. The target is set at 50% for specialities to reach non-face to 
face compliance (25% for news and 60% for follow-ups). Each specialty has trajectories and targets to reach 
50% target overall. For December, Trust performance was 35.38% (-3.1%). A reduction in telephone 
appointments remains evident, however video consultation appointments continue to increase, albeit slowly.  
  

Many specialities within the Trust converted seamlessly to telephone consultations during Covid-19 wave 1. 
However, with the opening of community clinic settings, some specialties have converted back to face to face, 
which accounts for the drop in non-face to face appointments. In many cases this is appropriate due to the 
backlog of patients needing to be physically seen, however the Trust is pushing for those appointments that 
can be virtual to be converted back to non-face to face: Performance is expected to increase with interim 
hybrid clinics as well as further operational conversion of appointment types. 
 

Head and Neck specialties are an issue as the majority will need to be physically seen. Audiology continue to 
plan a virtual hearing-aid 'tuning' clinic to reduce footfall within the hospital for simple work.  All new 
Gynaecology patients require a face to face appointment as a physical examination is required. Some 
paediatrics specialties require face to face appointments to fulfil safeguarding requirements, however this is 
being minimised for essential appointments only with the rest of appointments being undertaken virtually. 
Care Groups continue to promote virtual models wherever possible as the preferred option which is more 
convenient for patients and reduces the patient’s carbon foot print.  
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Brilliant Improvement
We make good use of the resources that are available to us  

 

Bank 307

Substantive 5741

Agency 121

Dec-20

6.30

Dec-20
Total staff numbers increased during December to 6,169 FTE (from 6,099 , +70). Within this, the number of 
substantive staff increased by 44 FTE, bank increased by 12 FTE, and agency by 14 FTE. 
 
The implications and associated actions are summarised in the commentary on subsequent charts.  

This indicator has a national target.  
  
Accumulative agency spend at the end of December was c£6.3m against a cumulative budget of £10.2m. 
However, the in-month actual of c£0.9m exceeded the budget for the month which was £0.8m.  
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Brilliant Improvement
We make good use of the resources that are available to us  

 

Pay 216.40

Non pay 141.50

Dec-20

24.09

Dec-20
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This indicator has a national target. Month 9 cumulatively has capital spend of c£24.1m spent against a plan 
of £24.3m - an underspend of £0.2. Whilst the capital programme is fully committed, there are emerging 
risks that the Trust will underspend its capital envelope. Specifically: 
  
 - The works to install CT2 is due to take place in March. The project manager believes this will still happen 
but it could slip due to access to contractors or to site. 
  
 - Estate spend is £2.5m for the year-to-date against a budget of £8.2m. This leaves £5.7m of spend to take 
place in the final three months of the year. The Director of Estates believes the budget will be fully spent.  
  
Capital spend is monitored each month by the Capital Delivery Group. Spend is profiled so that any changes 
in the plan can be managed during the year. 
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Pay / non pay expenditure -cumulative (£m) 
 Non pay expenditure Pay expenditure

Non pay expenditure plan Pay expenditure plan

Non-pay spend cumulatively totals £141.5m and is c£1m over budget. This is due to additional pass through 
drug and device costs which is variable to the Trust under the block funding arrangement.  
  
Cumulative Pay expenditure of £216.4m is £1.8m under plan. This is due to activity levels, in particular 
outpatients and day-cases being lower than planned. 
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Brilliant Improvement
We make good use of the resources that are available to us  
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Year end forecast financial position 

Actual Plan

Currently, the Trust is forecasting deliver its financial plan position which is a deficit of c£5.9m. However, a 
detailed forecast is currently underway which could result in an improvement in the financial plan.  
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Year to date financial position 
 

Actual Plan

The approved Phase 3 Financial Plan deficit has reduced from c£6.86m by c£0.96m to c£5.9m. This is the 
outcome of representations made to NHSEI that the baseline for income was not originally calculated 
correctly. 
  
At the end of December, the plan deficit was c£2.4m. The actual reported position of the Trust is a deficit of 
c£0.8m meaning the Trust is c£1.6m better than plan. 
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Brilliant People
We are true to our values and create a brilliant place to work 

 

Dec-20

9.0%

This indicator has a local target.  
  
Turnover has increased by 0.1% in month, and whilst this is slightly above the Trusts’ acceptable level our 
year to date figure is favourable when compared to both 18/19 and 19/20 respectively. Please see below 
graph and narrative on the number of leavers in month.  
  
We continue to have a steady, healthy, rate of turnover and are not an outlying Trust nationally.  
  
We have previously undertaken work to identify HCA hotspot areas of turnover, and we will continue to 
integrate this data within Care Groups. Our People and OD Partner's will work closely with Care Groups to 
identify where further focus is required to support retention of staff in critical roles.  
 

6.0%

6.5%

7.0%

7.5%

8.0%

8.5%

9.0%

9.5%

10.0%

10.5%

D
e

c-
1

8
Ja

n
-1

9
Fe

b
-1

9
M

ar
-1

9
A

p
r-

1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
n

-1
9

Ju
l-

1
9

A
u

g-
1

9
Se

p
-1

9
O

ct
-1

9
N

o
v-

1
9

D
e

c-
1

9
Ja

n
-2

0
Fe

b
-2

0
M

ar
-2

0
A

p
r-

2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
n

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

A
u

g-
2

0
Se

p
-2

0
O

ct
-2

0
N

o
v-

2
0

D
e

c-
2

0

 Staff turnover  

53

Page 79 of 294



Brilliant People
We make sure colleagues receive feedback to know how they are doing 

Dec-20

71.8%

Dec-20

82.7%

Medical Appraisals were suspended April-Oct 2020, which has resulted in a backlog which is still being 
worked through. The Trust has therefore reduced the local target from 95% to 90% compliance. 
 
Medical and non-medical appraisal compliance rates are not separated out, which contributes to the low 
compliance figure, however ongoing operational pressures and absences due to Covid-19 is also a significant 
factor contributing to low compliance across the Trust.   
 
Compliance is discussed regularly at Care Group board with various local plans in place to support managers 
to conduct and record appraisals. 
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% Appraisals completed of eligible staff 

This indicator has a local target of 90%. 
  
Mandatory training compliance has remained in a downward trajectory since the outbreak of Covid -19 in 
March 2020. The overall mandatory compliance is 82.7% for December. The Bank and Locum groups 
compliance is 65.5%, therefore compliance excluding this group is 86.5%. The social distancing measures 
have significantly reduced room capacity for training. 
  
E-learning is available for the majority of mandatory subjects, and colleagues are being supported to access 
this blended learning approach by the People Partners.  
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Brilliant People
We provide an environment that supports colleague safety, heath & wellbeing 

Dec-20

4.03%

Dec-20

10

This indicator has a local target.  
  
Sickness absence has declined marginally from November (4.05%) to 4.03% in December. Although we have 
seen a steady increase month by month since Aug-20, we are well below a yearly high of 5.03% in March 
2020 (start of COVID-19 period).  
  
Whilst the increase reflects normal seasonal fluctuations in sickness absence levels, our absence figures are 
favourable compared to previous years despite the challenging year during the pandemic. It is however 
expected that the figures for January will be significantly higher as Covid-19 cases amongst staff have risen 
dramatically. 
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 % Sickness absence 

RIDDOR reporting fell to 10 last month.  
  
  
Of those: 
1 case related to Dermatitis: Monitoring for dermatitis continues with support provided by the Occupational 
Health team. 
7 relate to patient falls and 2 related to staff sickness/injury.  
  
Obtaining information on staff sickness and injuries remain problematical and requires significant resources 
input from the HSSMH team to continually chase the divisions for follow up information. 
  
The review of RIDDOR reporting of Occupational Ill Health continues across the Trust with a view to 
improving processes for the identification, notification and treatment of these conditions. 
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Brilliant People
We provide an environment that supports colleague safety, heath & wellbeing 

Dec-20

2290

Dec-20

75.10%

This indicator has a local target of 90%.  
  
Compliance for Health and safety training is 75.10%. The training provision for Health and Safety 
continues to be available online only, pending a virtual provision of this training. 

This indicator has a local target.  
  
Deep dives into areas that are flagged red are being conducted by People & OD Partners. Local 
measures in Care Groups are in place to support staff.  
  
Information from Occupational Health on Health & Wellbeing has provided a lot of support, 
signposting and resources on mental health wellbeing that is being cascaded to Care Group teams; 
and some Care Groups have developed personal wellbeing recovery templates which will be shared 
across all CGs for local adaptation.  
  
Some Care Groups are arranging for bespoke mental health sessions with an external provider (Sky 
Bounders). 
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FTE Sick Days Lost to Stress Related Absence 
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Appendix 1: Brilliant Care Summary Dashboard
NB: Unvalidated KPI returns are paused between April and June 2020 (i.e. not submitted nationally).

Pledge Metric

20_21 

Target/ 

Standard

19/20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Variation YTD 20/21 Sparkline

Number of pressure ulcers 12 11 9 7 11 9 -2 9

VTE- Number of preventable HAT 3.00 0 2 1 0 -1 0

All patient falls 99 107 113 84 131 +47 93

Moderate/Severe harm falls 2 7 2 3 3 0 3

Never events 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 8

Serious incidents (monthly) 6 9 10 13 1 4 +3 7

Serious incidents breached 0 3 5 7 6 8 +2 4

 Patients who met the criteria and were screened for sepsis - ED 90.00% 82% 100% 100% #N/A in arrears #N/A 100%

 Patients who met the criteria and were screened for sepsis - other admitting areas 90.00% 100% 100% 100% 100% in arrears 0.00% 100%

 Patients who met the criteria and were screened for sepsis - Inpatients 90.00% 100% 100% 100% 100% in arrears 0.00% 100%

Sepsis patients who met the criteria and received antibiotics within an hour - ED 90.00% 68% 76% 80% #N/A in arrears #N/A 85%

Sepsis patients who met the criteria and received antibiotics within an hour - Other admitting areas 90.00% 90% #N/A #N/A 100% in arrears #N/A 95%

Sepsis patients who met the criteria and received antibiotics within an hour - Inpatients 90.00% 95% 100% 100% 100% in arrears 0.00% 90%

Medicine reconciliation 80.00% 84.42% 88.00% 93.00% 90.00% 91.00% +1.00% 91.44%

ED safety checklist 97.00% 91.17% 94.00% 93.00% 97.00% 91.00% -6.00% 96.22%

ED safety checklist audit: Pain Score assessed hourly 80.00% 90.00% 76.00% 87.00% 79.00% -8.00% 86.11%

ED Quanta audit: Documentation 90.00% 77.10% 99.00% 96.00% 89.00% 94.00% +5.00% #REF!

ED safety checklist audit:Vital Signs Measured as per NEWS Score 80.00% 100.00% 94.00% 96.00% 95.00% -1.00% 94.78%

Infection control: MRSA 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Infection control: MSSA 31 1 2 4 1 -3 12

Infection control: C-difficile cases 64 82 10 5 9 4 -5 55

 Gram negative bacteraemia total 69.00 5 4 5 5 0 46

Rolling 12 month HSMR 91.30 98.63 98.49 in arrears in arrears -0.14 95.714286

Rolling 12 month HSMR by weekend 94.86 107.26 104.72 in arrears in arrears -2.54 102.44

Rolling 12 month HSMR by non-weekend 90.10 95.73 96.39 in arrears in arrears +0.66 93.491429

SHMI 92.37 98.63 in arrears in arrears in arrears +6.26 94.036667

SMR 92.67 88.00 86.00 in arrears in arrears -2.00 87.142857

Crude Mortality 9.69 10.40 10.30 10.40 10.30 -0.10 10.266667

Transfers between 8pm-8am excluding admitting areas 412 357 372 288 396 +108 319

All transfers between 8pm-8am 1055 893 870 782 937 +155 790

Actual vs Planned Registered Nurses (hours) 89.39% 93.88% 93.63% 90.01% -3.62% 87.54%

Actual vs Planned Unregistered Nurses (hours) 90.27% 90.22% 92.79% 90.54% -2.24% 91.24%

Care hours per patient day 9 9.2 9.4 9.3 -0.1 11.0

Duty of candour compliance 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 33.00% -67.00% 92.56%

 Complaints responded to within agreed timescale 100.00% 71.42% 82.00% 47.00% 69.00% 74.00% +5.00% 74.67%

 Dissatisfied complainants 3 4 2 3 2 0 -2 1
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Appendix 1: Brilliant Care Summary Dashboard
NB: Unvalidated KPI returns are paused between April and June 2020 (i.e. not submitted nationally).

Pledge Metric

20_21 

Target/ 

Standard

19/20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Variation YTD 20/21 Sparkline
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Total number of formal complaints 30 41 26 23 27 22 -5 22

 Total number of informal complaints 76 109 122 116 89 -27 83

Total compliments 608 179 288 266 319 +53 252

 28 day re-booking breaches (monthly) 7 9 3 5 6 14 +8 10

Percentage of cancellations on the same day 0.80% 1.04% 0.61% 0.60% 0.90% 0.67% -0.22% 0.61%

 ED & MIU (from July17) attenders -  4 hours arrival to discharge, admission or transfer 95.00% 89.18% 86.15% 85.09% 86.16% 81.53% -4.63% 90.42%

 Treliske ED attenders - 4 hours arrival to discharge, admission or transfer 95.00% 71.51% 65.02% 65.49% 68.30% 59.30% -9.00% 76.80%

West Cornwall ED attenders - 4 hours arrival to discharge, admission or transfer 95.00% 97.73% 96.93% 96.10% 98.33% 96.80% -1.53% 97.93%

 Ambulance delays - % waiting over 15 minutes 23.00% 32.43% 37.07% 39.19% 31.75% 49.12% +17.37% 33.41%

 Ambulance delays - over 30 minutes 47 80 28 59 32 59 +27 31

 Ambulance delays - over 60 minutes 5 8 2 9 3 14 +11 4

ED attenders who left without being seen 5.00% 1.51% 1.26% 0.96% 0.67% 0.70% +0.03% 0.79%

  95th percentile, time to initial assessment (mins) 15 30 23 20 19 20 +0 17

Median Time from Arrival to Treatment (mins) 50 61.85 66.67 51.94 43.53 48.06 +4.53 42

 12 hour trolley waits 0 202 14 38 24 65 +41 142

IUC (111): Percent of calls answered within 60 seconds 95% 76.01% 56.05% 81.39% 73.79% 73.98% +0.19% 75.97%

IUC (111): Average time to clinical assessment -Routine 60.00 64.91 138.16 95.13 73.50 83.49 +10 90.36

IUC (111): Average time to clinical assessment - Urgent 20.00 20.66 32.23 28.56 28.46 43.11 +14.66 31.80

IUC (111): Increased validation of calls with an initial disposition of ‘attend ED’ 90% 98.91% 99.86% 99.74% 99.61% -0.13% 99.25%

IUC (111):Increased validation of calls with an initial category 3 or 4 ambulance disposition 90% 94.12% 96.04% 95.29% 94.22% -1.06% 94.89%

% eDischarge summaries complete within 24hrs from March 19 76.09% 73.97% 73.84% 73.54% 73.52% -0.02% 73.76%

% eDischarge summaries complete within 24hrs in month 54.82% 53.60% 50.52% 48.63% 51.82% +3.18% 52.15%

% eDischarges and correspondance completed in month 78.31% 75.40% 76.43% 78.87% 78.70% -0.17% 76.03%

 Discharges between 6am and 12pm 30.00% 10.69% 10.08% 10.62% 10.58% 10.19% -0.39% 10.59%

 Average LOS 3.30 3.47 3.31 3.56 3.57 3.50 -0.07 3.18

% Same day area discharges within 24 hours 33.30% 17.69% 13.40% 14.20% 13.70% 13.20% -0.50% 11.29%

 Cancer 2 week wait 93.00% 96.08% 98.80% 97.55% 89.82% in arrears -7.74% 97.17%

 Cancer treated within 31 days target 96.00% 98.40% 98.50% 97.28% 98.97% in arrears +1.69% 98.29%

 Cancer treated within 62 days target 85.00% 85.58% 92.90% 88.96% 91.49% in arrears +2.53% 88.94%

 Percentage receiving first definitive treatment within 62 days of urgent referral from national 

screening service 
90.00% 80.51% 0.00% 86.96% 83.33% in arrears -3.62% 62.32%

2WW suspected cancer patients, treated within 104 days of referral 100.00% 96.52% 100.00% 99.08% 99.09% in arrears +0.01% 98.17%

Referral to diagnosis within 28 days - 2WW 80.00% 82.80% 81.24% 81.89% in arrears +0.65% 82.93%

Referral to diagnosis within 28 days - screening 80.00% 56.80% 70.87% 67.97% in arrears -2.90% 50.98%

Referral to diagnosis within 28 days - Breast symptomatic 80.00% 100.00% 100.00% 98.73% in arrears -1.27% 99.74%
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Appendix 1: Brilliant Care Summary Dashboard
NB: Unvalidated KPI returns are paused between April and June 2020 (i.e. not submitted nationally).

Pledge Metric

20_21 

Target/ 

Standard

19/20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Variation YTD 20/21 Sparkline
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 RTT incomplete - % within 18 weeks 92.00% 85.51% 69.02% 73.92% 76.67% 77.47% +0.80% 67.58%

Incomplete pathways 25,210 26,750 26,775 26,218 26,373 +155.00 26,096

 Proportion of patients receiving one of the 15 key diagnostic tests within 6 weeks 99.00% 96.21% 72.12% 81.00% 87.82% 89.09% +1.27% 66.28%

 RTT waits over 52 weeks for incomplete pathways- UNVALIDATED 0 7 332 389 436 527 +91 527

Inpatient Elective Activity 1 851 799 979 876 745 -131 646

Inpatient Daycase Activity 1 5539 4852 5147 4647 4622 -25 3744

Outpatient Activity 1 44894 38726 40420 41113 38244 -2869 34027

Diagnostics Activity 1 12525 12097 12312 12251 11617 -634 10372

 Net emergency readmissions within 28 days 4.80% 5.87% 4.90% 4.50% 5.00% 5.30% +0.30% 5.46%

 NOF patients operated on within 36 hours 80.00% 75.00% 85.71% 86.67% 93.33% 100.00% +6.67% 90.06%

 Stroke patients spending 90% of their time on stroke unit 90.00% 81.74% 91.67% 67.78% 64.86% 78.02% +13.16% 80.96%

Stroke unit within 4 hours 70.00% 63.06% 57.58% 54.02% 48.05% 54.32% +6.27% 65.43%

 Stroke patients receiving CT scan within 12 hours 95.00% 96.33% 97.06% 91.95% 98.70% 98.77% +0.06% 96.33%

 Stroke patients receiving swallow screening within 4 hours 90.00% 77.24% 59.38% 71.60% 74.67% 75.95% +1.28% 78.63%

 Stroke dysphasia assessment 72 hours 90.00% 92.57% 96.00% 84.21% 90.91% 93.75% +2.84% 91.80%

Document library - % documents expired 5.00% 8.69% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.30% 0.00% 3.60%

 Short notice outpatient clinic cancellations 76 122 366 301 246 196 -50 294

Percent of outpatient appointments attended that are non F2F 50% 7.88% 39.39% 38.09% 38.48% 35.38% -3.10% 45.67%

 Patients on the follow-up waiting list 1 month past their to be seen date 5797 13,516 12,490 11,918 11,282 -636 12,958

Stranded patients (LOS >7days) 216 216 203 193 201 206 +5 163

Super Stranded patients (LOS >21days) 75 72 75 69 64 74 +10 54

Viewpoint responses 75% 1 1 1 1

Mitie cleaning scores 

1 1 1

in arrears
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Appendix 2: Brilliant Improvement Summary Dashboard

Pledge Metric

20_21 

Target/ 

Standard

19/20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Variation YTD 20/21 Sparkline

Total staffing utilised (FTE) 5,660 5,995 6,038 6,099 6,169 +70 5789

Agency spend vs plan (£m) 10.2 1.80 3.68 4.58 5.42 6.30 +0.88

CIP % delivery at year end 100% N/A 67.00% 63% 94% +0.31

CIP delivery - Forecast year end CIP that is recurring (%) N/A 27% 30% 25% -0.05

Pay expenditure 218.2 142.50 166.70 191.53 216.40 +24.87

Non pay expenditure 140.50 91.40 108.20 124.50 141.50 +17.00

Income against plan (£m) 373.50 245.50 287.90 330.56 374.20 +43.64

Capital spend against plan (£m) 23.24 25.80 13.83 15.60 19.80 24.09 +4.29

Year to date financial position 2.40 1.24 0.00 0.91 0.94 0.80 -0.14

Year end forecast financial position 1.24 n/a 6.86 5.9 5.90 0.00

Number of QI ambassadors 140 135 140 140 140 140 0 140

% of colleagues who have completed in house QI training 80% 79.92% 83.70% 100.00% 0.00% -100.00% 0.00%

Number of live innovations 5 35 40 39 41 +2 36

Progress against digital strategy 2 2 2 2

Number of patients recruited to trials 2178 3247 2016 2137 2527 2654 +127 2654

Income generated by RD&I 751,816   1,025,209 750,913 937,676 1,052,342 in arrears +114666 1,052,342

We make good use of the resources that 

are available to us

We ensure that everyone has the 

capability and capacity to pursue quality 

improvements for our patients

We use innovation and digital technology 

to improve the quality, experience and 

cost of our care

We are growing the Trust’s national 

reputation for excellence in research and 

development
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Appendix 3: Brilliant People Summary Dashboard

Pledge Metric

20_21 

Target/ 

Standard

19/20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Variation YTD 20/21 Sparkline

 Staff turnover 7-11% 9.26% 8.10% 8.20% 8.90% 9.00% +0.10% 8.68%

Headcount starters 93 79 69 61 32 -29 85

Headcount internal moves 108 33 67 63 165 +102 80

Headcount leavers -Permanent 33 22 29 20 23 +3 23

Headcount leavers- Fixed term 15 8 9 4 4 0 16

Staffing FTE: Agency 202 84 130 107 121 +14 80

Vacancy gap: Total vacancies 9.00% 10.63% 7.50% 7.90% 6.80% 6.70% -0.10% 7.87%

Recommend the Trust as a Place to Work 55% 74% 66% 66% 66% 64% -2% 66%

Recommend the trust as a place to receive care 65% 82% 79% 79% 79% 69% -10% 78%

% Appraisals completed of eligible staff 95.00% 78.77% 76.30% 76.00% 74.30% 71.80% -2.50% 75.53%

Pulse survey - % who say my immediate manager gives me 

clear feedback 
64% 64% 64% 61% -3% +64%

% Mandatory training completed 90% 89.15% 84.80% 83.90% 83.10% 82.70% -0.40% 85.77%

% of apprenticeships being undertaken by RCHT colleagues 2.30% 2.77% 3.47% 2.84% 3.40% +0.56% 2.67%

 % Sickness absence 3.75% 4.43% 3.80% 3.93% 4.05% 4.03% -0.02% 3.93%

Confirmed cases of occupational dermatitis 2 9 6 9 1 -8 7

Number of RIDDOR reports 8 17 27 13 10 -3 17

FTE Sick Days Lost to Stress Related Absence 1,589          2,168 2,137 2,275 2,290 +15 2,136

% compliance with Health and Safety Mandatory training 90% 89.15% 75.30% 74.40% 74.60% 75.10% +0.50% 76.38%

Pulse survey - % who say my immediate manager takes a 

positive interest in my wellbeing 
69% 69% 69% 71% +2% 70%

We are true to our values and create a brilliant place to work

We make sure colleagues receive feedback to know how they 

are doing

We provide development to help colleagues learn and grow 

We provide an environment that supports colleagues safety, 

health and wellbeing
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Pledge Metric

20_21 

Target/ 

Standard

19/20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Variation YTD 20/21 Sparkline

We are true to our values and create a brilliant place to work

We provide great leadership and support to help colleagues be the 

best they can be
Pulse survey - Total number of responses 1085 1085 1085 3706 +2621 1439

Number of FTSU issues raised with guardians 3 8 9 11 8 -3 12

% of staff grievances resolved within 8 weeks 100% 96% 85% 100% 60% 100% +40.00% 86%

% of female staff that are band 7+  
75.0% 60.00% 59.50% 59.60% 59.60% 0.00% 59.60%

% of BAME staff that are band 6 & 7 2% 2.80% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% +0.10% 3%

% staff who have chosen not to declare  their sexual 

orientation
10% 21.70% 21.40% 21.10% 20.90% -0.20% 20.90%

% staff who have chosen not to declare  their sexual 

orientation or disability status
10% 19.00% 19.00% 18.80% 18.60% -0.20% 18.60%

We have an open, inclusive and partnership approach to working 

with our brilliant people

We create a safe environment so colleagues feel supported to 

speak up
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Appendix 4: Abbreviation Glossary

 

CEO – Chief Executive Symbol key:
FUW – Follow up waiting

NIHSS – NIH Stroke Scale

DOSA – Day of surgery admission

SI – Serious Incident

SHMI – Summary Hospital Level Mortality Indicator

YTD – Year to date

RTT – referral to treatment

DTOC – delayed transfer of care

HSCIC – Health and Social Care Information Centre

HSMR – Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio

FTE – Full time equivalent

SRO – Senior Responsible Officer

ECIP - Emergency Care Improvement Programme

HAT Hospital acquired thrombosis

Light blue lines within a graph indicate a local trajectory.

Straight dark red lines within a graph indicate either KPI average or the KPI standard.

Straight green lines within a graph indicate upper (top of the graph) or lower (bottom of the graph) 

control limit. The line closest to the direction the KPI should be going in, will be green.

Measure shows a decline in performance over the previous 3 month period.

Straight amber lines within a graph indicate upper or lower control limit. The line furthest away from 

the direction the KPI should be going in, will be amber.
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Executive Summary 
 

Meeting: Trust Board in Public Date: 04.02.21 
Report Title: Finance Report – Month 9 Agenda 

Item: 
9 

Author: Adam Wheeldon, Deputy Director of Finance 
Executive 
Leads: 

Karl Simkins, Director of Finance 

 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives Tick 

box(es) 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

 

  
Purpose of the Report  
Approve   Discuss  Note  

The purpose of this report is to present the Trusts financial position to the Board for 
the 9 month period to 31 December 2020. 
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Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
 
The financial position is reported each month to the Trust Board and Finance and 
Performance Committee.  
 
  
Summary of key points  
The Trust has been notified of additional funding which enables it to bring the 
planned deficit down from £6.9m to £5.9m.  
As at 31 December 2020 the Trust is reporting a £0.81m deficit which is c£1.55m 
better than plan.  
The forecast for the full year remains on plan at a £5.9m deficit. This is to allow for 
an increase in activity, costs associated with winter pressures or to provide for any 
lost income under the Elective Incentive Scheme as a result of activity being below 
plan. However, the forecast outturn deficit could improve from Month 10 if activity 
levels do not increase and the activity and capacity and other reserves are not 
expected to be fully used.  
The Trust held cash of £48.3m at 31 December. This is much higher than normal 
due to the cash advances being received in advance of each coming month.  
The capital programme is £59.3m for 2020-21. The Trust is working to ensure that 
the internally funded programme (Capital Departmental Expenditure Limit – CDEL) is 
fully spent by the year end although there is a risk of a c£2m underspend at present, 
with recommendations to progress alternative schemes in the Board in Committee.   
There are specific risks in relation to some non-CDEL schemes as funding for design 
work needs to be confirmed by NHSE/I, although the risk associated with this is low. 
The Trust has also been able to obtain support for a further advance of £1.4m to 
continue progress on enabling works with the Lowen / MRI scheme during February 
whilst the business case progresses through its approval stage in the Department of 
Health and Social Care.  
 
What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
 
Is the Trust Board clear on the financial position of the Trust? 
 
Does this Trust Board support the continuation of works on the Lowen / MRI project 
throughout February and March, before the Full Business Case is approved by the 
DHSC? 
 
  
Key risks 
From a revenue perspective the Trust has a £0.81m deficit which is better than plan. 
The forecast remains on plan for the full year.  
The key risk is that costs in relation to the Trust’s response to Covid will be higher 
than plan as the plan is set on low levels of Covid. Linked to this, should levels of 
Covid be higher, the Trust risks not delivering activity targets and losing income 
through the Elective Incentive Scheme.  The risk of exceeding the budget for the 
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year is currently low. 
From a capital perspective, the Trust is still aiming for the internally funded 
programme (Capital Departmental Expenditure Limit – CDEL) of £17.7m to be fully 
spent by the year end although there are risks to some schemes due to accessing 
contractor time or equipment as a result of the current Covid restrictions. The risk is 
c£2m at present.  
From a non-CDEL perspective the key risk is that funding is not confirmed in relation 
to design fees associated with the Women and Children’s Hospital and West of 
Cornwall Hospitals, although the risk associated with this is low.  
  
Recommendations and reasons  
The Trust Board is asked to: 

• note the financial position for the period to 31 December 2020. 

• approve the acceptance of £1.4m in Public Dividend Capital and commit 
expenditure of £1.4m from within the capital programme to continue the Lowen / 
MRI project during February and March 2021, in advance of receiving approval of 
the business case from NHSEI and the DHSC. This expenditure is line with the 
business case approved by the Trust Board. 

 
 
Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

This is a financial performance report considering the 
revenue and capital expenditure of the Trust. The report is 
limited to performance against budget and accordingly no 
equality and diversity impacts have been explicitly drawn 
out.  Clearly financial and resource allocation decisions 
have the potential to impact differentially on individuals 
and groups and impact assessments are therefore carried 
out to identify and address existing or potential 
inequalities, resulting from policy and practice 
development. 

Environmental 
considerations 

No direct implications. 
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Finance Report – Month 9 

 

1. Purpose 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to present the 20-21 financial position of the 

Trust the year to 31 December 2020. 

2. Background and Links to Previous Papers 
2.1. The financial position is reported each month to the Trust Board and 

Finance and Performance Committee.  

3. Finance report 
Revenue expenditure 

3.1. The approved deficit for “2nd half year” (H2) has reduced by c£0.96m to 
c£5.90m due to additional income made available to the Trust. This is the 
outcome of helpful discussions with NHSE/I regarding baseline income 
assumptions. 

3.2. After adjusting for the above, the profiled cumulative budget to the 31 
December was a deficit of c£2.36m.  

3.3. As at 31 December the Trust is reporting a £0.81m deficit which is £1.55m 
better than plan.  

3.4. The key reasons for the underspend are: 

• Pay underspends due to activity levels, in particular outpatients and 
day-cases, being lower than plan; 

• Reserves for costs such as activity delivery, the Junior Doctor rota 
change and Critical Care capacity lower than plan. Further information 
is provided later in this report. 

• Depreciation and capital charges reducing to reflect the latest forecast 
on the capital programme. Depreciation costs will continue to be lower 
than plan for the rest of the year. 

• Covid-related expenditure being below planned levels. 
3.5. Agency expenditure increased slightly from £851k in November to £904k in 

December. The budget going forward is to spend a similar amount each 
month and so, to deliver activity levels at best value, bank and overtime 
capacity will need to be used as much as possible rather than agency 
costs. Bank spend did increase slightly in December and totalled £962k 
(£940k for November).  
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3.6. The H2 financial plan has a £2.2m savings target with a requirement for 
£1.1m by 31 December. The actual savings delivered are on plan. The 
current forecast is that savings of £2.064m will be delivered through the 
current schemes identified.  
Forecast 

3.7. An initial financial forecast has been produced which indicates that at year 
end the Trust financial position could be at least £2m better than plan . The 
risk range of this is reflective of significant variability due to the escalating 
impact of Covid-19 on the Trust and overall impact of activity changes 
compared to the second half year plan. It also specifically does not take 
into account: 

• Impact of the Elective Incentive Scheme (EIS) which could be 
detrimental to the Trust as a result of activity being under plan; 

• Holiday Pay Accrual or buy out of outstanding leave which, could 
increase significantly at year-end. 

• The CIoS wider system financial positon which is required to be 
managed on a collective system basis.  

3.8. On this basis the risk range of this forecast within the Trust will be 
reassessed at month 10 and aligned to partner organisations and a 
collective Cornwall financial position. At this time due to these variabilities 
we are not in a position to change our forecast outturn, a position which is 
supported by NHSE/I. 

Capital expenditure 
3.9. The capital programme is £59.3m for 2020-21, a significant programme 

compared to previous years. 
3.10. The year to date (YTD) capital spend is £24.1m against a year to date 

budget of £24.3m budget. Within this, CDEL spend is under plan by £2.8m 
with the key variances being due to projects starting later than originally 
planned.  

3.11. The Trust is still aiming for the internally funded programme (Capital 
Departmental Expenditure Limit – CDEL) of £17.7m to be fully spent by the 
year end although there are risks to some schemes due to accessing 
contractor time or equipment as a result of the current Covid restrictions. 
The risk is c£2m at present. Discussions will need to take place with NHSEI 
before determining whether this funding can be re-provided in 2021-22 or 
not.   

3.12. From a non-CDEL perspective, the £2.6m year to date overspend relates to 
variance against profile rather than any indication that overspends will 
occur on projects.  

3.13. The Trust has not yet received confirmation of funding to develop the 
business cases for the Women and Children’s Hospital or the West 
Cornwall Hospitals projects. The forecast outturn currently assumes that 
the original business case development bids for funding for each will be 
approved with contingency options if place if this is not. 
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3.14. The Trust has now received confirmation on the additional funding advance 
to continue with the Lowen / MRI project (£1.4m) with approval now sought 
from the Board to accept the PDC resource.  

3.15. A reassessment of the progress of the capital programme has been 
undertaken with lead programme Executives and highlights a risk range of 
up between £2m to c£4m underspend against the CDEL resource limit. 
Options are presented to the Board in committee to manage this position. 

Balance sheet 
3.16. The Trust held cash of £48.3m at 31 December. This is much higher than 

normal due to the cash advances being received in advance of each 
coming month.  

4. Public Dividend Capital (PDC) Borrowing  
4.1. Section 18 of the Trust’s Standing Orders requires the Director of Finance 

to advise the Trust on any proposed new borrowing. The Finance and 
Performance Committee does not need to approve this before the Trust 
Board although it is good practice for the Committee to be sighted on the 
new debt being accepted.  

4.2. The table below shows the approval status of the PDC to be drawn down 
during the year. There are three changes to report this month: 

• The Adapt and Adopt MOU has been adjusted down by £23k due to a 
change in one of the schemes originally bid against but had to be 
replaced.  

• The further advance funding of £1.4m for Lowen / MRI has been 
included and approval is sought in this paper to accept this.  

• There is the potential to receive c£2.4m funding in relation to a 
Laboratory Information Management System (LIMS) that RCHT would 
lead the implementation of for other South West organisations. The 
details have yet to be confirmed at this time.  

 

 

Project PDC value 
(£000) Approval route for borrowing

Confirmed and paperwork received
Lowen / MRI 8,103              Approved via business case
Critical Infrastructure risk 1,726              Approved October 2020
ED Resus 2,800              Approved via business case
HIP 2 Advance 4,475              Approved via business case
Breast Screening 11                   Approved October 2020
Nervecentre HSLI Funding 41                   Approved October 2020
Covid capital (Apr and May) 2,875              Approved October 2020
Covid captal (Mar) 238                 Approved October 2020
Adapt and Adopt schemes (note 1) 777                 Approved October 2020
Women & Children - demolition of Lowen Ward and Cardiology 743                 Approved October 2020
Progressive Recovery Unit 12,300            Approved November 2020
Critical Care 4,317              Approved November 2020

Expected to be finalised during the year
Women & Children - advance project fees 2,376              Approved November 2020
Peripheral Sites - advance project fees 273                 Approved November 2020
COVID-19 LIMS Enhancement Programme 2,420              Business case not yet ready
Lowen / MRI additional funding 1,400              Trust Board Finance Report - Feb 21

Note 1 - One of the original schemes changed resulting in a £23k reduction in the MOU.
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5. Executive Summary 
5.1. The Trust has been notified of additional funding which enables it to bring 

the planned deficit down from £6.9m to £5.9m.  
5.2. As at 31 December 2020 the Trust is reporting a £0.81m deficit which is 

c£1.55m better than plan.  
5.3. The forecast for the full year remains on plan at a £5.9m deficit. This is to 

allow for an increase in activity, costs associated with winter pressures or to 
provide for any lost income under the Elective Incentive Scheme as a result 
of activity being below plan.  

5.4. However, the forecast outturn deficit could improve from Month 10 if activity 
levels do not increase and the activity and capacity and other reserves are 
not expected to be fully used.  

5.5. The Trust held cash of £48.3m at 31 December. This is much higher than 
normal due to the cash advances being received in advance of each 
coming month.  

5.6. The capital programme is £59.3m for 2020-21. The Trust is working to 
ensure that the internally funded programme (Capital Departmental 
Expenditure Limit – CDEL) is fully spent by the year end although there is a 
risk of a c£2m underspend at present, with recommendations to progress 
alternative schemes in the Board in Committee.   

5.7. There are specific risks in relation to some non-CDEL schemes as funding 
for design work needs to be confirmed by NHSE/I, although the risk 
associated with this is low. The Trust has also been able to obtain support 
for a further advance of £1.4m to continue progress on enabling works with 
the Lowen / MRI scheme during February whilst the business case 
progresses through its approval stage in the Department of Health and 
Social Care.  

6. Areas of Risk 
6.1. From a revenue perspective the Trust has a £0.81m deficit which is better 

than plan. The forecast remains on plan for the full year.  
6.2. The key risk is that costs in relation to the Trust’s response to Covid will be 

higher than plan as the plan is set on low levels of Covid. Linked to this, 
should levels of Covid be higher, the Trust risks not delivering activity 
targets and losing income through the Elective Incentive Scheme.  The risk 
of overspending against the planned deficit for the year is currently low. 

6.3. From a capital perspective, the Trust is still aiming for the internally funded 
programme (Capital Departmental Expenditure Limit – CDEL) of £17.7m to 
be fully spent by the year end although there are risks to some schemes 
due to accessing contractor time or equipment as a result of the current 
Covid restrictions..   

6.4. From a non-CDEL perspective the key risk is that funding is not confirmed 
in relation to design fees associated with the Women and Children’s 
Hospital and West of Cornwall Hospitals, although the risk associated with 
this is low.  
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7. Link to Trust Objectives and Corporate/Board Assurance Framework Risks  
7.1. Pledge 3.1 is to “spend our money wisely”. This is included on the Board 

Assurance Framework with a linked risk (identification 7287) with current 
risk score of 12 and the key risks being whether there will be a gap 
between spend required to improve operational performance and respond 
to Covid and the funding available.  

7.2. The capital risk is monitored through Pledge 3.2 and risk 7855. This 
considers the availability of capital funding for investment. The risk score is 
currently 12.  

8. Governance  
8.1. The Trust has a statutory requirement to breakeven over a three year 

period (which can be extended to a five year period). The Trust has a 
cumulative deficit of £29.6m. The Trust will not achieve this statutory 
requirement in 2020-21. 

8.2. The Trust also has statutory requirements to operate within its Capital 
Resource Limit and Cash Resource Limit. The Trust has not previously 
breached these requirements and does not expect to in 2020-21. 

9. Responsibility 
9.1. The Director of Finance is responsible for this report.  

10. Recommendations 
10.1. The Trust Board is asked to: 

• Note the financial position for the period to 31 December 2020. 

• Approve the acceptance of £1.4m in Public Dividend Capital and 
commit expenditure of £1.4m from within the capital programme to 
continue the Lowen / MRI project during February and March 2021, in 
advance of receiving approval of the business case from NHSEI and 
the DHSC. This expenditure is line with the business case approved 
by the Trust Board. 

11. Next steps 
11.1. The financial position will be reported to the Trust Board each month.  
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CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD 

 
I am, once again pleased to present the Charity’s annual report and audited accounts. These 
documents, prepared in accordance with the Charities Act 2011 and the Charities (Accounts 
and Reports) Regulations 2008, provide information about the Charity’s objectives, 
governance, resources and financial performance, together with a review of its activities and 
brilliant achievements in 2019-20. 
 
As we review the financial year to 31 March 2020, we find ourselves in unprecedented times. 
No one could have predicted how the year would end, with the massive challenge that 
COVID-19 has brought. One thing that has been clear throughout these times is the high 
regard with which our NHS hospitals are held. The demonstrations of public support have 
been truly amazing and confirm what we already knew about how much people care about 
our hospitals and staff that work in them.      
 
The Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund makes a significant contribution to 
hospital life, supporting St Michael’s Hospital in Hayle, West Cornwall Hospital in Penzance 
and the Royal Cornwall Hospital in Truro. It enhances what we do, by funding additional 
equipment and extra specialist training that improves our facilities and the hospital 
experience of patients, visitors and staff.   
 
Much of what the Charity delivers would not be possible without the exceptional support it 
receives. We are tremendously grateful for the generosity of so many people, as this plays 
such an important part in the work we do and is a great boost to everyone in the Trust. The 
Annual Report describes ways to donate and get involved with the Charity.  
 
During 2019-20, we received income from donations, legacies and fundraising of £624,000 
and we take care to invest the money you give us wisely. In from our investments for the 
year was £47,000, making a total of £671,000 of extra resources to improve the lives of the 
people we serve.  
 
During the year we spent £657,000 on those pieces of equipment and extras which make a 
difference to patients and staff. Various examples of how that money was used are set out 
later in this report, and we are proud of the Charity’s many achievements. I can assure you 
of our ongoing commitment to use our resources wisely. 
 
On behalf of the Trustees, I would like to thank everyone who has generously supported the 
Charity with donations, legacies and other fundraising activities. We are grateful for your 
continued support as we make positive differences that benefit our patients, visitors and 
staff. 
 
Paul Hobson, Chairman of the Charitable Funds Committee                 
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Note: Consents are held for all photographs included in this document. 
 

WAYS TO DONATE 
 
We need your support. If you would like to donate to the Royal Cornwall Hospitals Charity 
you can do so in a number of ways: 
Online – by using your debit/credit card at 
http://uk.virginmoneygiving.com/charities/RoyalCornwallHospitalsCharity; 
Cheque – by sending a cheque payable to RCHT Charitable Fund to the registered address 
below; 
Telephone – by using your debit/credit card and calling 01872 252690;  
Direct bank transfer – to sort code 20-88-44 and account number 00766070;  
In person - in the Charity Pod, Trelawny Entrance or at the General Offices of Royal 
Cornwall Hospital, West Cornwall Hospital or St Michael’s Hospital in Hayle; or  
Monthly donation – by selecting “make a monthly donation” on our Virgin Money Giving 
webpage at http://uk.virginmoneygiving.com/charities/RoyalCornwallHospitalsCharity 
Fundraise for us – Take on a challenge, run 5k, have a cake sale at work, hold a pub quiz 
in your local. Choose us as your Charity Of The Year. Whether it’s your own business or 
you ask your employer. There are great benefits to being associated with our Charity. 
Leave a legacy – Leaving a gift in your Will can help us to continue to provide our services 
to the people of Cornwall. 
 

 
 

THE CHARITY’S REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION 
 

REGISTERED NAME Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund 
 

WORKING NAMES Royal Cornwall Hospitals Charity 
RCH Trust Charitable Fund 
 

REGISTERED ADDRESS Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund 
Royal Cornwall Hospital 
Truro 
Cornwall 
TR1 3LJ 
E-mail: RCHT.Charity@nhs.net 
Tel:  01872 258015  
Fax: 01872 258045 
 

CHARITY NUMBER 1049687 
 

PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS Bankers: 
Barclays Bank PLC, 14 King Street, Truro, Cornwall,  
TR1 2RB 
 
Investment Managers: 
Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, Barclays Wealth, 
Barclays, 2nd Floor, Windsor Court, 1-3 Windsor Place, 
Cardiff, CF10 3BX 
 
 
 
Solicitors:  

Page 100 of 294

http://uk.virginmoneygiving.com/charities/RoyalCornwallHospitalsCharity


 
Registered Charity No.1049687 

Page 4 of 38 
 

Bevan Brittan, 1 Queen Street, Bristol, BS2 0HQ  
 
Auditors: 
Grant Thornton UK LLP, 6TH Floor, 3 Callaghan Square, 
Cardiff,    CF10 5BT 

 

THE CORPORATE TRUSTEE AND AGENTS FOR THE CORPORATE TRUSTEE 
 
The Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust (the Trust) is the sole Corporate Trustee of the 
Charity governed by the law applicable to trusts, principally the Trustees Act 2000 and the 
law applicable to charities which is governed by the Charities Act 2011.  
 
The Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund is registered as No. 1049687 with 
the Charity Commission in accordance with the Charities Act 2011.   
 
The members of the Trust Board, who served during the financial year to 31 March 2020 
and/or to the date of approval of the 2019-20 annual report and accounts, were as follows: 
 
Executive Directors 
 

 Kate Shields – Chief Executive 

 Dr Allister Grant – Medical Director (from November 2019) 
 Dr Rob Parry – Interim Medical Director (to October 2019)  
 Kim O’Keefe – Director of Nursing, Midwifery & Allied Health Professions 
 Susan Bracefield – Director of Operations 
 Karl Simkins – Director of Finance (from December 2020)   
 Sally May – Director of Finance (to December 2020) 
 Adam Wheeldon – Deputy Director of Finance  
 Kerry Eldridge – Director of People & Organisational Development 
 Thomas Lafferty – Director of Strategy and Performance 
 Bernadette George – Director of Integrated Governance 
 Kelvyn Hipperson – Chief Information Officer 
 Karen Kay – Director for Urgent & Emergency Care 

 
 
Non-Executive Directors 
 

 Dr Mairi McLean – Trust Chairwoman  
 Paul Hobson – Non-Executive Director 
 Sarah Pryce – Non-Executive Director 
 Margaret Schwarz – Non-Executive Director  
 Dr Gillian Vivian - Non-Executive Director (to October 2020)  
 Richard Stephenson – Non-Executive Director (from February 2020) 
 Sarah Newton – Non-Executive Director (from March 2020) 
 Dr John Lander – Non-Executive Director (to August 2019)  
 Scott Bennett – Non-Executive Director (from July 2019 to August 2019) 
 Kevin Orford – Non-Executive Director (from October 2019 to November 2019) 
 Adam Broome – Non-Executive Director (from December 2020) 
 Rob Leighfield – Associate Non-Executive Director 
 Ruth Allarton – Associate Non-Executive Director  
 Richard Smith – Associate Non-Executive Director 
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The Trust Board has devolved the responsibility for ongoing management of the funds to the 
Charitable Funds Committee. 
 
On the date this report was approved, the persons serving on the Charitable Funds 
Committee as agents for the Corporate Trustee, as permitted under regulation 16 of the 
NHS Trusts (Membership and Procedures) Regulations 1990, were:  
 

 Paul Hobson – Chair of Charitable Funds Committee and Non-Executive Director  
 Kerry Eldridge – Director of People & Organisational Development 
 Allister Grant – Medical Director 
 Rob Leighfield – Associate Non-Executive Director 
 Sarah Newton – Non-Executive Director 
 Sarah Pryce – Non-Executive Director  
 Karl Simkins – Director of Finance 
 Adam Wheeldon – Deputy Director of Finance 

 

Other persons serving the Charitable Funds Committee during 2019-20, and to the date of 
this report’s approval, were: 
 

 Dr Mairi McLean – Trust Chairwoman  
 Dr Gillian Vivian - Non-Executive Director (to October 2020) 
 Ruth Allarton – Associate Non-Executive Director  
 Dr Rob Parry – Interim Medical Director (to October 2019) 
 Bernadette George – Director of Integrated Governance 

 
 
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT 

 
The Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund is a registered charity, number 
1049687, and is constituted under a trust deed dated 25 July 1995. The Charity was 
established using the model declaration of trust and all funds held on trust as at the date of 
registration were either part of the unrestricted fund or registered as separate restricted 
funds. Subsequent donations and gifts received by the Charity have been allocated to 
appropriate funds. 
 
The members of the Trust Board and the Charitable Funds Committee are not individual 
trustees under Charity Law but act as agents on behalf of the Trust (the Corporate Trustee). 
Non–Executive members of the Trust Board are appointed by NHS Improvement and 
Executive members are subject to recruitment by the Trust Board. All members are subject 
to the induction and training processes of the Trust. The Trust, as Corporate Trustee, 
appoints the Charitable Funds Committee to manage the funds under delegated authority. 
  
The purpose of the Charitable Funds Committee is to oversee the fundraising, management, 
investment and disbursement of charitable funds within the regulations provided by the 
Charity Commission and to ensure compliance with the laws governing charitable funds.  
 
Acting for the Corporate Trustee, the Charitable Funds Committee is responsible for the 
overall management of the Charitable Fund. The Committee meets every two months and is 
required to: 
 

 control, manage and monitor the use of the fund’s resources; 
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 provide support, guidance and encouragement for all income raising activities, whilst 
managing and monitoring the receipt of all income; 

 
 ensure that ‘best practice’ is followed in the conduct of all Charity affairs, and that it is 

fulfilling all of its legal responsibilities; 
 

 ensure that the Investment Policy approved by the Trust Board, as Corporate 
Trustee, is adhered to and that performance is continually reviewed, whilst being 
aware of ethical considerations; and 

 
 ensure that the Trust Board is fully informed on the activity, performance and risks of 

the Charity. 
 

The accounting records and day to day administration of all the funds are dealt with by the 
Finance Department, which is managed by the Director of Finance. The services of external 
professionals are also drawn upon, where appropriate. For example, the investment portfolio 
is managed by Barclays Investment Solutions Limited. 
 
The Charity is a member of the Association of NHS Charities. The Association seeks to 
support, and be the voice of, all NHS Charities in England and Wales. The principal aim of 
the Association is to promote the effective working of NHS Charities. Through this 
membership, the Charity can ensure that it adopts best practice from across the sector and 
obtain training, support and insight for both staff and agents of the Corporate Trustee. 
 
The charitable funds available for spending are allocated by the Corporate Trustee to Fund 
Advisers in individual work areas within the Trust’s group management and corporate 
structure. These are normally senior staff working in the particular field/area/ward that the 
fund has been set up to support. 
  
Fund Advisers are provided with official internal guidance on the use and application of the 
charitable funds. This gives them detailed information about the Charity, procedures to be 
adhered to, and controls such as expenditure authorisation thresholds. 
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THE CHARITABLE FUNDS  

 
The annual accounts refer to the charitable funds held at the end of the financial year. The 
Charity currently holds 102 different funds to support our hospitals, 22 of which are restricted 
funds. They are as follows: 
 
Fund name 
 

Restricted Unrestricted 

Accident and Emergency Department Fund    

Acute Medical Unit Fund    

Angove Diabetic Fund    

Angove Diabetic Research Fund    

Audiology Fund    

Birth And Baby Appeal (BABA) Fund     

Bowel Cancer Screening Fund    

Butterfly Cornwall Fund    

Cancer Research Fund for Cornwall    

Chapel Fund    

Child Health General Fund    

Children’s Ward Equipment Fund    

Clinical Chemistry Fund    

Cornish Heart Unit Fund    

Cornish Urological Trust Fund     

Cornish Urological Trust Fund (designated)    

Cornwall Anaesthesia Fund    

Cornwall Medical Research Fund    

Cornwall Medical Research Fund (designated)    

Cornwall Melanoma Support Group Fund    

COVID-19 Fund    

COVID-19 NHS Charities Together Fund    
Critical Care Unit Fund    

Dermatology Amenity Fund    

Dermatology Education and Training Fund    

Diabetes Centre Fund    

Diabetic Children’s Fund    

Diabetic Liaison Fund    

Ear Nose and Throat Service – Royal Cornwall Hospital  
Fund 

   

Ear Nose and Throat Ward Fund    

East Cornwall Maternity Fund    
Eden Ward Fund    

Fracture Clinic Fund    

Gastroenterology and Liver Unit Fund    

Gastroenterology (Gastroenterology/Endoscopy) Fund    

Grenville Ward Fund    

Gynaecological Oncology Research Fund    

Haematology/Oncology Fund    

Haematology/Oncology Fund (designated)    
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Fund name 
 

Restricted Unrestricted 

Headland Unit Fund    

Hepatology Fund    

HIV Service Fund    

Hyperlipidaemia Fund    

Infection Control Fund    

John Ellis Simulation Fellowship Fund    

Kerensa Ward Fund     

Kidney Research Fund    

Kynance Independence Unit Fund    

Leukaemia Fund    

Lowen Ward Fund    
Marie Therese House General Charity Fund    
Maternity Fund     
Mermaid Centre Fund    
Neonatal Fund    
Nuclear Medicine Fund    
Nutrition & Dietetic Fund    
Ophthalmology Research & Equipment Fund    
Orthoptic Amenity Fund    
Pain Research Fund     
Pendennis Ward Fund    
Pharmacy Amenity Fund    
Pharmacy Special Development Fund     
Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund    
Phoenix Ward Fund    
Physiotherapy Fund    
Post Graduate Centre Amenity Fund    

Post Graduate Centre Medical Education Fund    
Renal Dialysis Fund    
Renal Unit Fund    
Respiratory Fund    
Rheumatology Fund    
Rheumatology Unit Amenity Fund    
Royal Cornwall Hospital Memory Café Fund    
Royal Cornwall Hospital Site Legacies Fund    
Royal Cornwall Hospital Trust Children’s Cancer Fund    
Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust General Unrestricted 
Fund 

   

Royal Cornwall Hospital Trust Legacies Fund    
St Mawes Unit Fund    
St Michael’s General Fund    
St Michael’s Legacies Fund    
Sunrise Centre (Clinical Oncology) Fund    
Sunrise Centre Fund    
Surgical Gastroenterology Research, Education & 
Equipment Fund 

   

Surgical Short Stay Unit Fund    
The Cove Fund    
Tintagel Ward Fund    
T Sleeman Diabetic Equipment Fund    
Trauma Fund    
Treliske General Fund    
Treliske General Fund (designated)    
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Fund name 
 

Restricted Unrestricted 

Tri Arts Charitable Fund    
Vascular Studies Fund    
Vascular Studies Fund (designated)    
Welfare Fund    
Wellington Ward Fund    
West Cornwall Hospital General Fund    
West Cornwall Hospital General Fund (designated)    
West Cornwall Hospital Legacies Fund    
West Cornwall Hospital Medical Equipment Fund    
West Cornwall Hospital Memory Café Fund    
West Cornwall Hospital Outpatients Fund    
Wheal Prosper Ward Amenity Fund    
 

 

 

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES FOR THE PUBLIC BENEFIT 

 
The Charity is a public benefit entity. The objects of the Charity, as set out in its governing 
document, are “for any charitable purpose or purposes relating to the National Health 
Service”, with the area of operation being Cornwall & the Isles of Scilly. 
 
The purpose of the charitable fund is for: 
 

 the enhancement of patients' welfare and health whilst being treated at the Royal 
Cornwall Hospitals; 
 

 the advancement of education (which includes research); 
 

 the advancement of equality, diversity and human rights, in so far as this may relate 
to health needs; and 
 

 other purposes beneficial to the community, not falling under any of the other three 
heads. 

 
The agents of the Corporate Trustee confirm that they have referred to the Charity 
Commission's guidance on public benefit when reviewing the Charity’s aims and objectives, 
planning future activities and setting policies for the year and recognises its underlying 
purpose of providing public benefit. 
 

 

 

OUR VISION AND OBJECTIVES FOR 2020 – 2023 

 
In March 2020 we agreed our new Charity Strategy and Fundraising Plan for 2020-2023 
setting out the strategic priorities and objectives of the Charity for the three year period. The 
main focus of the Charity Strategy is to guide the Charity to maximise positive impact for 
patients and staff and enhance the profile of the Charity. 
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust Charity Strategy 2020 – 2023 
 
Vision 
 
Together, we care for Cornwall 
 
Mission 
 
Giving extra special care to patients and staff at the time they need it most  
 
Values 

 

The RCHT Charity has adopted the values of Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust as its own 
values: 
 

 
 
 
Our Priorities 
 
We are ambitious to do more and work with strategic partners to expand our reach for the 
benefit of NHS patients and staff in Cornwall. Our top three priorities under this strategy are 
to: 
 

1. Improve patient experience and help to deliver patient-centred care; 
2. Develop the careers and enhance the wellbeing of Trust staff; and 
3. Enable innovation in health and care within the Trust and the wider health system. 

Priorities and Objectives 

1. Improve patient experience and help to deliver person-centered care: 

 by providing grants opportunities to help the Trust make fast and effective; 
improvements to services and the hospital environment; 

 by continuing to curate and develop our art collection and arts engagement activities; 
 by engaging volunteers in roles which interact with patients above and beyond the 

work of staff; and 
 by supporting patients and families in extreme financial difficulty during their 

treatment. 

2. Develop the careers and enhance the wellbeing of Trust staff: 
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 by funding research fellowship programmes, enabling staff to further their careers 
whilst contributing to innovation in healthcare; 

 by developing our charity membership offer, including access to arts institutions and 
special offers as a core benefit for Trust staff; 

 by providing financial support for the Trust’s recognition scheme to celebrate the 
achievements of Trust staff; and 

 by giving Trust staff the opportunity to volunteer as well as taking part in charity 
events. 

3. Enable innovation in health and care within the Trust and the wider health system 

 by establishing ourselves as a leading partner at the cutting edge of healthcare; 
 by funding major transformation projects within and beyond the Trust; and 
 by building partnerships with key health and third sector organisations to expand the 

impact our work can have. 

We will achieve these objectives through our grants, arts, volunteering and fundraising 
programmes, enabled by: 

 income generation through our investment and fundraising activities; 
 raising our profile within the hospitals and wider community; 
 defining the impact that our work has; and 
 developing our charity staff team. 

Through this strategy we are putting our community at the centre of what we do. With 
patients at the forefront, we are increasing our efforts to improve the experience for 
everyone who visits our hospitals, which we believe leads to better outcomes for their health 
and wellbeing. 

We are also continuing to invest in clinical innovation, equipment and research that will 
improve the care they receive. We are focusing on how we champion our NHS staff through 
new development opportunities, giving them more autonomy to improve patient care and 
continuing our enrichment offer for staff outside of work. 

Lastly, we want to work more widely than just in our hospitals. We want to support and 
collaborate with the Trust, with NHS charities nationally and with other public, private and 
voluntary sector partners to make a real difference to health and care on a larger scale. 

Principles Guiding Fund Spending 
 
The Charity will focus on the following areas for spending and grant-making through its 
funds: 

 Patients’ welfare and amenities; 
 Staff welfare and amenities; 
 Staff training and courses; 
 Medical Research;  
 Equipment; and 
 Building work. 

All spending is intended to support the Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust’s corporate strategic 
priorities of Brilliant Care, Brilliant People and Brilliant Improvement.   
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Brilliant Care    

 additional equipment that can make a real difference to patient experience.  
 additional resources that could enhance and improve patient care. 

 
Brilliant People   

 additional opportunities to improve colleague health, wellbeing, recognition and 
engagement.   

 additional opportunities for colleague education, training and development.  
 
Brilliant Improvement           

 additional facilities and an improved environment.  
 additional opportunities to further knowledge through education, research and 

innovation. 
 
Expenditure is largely planned on an individual fund basis. In addition, bids are invited for the 
use of general charitable funds, with staff being encouraged to submit innovative ideas for 
improving the patient experience.  
 
The Charity seeks to achieve an improved experience for patients, their families and loved 
ones, as well as enabling staff travel out of county for specialised training, through the 
generous donations it receives. Additionally, research projects to improve diagnoses and 
treatments are funded through the Charity. These achievements (with examples described in 
this report) allow it to meet its purposes as a public benefit entity. 
 
The Charity acknowledges the support it receives from unpaid volunteers and community 
groups who actively fundraise on its behalf. It continues to work alongside the Friends of 
Royal Cornwall Hospital, the Friends of West Cornwall Hospital, the Friends of St Michael’s 
Hospital and other charities and partners in supporting the provisions at our three hospital 
sites. 
 
In the final weeks of the financial year the Charity saw the beginning of an extraordinary 
outpouring of public support including a number of donations in-kind, which it has not been 
possible to quantify, but for which the Charity is extremely grateful.       
 
The Charity Strategy 2020–2023 is supported by a Fundraising Plan with the following 
strategic priorities: 

 Profile raising, brand awareness and increasing publicity to create a ‘charity of 
choice’; 

 Planned activity for long term support and fundraising growth; 
 Fundraising opportunities for staff and community directed to one fund; and 

 An Appeals Programme.  
 

The overall aims of this plan include:  

 to establish clear lines of accountability for staff and the consideration of 
relationships within and outside the Trust in respect of Charitable Funds; 

 to establish and review particular income streams/income generation activities that 
have a positive impact on the Charity’s work; 

 to establish sound governance and compliance with legislation and good practice 
guidance issued by the Charities Commission, the Fundraising Regulator, the 
Trust and any other regulatory bodies; 
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 to provide a Trust Wide framework to ensure the Charity is fit for purpose and is 
flexible enough to develop its activities in line with Charitable Fund purposes set 
out in the governing documents; 

 to propose a performance management process to include involvement of 
stakeholders, promote efficiency and define and monitor reporting mechanisms; 
and 

 to ensure the Charity optimises the use of its resources through effective 
management. 
 

Fundraising Ethos and Values 

The Charity will focus on relationship-based fundraising, promoting charitable donations in 
line with Trust values aimed at building long-term interpersonal relationships. 
 
Our Plan and Approach 
 
Our vision is ‘to become the first choice charity for Cornwall and The Isles of Scilly’ 
 
The Charity’s three strategic objectives are to deliver the following: 
 

1. Increase income;  
2. Improve effectiveness; and 
3. Increase brand presence to become the Charity of choice. 

 
We are planning a steady roll out of additional income generation activity over the next three 
years across annual giving, gifts in wills and targeted capital fundraising to:  

 increase the Charity’s annual voluntary donation income to a sustainable £750,000 
(excluding legacies);  

 secure more unrestricted giving; and 

 raise funds for our next big appeal/ major project.  

 

The development of a Charity Marketing and Communications Plan will support the Charity’s 
aim to deliver consistent, effective and professional communications with all of its internal 
and external stakeholders so that they are fully informed, engaged and supportive of Royal 
Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charity and its objectives.  
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The agents of the Corporate Trustee have considered the major risks and uncertainties to 
which the Charity is exposed and are satisfied that systems and procedures are in place to 
manage those risks. 
 
The principal risks considered to affect the Charity have been identified under the following 
classifications: 
 

 Governance and management; 
 Operational; 
 Finance; 
 External factors; and 
 Fundraising. 
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Major risks have been identified, with the potential impacts and the main controls and 
assurances reviewed. These risks have then been assessed for severity and likelihood and 
are recorded in the Charity’s Risk Register. 
 
Assessing the risks using this process allows the agents of the Corporate Trustee to identify 
and prioritise actions on risks that may prevent the Charity achieving its objectives, and 
provides a sound basis for continual review.  
 
The highest residual risks are considered to be: 
 

1. The inability to raise funds through normal fundraising activities due the restrictions 
on such activities as a result of the present COVID-19 pandemic.  
 

The Charity is extremely grateful for the tremendous support given by the public during this 
difficult time but recognises that future fundraising will remain a challenge. The Charity 
continues to work with the NHS Together Charity to make best use locally of funds raised by 
the national Appeal. The timing and nature other fundraising activity is carefully considered.      

 
2.  The variability of returns on invested funds. The variability of returns on investments 

in world stock markets over time has demonstrated the volatility of investment 
activities and the associated risk. 

 
Investment Managers have been employed by the Corporate Trustee to mitigate the risk 
from variable returns on investments. The Charity’s investments are managed by Barclays 
Investment Solutions Limited, who oversee a discretionary portfolio designed to balance 
risks and rewards. To provide resilience in the event of a down turn in investment valuations, 
gains and interest on the unrestricted proportion of the Charity’s funds are held in the 
General Fund. 
 
Procedures are in place to review the investment policy, investment valuations are regularly 
monitored and, as a minimum, an annual review is undertaken with the Charity’s investment 
managers. 
 

RESERVES POLICY 

 

The reserves of the Charity comprise its restricted and unrestricted funds (£663,000 and 
£1,282,000 respectively), these are routinely monitored by the Charitable Funds Committee. 
The policy of the Corporate Trustee is to seek to utilise the majority of funds for the purpose 
of the Charity. This is considered to be in the best interest of the Charity and is the reason it 
holds no other reserves. 
 
It is, however, considered prudent that a balance (equivalent to an average balance over a 
financial year of 25% of annual spending plans as a minimum and 100% as a maximum) will 
be retained within an interest bearing commercial account. This is the level considered 
necessary to meet normal expenditure requirements and cover potential unforeseen 
requirements. The cash reserve held as at 31 March 2020 represented 33.6% of annual 
expenditure on charitable activities. 
 
INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
The Charity has an Investment Policy that was updated and approved in June 2019. Health 
Service bodies are bound by the Trustee Investment Act 1961 and the Trustee Act 2000 
(revised in January 2010). The policy ensures that the Corporate Trustee can demonstrate 
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effective management of the funds, whether these are invested or held as liquid assets to 
meet forecast current expenditure.   
 
The Charity recognises the risk associated with investment in mainstream financial markets 
and accepts this risk in return for the prospect of additional returns over longer periods of 
time. The objectives set for investing are to: 
 

 maintain a balanced portfolio between fund growth, security and cash availability; 
 maintain a level of income to cover core expenditure; 
 preserve the real value of the unspent fund in the longer term; and 
 refrain from direct investment in companies which derive a substantial amount of 

their profit from activities contrary to those of the NHS e.g. tobacco industries. 
 
Although capital appreciation is not the primary objective, taking one year with another and 
excluding capital withdrawals, the aim is to ensure that both the income and capital value of 
the fund increase in line with inflation. The risk profile of any funds invested should reflect 
this. 
 
All investments are undertaken following due consideration of the advice and 
recommendations of the Investment Managers to the Corporate Trustee. Since May 2011, 
the Charity’s investments have been managed by Barclays Investment Solutions Limited. 
Investment performance is regularly reviewed by the Charitable Funds Committee. 
 
GRANT MAKING POLICY 

 
The Charity’s principal activity is grant making, with grants awarded from both restricted and 
unrestricted funds. 
   
Funds for wards and specialties are overseen on a day to day basis by Fund Advisers 
(senior Trust staff best placed to advise on the particular funds) who act under a Scheme of 
Delegation. Annual spending plans are prepared for such funds, which have due regard to 
the funds’ purposes and the best use of resources in meeting the overarching objectives of 
the Charity. These plans form the basis for the grants awarded during the year. Fund 
Advisers’ recommendations are generally accepted and the funds spent accordingly. Grants 
above £1,000 from these funds require prior approval from the relevant senior manager, 
Director/Deputy Director of Finance Director of Finance with the Director of People and 
Organisational Development, Charitable Funds Committee or the Trust Board depending on 
the monetary levels involved. 
 
Applications for grants from general funds are considered on the basis of bids submitted. 
These applications are required to outline why charitable funds should be awarded and to 
provide details of the how the award will be of benefit. Grants up to £25,000 are determined 
by the Director of Finance, whilst grants over this amount are considered by the Charitable 
Funds Committee, usually following a full report. 
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ANNUAL REVIEW:  ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

 
Achievements and performance in 2019-20 
 

The Charity’s main objectives for the financial year to 31 March 2020, and the performance 
of the Charity in meeting those objectives, are set out below: 
 
Objective  Performance 

Governance  
Agree the Charity strategy, outlining aims 
and objectives and specific targets for the 
Fundraising Team. 
 
 
 
 

A new Charity Strategy for 2020-2023 was 
agreed in March 2020 setting out the Vision, 
Mission, and Values of the Charity together 
with the strategic priorities and objectives of 
the Charity for the three year period.  
 
An Implementation Plan to enable this 
Strategy is under development. 

Scrutinise the performance of financial 
investments to ensure that returns are  
maximised within defined and acceptable 
levels of risk. 

Investment performance was monitored 
throughout the year and a review undertaken 
with the Charity’s Investment Adviser 
including consideration of the risk exposure. 

Core Objectives  
Provision of patient facilities grants.  Grants totalling £451,000 were given during 

the year, enabling the provision of equipment 
and patient facilities that could not otherwise 
be provided by NHS funding.  
 
The details of several of these grants and 
their impacts are detailed below. 
  

Provision of staff welfare and training grants. 
 

Grants totalling £182,000 were given during 
the year to support the provision of staff 
facilities and provide additional training that 
would otherwise be unavailable.  
 

Provision of research grants. 
 

Grants totalling £24,000 were given during 
the year, supporting innovative research for 
the public benefit. 

 

Maximise the way that funds can be used by 
ensuring that they are as widely accessible 
as possible. 
 

The Charity provides the opportunity for 
anyone at Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS 
Trust to bid for grants for things that make a 
difference to the patient’s hospital 
experience, and that cannot be provided by 
statutory funding. Significant funds were 
allocated to support Trust initiatives including 
a Dragon’s Den Event in December 2019 
when participants were invited to pitch their 
ideas to an expert panel. 
 

Review the spending of funds 
 

The Charity continues to work with its Fund 
Advisers on an annual basis to develop 
realistic and achievable annual spending 
plans. 
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Objective  Performance 

Fundraising  
Continue to raise awareness of the Charity. 
 

Throughout the year the Charity continued to 
raise the profile of its “brand”.  
 
Three major ticketed fundraising events took 
place in the year: 

 Come Dance With Us 
 Come Dance With Us Showcase 

Event 
 A Night at the Cathedral. 

 
A London to Paris Cycle Event originally 
planned for September 2020 (now 
postponed until September 2021 due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic) was launched in the 
year.  
 

Widely publicise use of the funds 
 

The Charity makes extensive use of local 
and social media, and internal publications to 
promote the Charity’s activities. 
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Support provided by the Charitable Fund in 2019-20  
     
A summary of the grants made is set out below:  
 
Patient Facilities Grants 
 

 Grants 
(£) 

Grants to Royal Cornwall Hospital  

Grants over £5,000  
Fund Purpose of Grant  
Cornish Heart Unit Fund Vivid IQ Machine  

(see article below) 
55,000 

Leukaemia Fund Funding of Haematology Clinical Nurse 
Specialist Post (see article below) 

47,000 

Cornwall Birth and Baby Appeal 
Fund 

Royal Cornwall Hospital Maternity Unit -  
Equipment and improvement of facilities 
(see article below) 

12,000 

General Unrestricted Fund Helston Birth Unit – Pool and building 
works 
(see article below) 

22,000 

Mermaid Centre Fund 
 

Crisalix Augmented Reality System 30,000 

Royal Cornwall Hospital Site 
Legacies & General Unrestricted 
Fund 

Equipment for new Same Day Medical 
Assessment Unit 
(see article below) 

90,000 

Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund Phoenix Ward - Refurbishment of side 
room 

9,000 

Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund Phoenix Ward - Works to form a patient 
kitchen 
(see article below) 

9,000 

Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund Phoenix Ward - Works to form new office 
area 

7,000 

Renal Unit Fund Bladder Scanner for Wheal Prosper 
(see article below) 

8,000 

Renal Unit Fund Grenville Ward – Remote programmable 
locker system 

(see article below) 

10,000 

Other Grants  
Various Funds Other smaller grants 140,000 
Grants to Other Institutions  

Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund 
 

Cornwall Partnership Foundation Trust 
Bodmin Hospital and Community Services 
– Equipment 

4,000 

Grant to Individual  

 Dialysis and travel grants 8,000 
Total  451,000 

 
 
 
 
Staff Welfare and Training Grants 
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 Grants 
(£) 

Grants to Royal Cornwall Hospital  

Grants over £5,000  
Fund Purpose of Grant  
Cornish Heart Unit Fund Refurbishment of Clinical Nurse Specialist 

Office 
5,000 

Critical Care Unit Fund Resusci Anne Simulator 6,000 
Various Funds Smaller grants supporting the provision of 

staff facilities and providing additional 
training that would otherwise be 
unavailable. 
 

171,000 

Total 182,000 

 
Research Grants 
 

 Grants 
(£) 

Grants to Royal Cornwall Hospital  

Grants over £5,000  
Fund Purpose of Grant  
Cancer Research Fund For 
Cornwall 

Support for cancer research staff costs 8,000 
 

Cancer Research Fund For 
Cornwall 

Ultra-low temperature freezer for research 
work  

9,000 
 

Other Grants   
Various Funds Other smaller grants 7,000 
Total 24,000 

 
The following pages show examples of some of the projects supported by the Charity in 
2019-20 and impacts they are having: 
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VIVID IQ MACHINE 
£55,000 funding from the Cornish Heart Unit Fund  
 
Funding from the Cornish Heart Unit Fund of RCHT Charity has helped the Cardiac Team to 
purchase an Ultrasound Machine – the Vivid IQ which will improve the speed of treating 
cardiac patients. 
 
The Ultrasound Machine will be located in the Cath Lab at Royal Cornwall Hospital.  
 
Duncan Sleeman, Principal Cardiac Physiologist, explained the difference the new kit will 
make to the patients at the hospital,  
 
“The Vivid IQ, which is more compact than existing ultrasound machines,  will decrease the 
delay in care for those patients that may suffer a pericardial effusion during a procedure, 
which is when there is a build-up of fluid in the space around the heart. At present if a 
perforation is suspected, in a patient that may be having a stent  fitted for example, the team 
have to make an emergency call and await an ultrasound machine to be transferred to the 
lab,” he explained.  
 
“This can cause a delay to treatment and although may only be a matter of minutes, with this 
new piece of equipment located inside the lab the teams will be able to carry out the scan 
immediately and transmit any information direct to other specialists if required,” Mr Sleeman 
adds.  
 
In addition, the high tech piece of kit also contains a vascular probe which will assist 
cardiologists in the accurate and efficient location of the radial artery again saving time and 
improving the level of care given to patients.  

 
Duncan 
Sleeman, 
Senior Chief 
Cardiac 
Physiologist at 
RCHT, shows 
the Vivid IQ 
machine to a 
grateful patient 
and donor to 
the Cornish 
Heart Unit Fund.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 117 of 294



 
Registered Charity No.1049687 

Page 21 of 38 
 

ROYAL CORNWALL HOSPITAL MATERNITY UNIT - EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENT 
OF FACILITIES 
£12,000 funding from The Cornwall Birth and Baby Appeal 
 
Funds from The Cornwall Birth and Baby Appeal were used to purchase additional items for 
the maternity services at Royal Cornwall Hospital.  
 
The funding for Handheld Audio Dopplers has allowed women to have more freedom of 
movement during labour which aligns to the ethos of the Better Births Transformation 
Programme, the national report which sets out ‘a clear vision: for maternity services across 
England to become safer, more personalised, kinder, professional and more family friendly,’ 
NHS England. 
 
Pulse oximeters for the maternity wards at Royal Cornwall Hospital enable new born 
physical examinations, normally requiring the baby and mother to return to hospital, to be 
completed before discharge after birth allowing for early detection of low oxygen levels in the 
blood and early additional treatment.  
 
Recliners chairs in the postnatal ward (pre pandemic restrictions), allow partners to stay with 
the baby and mother to provide assistance and allow for additional bonding. The recliners 
provide added comfort for the partner to stay overnight and a relaxing space for the mother 
to feed and have long periods of bonding and skin to skin time with the baby.  
 
Additional recliners have been purchased for the newly refurbished delivery suite to match 
the fresh and relaxing décor promoting a homely feel.  
 
"There is a plethora of evidence that supports the belief that a birthing environment should 
be a calming one. We can see this demonstrated beautifully in the animal world where often 
animals find their safe and quiet spaces to birth their young. In our Western world we take 
people out of their natural environment and ask them to birth their young in a clinical and 
strange environment which induces fear and anxiety.  
 
By ensuring a more home-from-home feel to the birthing surroundings, we are effectively 
providing that reassuring, non-clinical and fear-inducing space and the likelihood of a normal 
birth increases with a decrease in intervention. Items purchased and support to fund 
appropriate environments really does make a difference to the natural birth process, patient 
experience and staff reward. It is wonderful that our local community has supported us in our 
vision, directly benefiting our future generation’s health and wellbeing," said Zoe Nelson, 
Midwifery Matron.  
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HELSTON BIRTH UNIT  
£22,000 funding from the General Fund 
  
With the help of charitable funds, Helston Birth Unit has been upgraded to provide a fresh, 
calm and homely environment giving an equality of provision across the four birth centres in 
the county - Helston, Truro, Penrice and the Isles of Scilly. 
 
Sandra Hogan, Helston Birth Unit Manager, explains the impact of the refurbishments,  
“Our newly refurbished unit has given women another choice for their place of birth. We are 
very proud of the ‘home from home’ environment that has been created. The Flora and 
Mazey Midwifery Teams in West Cornwall are privileged to be able to care for women from 
the early stages of pregnancy right through to delivery at their local birth unit.”  
 
Funding was used to update the birthing pool, add furniture and vinyl wall coverings with 
familiar scenes of the local coastline. After works, the unit now contains one birthing room, 
complete with birth pool with integral mood lighting, a bright and welcoming assessment 
room and large walk in shower facility. Rooms are named Maenporth and Porthcurno to add 
to the sense of familiarity and calm for the women and their partners.  
 
Since March 2020, the unit has welcomed 33 new babies into the world and the team have 
received plentiful positive feedback from unit users.  
 
Without the Helston Birth Unit, women in the area which stretches out the most southerly 
point of England - The Lizard Peninsula would have no option but to travel around an hour to 
Truro for their birth.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Maenporth Assessment Room 

     

 Porthcurno Room with birth pool  
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EQUIPMENT FOR THE SAME DAY MEDICAL ASSESSMENT UNIT (SDMA) 
£90,000 funding from Royal Cornwall Hospital Site Legacies and General Unrestricted 
Fund  
 
Charity funding helps create Same Day Medical Assessment Unit 
 
Emergency patients heading to Royal Cornwall Hospital could now be seen in a newly 
created facility thanks to support from Royal Cornwall Hospitals Charity.  
 
The Same Day Medical Assessment Unit will see patients referred by their GP for medical 
assessment in a move that will increase the capacity for emergency patients, reducing 
waiting times and aiming to speed up the time it takes to get patients to the right place for 
appropriate treatment and care – improving patient experience. 

 
 
“The Same Day Medical Assessment Unit will see 
around 30 patients every day, patients that previously 
would have joined the queue in the Emergency 
Department. Our medically expected patients, referred 
to us by their GP will be triaged on the unit, where 
possible they will sit in a chair rather than a bed which 
has known positive impacts on a patient’s wellbeing 
and positive frame of mind as well as preserving bed 
space for those in real need,” said Laura Haghani, 
Senior Staff Nurse (pictured).    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Funding of £90,000 from the charity has enabled the purchase of items such as emergency 
trolleys, blood pressure monitors, recliner chairs and treatment couches.  The additional 
equipment has enabled the unit to open and will improve patient experience, waiting times 
and flow through the hospital.   
 
Nina Penkethman, Advanced Nurse Practitioner on the unit, also explains the impact on the 
staff,  
 
“With the opening of the unit we have amalgamated two teams and they are really working 
together, they want this new way system to work and we can take the best of all of our 
knowledge skills and experience to provide a better level of care. I always think ‘Is it good 
enough for your parents? Then it’s good enough for our patients.’”  
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CREATION OF A PATIENT KITCHEN FACILITY ON THE PHOENIX STROKE WARD 
£9,000 from the Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund 
 
For Stroke survivors physical activities such as walking, dressing, preparing meals and 
eating can be a real challenge due to muscle weakness, stiffness, and changes in sensation.  
 
The creation of a kitchen facility within the Phoenix Stroke Ward allows for easy and 
accessible assessment and rehabilitation of stroke survivors.  
 
Previous to the addition of this new facility, patients would have to take the journey across 
the hospital to use the kitchen of another ward.  
 
The kitchen recreates a home environment with kitchen units and worktops as well as 
specially adapted equipment that facilitate Stroke survivors with food preparation and one 
handed eating as many will have weakened upper limbs following a Stroke.  
 
Simple yet effective additions of plates with sides and also plates that keep food warm for 
those patients that might take longer than usual to eat a meal.  
 
“Our new kitchen allows better access and faster rehabilitation for patients and the increased 
pace of discharge means that patients can return home to their familiar surroundings,” said 
Liz Tremayne Clinical Lead Occupational Therapist in Acute Stroke and Neurology at RCHT.  
 
In addition to the funding for the kitchen space, funding of £9,000 was used to refurbish a 
side room within in the ward and £7,000 to create a new office space required as a result of 
the reconfiguration.  

 

 

 

Phoenix Ward 

Kitchen Facility 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Equipment to aid Stroke survivors in their rehabilitation and 

assessment   
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BLADDER SCANNER FOR WHEAL PROSPER 
£8,000 funding from the Renal Unit Fund 
 
Sometimes the purchase of a piece of equipment can seem pretty mundane but for Wheal 
Prosper the arrival of their very own Bladder Scanner felt like ‘Christmas and Birthday rolled 
into one!’  
 
Before the addition of a scanner for the ward, the Wheal Prosper Team were required to 
borrow the equipment from other areas of the hospital.  
 
“Now that we have our own scanner it reduces use of nurse time in locating a machine and 
means that patient experience is much improved. Patients can be catheterised more quickly, 
making them more comfortable and often our renal consultants are concerned about patients 
having a full bladder so this really aids their assessments,” explained Lisa Waine, Wheal 
Prosper Ward Sister.  
 
“Our ward has been one of the areas to care for our Covid 19 patients and therefore has 
meant that, due to infection control, loaning of equipment between wards has been very 
restricted. We are just so grateful to RCHT Charity for this support,” adds Lisa. 
 
“The bladder scanner is one of the most exciting things that the team has received and 
makes such a difference. It is honestly like Christmas and Birthday rolled into one for the 
team on the ward!” Daniel Willoughby, Healthcare Assistant, exclaimed when asked about 
the impact of the equipment.   
 
Wheal Prosper is a 12 bed isolation ward at Royal Cornwall Hospital. It frequently has 
patients with a variety of bowel problems meaning that bladder observations can be key to a 
patient’s care.  
 

 
Ward Sister, Lisa Waine 
and Daniel Willoughby, 
Healthcare Assistant with 
the new service changing 
bladder scanner on Wheal 
Prosper.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 122 of 294



 
Registered Charity No.1049687 

Page 26 of 38 
 

 
GRENVILLE WARD – REMOTE PROGRAMMABLE LOCKER SYSTEM 
£10,000 funding from the Renal Unit Fund 
 
Putting the patient in control with new locks 
 
Heading home after a hospital stay can be daunting and disorientating and the need to 
remember new medications and regimes can sometimes cause additional distress and 
confusion.  

Royal Cornwall Hospitals Charity has funded an initiative that uses a patient locker system to 
give patients the control to self-administer their regular medication while in hospital.  

“Many of our patients would rather be in control of their medication just as they are at home. 
This can enable them to maintain independence and also help them to adapt when returning 
home,” explains Paul Buller, Clinical Nurse Specialist- EPMA and Medicines Optimisation.  

Patient lockers on Grenville Ward at Royal Cornwall Hospital have been fitted with a smart 
lock system funded by a RCHT Charity grant. Patients are given a wristband which is 
programmed to a specific locker and allows them to open a compartment containing their 
medication.   

“Many patients on Grenville Ward will have conditions requiring regular medication such as 
diabetes or a patient having recently received a transplant. Giving them the control to self-
administer means that they often feel more at ease, taking away the need to ask nursing 
staff for each medication when it is required. It can also make a better transition to home 
when the patient is discharged, as they are already comfortable with their medication,” Paul 

added.  

The technology used means that each wristband will only open one lock and if a wristband is 
taken off site in error it will be deactivated.  

The system is also of benefit to the staff as it negates the need for bulky sets of keys and 
tracks access to all the locks to ensure safe access and control.  

"The eKeys are fantastic- a real time saver" Sue Barron, Staff Nurse.  

"They've been a really positive change for the ward" Stacey Mills, Preceptee Staff Nurse.  

"It’s a lot easier and it saves time" Kat Amies, Senior Staff Nurse.  

"The eKeys are a brilliant idea. They are going to make nurses more time efficient and drug 
administration will be safer" Shelley Jackson, Sister.  
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55 lockers with a smart locking system, also funded by RCHT Charity, are due for installation 
at St Michael’s Hospital following delays caused by the Covid 19 Pandemic.  
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OTHER STORIES 
 
Critical Care Information Gateway supports patients on path to recovery 
 
An initiative from the Critical Care team at Royal Cornwall Hospital, a suite of guidance and 
advice films – the Information Gateway, will provide a valuable resource to these patients in 
the coming weeks and months.  
 
Will English, Critical Care Consultant and Sarah Bean, Research Nurse, recognised the 
need for greater support for patients making the transition out of critical care, during their 
review of patients in the follow-up clinic. During these clinics they observed that many 
patients and their families experienced common concerns and issues during their recovery 
journeys. In response and with input from their team, patients and families, they embarked 
on a project to create a collection of films – The Critical Care Information Gateway.  
 
“During our review of patients in the clinic we saw over and over again just how many of our 
patients experienced similar difficulties in trying to get their lives back to normal. A consistent 
theme was that patients simply did not know what to expect during the recovery process’’ 
 
Their objective was to provide an easily accessible information system, encompassing all 
aspects of the ‘critical care journey’ for the benefit of critical care patients, their relatives and 
members of staff involved in the treatment of critically unwell patients.  
 
A range of topics are covered such as what to expect and who you might meet within a 
critical care unit, stepping down to a ward, nightmares and dreams, hallucinations, stress 
and anxiety, memory loss and physical recovery.  
 
The project took a year to develop from conception to completion. Many of the films feature 
patients’ own accounts of their experiences.  This brings to life the various challenges they 
have had to face. In the case of David and Clive, whose story features in the film, the focus 
is on their experience in adapting to being discharged home. 
 
David advised, “My recovery has gone on for the two years that I was told it would do. When 
you leave it’s a marathon not a sprint, just go with it, and take your time.”   
 
David and Clive were keen to take part in the project to help other patients and their families 
as they recognised how much this type of information and resource would have been of 
benefit to them. 
 
The project was made possible through very generous funding from a number of our 
previous patients and their families, The Critical Care Unit Fund of Royal Cornwall Hospitals 
Charity, a Health Education England Innovation grant, The Duchy Hospital Charity, The 
Friends of Royal Cornwall Hospital and The Research and Development department at 
RCHT. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
David Cherry and Clive Denny 
share their Critical Care 
recovery experience in an 
Information Gateway video. 

Page 125 of 294



 
Registered Charity No.1049687 

Page 29 of 38 
 

 
 
 
The information gateway can be accessed at: 
http://healthcarevideos.royalcornwall.nhs.uk/criticalcare 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Critical Care Consultant, Will English and 

Critical Care Research Nurse, Sarah 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Measuring our achievements 
 
Grant making is the primary activity of the Charity and the success of this activity is 
measured by subsequent purchases of equipment, funding of research and other news 
stories that reflect the public benefit. The previous examples illustrate some of the Charity’s 
achievements during 2019-20. 
 
Our Fundraising Practices  
 
Members of RCHT Charity fundraising team organise fundraising events and co-ordinate the 
activities of our supporters both in the hospital and in the wider community on behalf of 
RCHT Charity. RCHT Charity does not use professional fundraisers or involve commercial 
participators. There have been no complaints about fundraising activity this year.  
 
It is the intention of RCHT Charity to sign up to the Fundraising Regulator’s Code of 
Fundraising Practice in early 2021. All fundraising staff will be involved in discussions 
regarding what the Code means for RCHT Charity and if required fundraising guidance and 
working practices will be updated so that they are compliant.  
 
Volunteer fundraisers are currently required to complete a Fundraising Agreement and this 
document will be updated to ensure alignment with the code of practice. 
All direct marketing is undertaken by the fundraising department to ensure that it is not 
unreasonably intrusive or persistent. Contact is made only to those supporters giving explicit 
consent through GDPR.  All marketing material contains clear instructions on how a person 
can be removed from mailing lists. 
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Our Fundraising Performance 
 
During the year the total donations, legacies and income from fundraising came to £624,000.   
 
We monitor the comparative success of fundraising activity through overall fundraising cost 
to income ratios.  
 

 
 
We continue to perform well, maintaining a ratio above the target level of 1:4.  
 
By seeking to raise our fundraising profile we hope to increase our general funds and are 
taking steps to develop a programme to improve retention of existing donors.  
 
With the introduction of a new charity strategy for 2020-2023 it will be possible to measure 
success against key performance indicators.  
 
Luckily, we were able to hold our Night at The Cathedral Event in March prior to Covid 19 
restrictions being in place. However, the subsequent community campaign ‘A Night at…’ 
which would have asked supporters to hold their own events under the campaign sadly had 
to be postponed.  
 
RCHT Charity, as one of the NHS charities, initially benefitted from an uplift in support and 
fundraising from the local community during the first wave of the Covid19 pandemic and has 
been beneficiary of grants from the NHS Charities Together National Covid 19 Appeal. 
However, our internal fundraising programme for 2020/21 will be affected by the crisis and 
the team are currently looking at ways to increase donations through alternative activities.  
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Fundraising Achievements 2019-2020  
 
Come Dance With Us and the Come Dance With Us Showcase Event held in May 2019 
were a runaway success in terms of both publicity for RCHT Charity and funds raised.  
 
12 couples were taken on a ‘Strictly’ style journey with a 9 week program of dance 
instruction leading to two sell out finale events. The fundraising total for the event came to 
over £40,000.  
 
Funds were split across a range of funds within RCHT Charity at the choice of the 
participants.    
 
The events received high profile across many local press outlets and engagement on social 
media put the charity in the public eye. Planning for another ‘Come Dance’ event have 
currently been put on hold but will be revisited as soon as restrictions allow.  
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RCHT Charity worked in partnership with the Friends of St Michael’s Hospital and the Royal 
British Legion for the St Michael’s Hospital Fete. With the luck of fantastic weather, the 
event was well attended with stall holders, entertainment, information stands and plenty of 
refreshments all bringing the local community together with £1,100 raised through RCHT 
Charity funds for the hospital.   
 

 

In December, The Den @RCHT 2019 took place in partnership with the RHCT Quality 
Improvement Team with 17 pitches from teams across RCHT showcasing their brilliant ideas 
to improve patient care.  
 
Over £26,000 was awarded from the General Fund to support 10 winning pitches including 
funding for a simulation mannequin for the Emergency Department, equipment to allow 3D 
virtual tours of various locations across the hospital and a speaker system to allow dementia 
patients to have personalised music choices in their bed spaces.  
 
A St Piran’s Night at the Cathedral 
 
In March, the iconic venue of 
Truro Cathedral was filled 
with over 1000 people for a 
St Piran’s celebration in aid 
of RCHT Charity. Local 
bands played, Cornish 
singers took to the stage and 
many enjoyed the delights of 
a silent disco under the 
stunning lasers creating a 
unique show for all. £10,000 
profit was raised for the 
charity along with much 
positive publicity and joy!  
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The London to Paris Cycle Challenge originally planned for September 2020 (now 
postponed until September 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic) was launched in the year.  
 
With 39 participants registered for the event who will each take on the challenge of cycling 
237 miles over 3 days from London to Paris. Each cyclist has chosen to support a fund of 
the charity and have pledged to raise the minimum amount of £1,750.  
 
Fundraising for the challenge has brought a new range of activity and increased awareness 
of the charity.  
 
WAYS TO SUPPORT US 

 
There are many ways that you can support the work of the Royal Cornwall Hospitals Charity:   
 
Make a donation  
To make a donation, please: visit www.royalcornwall.nhs.uk/get-involved/charity-and-
fundraising; contact the Charity team by phone on 01872 252858; or email 
RCHT.Charity@nhs.net  
 
Become a corporate partner  
We are keen to work with a wide range of corporate partners to achieve business benefits 
and raise crucial funds for the Charity. To find out more about opportunities for corporate 
partnerships, please get in touch.  
  
Volunteer your time  
Time is precious and we are very grateful to anyone who chooses to give their time to 
support the Charity. Whether you can spare a few hours to help at an event or volunteer on 
a weekly basis, either in the office or in your local community, we would love to hear from 
you. 
 
Follow us  
You can keep up to date with all the latest news from the Charity by following us on 
Facebook at www.facebook.com/royalcornwallhospitalscharity and on Twitter at 
@RCHTCharity. With a simple share or comment you can play a key part in helping us 
spread the word about the Charity’s work.   
 
Leave a legacy  
Gifts in wills provide the Charity with a vital income source, allowing us to plan for the future 
and benefit patients across our hospitals. Even the smallest legacy can have a lasting 
impact and make a real difference to the care that we are able to provide.  
 
How to contact us  
 
Please get in touch as we would love to hear from you. You can phone us on 01872 252858  
or email RCHT.Charity@nhs.net 
 
Thank you 
 
To everyone that has made a donation or supported the charity in any way, thank you. You 
have made a difference.  
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You have enabled additional equipment to be purchased, funded enhancements to the 
physical environments and enabled staff to be trained, all in the pursuit of providing 
excellence in care to the people of Cornwall and the Isles of Scilly. Thank you for sharing in, 
and supporting, our vision.  
 

FINANCIAL REVIEW 

 

The net assets of the Charity as at 31 March 2020 were £1,945,000 (2019: £2,206,000). The 
net movement in funds in the year was therefore a decrease of £261,000 (2019: decrease of 
£232,000), comprising an increase in creditors of £36,000, a reduction in cash and 
investments of £239,000 and an increase in debtors of £14,000. 
 
Income 
 
Total income for the year to 31 March 2020 was £671,000, a 23.8% increase from the 
previous year’s £542,000.  
 
Income from donations and grants decreased by 7.0% to £413,000 (£444,000 in 2018-19) 
whilst income from legacies received in the year was £185,000 (£45,000 in 2018-19), an 
increase of 311.11%. 
 
Income in year, also, included trading income of £26,000 (£1,000 in 2018-19) mainly from 
the sales of tickets for major fundraising events, “Come Dance With Us” events held in May 
2019 and “A Night at the Cathedral” held in March 2020. 
 
Investment income for 2019-20 was £47,000, representing a 9.61% decrease on the 
previous year’s £52,000 due to the investment portfolio performance and market factors.   
 
During the year the Charity continued to rely on donations, legacies, trading and investment 
income as its main sources of income. The chart below shows how these categories of 
income have contributed to the overall income of the fund for the last 10 years:  
 

 
 
 
Expenditure 
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Expenditure for the year to 31 March 2020 totalled £822,000; 0.85% (£7,000) higher than the 
previous year’s £815,000.  
 
The Charity incurred costs in respect of fundraising activities totalling £92,000 (2018-19: 
£107,000 including £11,000 in respect of trading activity (2018-19: £1,000). These were 
attributable to the engagement of a Fundraising Manager, a part-time Community Fundraiser 
and a part-time Fundraising Assistant, and other associated fundraising costs, such as 
advertising and fees associated with online donations.  
 
Trading costs during the year were mainly limited to those associated with the “Come Dance 
With Us” events held in May 2019 and “A Night at the Cathedral” held in March 2020. 
 
Investment management costs of £19,000 were incurred in the year (2018-19: £19,000).  
 
Expenditure on patient facilities grants (before the allocation of support costs) was £451,000 
(2018-19: £471,000).  
 
Expenditure on staff welfare and training grants (before the allocation of support costs) was 
£182,000 (2018-19: £140,000). 
 
Expenditure on research grants (before the allocation of support costs) was £24,000 (2018-
19: £24,000).  
  
The chart below shows the Charity’s direct expenditure for the last 10 years: 
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Investment performance during the year 
 
Throughout the year the Charity’s investments have been managed by Barclays Investment 
Solutions Ltd. As at 31st March 2020 the balance was £1,835,000. The portfolio’s 
performance is shown below together with Barclays’ commentary for the year. 
 
Performance 

12months to 
31 March 2020 

12months to 
31 March 2019 

Calendar Year 
2018 

Calendar Year 
2017 

-4.7% 3.44% -3.40% 6.11% 
 
“2019 provided strong returns in equity markets despite some notable headwinds such 
continued trade tensions between the US and China; Brexit negotiations and fears of an 
economic downturn during the Autumn. The US Fed and ECB has both confirmed 
willingness to take action to limit any slowdown and responded with interest rate cuts in Q3 
and the ECB initiated another round of quantitative easing. In the UK, the Bank of England 
confirmed it was ready to act if required and these actions saw a market recovery. 
 
“The UK Market further benefitted following the Conservative landslide win in December’s 
General Election and further gains were made following another Interest Rate cut in the US 
and assurances from the Bank of England the it was willing to consider rate cuts in 2020. 
 
“However, after a positive start to 2020, the spread of Covid 19 and simultaneous oil price 
war saw equity markets fall faster than at any time since 1987. The FTSE was down 24.8% 
at one point losing 10.9% in a single day. This led to a significant sell off as investors sold 
risk based assets and moved to cash and Government Bonds. The UK indices have a high 
weighting to Energy and the fall in oil prices to their lowest levels since 2002 had a 
significant impact. 
 
“Central Banks and Governments responded quickly with a range of stimulus packages to 
combat the economic effects of lockdowns and which provided encouragement for investors. 
The lower interest rate environment provides support for equity markets while bonds look 
very expensive. Within equities, we believe higher quality companies with strong balance 
sheets are better equipped to manage these conditions and so the portfolio is biased 
towards such companies and managers that should benefit from the improving environments 
as we emerge from this crisis.” 

 
Source: Barclays Investment Solutions Ltd 
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Factors affecting the future financial position 
 
The Charity remains highly reliant upon donations and legacies as its main sources of 
income. A new Fundraising Strategy was adopted in March 2020 together with an 
associated implementation plan. The continuing COVID-19 pandemic and the economic 
uncertainty in the wake of ‘Brexit’ may impact upon future levels of such income. 
 
As referred to in the “Risk management” section, the Charity’s future financial position will be 
affected by the variability of returns on its invested funds. Investment performance will 
continue to be closely scrutinised. 
 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
As the agents of the Corporate Trustee are also Directors of the Royal Cornwall Hospitals 
NHS Trust, all transactions between the Charity and the Trust can be deemed to be related.  
 
During 2019-20 the Charity’s expenditure with the Trust totalled £771,000 (2018-19: 
£750,000).  
 
This expenditure related to:  
 

 Patient facilities grants £439,000 
 Staff welfare and training grants £182,000 
 Research grants £24,000 
 Management costs of the Charity £50,000 
 Fundraising salaries  £76,000 

  
 
 
APPROVED BY 
 
Karl Simkins, on behalf of the Corporate Trustee 
 
 
12 January 2021 
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TRUSTEE RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT 

 
The agents of the Corporate Trustee are responsible for preparing the Trustee’s Annual 
Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations. 
 
The Charities Act 2011 requires the Trustee to prepare financial statements for each 
financial year. The Trustee has to prepare the financial statements in accordance with 
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting 
Standards and applicable law). The agents of the Corporate Trustee must not approve the 
financial statements unless satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Charity and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the 
income and expenditure, of the Charity for that period. In preparing these financial 
statements, they are required to: 
 

 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 

 observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
 

 make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
 

 state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to 
any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 

 
 prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate 

to presume that the Charity will continue in business. 
 
The Trustee is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to 
show and explain the Charity’s transactions, disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time 
the financial position of the Charity and enable it to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the Charities Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations and the 
provisions of the trust deed. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charity 
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
Approved by the Corporate Trustee on 12 January 2021 and signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
Paul Hobson 
 
Kerry Eldridge 
 
Karl Simkins 
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2020

Notes Unrestricted Restricted Total funds Unrestricted Restricted Total funds

funds funds funds funds

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Income from:

Donations and legacies 2 399              199              598              377              112              489              
Other trading activities 3 26                -               26                1                  -               1                  
Investments 4 29                18                47                30                22                52                
Total 454              217              671              408              134              542              

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 5 73                38                111              83                43                126              
Charitable activities 6 392              319              711              392              297              689              
Total 465              357              822              475              340              815              

Net gains / (losses) on 

investments
13 (69) (41) (110) 24                17                41                

Net income / (expenditure) 

and net movement in funds
19 (80) (181) (261) (43) (189) (232)

Reconciliation of funds: 18

Total funds brought forward 1,362           844              2,206           1,405           1,033           2,438           

Total funds carried forward 1,282           663              1,945           1,362           844              2,206           

The notes on pages 4 to 21 form part of these accounts.

2018-192019-20

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised during the year. All income and expenditure derives from
continuing operations.
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Registered Charity Number 1049687

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

Notes £000 £000

Fixed assets:

Investments 13 1,835 2,168        
Total fixed assets 1,835 2,168        

Current assets:

Debtors 14 30 16             
Cash at bank and in hand 15 239 145           
Total current assets 269 161           

Current liabilities:

Creditors falling due within one year 16 (146) (123)

Net current assets / (liabilities) 123 38             

Total assets less current liabilities 1,958 2,206        

 

Creditors falling due after more than one year 16 (13) -            

Total net assets / (liabilities) 1,945 2,206        

Funds of the Charity: 18

Unrestricted funds 1,282 1,362        
Restricted income funds 663 844           
Total funds 1,945 2,206        

The notes on pages 4 to 21 form part of these accounts.

Approved by:

Name: Dated:    

Page 2

Page 138 of 294



Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19

Notes £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income / (expenditure) for the year (as per the 

Statement of Financial Activities) 
(261) (232)

Adjustments for:

(Gains) / losses on investments 13 110              (41)
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 4 (47) (52)
(Increase) / decrease in debtors 14 (14) 89                
Increase / (decrease) in creditors 16 36                64                
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (176) (172)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 4 47 52             
Proceeds from the sale of investments 13 250 -            
Purchase of investments 13 (27) (33)
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities 270 19             

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 94 (153)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 145 298           

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 239 145           

The notes on pages 4 to 21 form part of these accounts.

Page 3
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation

(b) Funds structure

Where there is a legal restriction on the purpose to which a fund may be put, the fund is classified either
as an endowment fund, where the donor has expressly provided that only the income of the fund may be
applied, or as a restricted income fund where the donor has provided for the donation to be spent in
furtherance of a specified charitable purpose.

Amalgamation of individual funds can result in transfers from restricted to unrestricted funds, as well as
transfers from unrestricted funds to restricted funds.

Unrestricted income funds include designated funds and unrestricted funds. Designated funds are where
the Trustee has set aside amounts to be used for specific purposes, often reflecting the non-binding
wishes of the donors, whereas unrestricted funds may be used for any purpose at the Trustee's discretion.

Page 4

The Charity does not have any funds classed as endowment funds.

The Corporate Trustee considers that there are no material uncertainties about the Charity's ability to
continue as a going concern. The Covid-19 pandemic has had an impact on the charity’s fundraising
income although this is partially offset by restricted income from the NHS Charities Together national
appeal. As a grant making charity with few on-going commitments, this will impact on the new grants that
can be made in the short term rather than affecting the Charity’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

There are no material uncertainties affecting the current year’s accounts. In future years, the key risks to
the Charity are a fall in income from donations or a fall in investment values, but the Trustee has
arrangements in place to mitigate those risks (see the risk management section of the Trustees Annual
Report for more information).

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of
investments which are included at market value. They have been prepared in accordance with the
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by Charities preparing their accounts in

accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)

issued in October 2019 and the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Charities Act 2011 and UK Generally Accepted Practice as it
applies from 1 January 2019.

The financial statements have been prepared to give a ‘true and fair’ view and have departed from the
Charities (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 only to the extent required to provide a ‘true and fair
view’. This departure has involved following Accounting and Reporting by Charities preparing their
accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland (FRS 102) issued in October 2019 rather than the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice effective from 1 April 2005 which has since been withdrawn.

The principle accounting policies as set out below have been applied consistently throughout the year.
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Incoming resources

(d) Incoming resources from legacies

i)
ii)

iii)

(e) Incoming resources from other trading activities

(f) Resources expended and irrecoverable VAT

i)
ii)

iii)

Any conditions attached to the legacy are either within the control of the Charity or have been met.

Legacies are accounted for as incoming resources, either upon receipt, or where the receipt of the legacy
is probable. Receipt is probable when all three of the following factors are met:

If there is uncertainty as to the amount of the legacy and it cannot be reliably estimated then the legacy is
shown as a contingent asset until all of the conditions for income recognition are met.

The executors have established that there are sufficient assets in the estate, after settling any
liabilities, to pay the legacy;  and

There has been grant of probate;

Page 5

The amount of the obligation can be measured or estimated reliably.

Irrecoverable VAT is charged against the category of resources expended for which it was incurred.

Material legacies, which have been notified but not recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of
Financial Activities, are disclosed in note 21 together with an estimate of the amount receivable.

All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that
aggregate all costs related to the category of expense shown in the Statement of Financial Activities.
Expenditure is recognised when the following criteria are met:

It is more likely than not that a transfer of benefits (usually a cash payment) will be required in
settlement; and

There is a present legal or constructive obligation resulting from a past event;

Income from the Charity's own fundraising events, including ticket sales and sponsorships, is disclosed
under other trading activities. This income is recognised for events in line with when those events take
place.

All incoming resources, including grants, are recognised once the Charity has entitlement to the
resources, it is probable (more likely than not) that the resources will be received and the monetary value
of incoming resources can be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where there are terms or conditions attached to incoming resources, particularly grants, then these terms
or conditions must be met before the income is recognised as the entitlement condition will not be satisfied 
until that point. Where terms or conditions have not been met or uncertainty exists as to whether they can
be met then the relevant income is not recognised in the year but deferred and shown on the balance
sheet as deferred income.
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements  

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

(g) Allocation of support costs

(h) Fundraising costs

(i) Charitable activities

(j) Grants payable

(k) Fixed asset investments

(l) Realised gains and losses

(m) Debtors

Support costs are those costs which do not relate directly to a single activity. These comprise governance,
administration and external audit costs. Support costs have been apportioned between fundraising costs
and charitable activities on an appropriate basis. The analysis of support costs and the bases of
apportionment applied are shown in note 8.

The costs of generating funds are those costs attributable to generating income for the Charity, other than
those costs incurred in undertaking charitable activities. For example, the costs involved in holding events
in furtherance of the Charity’s objects and investment management fees.

Quoted stocks and shares are included in the balance sheet at the mid-market value provided by the
investment fund managers, excluding dividend. The Trustee does not consider that any individual holding
of securities would have a material effect on the quoted market price.

All gains and losses are taken to the Statement of Financial Activities as they arise. Realised gains and
losses on investments are calculated as the difference between sales proceeds and opening market value
(or purchase date if later). Unrealised gains and losses are calculated as the difference between market
value at the year end and opening market value (or purchase date if later).

Page 6

Investments are a form of basic financial instrument. Fixed asset investments are initially recognised at
their transaction value and are subsequently measured at their market value as at the balance sheet date.
The Statement of Financial Activities includes the net gains and losses arising on revaluations and
disposals throughout the year.

Debtors are amounts owed to the Charity. They are measured on the basis of their recoverable amount.

Costs of charitable activities comprise all costs identified as wholly or mainly incurred in the pursuit of the
charitable objects of the Charity. These costs comprise direct costs and an apportionment of support
costs, as shown in note 6.

Grants payable are payments made to third parties (including NHS bodies) in furtherance of the charitable
objectives of the funds held on trust. Grant payments are recognised as expenditure when the conditions
for their payment have been met or where there is a constructive obligation to make a payment.
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements  

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

(n) Creditors

(o) Cash at bank and in hand

(p) Pensions

(q) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument in another entity. The Charity's financial instruments are its cash at bank and in hand,
investments, debtors and creditors other than for grants payable. Grant creditors are non-contractual in
nature and are therefore not financial instruments.

The Charity has basic financial instruments that are initially recognised at transaction value. They are
subsequently measured at their settlement value, with the exception of fixed asset investments which are
measured at their market value as at the balance sheet date.

Each financial instrument has a dedicated accounting policy explaining how they are measured in the
Charity's accounts, as set out within this note 1. They are elaborated upon further in the following notes to
the accounts.

Amounts which are owed in more than a year are shown as long term creditors.

The Charity has no employees or pension contribution liabilities.

Page 7

Creditors are amounts owed by the Charity. They are measured at the amount that the Charity expects to
have to pay to settle the debt.

Cash at bank and in hand is held to meet the day to day running costs of the Charity as they fall due. 
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements  

2. Income from donations and legacies

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

 funds funds 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Donations 361                52                  413                436                
General grants -                 -                 -                 8                    
Legacies 38                  147                185                45                  
Total 399                199                598                489                

3. Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 

 funds funds 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Fundraising trading 26                  -                 26                  1                    
26                  -                 26                  1                    

4. Gross investment income

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed asset investments 29                  18                  47                  52                  
Total investment income 29                  18                  47                  52                  

Fundraising income in 2019-20 relates mainly to ticket sales for the "Night at the Cathedral" event held
in March 2020, together with the release of deferred income from 2018-19 relating to the "Come Dance
With Us" fundraising event held in May 2019.

Income from fundraising trading in 2018-19 related to income from dance training provided during 2018-
19 in advance of the "Come Dance With Us" event.

Page 8
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements  

5. Analysis of expenditure on raising funds

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Investment management costs 12                  7                    19                  19                  
Fundraising costs 50                  31                  81                  106                
Trading costs 11                  -                 11                  1                    
Total 73                  38                  111                126                

6. Analysis of expenditure on charitable activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Research grants 24                  -                 24                  24                  
Staff welfare and training grants 132                50                  182                140                
Patient facilities grants 201                250                451                471                
Support costs 35                  19                  54                  54                  
Total 392                319                711                689                

The 2019-20 expenditure on raising funds included the ongoing costs associated with the Fundraising
Team together with advertising costs, fees associated with online donations and other fundraising
activities; and the additional costs associated with trading activities undertaken in the year.

In 2018-19, in addition to the above costs, the Charity also incurred costs in respect of the
establishment of a Fundraising Pod (located at the main hospital entrance).

Page 9

Further analysis of grants made and their share of support costs is shown in note 7.
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements  

7. Analysis of grants made

7.1 Research grants Total Total

2019-20 2018-19

Grants to institutions £000 £000

Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust:

Material grants from charitable fund:

17                  9                    
Gynaecological Oncology Research Fund -                 9                    

Other grants  7                    6                    
Total grants to institutions 24                  24                  

Support costs 4                    4                    

Total expenditure on research grants 28                  28                  

7.2 Staff welfare and training grants Total Total

2019-20 2018-19

Grants to institutions £000 £000

Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust:

Material grants from charitable fund:
Cornish Heart Unit Fund 5                    -                 
Critical Care Unit Fund 6                    -                 

Other grants 171                140                
Total grants to institutions 182                140                

Support costs 22                  22                  

Total expenditure on staff welfare and training grants 204                162                

The majority of grant support was given to Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust. The total cost of
making grants, including support costs, is disclosed on the face of the Statement of Financial Activities
and the actual funds spent on each category of charitable activity are disclosed in note 6.

The Corporate Trustee operates a scheme of delegation for the charitable funds, under which Fund
Advisors manage the day to day disbursements on their projects in accordance with the directions set
out in standing orders and standing financial instructions.

Grants made by the Charity are disclosed below. For the purposes of this note, purchases or projects
in excess of £5,000 have been deemed to be material.

Page 10

           Cancer Research For Cornwall Fund
           (2 grants; 2018-19: 1 grant)
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Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

7. Analysis of grants made (continued)

7.3 Patient facilities grants Total Total

2019-20 2018-19

Grants to institutions £000 £000

Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust:

Material grants from charitable fund:
Cornish Heart Unit Fund (1 grant; 2018-19: 3 grants) 55                  34                  
Leukaemia Fund 47                  44                  
Cornwall Birth and Baby Appeal Fund 12                  73                  
General Unrestricted Fund 22                  35                  
Mermaid Centre Fund (1 grant; 2018-19: 2 grants) 30                  12                  

90                  -                 
Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund (3 grants) 25                  -                 
Renal Unit Fund (2 grants) 18                  -                 
RCHT Legacies Fund -                 14                  
St Michael's Hospital Legacies Fund (2018-19: 2 grants) -                 49                  
Royal Cornwall Hospital Site Legacies -                 14                  
Renal Dialysis Fund/ Renal Unit Fund -                 56                  
Cancer Research Fund for Cornwall -                 6                    

Other grants 140                125                
 439                462                

Cornwall Partnership Foundation Trust

in respect of Bodmin Hospital and Community Services:

Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund 4                    7                    
Total grants to institutions 443                469                

Grants to individuals 8                    2                    

Support costs 28                  28                  

Total expenditure on patient facilities grants 479                499                

Royal Cornwall Hospital Site Legacies / General Unrestricted 
Fund

Page 11

Page 147 of 294



Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

8. Analysis of support costs

Raising Charitable Total Total 

funds activities 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

External audit -                 3                    3                    3                    
Other professional fees -                 1                    1                    1                    
Governance sub-total -                 4                    4                    4                    

Financial administration -                 50                  50                  50                  
Total -                 54                  54                  54                  

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Charitable activities

Research activities 3                    1                    4                    5                    
Staff welfare and training activities 14                  8                    22                  22                  
Patient facilities activities 17                  11                  28                  27                  
Total 34                  20                  54                  54                  

9. Trustee remuneration and benefits

9.1 Trustee remuneration

9.2 Trustee expenses reimbursed

Page 12

There were no expenses reimbursed to agents of the Corporate Trustee in either the current or
preceding year.

Support costs are allocated based on the average fund balance and activities of the funds.

Neither the agents of the Corporate Trustee, nor any person connected with them, have received
remuneration from the Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund in either the current or
preceding year.
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

10. Staff costs

Raising 

funds

Charitable 

activities

Raising 

funds

Charitable 

activities

£000 £000 £000 £000

Salaries and wages 61                  40                  60                  40                  
Social security costs 5                    4                    5                    4                    
Pension costs 9                    6                    9                    6                    
Sub-total 75                  50                  74                  50                  

Total for year 125                124                

11. Auditor's remuneration

12. Role of volunteers

Page 13

2019-20

The Charity does not directly employ staff. However, it benefits from the work of staff employed by
Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust, which is recharged to the Charity. The costs incurred by the
Charity comprise the following:

In addition, there are about 130 Trust staff who support the Charitable Funds Committee by acting in
the capacity of Fund Advisors. Fund Advisors fulfil a key role in the day-to-day oversight of the funds
and may use funds in accordance with delegated powers.

In accordance with the SORP, due to the absence of any reliable measurement basis, the contribution
of these volunteers is not recognised as income in the accounts.

The Charity acknowledges the support it receives from unpaid volunteers and community groups.
There are many volunteers who actively raise funds for the Charity.

The average number of full time equivalent staff included in the numbers above was 4 (2018-19: 4) and
the headcount was 11 (2018-19: 9). None of the staff costs recharged to the Charity exceeded £60,000
in respect of any one individual (2018-19: None).

The Charity considers its key management personnel to be the members of the Board of Royal
Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust, acting as agents of the Corporate Trustee. Included in the recharged
staff costs above are £5,000 (2018-19: £5,000) in relation to such individuals.

The auditor’s remuneration of £3,000 (2018-19: £3,000) related solely to the audit of the financial
statements, with no other additional work being undertaken in either 2019-20 or 2018-19.

2018-19
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Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund

Registered Charity Number 1049687

Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

13. Fixed asset investments

2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000

Market value brought forward 2,168             2,094             
Add: Additions to investments at cost 27                  33                  
Less: Disposals at carrying value (250) -                 
Add: Net gain / (loss) on revaluation (110) 41                  
Market valuation as at 31 March 1,835             2,168             

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

Investments managed by Barclays Investment Solutions Limited £000 £000

Investment assets in the UK
Bonds 240                367                
Equities 179                260                
Property funds 31                  48                  
Alternatives 130                -                 

87                  612                

Investment assets outside the UK
Bonds 419                192                
Equities 452                407                
Property funds 22                  14                  
Hedge funds -                 197                
Commodities 56                  71                  

115                
104                -                 

Balance at 31 March 1,835             2,168             

Investment management costs

14. Analysis of debtors
31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000

Debtors receivable within one year:

Prepayments and accrued income 12                  12                  
Other debtors 18                  4                    
Total 30                  16                  

Movement in fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments market value

These are the costs charged by Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, the Charity's investment fund 
managers, in both the current and preceding years.

Page 14

Multi Asset

Cash and settlements pending held as part of the investment 
portfolio

Alternatives
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Year ended 31 March 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

15. Analysis of cash at bank and in hand

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000

Total cash at bank and in hand 239                145                

16. Analysis of liabilities

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000

Creditors payable within one year:

Accruals for grants payable 18                  72                  
Other accruals 7                    12                  
Other creditors 121                33                  
Deferred income (see note 17) -                 6                    
Total 146                123                

Creditors falling due after more than one year

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000
Creditors falling due after more than one year:

Other creditors 13                  -                 
Total 13                  -                 

17. Deferred income 01 April 31 March

2019 Deferred Released 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trading 6                    -                 6                    -                 
Total 6                    -                 6                    -                 

Page 15

Cash at bank and in hand is held to meet short-term cash commitments as they fall due, rather than for
investment purposes.

Deferred income from 2018-19 comprised ticket sales income and advertising sponsorships received 
in advance of the Come Dance With Us events held in May 2019 and was recognised in 2019-2020. 

Creditors falling due after more than more year result from the deferral of a major fundraising event, 
originally planned for September 2020, to September 2021 as a result of the Covid-19 Pandemic. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements  

18a Analysis of charitable funds 2019-20

18a.1 Unrestricted funds

Fund name
Balance at  

1 April 2019

Incoming 

resources

Resources 

expended
Transfers

Gains /  

(losses)

Balance at  

31 March 

2020

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Mermaid Centre Fund 286               52                  (74) 264               

Angove Diabetic Research Fund 95                 -                (6) 89                 

Critical Care Unit Fund 92                 32                 (39) 85                 

Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust 
General Unrestricted Fund 187               71                 (107) (69) 82                 

Children's Ward Equipment Fund 84                 - (5) 79                 

Cancer Research Fund for Cornwall 70                 35                 (27) 78                 

Headland Unit Fund 38                 44                 (14) 68                 

Neonatal Fund 26                 43                 (13) 56                 
 
Renal Unit Fund 84                 2                   (36) 50                 

Others (71) 400               175               (144)  431               

Total unrestricted funds 1,362            454               (465) -                (69) 1,282            

18a.2 Restricted income funds

Fund name
Balance at  

1 April 2019

Incoming 

resources

Resources 

expended
Transfers

Gains /  

(losses)

Balance at  

31 March 

2020

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

 Cornish Heart Unit Fund 242               38                 (114) (11) 155               

 
Royal Cornwall Hospital Site Legacies 
Fund 99                 135               (90) (8) 136               

 Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund 130               18                 (53) (5) 90                 

Others (21) 373               26                 (100) (17) 282               

Total restricted income funds 844               217               (357) -                (41) 663               

Total funds 2,206            671               (822) -                (110) 1,945            

18a.3 Endowment funds

Page 16

The Charity does not hold any endowment funds.

Fund Advisors develop appropriate spending plans for the charitable funds they oversee, with regard to the resources available.
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18a Analysis of charitable funds 2019-20 (continued)

18a.4

Fund Nature/Purpose

Mermaid Centre Fund Established to benefit patients and staff in the Mermaid Centre.
Angove Diabetic Research 
Fund

Established by the kind donation of the Angove family to help fund
diabetic research.

Critical Care Unit Fund Established for the benefit of staff amenities, staff education and
equipment in the Critical Care Unit.

Royal Cornwall Hospitals 
Trust General Unrestricted 
Fund 

A general fund for the benefit of staff and patients.

Children's Ward Equipment 
Fund

Established through a legacy for equipment on the Children's Ward at
Treliske Hospital.

Cancer Research Fund for 
Cornwall Supporting Royal Cornwall Hospital Cancer Research.

Headland Unit Fun Established for the benefit of patients and staff of the Headland Unit
Neonatal Fund Established for the benefit of patients and staff of the Neonatal Unit.
Renal Unit Fund Established for the benefit of patients and staff of the Renal Unit.

18a.5 Material restricted income funds

Fund Nature/Purpose

Cornish Heart Unit Fund Provides support for clinical cardiology and for patients and staff
amenities, including training and equipment.

Royal Cornwall Hospital Site 
Legacies Fund

A legacy fund for Royal Cornwall Hospital at Treliske, where no further
preference as to how the fund shall be spent has been stated.

Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund 
Established following the launch of the Phoenix Stroke Appeal on 20
June 2011, with the aim of raising £500,000 to improve stroke
services for the people of Cornwall.  

Other restricted funds are held where donors have provided for funds to be spent in the furtherance
of specified charitable purposes.

Page 17

Other unrestricted funds are those designated to other wards and clinical departments within Royal
Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust, for which donors have indicated their non binding wishes when
making their generous gifts.

The nature and purpose of the material restricted funds (with balances of over £50,000 or more) held
by the Charity at 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Material unrestricted funds

The nature and purpose of the material unrestricted funds (with balances of £50,000 or more) held by
the Charity at 31 March 2020 are as follows:
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18b Analysis of charitable funds 2018-19

18b.1 Unrestricted funds

Fund name
Balance at  

1 April 2018

Incoming 

resources

Resources 

expended
Transfers

Gains /  

(losses)

Balance at  

31 March 

2019

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Mermaid Centre Fund 284               55                 (53) 286               

Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust 
General Unrestricted Fund 234               63                 (130) (4) 24 187               

Angove Diabetic Research Fund 100                               -  (5) 95                 

Critical Care Unit Fund 80                 40                 (30) 2  92                 
 
Children's Ward Equipment Fund 86                                 -  (2) 84                 

Renal Unit Fund 111               5                   (32) 84                 

Cancer Research Fund for Cornwall 61                 36                 (27) 70                 

 
Others (67) 449               209               (196) 2                    464               

Total unrestricted funds 1,405            408               (475) -                24                 1,362            

18b.2 Restricted income funds

Fund name
Balance at  

1 April 2018

Incoming 

resources

Resources 

expended
Transfers

Gains /  

(losses)

Balance at  

31 March 

2019

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

 Cornish Heart Unit Fund 265               36                 (63) 4                   242               

 Phoenix Stroke Appeal Fund 139               4                   (15) 2                   130               

 
Royal Cornwall Hospital Site Legacies 
Fund 99                 21                 (23) 2  99                 

 Leukaemia Fund 130               2                   (51) 1  82                 

Others (22) 400               71                 (188) 8                   291               

Total restricted income funds 1,033            134               (340) -                17                 844               

Total funds 2,438            542               (815) -                41                 2,206            

18b.3 Endowment funds

In 2018-19, following transfers were made from the Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust General Unrestricted Fund as awards following the £70
Fundraising Challenge: £2,000 to the Critical Care Unit Fund, £1,000 to the Acute Medical Unit Fund and £1,000 to West Cornwall
Outpatients Fund. A further transfer was made from the Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust General Unrestricted Fund to establish the Butterfly
Cornwall Fund. A transfer of £1,000 was also made from the Surgical Gastroenterology Fund to Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust General
Unrestricted Fund to fund a Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust initiative. 

Fund Advisors develop appropriate spending plans for the charitable funds they oversee, with regard to the resources available.

The Charity does not hold any endowment funds.

Page 18
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19. Changes in resources available for Charity use - net movement of funds

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2019-20 2018-19

£000 £000 £000 £000

Net movement in funds for the year (80) (181) (261) (232)
Net movement in tangible assets -               -               -               -               

-               -               -               -               

(80) (181) (261) (232)

20. Related party transactions

21. Material legacies

22. Prior year adjustments

There have been no prior year adjustments to the figures disclosed in these accounts.

Net movement in funds available for 
future transactions

During the year, none of the Board members of Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust, or members of
the key management staff, or parties related to them, has undertaken any material transactions with the
Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Charitable Fund. Board members take decisions both on Charity
and Trust matters but keep the interests of each discrete and do not benefit personally from such
decisions. Declarations of personal interest have been made and are available to be inspected by the
public.

Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust is the sole Corporate Trustee of the Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS
Trust Charitable Fund. The Trust acts through the Trust Board. Expenditure with Royal Cornwall
Hospitals NHS Trust in the year, in respect of capital purchases, training, research and management
costs amounted to £771,000 (2019-20: £750,000).

Included within creditors (see note 16) at the year end are amounts totalling £121,000 (2019: £33,000)
owed to Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust. As at 30 September 2020 the amount owed to Royal
Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust was £36,000 (30 September 2019: £157,000).

Legacy income is only included in incoming resources upon receipt, or where receipt is probable.

As at 31 March 2020, the Charity was not aware of any material legacies not included in the accounts
for the year. During the year amounts were received in respect of the two material legacies identified
but unaccounted for at 31 March 2019. A legacy of £132,000 was received in July 2019 and an interim
distribution of a second legacy of £27,000 was received in February 2020. 

Page 19
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23. Commitments

31 March 31 March

2020 2019

£000 £000

Grants to purchase Medical Capital Equipment 45                45                
12 Days of Christmas 2018 7                  15                
Phoenix Stroke Appeal equipment 36                57                
Innovation Fund support 17                18                
Clinical School including travel scholarship and grants 11                -               
Dragon's Den Award 24                -               
St Michael's Hospital Electronic Key Patient Lockers System 33                -               
Funding for Oncology Research Nurses Posts 73                -               
Contribution to Helston Birthing Centre -               25                
Outdoor seating/benches for The Cove & Mermaid Centre -               10                
Drying Cabinets for staff facilities -               7                  
Funding for Leukaemia Clinical Nurse Specialist -               83                
Cornwall Birth and Baby Appeal equipment -               44                
12 Days of Christmas 2017 -               7                  

246              311              

24. Post balance sheet events

Since 31 March 2020, the on-going COVID-19 pandemic has affected the Charity significantly, with
social distancing measures and lockdowns preventing the Charity from holding fundraising events. 

However the positive public response to the pandemic, both nationally and locally, has resulted in a
material increase in income to the Charity. Donations and grant income for the 6 month period to 30
September 2020 were £639,000, compared to £212,000 for the corresponding period in 2019.

The pandemic has also resulted in increased volatility in the Charity's investments. The outbreak of
COVID-19 and related global responses have caused material disruptions to businesses around the
world, leading to an economic slowdown. Global equity markets have experienced significant volatility
and weakness. 

The £1,835,000 fixed asset investments held at 31 March 2020 were invested in externally managed
funds. As at 30 September 2020 the value of these investments was £2,002,000, with the losses
experienced in the year to 31 March 2020 being more than recovered in the 6 month period following
the financial year end. However, with the pandemic continuing, there remains significant risk and
uncertainty regarding investment values.

The balance owed by the Charity to the Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust at 30 September 2020 was
£36,000.

No amendments have been made in these financial statements in respect of these post balance sheet
events. 
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As at 31 March 2020, the agents of the Corporate Trustee had approved the following items, which
were not transacted in the year and for which no provision is made in these financial statements:
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25. Other information

Page 21

The agents of the Corporate Trustee are included on a specific Directors and Officers liability insurance
policy.
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 Executive Summary 
 

Meeting: Quality Assurance Committee (to 
Trust Board in Public for 
Information) 

Date: 26.01.21 

Report Title: Ward to Board Report – November 
2020 data 

Agenda 
Item: 

10 iv 

Author: Louise Dickinson; Deputy Director of Nursing Midwifery and AHPs 
Director of Infection, Prevention and Control 

Executive Lead: Kim O’Keeffe; Deputy Chief Executive Officer RCHT, Interim Joint 
Director of Nursing Midwifery and AHPs RCHT / CFT 

 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives Tick box(es) 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

x 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

x 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

x 

  
Purpose of the Report  

Approve   Discuss  Note x 
The purpose of this report is to provide a monthly summary on quality and safety 
aspects of patient care by Care Group and to provide details of successes and any 
areas requiring improvements to be made 

  
Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
Monthly reports are presented to the Committee. The last quarterly report was 
presented in November 2020. 

  
Summary of key points  
There has been continued good performance in relation to pressure ulcer prevention.  
 
The number of falls reported in November 2020 have reduced however three falls 
resulted in n=moderate/severe harm. 
 
One ward triggered QuESTT in November 2020; Surgical Admissions Lounge and has 
an action plan in place, main areas for action being: 

 
• Recruitment of Ward Leader; 

 
• Reducing the number of vacancies; 
 
• Improving compliance with appraisals; 
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• Support with sickness management; 
 
• Support with the timely response and management of complaints; 

 
The eleven wards that have received white awards as part of the Aspire Ward 
Accreditation Programme have the Ward Climate Survey re-issued as this had been 
identified as an area where response rates were low. These have now been re-issued. 

 
Next Steps 
 
The Aspire ‘white’ Improvement Plans will continue to be implemented and monitored by 
Heads of Nursing with additional scrutiny provided by the Deputy Directors of Nursing 
Midwifery and AHPs. Any remaining clinical areas are to be accredited. 
 
Ward Climate Surveys from those wards who have received a white award to be re-
calculated and comments reviewed and feedback to the relevant Ward Leader and 
Clinical Matron. 
 
The pilot of the Mental Health accreditation tool is to be completed in January 2021. 
 
The Integrated Falls Improvement Plan will continue to be implemented with a focus on 
post fall huddles. 
 
The first meeting to discuss the development of Enhanced Care plan to take place on 19 
January 2021. 

 
The ward acuity and dependency review due to commence in January 2021. 
 
What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
Is the Committee assured that they are receiving the correct information as regards the 
quality metrics from the in-patient areas through the Care Groups and to Board? 
 
Key risks 
 
There has been an increase in the number of falls for the fourth consecutive month. The 
Integrated Falls Improvement Plan continues to be implemented with a current focus on 
post fall huddles. 
 
The current enhanced controls in relation to bank and agency are reviewed twice daily 
via the Safe Care Meeting; including current bed occupancy figures and operational 
pressures. All data reviewed at the weekly Operational Workforce Group. 
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Recommendations and reasons  
The Committee is recommended to: Note the report. 

  
 
Equality and Diversity 

Statement 
Potential impacts on vulnerable clients in particular the elderly 
as they are at increased risk of falls, pressure ulcers and 
infections. 
 

Environmental 
considerations 

 No direct implications.  
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Nursing and Midwifery Ward to Board Exception Report 

 
 

1. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Quality Assurance Committee with a 
monthly exception report on the Nursing and Midwifery Ward to Board Quality 
Framework.  
 
2. Background 

 
2.1 The Ward to Board dashboard monitors performance at a Ward / Unit, Care 
Group and Trust wide level. The main purpose of the dashboard is to: 
 
• Utilise key quality and safety metrics in relation to patients, nursing and staff 

safety; 
 

• Act as an early warning trigger by exposing individual ward performance that 
might be hidden within aggregated data; 

 
• Allow the Clinical Matrons to hold the Ward Leaders to account; 

 
• Allow the Heads of Nursing to hold the Senior Nurses to account; 

 
• Allow the Deputy Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health 

Professionals to hold the Care Group triumvirates to account for quality and 
safety through the Performance Framework; 

 
• Allow the Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals to 

hold the Clinical Cabinet to account for the quality and safety through the 
Performance Framework; 

 
• Allow the Trust Board of Directors to hold the Director of Nursing, Midwifery 

and Allied Health Care Professionals to account for the quality, safety and 
improvement/s at ward / unit level. 

 
The report provides a Trust wide overview of performance for August 2020. 
Comments will only be made on those areas where there have been sustained 
improvements or deterioration, or where the figure has been reported above or 
below the confidence levels. 
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3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 Safety 

 
3.1.1 Pressure Ulcers  

No pressure ulcers greater than category 2 were reported in November 
2020. 
 

 3.1.2 Hospital Acquired Thrombosis 
 

Despite 96% compliance with VTE assessment and 97% compliance 
with the prescribing of VTE prophylaxis, thirty two hospital acquired 
thrombosis were reported in November 2020. These are still under 
investigation as to whether any of these were avoidable. The Care 
Groups with the highest numbers are Specialist Medicine with an 
increase from 2 to 8, SMH with 5 and UET who have seen a continued 
increase over the last 3 months reporting 10 in November. 

   
The designated Quality Improvement Project aimed at reducing HAT 
and preventable HAT episodes continues to progress. The key areas of 
focus include:  
 

• Developing an agreed pathway for the appropriate management 
of patients who decline pharmacological VTE prophylaxis;  
 
Progress 
As a result of a recent piece of learning from an RCA, the 
avoidable HAT Team were able to commence a project 
regarding the care of patients who lack capacity who decline 
their prophylaxis. When a patient lacks capacity and they 
decline their VTE prophylaxis, they are declining without insight 
or capacity to do so. It is essential for all teams to be aware of 
this and ensure that when a patient lacks capacity they are 
appropriately assessed to act in their best interest or following 
the guidance set out in their Deprivation of Liberty Safeguard 
(DoLS) if they have one.  
 
As part of the QIP work is ongoing with Kerensa Ward by 
providing the team with a daily report of those patients that have 
not received their prophylaxis. This means that the Senior 
Nursing Team on Kerensa Ward can establish if this was an 
appropriate omission of prophylaxis, whether the times of the 
dose needs to be changed to increase compliance, or if the staff 
member needs education and training. Additionally it can prompt 
the dose to be given. It is anticipated that a positive impact on 
the number of declined doses will be noted in January 2021 
data. 
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• Investigating the current process for prophylaxis prescribing at 

admission to achieve NICE recommended target of all patients 
being administered first dose of prophylaxis within 14 hours of 
admission;  
 
Progress 
The EPMA Team and one of the acute medical physicians are 
reviewing the current data to ascertain how long patients are in 
hospital before receiving their first dose of anticoagulant. 
Preliminary findings suggest that this is often over 14 hours. The 
rationale for this is not yet known; therefore further investigation 
is taking place.  

 
• Implement a project that explores reasons for omitted doses;  

 
Progress 
This is currently in the planning stage. 

 
This Improvement Project will have oversight and scrutiny by the 
Incident Learning and Review Group. 

 
3.1.3 Falls 

 
The number of falls reported in November 2020 reduced to 75 which is 
the lowest position for 5 months. Significant improvement has been 
seen within the UET Care Group which has seen a reduction from 51 
falls in October 2020 to 30 in November 2020. The number of falls with 
moderate or severe harms reported in November 2020 was 3. These 
incidents occurred in the Specialist Medicine Care Group on Roskear 
Ward where the patient sustained a fractured neck of femur, one at 
West Cornwall Hospital on Medical Ward 2 where the patient sustained 
a head injury and one on St Michael’s Ward where the patient 
sustained a fractured neck of femur.  
 
The learning from these incidents includes: 

   
• One of the patients required line of sight supervision which was 

not provided due to the staff taking simultaneous breaks and not 
strategically managing breaks, this has been addressed; 

 
• Patient lost balance whilst sitting onto the toilet whilst using the 

incorrect walking aid. The walking aid should have been 
removed or placed outside of patients reach whilst the 
appropriate walking aid should have been available, the risk of 
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mobilising against therapy advice should have been made and 
documented clearly if not followed; 

 
• Failure to use the prescribed support for mobility which led to 

the patient fall, the escalation in the patients challenging 
behaviour with aggression as he felt overwhelmed and panicked 
which led to staff being more reluctant to approach in two’s. 

  
 Actions that are being taken in response include: 

 
• Trust wide delivery of Enhanced Care training commenced on 

13 January 2021; 
 

• Importance of documentation training provided to HCA and 
nursing staff on St Michaels Ward commenced on 6 January 
2021; 
 

• The Clinical Matron for SMH has review of staffing breaks at St 
Michaels and St Joseph’s Wards to ensure these are taken 
appropriately; 

 
• Post falls huddle training provided to both Trauma and St 

Michaels Ward. This is due to commence during January; 
 

• Training is due to be carried out on risk assessment and falls 
sensor provision to both Trauma and St Michaels Wards. This is 
expected to be completed by 15 March 2021; 

 
• A goal led Enhanced Care Plan is to be developed – first 

meeting to discuss is scheduled for 19 January 2021; 
 

• Training to be provided on fracture identification and post fall 
management to St Michaels Ward. This will be completed by 15 
March 2021; 

 
• The Associate Director for Mental Health and Learning 

Disabilities has been requested to support the increased 
visibility on the wards and Ward Rounds by the Complex Care 
and Dementia Team on the Elder Care Wards; 

 
• Training surrounding capacity and best interests is incorporated 

into the Enhanced Care Training programme which commenced 
in January. 
 

The Integrated CFT / RCHT Falls Improvement Plan continues to be 
implemented. 

 
 

3.1.5 QUESTT 
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The QuESTT tool offers a set of indicators that, taken together, give an 
indication of how well an individual team is functioning. Moreover, it 
provides an early warning, pre-empting more serious concerns and 
enabling action to be taken before things go wrong. A copy of the 
questions can be seen in Appendix 2. 
 
One ward triggered QuESTT in November 2020. This was: 
 

• The Surgical Admissions Lounge 
 
An action plan is in place with the main areas for action being: 
 

• Recruitment of Ward Leader; 
 

• Reducing the number of vacancies; 
 
• Improving compliance with appraisals; 

 
• Support with sickness management; 

 
• Support with the timely response and management of 

complaints. 
 

  
3.1.6 Nursing and Midwifery Workforce - Sickness 

 
The current Nursing and Midwifery sickness rate remains static at 5.6% 
in November 2020. 

 
Sickness levels remain static or continuing to fall across most of the 
Care Groups with the exception of WCH and SMH. WCH staff have 
been affected by COVID-19 as a result of an outbreak situation. 
Sickness rates at SMH have increased over the last three months from 
4.2% in August 2020 to 10.5% in November 2020. The majority of 
sickness is long term related and support has been requested from 
People Partners to support the Ward Leaders and Clinical Matron to 
see what action can be taken to ensure staff return to work as soon as 
possible.  

 
3.1.7. Nursing and Midwifery Agency Usage / Vacancies 

 
The number of nursing vacancies Trust wide was 130.65 WTE in 
October 2020 a slight decrease on the previous month from 158.25 
WTE. The average number of vacancies over the last 12 months was 
130.65 WTE compared to 225.2 WTE in the previous 12 months. The 
Care Group with the highest vacancies is the Urgent Emergency and 
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Trauma Care Group with 56.78 WTE an improvement on the previous 
month which was 66.4 WTE. The Care Group is taking a series of 
actions to improve their vacancies and have requested to over recruit 
Band 5 Registered Nurses in all areas but specifically Trauma Unit to 
assist in the creation of 28 beds being accessible at SMH.  
 
Agency usage remains static in November 2020. The highest usage 
been seen predominantly in the Urgent Emergency and Trauma Care 
Group although usage has declined in the Care Group for the third 
month in a row. The use of agency staff has been greatest in the 
Emergency Department and Acute Medical Unit which have the highest 
vacancies in the Care Group.  

 
 

The Director of Integrated Governance, who is currently overseeing 
operational issues and staffing whilst one of the Deputy Directors of 
Nursing is on long term sick leave, is due to commence the bi-annual 
nursing review scheduled to take place in January 2021. 

 
3.1.8 Patient Experience 

 
The Friends and Family Recommended, was 97.8% in November 2020 
across the Trust and remains within normal variation. The Trust wide 
response rate remains low due to FFT being suspended nationally. 
This recommenced nationally from December 2020. 

 
3.1.9 Complaints 
 

Complaint numbers remain within normal variation with 14 formal 
complaints reported in November 2020. The Integrated Director of 
Governance continues to work with the Joint Director of Nursing, 
Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals as regards the quality of Q 
and A of the complaint responses. 
 

3.1.10 Operational 
 

Morning discharge remains static at 10% - 11%. Improvements have 
been noted in the UET Care Group for the second month in 
succession. 

 
4. ASPIRE Ward Accreditation – White Improvement Action Plans 

 
Aspire V4 Ward Accreditation was suspended at the height of the COVID-10 
Pandemic. As the number of cases in hospitals reduced this important quality and 
safety process was re-introduced for the wards at RCHT.   
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Since July 2020, twenty five wards have been assessed; scores for twenty three 
of these have now been evaluated as follows:  
 
Ward Award Ward  Award 
ITU Silver CCU Bronze 
CIU Bronze Eden Bronze 
GLU Bronze Grenville Bronze 
Marie Therese Hs Bronze St Mawes Bronze 
Theatre Direct Bronze Trauma Bronze 
Wellington Bronze Kynance Bronze 
AMU White Kerensa White 
Med 1 White Med 2 White 
Pendennis White Phoenix White 
SAL White St Josephs White 
Tintagel White Wheal Prosper White 
St Michael’s  White   
 
As reported in previous papers the Deputy Director of Nursing Midwifery and 
AHPs at the request of the Director of Nursing Midwifery and AHPs, reviewed the 
findings of those wards with a white accreditation and  identified that one domain 
of the Accreditation Framework – Ward Climate Survey a questionnaire that 
evaluates team cohesiveness - had limited returns (with the exception of SAL). 
The importance of this element of the accreditation has been highlighted in two 
sessions delivered to the ward leaders/matrons for these wards on 1 and 4 
December 2020.  
 
The survey has since been re-issued to these wards with a personalised letter 
from the Ward Leader and the questionnaire has been reviewed to add some 
explanations in order to support staff answer correctly. The results are currently 
being evaluated. Four of these wards are within the UET Care Group and the 
Deputy Director of Nursing has met with the Head of Nursing and the Director of 
Integrated Governance (who is currently overseeing operational issues and 
staffing whilst one of the Deputy Directors of Nursing is on long term sick leave) 
to see what additional support can be offered to the areas. The focus of the 
meeting was on AMU and a number of suggestions were put forward in terms of 
leadership on the unit which are being supported. A further meeting has been 
arranged on 2 February 2021 to discuss the remaining three areas. 

 
Cornwall Foundation Trust 
Seven wards have now undergone the Aspire Accreditation process within the 
Community Hospitals. Three have been accredited bronze, two white with the 
other two areas waiting for final documents to be received. The remaining wards 
were due to be completed early in December 2020. Unfortunately due to some of 
the wards having outbreaks and not all staff being available to undertake the 
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accreditation these have not yet been completed. Now that there is a further 
national lockdown Accreditation is suspended until the end of February 2021.   
 
The accreditation tool for the Mental Health acute in-patient wards has now been 
completed and is due to be piloted on Harvest and Carbis Wards by the end of 
January 2021. If successful this will be rolled out across the acute in patient 
Mental Health wards by end of March 2021. 

 
 
5. Conclusion 

There has been continued good performance in relation to pressure ulcer 
prevention.  
 
The number of falls reported in November 2020; have reduced, however three 
falls resulted in moderate/severe harm. These incidents occurred on Roskear 
Ward, Medical Ward 2 and St Michael’s Ward. 
 
One ward triggered QuESTT in November 2020; Surgical Admissions Lounge 
and has an action plan in place, main areas for action being: 
 

• Recruitment of Ward Leader; 
 

• Reducing the number of vacancies; 
 
• Improving compliance with appraisals; 

 
• Support with sickness management. 

 
• Support with the timely response and management of 

complaints. 
 
The eleven wards that have received white awards as part of the Aspire Ward 
Accreditation Programme have the Ward Climate Survey re-issued as this had 
been identified as an area where response rates were low. These have now been 
re-issued. 
 

6. Recommendations and Next Steps 
 

The Aspire ‘white’ Improvement Plans will continue to be implemented and 
monitored by Heads of Nursing with additional scrutiny provided by the Deputy 
Directors of Nursing Midwifery and AHPs. Any remaining clinical areas are to be 
accredited. 
 
Ward Climate Surveys from those wards who have received a white award to be 
re-calculated and comments reviewed and feedback to the relevant Ward Leader 
and Clinical Matron. 
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The pilot of the Mental Health accreditation tool is to be completed in January 
2021. 
 
The Integrated Falls Improvement Plan will continue to be implemented with a 
focus on post fall huddles. 
 
The first meeting to discuss the development of Enhanced Care plan to take 
place on 19 January 2021. 

 
The ward acuity and dependency review due to commence in January 2021. 

 
The Committee is requested to note the content of the report. 
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Appendix 1 Ward to Board Dashboard 
 

Page 170 of 294



14 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 171 of 294



15 
 

 

Page 172 of 294



 

 
16 

 

Question  Guidance Score 
New Ward / Unit Leader in post (< 6 

months) 
     3 

Vacancy rate higher that 3%  3 

Unfilled shifts higher that 6%  2 

Sickness absence higher that 3.5%  2 

Quality indicators have not been reviewed 
by speciality governance group 

It the ward’s Ward to Board and 
QUANT results were not reported into 

the last Speciality Governance 
Meeting, score Yes 

If this did happen last month, score 
No.  

NB: there should be evidenced 
meeting minutes available on request. 

3 

Planned annual appraisal rate below 95% 
target  

Below 95%, score Yes 
95.01% or greater, score No 

2 

No participation by Ward/Unit Leader at 
Care Group meetings 

If no participation, score Yes 
If they did participate, score No 

2 

Friends and Family Test feedback has not 
reached target level this last month 

If it did not reach target level, score 
Yes 

If it did achieve or exceed the target, 
score No 

2 

One or more formal complaints in 
CCU/ITU); two or more formal complaints 

last month (Wards); or three or more 
(ED/OPD) 

If complaint(s) in the last month, score 
Yes. 

3 

Resolution to recurring themes not 
evident (e.g. staffing, harms, compliance, 

complaints) 

If performance target for improvement 
are not improving, score Yes. 

3 

Unusual demand on service exceeding 
capacity to deliver (e.g. TES evoked, 

queuing experienced, dedicated 
escalation areas open) 

 2 

Hand hygiene audits not performed If not performed, score Yes 3 

No participation by clinical staff in Mitie 
cleaning audit 

If no participation by clinical staff, 
score Yes. 

3 

Ward / Department appears cluttered and 
untidy 

 2 

Effective multidisciplinary team working 
not evident (e.g. SAFER, ward round 

participation and communication) 

If examples of MDT working 
are not evident, score Yes. 

This maybe evident in complaints, 
serious incident investigations, poor 

audit performance in SAFER. 

1 

Ongoing investigation (e.g. Serious 
Incidence, Root Cause Analysis, HR 

disciplinary procedure) 

 2 

 

Appendix 2 QuESTT questions 
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 Executive Summary 
 

Meeting: Trust Board in Public Agenda Item: 11 
Report Title: Kickstart Scheme 

Date: 04 February 2021 
Author: Debby Lewis, Project Manager for Future Workforce 

Executive Lead: Kerry Eldridge, HROD Director 
 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives Tick 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

  

  
Purpose of the Report  

Approve    Discuss   Note  
This report outlines the introduction of the Governments Covid -19 employment 
response scheme - Kickstart Scheme which is funded through the DWP. The Trust 
will be the lead ‘Gateway’ organisation for the scheme which offers health and social 
care placements across the CIOS health and social care sector. 
  
Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
CFT and RCHT People Committees, RCHT Clinical Cabinet meetings, CIOS Health 
and Care Academy Steering Group, Workforce Implementation Group and Proud to 
Care Steering group & Proud to Care L&D sub group. Agreement to participate in the 
scheme and have a health and care sector offer. 
  
Summary of key points  
Kickstart is part of the government’s post covid-19 employment incentive response. It 
is a scheme creating new jobs for young people aged 16-24 who are on universal 
credit and at risk of long term un-employment. The aim is to create nationally 
hundreds of thousands of new, fully subsidised fixed-term jobs (25 hrs/week for up to 
6 months) for young people across the country, the scheme will run until Dec 2021. 
The scheme is not designed to fill existing vacancies but to create new roles which 
can lead into more permanent employment. Used creatively this offers an 
opportunity for a young person to experience working in health and care and become 
part of our future workforce. 
 
Kickstart Scheme Details  
• The roles  funded by the scheme are fixed term for six months and are open 

to those aged 16-24 who are claiming universal credit and at risk of long-term 
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unemployment.  
• It is expected that these posts will lead to permanent roles or equip the 

participant to apply for vacant posts. 
• The funding available for each newly created job will cover 100 per cent of the 

relevant National Minimum Wage (up to £6,500) for 25 hours a week, plus the 
associated employer National Insurance contributions and employer minimum 
automatic enrolment contributions. Employers may employ at a higher rate  

• £1500 per job is also allocated for setup costs, support, and training. 
• RCHT has been accepted as the Gateway employer for the Kickstart Scheme 

across the health and social care system and as such will receive £300 per 
work placement that it facilitates to cover expenses. Placements within RCHT 
will not accrue this £300. 

• The bid applied for was to provide 148 placements initially with the option of 
applying for more. 

• RCHT has offered 55 placements 
 
Per Standing Orders, the Board is required to approve bids of over £1m. The value 
of the grant is £1.131m 
 
What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
The Board are asked to approve the implementation of the scheme 
  
Key risks 
The implementation of this scheme will support the recruitment of the future 
workforce from the local community. If this is not approved there is a risk that the 
Trust will continue to maintain a high vacancy rate. 
  
Recommendations and reasons  
The Board is recommended to: 
• approve acceptance of the grant for the Kickstart Scheme at a value of £1.131m 

   
 
 
 
Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

This scheme will support the Trust to increase the number 
of young people it employs which will positively increase 
the diversity of the workplace.  
 

Environmental 
considerations 

No direct implications 
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Using the Kickstart Scheme to Develop our future workforce 
 
1. Purpose  
 
1.1 Kickstart is part of the government’s post covid-19 employment incentive 

response. It is a scheme creating new jobs for young people aged 16-24 who 
are on universal credit and at risk of long term unemployment. The aim is to 
create hundreds of thousands of new, fully subsidised fixed-term jobs (25 
hours/week for up to 6 months) for young people across the country, the 
scheme will run until Dec 2021. The scheme is not designed to fill existing 
vacancies but to create new roles which can lead into more permanent 
employment. Used creatively this offers an opportunity for a young person to 
experience working in health and care and become part of our future 
workforce. 

 
2. Background and Links to Previous Papers 
 
2.1 The unemployment rate in Cornwall for young people has significantly increased 

(~50%) since Covid-19 lockdown in March 2020.  There is a risk of becoming 
long-term unemployed and the scheme is designed to get young people into the 
workplace and open up new career pathways and to develop our future local 
workforce. 

2.2 This scheme has been discussed in the Clinical Cabinet meetings, CFT People 
Committee, CIOS Health and Care Academy Steering Group, Workforce 
Implementation Group and Proud to Care Steering group & Proud to Care L&D 
sub group. It was agreed that the scheme was in line with workforce plans; it 
could help bring new people into the health and care workforce, including those 
without qualifications and experience enabling them to gain work skills and 
experience as well as providing insights to working in health and care for those 
who had not though of working in the sector. 

2.3 The scheme aligns well to bringing through potential future workforce and to the 
social economic responsibilities of being an anchor institution and key employer 
in Cornwall and Isles of Scilly (CIOS). 

  
 
3. Executive Summary 
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3.1 The scheme provides access to a potential workforce who would not have 
considered working in health and social care or deemed themselves unable to 
apply for roles due to lack of experience or qualifications. This project enables 
young people to apply for basic supernumerary roles across the health and care 
sector as a stepping stone to applying for substantive vacant posts, 
apprenticeships or progressing to other training. While on the placement the 
young person will receive work-related training which is required to fulfill the role 
safely, receive employability skills training for example interview skills and how 
to complete a quality job application. For those without level 2 literacy and 
numeracy they will be supported to work towards attaining their level 2 functional 
skills. Where practical opportunities to gain other core skills to increase future 
employability such as Care certificate will be included. At the end of the 
placement the young person will have increased their knowledge, skills and 
qualifications to the standard required to apply for roles within the sector. They 
gain a reference and guaranteed interview for those meeting the selection 
criteria for roles.  

3.2 An employer to participate must offer a minimum of 30 placements. Employers 
who cannot offer 30 places can work with a Gateway employer (RCHT) so 
collectively the numbers reach the minimum requirements. The employers 
working with RCHT include Cornwall Partnership FT, NHS Kernow CCG, 
Kernow Health CIC, University of Plymouth, 2 General Practices, Cornwall 
Partners in Care, Cornwall Adult Health & Social Care learning partnership and 
11 care providers. The offer includes 30 different roles and 148 placements. We 
can make further submissions adding employers and roles and additional 
placements (min 30 placements) at any time during the lifetime of the Kickstart 
scheme (31/12/2021). Participants must commence before the 31/12/2021 but 
the placement can run to completion after this date.   

3.3 If a participant leaves a placement it can be re-offered to a new participant as 
long as we are within the total approved numbers. 

3.4 While the schemes states any employer may participate currently only those that 
are a statutory body or have a company or charity registration number are being 
approved. Employers that are Partnerships (GP’s) or sole traders (care 
providers) can still participate but would require one of the approved employer to 
act as the host employer and second the participants to them.   

3.5 The roles offered can cover any area clinical and non clinical. 
 
3.2 Financial Considerations  

This is a low risk as the DWP will provide funding to employers covering the age 
related minimum wage and employment costs -national insurance and employer 
minimum automatic enrolment contributions (NEST scheme) for 25hours/week 
for up to the 6 months. In addition there is a one off payment of £1,500 per 
participant to cover other costs/education support.  
In addition, as the Gateway for the scheme RCHT will receive £300 for each 
external placement (93 places if all placed total £27,900) 
Additional costs to the Trust would be  

• If the Trust employs at a higher salary the difference between that rate and age 
related minimum wage is a direct cost to the Trust. 

• If the individual works more than 25 hrs/ week the additional hours are paid by 
the employer 
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• The difference between the NEST minimum employer contribution and any 

employer scheme.   
 

The Trust will facilitate the financial processes of the 148 placements. That is all 
funds will be paid to RCHT a month in arrears and the Gateway responsibility is 
to pass funding to employers. The Trust can afford this from a cash perspective, 
as confirmed with the Deputy Director of Finance. The value of this agreement 
will vary depending on the age, number of participants and length of time in the 
scheme.  
The maximum grant per participant is £7648.80 (based wage for participant 
aged 25). This would equate to  
• Salary contribution - £7648.80 x 148 =  £1,132,022.40 (actual depends on 

participant age + employer costs)   
• Support grant £1500 x 148 = £222,000  
• Gateway support  £300 x 93 external placements  = £27,900 
• Total value £1,381,922.40 
• RCHT amount up to £725,184.00 

 
3 Areas of Risk 

The implementation of this scheme will support the recruitment of young people 
and development of the future workforce from the local community. If this is not 
approved there is a risk of :- 

• Long term unemployment of local young people and the wider 
associated health, economic and social impacts.  

• Loss of opportunity to attract a new workforce to health and care 
• Loss of opportunity to support a system approach to developing future 

workforce. 
• Continuation of high vacancy rates in the Trust and wider system. 

  
4 Link to Trust Objectives and Corporate/Board Assurance Framework Risks  

The scheme aligns with the Trust objective in developing our future local 
workforce; it could provide a pathway in to the STP Nurse Associate/Nurse 
expansion project. It aligns with the HEE / Prince Trust initiative to bring young 
disadvantage people into the work place, the ESF health works project and our 
commitments as an anchor institution as a local employer contributing social 
economic progression across CIOS. 
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5 Governance  

The scheme will be audited by the DWP to ensure the grant agreement is being 
adhered to. 

 
6 Responsibility 

The Scheme will be managed by the Project Manager for Future Workforce with 
support for CIOS Health and Care Academy Principal and oversight from the 
HROD Director. 

 
8. Recommendations 

The Board is requested to approve acceptance of the grant for the Kickstart 
Scheme at a value of £1.131m 

 
 
Name and Title of Author: Debby Lewis, Project Manager for Future Workforce 
Date: 11 January 2021 
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 Executive Summary 
  

Meeting: Trust Board In Public 
 

Date: 04.02.21 

Report Title: Assurance Report – Ockenden 
Review Report  
 

Agenda 
Item: 

12 

Author: Jon Clarke; Clinical Director  
Jane Urben; Head of Midwifery 
 

Executive Lead: Kim O’Keeffe; Deputy CEO RCHT / Joint Director of Nursing, 
Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals RCHT / CFT 

  
Purpose of 
Report 

Approve  Endorse  Assurance  Receive  

 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

 

  
Summary of other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
• Maternity Governance Meeting 
• Obstetric and Gynaecology Speciality Meeting  
• Women, Children and Sexual Health Care Group Board 
• The report will also be reviewed at the Local Maternity Services (LMS) Board 

 
  
Summary of the report, key points for discussion including any risks: 
The purpose of this paper is to provide assurance of RCHTS’s Maternity Services 
position in relation to the findings and recommendations of the first Ockenden 
Report; Emerging findings and recommendations from the independent review of 
Maternity services at the Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust; December 
2020. 
 
The evidence provided should enable board scrutiny and discussion to assure that 
poor care and avoidable deaths without visibility or learning is unlikely to happen in 
this organisation. 
 
Additional enhancements are required in six of the essential and immediate 
standards to meet full compliance with the Ockenden Review recommendations. A 
comprehensive action plan (assurance tool) details the actions and time frames. 
 
What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
Is the assurance evidence described effective in enabling confidence that poor care 
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and avoidable deaths without visibility or learning is unlikely to happen in Royal 
Cornwall Hospitals Trust Maternity Services?  
  
Recommendation  
The Board is recommended to: 
 
• discuss and reflect on, in light of the Ockenden Review report, whether the 

assurance mechanisms within the Trust are effective and whether the Board is 
assured, with the local maternity system (LMS), that poor care and avoidable 
deaths without visibility or learning is unlikely to happen in Royal Cornwall 
Hospitals Trust Maternity Services  

• note RCHT’s response in December 2020 to the essential and immediate actions 
required of Trust’s 

• note the further required actions to reach compliance with the Ockenden Review 
recommendations and the action plan (assurance tool) at Appendix Two that will 
be submitted by the deadline of 15 February 2021  

 
 
Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

The clinical care discussed in this paper affects families 
and in particular babies and their parents. The benefits of 
implementing these standards stretch across all diversities 
within the Equalities Act. 
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1. Executive Summary 
 
The purpose of this paper is to provide assurance of RCHTS’s maternity services 
position in relation to the findings and recommendations of the first Ockenden report; 
Emerging findings and recommendations from the independent review of Maternity 
services at the Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust; December 2020 
(Appendix One). This evidence provided should enable board scrutiny and 
discussion to assure that poor care and avoidable deaths without visibility or learning 
is unlikely to happen in this organisation. 
 
 
2. Background  

 
The Ockenden Review into maternity services at the Shrewsbury and Telford 
Hospital NHS Trust was commissioned in 2017 after two sets of parents who had 
both lost children through avoidable medical errors, raised concerns about care.  
 
The inquiry into deaths and allegations originally focused on 23 cases, but since 
commencement of the review many more families have come forward and now the 
review is examining 1,862 cases. These cases include stillbirths, neonatal deaths, 
maternal deaths, hypoxic ischaemic encephalopathy (HIE) (grades 2 and 3- brain 
injury) and other severe complications in mothers and newborn babies.  
 
The Ockenden Review report highlighted seven immediate and essential actions 
(IEAs) for all maternity services.  
 
On 14 December 2020 the Trust was asked to confirm full implementation of these 
IEAs, with 12 urgent clinical priorities detailed. An assurance letter, (Appendix Two) 
was submitted on the 21 December 2020 to NHS/I/E.  
 
A supplementary assurance assessment tool (Appendix3) has been devised to 
assist providers to further evidence assurance; this submission is to be made by 15 
February 2021 and will follow the same approval process as our previous 
submission. 
 
Evidence of assurance for each of the 7 IEAs is detailed together with a clear plan 
for further action or resource if required in Appendix One 
 
3. Analysis: Immediate and Essential Actions to Improve Care and Safety 

in    Maternity Services 
 
1. Standard Required: Safety in maternity units across England must be 

strengthened by increasing partnerships between Trusts and within local 
networks.  

Neighbouring Trusts must work collaboratively to ensure that local investigations 
into Serious Incidents (SIs) have regional and Local Maternity System (LMS) 
oversight.  An LMS cannot function as one maternity service alone.  
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All maternity SI reports (and a summary of the key issues) must be sent to the 
Trust 

Board and at the same time to the local LMS for scrutiny, oversight and 
transparency  

every 3 months. 
 

Further enhancements to the actions to be taken to achieve and sustain full 
compliance: 

 
• All Maternity serious incidents and learning is currently shared through the 

Cornwall and Isles of Sicily LMS.  A formal approach is being made to the 
Devon Maternity LMS to join the Cornwall Maternity LMS to meet this 
requirement. 

 
• All Maternity Serious Incidents reports are currently reviewed by the Trusts 

Incident Review and Learning Group through to the Quality Assurance 
Committee. From March 2021 these will report directly to the Trust Board in 
full as part of an overall Maternity Services Report. This will include a monthly 
dashboard report to be reviewed by the Board of Directors. 

• The business intelligence team will support the additional reporting 
requirements for the existing Maternity dashboard. 
 
 

2. Standard Required: Listening to Women and Families Standard Required-
Maternity services must ensure that women and their families are listened to with 
their voices heard. 
 

• Trusts must create an independent senior advocate role  
• The advocate must be available to families attending follow up meetings 

with clinicians where concerns about maternity or neonatal care are 
discussed, particularly where there has been an adverse outcome  

•  Each Trust Board must identify a non-executive director who has 
oversight of maternity services 

• Maternity services must ensure that women and their families are listened 
to with their voices heard. 

 
Further enhancements to the action: 

 
• The national Independent advocacy job profile is being developed by NHSE/I, 

implementation of the role will be undertaken once further details provided.  

• Embed all elements of the role of the Non- executive Safety Champion into 
the service as per national role descriptor guidance.  
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3. Standard Required: Staff training and working together, Staff who work 
together must train together.  
 

• Trusts must ensure that multidisciplinary training and working occurs 
and must provide evidence of it. This evidence must be externally 
validated through the LMS, 3 times a year.  

• Multidisciplinary training and working together must always include 
twice daily (day and night through the 7-day week) consultant-led  

• Trusts must ensure that any external funding allocated for the training 
of maternity staff, is ring-fenced and that any MIS refund is used 
exclusively for improving maternity safety and used for this purpose 
only.  

 
Further enhancements to the action 
 

• The Consultant ward round times are being amended to reflect the 
standards required and will require investment of £30,000 to 
implement which is being taken through the Care Group. 
 

4. Standard Required: Managing Complex Pregnancy Standard 
 
There must be robust pathways in place for managing women with complex 
pregnancies through the development of links with the tertiary level Maternal 
Medicine Centre there must be agreement reached on the criteria for those 
cases to be discussed and /or referred to a maternal medicine specialist 
centre. 
 
Women with complex pregnancies must have a named consultant lead.  
 
Where a complex pregnancy is identified, there must be early specialist 
involvement and management plans agreed between the woman and the 
team.  
 
The development of maternal medicine specialist centres as a regional hub 
and spoke model must be an urgent national priority to allow early discussion 
of complex maternity cases with expert clinicians. 
 
Further enhancements to the action 

 
• Pathways need to be written and embedded into the current published local 

guidelines.  Audits required for key pathways to ensure compliance with 
guidelines which will be incorporated into the Audit programme and reported 
through to the Maternity Governance meeting. 
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5. Standard required: Risk assessment throughout pregnancy: Staff must 
ensure that women undergo a risk assessment at each contact 
throughout the pregnancy pathway.  

 
• All women must be formally risk assessed at every antenatal contact 

so that they have continued access to care provision by the most 
appropriately trained professional.  

• Risk assessment must include ongoing review of the intended place of 
birth, based on the developing clinical picture.  

 
Further enhancements to the action 

 
• To ensure that each personalised care plan is updated at each antenatal 

appointment. A robust process for auditing compliance will be put in place.  
Further training for this element of care planning is required to ensure is fully 
embedded at each contact. 

• A database will be developed for all women with a care plan outside of 
guidelines.  

• A monthly audit will be undertaken and reported through the Maternity 
Governance meeting. 
 
 

6. Standard required: Monitoring fetal wellbeing; all maternity services must appoint 
a dedicated Lead Midwife and Lead Obstetrician both with demonstrated 
expertise to focus on and champion best practice in fetal monitoring. 
 
The Leads must be of sufficient seniority and demonstrated expertise to ensure 
they are able to effectively lead on:  
 
• Improving the practice of monitoring fetal wellbeing  
• Consolidating existing knowledge of monitoring fetal well being 
• Keeping abreast of developments in the field 
• Raising the profile of fetal wellbeing monitoring  
• Ensuring that colleagues engaged in fetal wellbeing monitoring are 

adequately supported o Interfacing with external units and agencies to learn 
about and keep abreast of developments in the field, and to track and 
introduce best practice. 

• The Leads must plan and run regular departmental fetal heart rate (FHR) 
monitoring meetings and cascade training. 

• They should also lead on the review of cases of adverse outcome involving 
poor FHR interpretation and practice.  

• The Leads must ensure that their maternity service is compliant with the 
recommendations of Saving Babies Lives Care Bundle and subsequent 
national guidelines.  

 
Further enhancements to the action 

 
• Obstetric Lead Role to be recruited into to support Lead Midwife; 
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• Commence reporting of Saving Baby Lives Care Bundle reporting 
requirements through to the Trust Board through the monthly Maternity 
Services Safety Report  
 

 
7. Standard Required: Informed Consent: All Trusts must ensure women 

have ready access to accurate information to enable their informed 
choice of intended place of birth and mode of birth, including maternal 
choice for caesarean delivery.  

 
• All maternity services must ensure the provision to women of 

accurate and contemporaneous evidence-based information as 
per national guidance.  

• This must include all aspects of maternity care throughout the 
antenatal, intrapartum and postnatal periods of care  

•  Women must be enabled to participate equally in all decision-
making processes and to make informed choices about their care.  

• Women’s choices following a shared and informed decision-
making process must be respected 

 
Further enhancements to the action 
 
None. 

 
 
8. Workforce : Standard Required : Can you demonstrate an effective 

system of  Midwifery workforce planning to the required standard for 
midwifery and clinical  
 

 
Further Action required 
 
• Requirements for 7 day consultant ward rounds, and foetal monitoring lead. The 

maternity service has bench marked against the recommendations and attached 
is the progress and action plan.  Many of the actions link to the CNST 10 safety 
actions for compliance with the NHSR requirements. 

 
In addition the following is required:  
Leadership confirmation that your Directors/Head of Midwifery is responsible and 
accountable to an Executive Director and describe how your organisation meets the 
maternity leadership requirements set out by the Royal College of Midwives 
 
Our Head of Midwifery is directly responsible and accountable to the Director 
of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Care Professionals and is a strong 
midwifery voice within the nursing workforce. The full evidence in relation to 
this statement is included in Appendix Two. 
 
 
4.   Resource/legal/financial/reputation implications 
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• Investment is required to support an uplift in Consultant cover to ensure twice 
weekly ward rounds 7 days a week and for the medical fetal monitoring lead; 
 

• There are reputational implications if the Trust is not fully compliant with the 
seven Immediate and Essential Actions due to the potential for variation in 
experience and outcomes for women and their families; 

 
• Trust Boards will be expected to robustly assess and challenge the provided 

assurance evidence so consideration is recommended to the utilisation of Internal 
Audit to provide independent assurance; 

 
• Business Intelligence support required to enhance Maternity  Board dashboard 

and ensure data quality submission to support Maternity Incentive Scheme 
 
 

4. Link to BAF/Key risks 
 
Brilliant Care 

• BC1.5: Work with our health and care system to improve the health of our 
community; 

• BC 1.1: Provide care that is safe and avoids harm. 
 

Brilliant Improvement 
• BI3.1: Ensure that everyone has the capability and capacity to pursue quality 

improvements for our patients 
 
5. Recommendation  
It is proposed that the Board of Directors reflects on whether the assurance evidence 
described is effective in enabling confidence that poor care and avoidable deaths 
without visibility or learning is unlikely to happen in Royal Cornwall Hospitals Trust 
Maternity Services and approve the further required actions to reach compliance. 
 
Authors: 
Jon Clarke, Consultant Obstetrician, Maternity Safety Champion; 
Jane Urben, Head of Midwifery, Maternity Safety Champion  
 
Amended: 
Bernadette George – Director of Integrated Governance 
Kim O’Keeffe – Interim Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health 
Professionals 
 
Approved: 
Kim O’Keeffe – Interim Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health 
Professionals 
 
Date: 27 January 2021 
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Chief Executive Office 
Truro 

Cornwall 
TR1 3LJ 

 
Tel: 01872 252902 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

21 December 2020 
 
 
To:  Regional Chief Midwife  
 
 
 
 
RCHT Response to OCKENDEN REVIEW OF MATERNITY SERVICES – URGENT 
ACTIONS   
 
The Ockenden Report: Emerging Findings and Recommendations from the Independent 
Review of Maternity Services at the Shrewsbury and Telford Hospitals NHS Trust have been 
considered by the Trust and we have taken steps to bench-mark the Royal Cornwall Hospitals 
NHS Trust against the 12 urgent clinical priorities.    
 
I have attached the action plan for your information.  
 
 

1. Enhanced Safety  
 
a) We await the further guidance on this action but are assured that perinatal deaths 

and brain injury are reviewed with the Perinatal Mortality Tool with independent 
scrutiny from staff from the Royal Bath Hospital.   

b) All SIs are reported to and investigated by the HSIB and a robust action plan and 
learning is in place. All are reported to the Board through the Trust’s governance 
process. 

 
2. Listening to Women and Families  

 
a) The Trust works with the Maternity Voices Partnership and other service users to 

co-produce local maternity services. 
b) The Trust has in place an Executive Director with a specific responsibility for 

maternity services and a Non-Executive Director who supports the Board Safety 
Champion.  We understand that further guidance on extended the remit of this role 
will be produced shortly. 

 

3.  Staff Training and Working Together  
 

a) There is a twice daily integrated consultant led labour ward rounds (over 24 hours) 
and 7 days per week.  
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b) The Trust has a robust multi-professional training schedule in place and joint multi-
disciplinary training.   

c) Funding for maternity staff training is ring-fenced and any CNST Maternity 
Incentive Scheme and CNST Maternity Incentive Scheme (MIS) refund is used 
exclusively for improving maternity safety. 
 

4.  Managing complex pregnancy  
 

a) All women with complex pregnancy have a named consultant lead, and a 
mechanisms to audit compliance is in place. 

b) Pathways for the development of maternal medicine specialist centres are in place 
and women with complex medical conditions requiring specialist care are referred 
and jointly managed through the regional maternal medicine centre.  

 
5. Risk Assessment throughout pregnancy  
 

a) Risk assessments are completed and recorded at every contact and include 
ongoing review and discussion of intended place of birth. Regular auditing of the 
Personalised Care and Support Plan has now been put in place as part of this 
action plan.  

 
6. Monitoring Fetal Wellbeing  
 

a) The Saving Babies Lives Care Bundle is in place. We have a Lead Midwife in place 
and this role has been embedded over several years.  We do not currently have a 
second Consultant Lead in place but there is an immediate action for this to be 
addressed.    

 
7. Informed Consent  
 

a) The Trust has pathways of care clearly described, in written information in formats 
consistent with NHS policy and posted on the trust website.   Women have access 
to information leaflets and guidelines.  

 
I can confirm that the Trust’s Maternity Service is compliant with all 7 Immediate and Essential 
Actions (IEAs).  Whilst some are RAG rated amber at this stage this is due to further 
embedding of audit processes and the assurance provided as we move forward. 
 
Action 6 is partially compliant as we do not currently have an Obstetric Lead for Fetal 
Monitoring and this is being addressed urgently. 
 
Yours sincerely  

    

Kate Shields     Kim O’Keeffe  
Chief Executive Officer  Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and 

Allied Health Professional RCHT / CFT 
 
Encl. 
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OCKENDEN REVIEW OF MATERNITY 
SERVICES.   January 2021

Please use in conjunction with the 
Maternity services assessment and 
assurance tool. This action plan links 
closely with the CNST action plan and 
SBLV2 action plan.

Key                                                              Red - 
not compliant.   Amber -Implemented but not 
reviewed or partial compliant  Green - fully 
compliant  

Section 1

Immediate and Essential Action 1: 
Enhanced Safety. Linked to CNST 
standards 1, 2 & 10.

What do we have in place currently to 
meet all requirements of IEA 1?

Describe how we are using this measurement 
and reporting to drive improvement?

How do we know that our improvement 
actions are effective and that we are learning 
at system and trust level?

What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resource or 
support do 
we need?

How will mitigate 
risk in the short 
term?

Rag

Clinical change where 
required must be embedded 
across Trusts with regional 
clinical oversight in a timely 
way. Trusts must be able to 
provide evidence of this 
through structured reporting 
mechanisms e.g. through 
maternity dashboards. This 
must be a formal item on 
LMS agendas at least every 3 
months.

Large scale change (continuity of care for 
example) is discussed at maternity governance 
meetings, care group meetings,  specialty 
meetings. LMNS meetings and IRLG meetings. 
Staff consultations take place if required and staff 
supported by union representatives and 
Professional Midwifery Advocate role . Quality 
Improvement methodology is applied to many of 
the changes implemented and supported by the 
Trust's QI programme.

Ongoing staff consultations allow staff time to consider changes 
and present feedback. Feedback then taken to said meetings 
and discussion had. Ongoing team meetings ensure feedback 
obtained. Smaller change management projects are discussed 
at Maternity Forum monthly and Pulse meeting (weekly manager 
meeting with MVP attendance) and discussed with relevent 
teams with joint actions produced. Minutes of meetings and 
action plans.

Discussed within LMNS to enable wider feedback from 
other services. There has been joint working with the LMNS 
where changes to the maternity service has been 
implemented. HoM reports and discusses change within the 
maternity safety champion meeting.  Monthly HoM 
newsletter provides update and information to staff.

Continue current actions J Urben/Senior 
Team

On-going 
transformation 
and 
Improvement is 
reliant on 
adequate and 
sustainable 
funding

Continue Green

All maternity SI reports (and a summary of 
the key issues) must be sent to the Trust 
Board and at the same time to the local LMS 
for scrutiny, oversight and transparency. 
This must be done at least every 3 months

All HSIB cases are reported and shared at patient 
safety meetings and maternity governance 
meetings

All maternity SIs are shared with Trust boards at 
least monthly and the LMS, in addition to reporting 
as required to HSIB. HSIB findings and themes 
shared with staff

Discussed in patient safety meetings

Meet quarterly with HSIB. Have had feedback 
from HSIB thanking us for our openness towards 
HSIB and investigations.

Clear actions from meetings which include feedback for staff 
an/or changes in service/guidelines . HSIB action plan/themes 
shared with all staff as well as LMS & Trust board.

All Maternity Serious Incidents are shared with Trust via 
IRLG. The Governance report is taken through to the 
QAC meeting by executive lead the Director of Nursing, 
Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals.   HSIB 
themes and learning and a quarterly governance report 
is shared with the LMS Board and normally presented by 
the Head of Midwifery.  A detailed action plan is 
discussed at the maternity governance meetings, Care 
Group Board and IRLG.    All SI are shared with KCCG 
via SI Reporting Procedures inc'LMS PMO. A joint QA 
committee of KCCG and RCHT has oversight of all SI. 
Standing agenda item on LMS Board as an annual 
report or by exception. LMS Safe and Effective 
Maternity Care work stream is responsible for collating 
and monitoring the relevant data and action plans.                               
Strengthen reporting and shared learning process within 
LMS by formaising as a monthly agenda item at LMS 
SEC and LMS board. Refresh and align governance of 
LMS to establish Quality Surveillance, as a core function,  
within the ICS as it develops.

Ensure continued sharing 
at LMS board/LMS safe 
and effective care 
meetings (these meetings 
were initially reduced in 
view of Covid)  Strengthen 
reporting and shared 
learning process within 
LMS by formaising as a 
monthly agenda item at 
LMS SEC and LMS 
board. Refresh and align 
governance of LMS to 
establish Quality 
Surveillance, as a core 
function,  within the ICS as 
it develops.                    
MVP to attend maternity 
governance meetings.  
The LMS have set up a 
meeting with Devon to 
discuss joining up   the 
LMS to enable scrutiny, 
oversigth and 
transparency with all SI's        

J Urben/J 
Clarke/LMS Board  
Trust Board                          
Jan 2021

LMS leads to ensure 
LMS safe and 
effective care 
meetings are 
reinstated quarterly 
and that learning is 
shared at each 
meeting.    Consider 
merging Safe 
Effective Care 
meeting with 
Maternity 
Governance Meeting            

Amber 

 External clinical specialist opinion from 
outside the Trust (but from within the 
region), must be mandated for cases of 
intrapartum fetal death, maternal death, 
neonatal brain injury and neonatal death.

  y     
all perinatal deaths. All cases and learning 
discussed shared at monthly perinatal meeting 
with independent external scrutiny from another 
trust.  Discussions with neighbouring Devon LMNS 
for Cornwall safety leads and clinician to join 
Safety and Governance meeting for joint learning 
and sharing opportunities and scrutiny from 
independent clinical teams.

Quarterly perinatal report to be shared at the Maternity 
Safety Champions meeting and Jess.Slater LMS

Green

Immediate and Essential Action 2: 
Listening to Women and Families.     
Linked with CNST standards 1, 2 & 
10 

What do we have in place currently 
to meet all requirements of IEA 2?

Rag
Who and by 
when?

What 
resource or 
support do 
we need?

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

How will we evidence that we are meeting the 
requirements?

How do we know that these roles are 
effective?

What further action 
do we need to take?
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Each Trust Board must identify a non-executive 
director who has oversight of maternity services, 
with specific responsibility for ensuring that 
women and family voices across the Trust are 
represented at Board level. They must work 
collaboratively with their maternity Safety 
Champions

Kim O'Keffe Director of Nursing. Midwifery and 
Allied Health Professionals is the Exec Director for 
maternity services.  We are fortunate to have a 
passionate DoN who has a good knowledge of 
maternity services.  The DoN of is the Exec Safety 
Champion and supports the HoM and the wider 
Care group in ensuring the maternity services 
have a consistently high profile with the Trust 
Board and ensure the Board are sighted on all 
areas of national and local developments in 
maternity services. The HoM has a direct line to 
the DoM to highlight any issues and concerns and 
regular 1:1 meetings and update discussions. 
Sarah Newton is the Non Exec Director for 
maternity services and this role is now in 
development using the new guidance and role 
descriptor sent to Trusts. 

Minutes of the Board Meetings.  Regular Safety Champion 
meetings with minutes and action plan.  

Regular contact with maternity services staff.  Attendance at 
meetings.  Challenge and discussion in relation to maternity 
service development and Transformation plans

For Non Exec role 
descriptor has been 
published.  

Kim O'Keeffe, 
Sarah Newton   

Exec Director and Non 
Exec Director for 
Maternity are in place.

Amber  

Trusts must create an independent senior 
advocate role which supports to both the Trusst 
and the LMS Boards.   The advocate must be 
available to families attending follow up 
meetings with clinicians where concerns about 
maternity or neonatal care are discussed, 
particularly where there has been an adverse 
outcome.

Full time PMA and 7 part time PMAs who 
support staff in this manner, however we do 
not an independent senior advocate role which 
reports to both the Trust and the LMS Boards. 
The Trust has strong links with Health Watch 
who attend the Patient Experience Group 
(PEG). Health watch are independent and 
fund the MVP but are not specific to maternity 
services.

Awaiting new job role and recruitment into post 

Trust does do not have an advocate in place at present.  
National job role coming. 

To discuss this with 
Trust board.     Explore 
options and funding.  
Approach Health 
watch for discussion 

Kim O'Keeffe, 
Sarah Newton   

Funding for 
post.  
National 
guidance

Professional Midwifery 
Advocate.  Birth 
Reflections Service, 
Patient Experience and 
Complaints Process, 
Individual resolution 
meetings with senior 
midwifery and obstetric 
staff 

Red 

a Evidence that you have a robust mechanism for 
gathering service user feedback, and that you 
work with the service users through your 
Maternity Voices Partnership (MVP) to co-
produce local maternity services 

Gather feedback through Care Opinion, 
leadership rounds on the inpatient wards, 
Kernow MVP feedback, Walking the Patch, 
Whose Shoes, complaints and plaudits. A 
regular report and presentation from maternity 
services is presented at the Trust's Patient 
Experience Group and Health Watch where 
the KMVP are core members.  The MVP and 
other service user groups carried out the 15 
Steps initiative in maternity in 2020 and there is 
a report and action plan based on the 
recommendations from service users. 
Maternity Natters initiative co-produced with 
MVP to share information and support women 
and families online.  Joint mental health / 
maternity Facebook page provides additional 
information and chat room. Joint working with 
MVP enabled access to gypsy traveller 
community and development of caseloading 
model of care.  This developed from focus 
group and joint working with the charity 
TravellerSpace. 

Joint Mental health Facebook page. 
Joint working and visits around vulnerable 
families (BAME/Gypsy Traveller 
community/Isles of Scilly)
Coproduced online antenatal sessions 
(Maternity Natters).

Kernow Maternity Voices Partnership are the 
official partner for co-production with service 
users within the LMNS. Kernow MVP are 
formally included in all relevant Maternity 
Transformation working groups. KMVP carry 
out independent surveys and site visits and 
report to the LMNS board monthly.  Examples 
of where this has directly influenced safety 
outcomes are with the establishment of a 
dedicated CoC midwifery team for our gypsy 
traveller community and in developing the 
response to the COVID-19 guidance for 
BAME  women durng pregnancy. Members of 
the KMVP made a joint visit with the HoM and 
LMS leads to the Isles of Scilly to gain 
feedback on the experiences of women and 
families in this remote island community. The 
MVP have organised  postnatal surveys,  
Walking the Patch , Fifteen Steps and our 
innovative 'Maternity Natters' parent 
information sessions are jointly run with the 
KMVP.  We are currently pulling together the 
Postnatal Pathway early adopter bid. The 
MVP chairs meet with the senior midwifery 
management team each week to share 
information and any latest publications or 
guidance.  This has been critical to joint 
working during COVID and has emphasised 
the close relationship across the Trust, MVP 
and LMNS. 

Senior maternity team meet with MVP every week to 
discuss issues, guidelines, priorities and feedback.  MVP 
chair sits on regular meetings and interview panels.  Co-
production projects are discussed at all key meetings.  
Action plans monitored through governace process.  Audit of 
some initiatives is built into development of change 
management / QI projects.  Presentations and talks at 
regional and national events. 

MVP chair to attend 
maternity governance 
meetings to ensure 
feedback on governance 
and SI's moving forwards.

Jane Urben 
January 2021 

On-going 
transformation 
and 
Improvement is 
reliant on 
adequate and 
sustainable 
funding

Continue with full and 
effective collaboration 
and co-production of the 
maternity services.  
Continue weekly MVP 
meeting and all other 
collaboration that is 
already in place.

Green 

Trust Safety Champions meet bimonthly 
with Board level champions to escalate 
locally identified issues? 

Maternity Safety champion Action plan supported 
by service manager.  

Maternity Safety Champion Action Plan to be reviewed at 
governace meetings and up to the Trust and LMNS Board.

Meetings and actions and improvements form action plan 
implemented

Formalised process for 
Safety Champions Action 
plan and report to be 
reviewed at Trust Boards

J Urben,  Kim 
O'Keefe Jan 2021

Support from 
Non Exec.  
Admin support 
for action plans. 

Safety Champions in 
place and understand 
role and responsibilities.  
Meetings in place and 
action plan developing 

Amber 
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Immediate and essential action 3: Staff 
Training and Working Together. Linked 
to CNST standards 4 & 8

What do we have in place currently to 
meet all requirements of IEA 3? What are our monitoring mechanisms? Where will compliance with these 

requirements be reported?
What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resource or 
support do 
we need?

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

Trusts must ensure that multidisciplinary 
training and working occurs and must 
provide evidence of it. This evidence must 
be externally validated through the LMS, 3 
times a year.

Prior to March 2020 the Trust offered a monthly 
five day training programme for the 
multidisciplinary team. This week included topics 
tailored to the maternity staff groups and 
culminated with a full day of Practical Obstetric 
Multi-Professional Training (PROMPT). PROMPT 
incorporated staff from all the disciplines outlined 
by Action 8 of the CNST requirements. Due to 
social distancing restrictions this annual training 
has been moved online but remains available to 
the MDT. PROMPT has also been moved online 
using the official PROMPT Maternity Foundation 
online package. The PDM monitors training 
compliance and the Trust Learning and 
Development Team update individual Electronic 
Staff Records on completion of training.

A detailed quarterly training report (including current % 
compliance per staff group) outlining what training is being 
undertaken or planned with reference to the Training Needs 
Analysis (TNA) is submitted by the PDM to Maternity 
Governance. The PDM is responsible for updating the TNA. 
Training discussed in managers Pulse meeting.

The LMS Board meets each quarter. The training report will 
be presented at these meetings.

To compensate for the 
necessary cancellation of 
face to face MDT training 
the PDM, Clinical Skills 
Facilitators, Ward 
Managers, Advanced 
Neonatal Practitioner(s), 
Obstetric Consultant(s) 
and Trust Simulation 
Team collaborate to run a 
rolling ward-based 
simulation programme. A 
structured debrief takes 
place after each 
simulation whereby 
risks/issues are identified 
in line with CNST Action 
8.  A minimum of four 
multiprofessional training 
events (simulations) are 
planned for 2021. To 
ensure report is discussed 
at LMS Board  meetings

R Mullins Ongoing 
training J Urben  
ensure report is 
shared at LMNS 
baord meeting

Online training to 
continue at present.

Green

Multi-disciplinary training and working 
together must always include twice daily 
(day and night through the 7-day week) 
consultant-led and present multi-
disciplinary ward rounds on the labour 
ward.

Current Consultant labour ward round 0830 and 
1700. Consultants currently entitled to leave at 
1930. Ward rounds documented in patient notes. 

Ward rounds take place at 0830, 1730 and 2030 but are led by 
a senior registrar if Consultant not present.

Speciality Meeting   Change ward round times 
to 0830 and 2030 and 
ensure Consultant 
presence.  Attendence 
sheet for Consultant 
rounds including teaching 
opportunities and 
discussions.   This can be 
similar to the current 
safety huddle sheets. 

J Clarke Additional 
£30,000 per 
year (Approx) 
for the required 
Consultant 
cover.  Financial 
input to pull 
together 
funding.

Ward rounds that do not 
have a Consultant 
present are carried out 
by a senior registrar. 
Consultant on call at all 
times to provide support, 
guidance and presence 
on the unit when 
required. We have 
recently increased ward 
rounds and aim for all 
patients to be seen within 
30 minutes of arrival on 
the labour ward (HSIB 
action).

Amber 

Trusts must ensure that any external 
funding allocated for the training of 
maternity staff, is ring-fenced and used for 
this purpose only.

Any training funding through HEE, national bids, 
LMS Transformation funding and local initiatives 
around bespoke training to support new models of 
working has been ring fenced.  Training records 
and reports evidence this.  CNST Maternity 
Incentive Scheme refund has not necessarily been 
ring fenced only for the purpose of training but the 
Trust has supported staffing requests to 
implement Continuity of Carer and other areas of 
maternity care to improve safety, quality and 
choice. 

Communication with relevant bodies that have provided 
funding.LMS meeting minutes.Training records and reports.  
Finance reports

Finance report and discussion and assurance to Care Group 
Board.  Trust  and LMNS Boards 

Regular review of ring 
fenced education budget 
to maternity and 
neonatates at Care Group 
Board 

M Baulch In place Green 

Immediate and essential action 4: 
Managing Complex Pregnancy. Links  
with CNST standard 6

What do we have in place currently to 
meet all requirements of IEA 4?

What are our monitoring mechanisms? Where is this reported? What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resources 
or support 
do we 

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

Rag
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All women with complex pregnancy must 
have a named consultant lead, and 
mechanisms to regularly audit compliance 
must be in place

All women with complex pregnancy have a named 
consultant lead with early specialist involvement 
and management plans agreed between the 
woman and the team.  Joint consultant meetings. 
SWAN SW Neonates. SW MH

Clinic codes on admission system. Patient notes. Meetings 
(WREN, specialist teams/centres). Communication with tertiary 
centres.

Maxims, PAS & E3 (Maternity IT systems).Digital or 
handheld notes. Minutes/emails/letters

Implement monthly audit 
to monitoring compliance 
and correct referral 
process.LMS 
developments/meetings to 
be shared with 
consultants. 
Clear pathway and 
referral system. Tertiary 
centre support.

A Bellamy to 
organise audit
Jan 2021 and then 
ongoing monthly 
T Roberts 
S Haynes

Additional 
admin/audit 
time. 6 hours 
per month

Utilise staff working from 
home to undertake audit.

Amber 

Understand what further steps are required 
by your organisation to support the 
development of maternal medicine 
specialist centres

Consultants and Safety Champions for Obstetrics 
and Neonates are part of the maternal and 
neonatal network and part of this work has been to 
develop pathways of care for more complex 
cases.  This is in collaboration with the anaesthetic 
teams.  Referral and support from the regional 
tertiary centres are in place for women with 
Cardiac problems and other complex medical 
conditions.  

Individualied care pathways in view on low numbers. WREN 
meetings. E3, PAS, patient notes.

WREN minutes.  Audit of medical notes and pathways of 
care 

Pathways need to be 
written and embedded 
into current guidelines.  
Audits required for key 
pathways to ensure 
compliance with 
guidelines

S Haynes Admin/governan
ce support

Individualisedpathways 
for women with complex 
needs are discussed at 
the WREN meeting, joint 
consultant meetings and  
individualised discussion 
with tertiary centres.

Amber 

 Immediate and essential action 5: Risk 
Assessment Throughout Pregnancy. 
Linked to CNST standard 6

What do we have in place currently to 
meet all requirements of IEA 5?

What are our monitoring mechanisms and where 
are they reported?

Where is this reported? What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resources 
or support 
do we 

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

Rag

A risk assessment must be completed and 
recorded at every contact. This must also 
include ongoing review and discussion of 
intended place of birth. This is a key 
element of the Personalised Care and 
Support Plan (PSCP). Regular audit 
mechanisms are in place to assess PCSP 
compliance

Audit highlighted 100% of patients were formally 
risk assessed at the booking appointment in 
December 2020 with a personalised care plan 
completed.

Regular risk assessment is part of the documented record and 
the electronic Personalised Plan in E3 IT maternity system. This 
is collated as part of the maternity data set. Evidence of 
consultant discussions around out of guidance intrapartum care 
on E3 records

E3 IT system To ensure that each 
personalised care plan is 
updated at each antenatal 
appointment.A robust 
process for auditing 
compliance needs to be in 
place.  Further training for 
this element of care 
planning is required to 
ensure is fully embedded 
at each contact.To 
commence a database for 
all women with a care plan 
outside of guidelines. 
Audit required each month 
and reported through 
governance process 

S Gale/A Whittaker  
Jan 2021

Audit and Admin 
support 

On-going training with 
community midwives. 
Patient safety meetings.  
Although compliant this 
action remains Amber to 
embed the antenatal risk 
assessments occuring at 
every appointment. 

Amber 

Immediate and essential action 6: 
Monitoring Fetal Wellbeing. Linked with 
CNST standards 6 & 8

What do we have in place currently to 
meet all requirements of IEA 6?

How will we evidence that our leads are 
undertaking the role in full?

What outcomes will we use to demonstrate 
that our processes are effective?

What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resources 
or support 
do we 

d?

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

Rag

Implement the Saving Babies Lives Care 
Bundle

SBLV2 care bundle has been implemented and 
action plan is in place for areas still in progress 
and for the auditing of certain elements of the 
budles to ensure they are effective. 

 MDT action plan dedicated to the SBLV2 care bundle which is 
discussed regularly at maternity governance, obs and gynae 
speciality and care group meetings . Shared at LMS meetings 
and Trust Board. 

Maternity governance, Pulse, LMS SEC, as part of any 
CNST meeting/discussion. Services that have been put in 
place,  completed and ongoing actions are all documented 
in the SBLV2 action plan

There are some 
outstanding actions and 
audits but all elements 
have been implemented.      
Discussed at governance 
meetings regularly. Prem 
prevention clinic has only 
been set up recently, 
therefore database and 
auduts have not yet 
commenced.

J Urben/J Clarke - 
Ongoing oversight 
of action plan as 
Maternity Safety 
Champions. On-
going.  Lead role 
needs to be 
included in medical 
workforce plan. 

Audit/admin 
time.  Pas for 
SBL Clinical 
lead  

Continue to action the 
SBLV2 action plan as an 
MDT senior team 

Green 
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We are now asking that a second lead is 
identified so that every unit has a lead 
midwife and a lead obstetrician in place to 
lead best practice, learning and support.

Senior Midwife Lead for Fetal Monitoring is in 
place and role embedded in teaching and training 
programme.  This role has been a key part of our 
overall Practice Development Team and Multi 
Professional Training Programme for several 
years.   We do not have a formal Consultant Lead 
for Fetal Monitoring at present although there is 
informal Consultant support for the Lead Midwife 
and Consultant input into the fetal monitoring 
teaching programme is in place. The Fetal 
Medicine Lead Consultant responsible for fetal 
surviellance and Perinatal Mortality but the role is 
not adequately defined within the job plan and 
requires further hours 

Staff rotas (named lead).Evidence of extensive 6 week external 
training package for midwifery lead. Changes in guidelines SGA. 
Newly formed Prem prevention clinic run by obstetrician, 
supported by midwifery sonographer. Twice weekly MDT CTG 
meetings. Training records

Staff training compliance, PAS. Guidlines, Formalise obstetric lead 
role and funding. Include 
in Medical workforce 
review.  Business case to 
the board

J Clarke Funding 
required for 
addition 
Consultant  PAs 
and time to 
dedicate to the 
role 

Continue with current 
obstetric support and 
input into training and 
CTG discussions

Amber 

Immediate and essential action 7: 
Informed Consent. Links to CNST 
standard 7

What do we have in place currently to 
meet all requirements of IEA 7?

Where and how often do we report this? How do we know that our processes are 
effective?

What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resources 
or support 

  

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

All maternity services must ensure the provision 
to women of accurate and contemporaneous 
evidence-based information as per national 
guidance. This must include all aspects of 
maternity care throughout the antenatal, 
intrapartum and postnatal periods of care. 
Women must be enabled to participate equally in 
all decision-making processes and to make 
informed choices about their care. Women’s 
choices following a shared and informed 
decision-making process must be respected

Clinical Guidelines and Policies are written and 
reviewed for easy understanding and correct 
format and coproduced with the MVP.  They are 
available on the Trust website and are shared with 
women on request and when talking through plans 
of care. Patient information leaflets are available 
via patient digital notes and on the Trust website

Monthly guideline meeting which includes MVP. Patient leaflets 
updated regularly by maternity IT team - seen on digital notes.

Monthly multi- professional guideline meeting.  Kernow MVP 
chair included.  Guidelines are monitored through 
governance process and are reviewed when new guidance 
is published. 

Pelvic Health Service
 Personalisation and 
Choice – use of the 
adapted Manchester 
booklet
Information sharing – Test 
Baby Buddy version 2.0
To explore the Chelsea 
and Westminster website 
as recommended.                
Focus group to be set up 
with senior/specialist 
midwives, consultants and 
MVP to discuss patient 
consent and to gain 
feedback on the most 
appropriate way for the 
birthing community to 
receive information and 
then how to fully discuss 
preferrred options.  
Possibility of App being 
explored as part of QI 
project led by MVP chair, 
LMS midwife and 

All staff involved in 
guidelines group 
March 2021

Admin 
support/time. 
MVP supoort to 
make 
improvements in 
informed 
consent process 
if required

Continue to use current 
guidelines and 
information leaflets

Green 

SECTION 2
MATERNITY WORKFORCE PLANNING/ 
Linked to CNST standards 4 & 5

What process have we undertaken? How have we assured that our plans are robust 
and realistic?

How will ensure oversight of progress 
against our plans going forwards?

What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resources 
or support 
do we 
need?

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

Rag

 Can you demonstrate an effective system 
of  Midwifery workforce planning to the 
required standard. Clinical and Midwifery.

Full Birth-Rate Plus review carried out and 
reported in January 2020.  Full birth rate plus next 
due January 2022. Some Continuity of Care was 
incorporated into last review. 

On-going weekly staffing discussion at Pulse meeitngs for 
ongong review. Covid has made this more challenging as staff 
sickness levels are higher than anticipated

Safe staffing paper. Staff rotas. Weekly management 
meeting (Pulse).                                                                   
Midwifery staffing is high risk on the risk register and is 
reviewed monthly. 

In view of Covid and 
pressures on midwifery 
staffing, an additional 
paper will be written 
annually which will be 
shared with the LMS and 
the board.

J Urben to write 
staffing paper and 
share with 
executive director 
for 
maternity.February 
2021

Support for on-
going midwifery 
staffing 
investment 

 Midwifery management 
meet weekly to discuss 
staffing.  Update staffing 
paper in relation to 
COVID pressures will be 
submitted in February

Green

 Can you demonstrate an effective system 
of  clinical workforce planning to the 
required standard. 

Medical Workforce Plan report led by the Clinical 
Directors. Finance input for the investment 
required.  Plans are regualrly reviewed and 
medical staffing is assessed on-going each week 
to ensure appropriate cover for workload.  

Job planning and review of rotas Investment in Consultant 
Pas and additional 
Consultant numbers for 
future workforce 
plannning.

J Clarke 1st March 
2021

Finance advise 
and support for 
increased 
investment inot 
key roles 

Monthly Consultant 
Meetings to discuss 
workforce Issues.  
Weekly Triumvirate 
meetings 

Amber 
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Midwifery Leadership element 
documented in Midwifery Leadership 
tab.

NICE GUIDANCE RELATED TO 
MATERNITY

What process do we have in place 
currently?

Where and how often do we report this? What assurance do we have that all of our 
guidelines are clinically appropriate?

What further action 
do we need to take?

Who and by 
when?

What 
resources 
or support 
do we 
need?

How will we 
mitigate risk in the 
short term?

Rag

We are asking providers to review their
approach to NICE guidelines in maternity
and provide assurance that these are
assessed and implemented where
appropriate. Where non-evidenced based
guidelines are utilised, the trust must
undertake a robust assessment process
before implementation and ensure that the
decision is clinically justified.

Maternity Guidelines process uses two methods. 
1.     Where NICE guidance or other relevant 
guidance for example Saving Babies Lives 2, is 
updated this is discussed at the monthly Maternity 
Guidelines Meeting (MGM) and Governance 
Meeting (GM). At the MGM group go through the 
full list of maternity guidelines and identify which 
the new guidance affects. Next the identified list of 
guidelines are sent out to the authors with a 
timeline for return with update completed to return 
to maternity guidelines and Directorate to ratify. 
2.     All guidelines are updated as a minimum of 3 
yearly as per Trust policy and procedure for 
guidelines. The author is sent their guideline 6 
months prior to review date, MVP are included to 
liaise with the author and the guideline is returned 
with relevant update. All updated maternity 
guidelines are sent by the author to the relevant 
clinicians for input at the review stage. Once 
review complete the guidelines is brought to MGM 
by the author. The MGM team agree/decline the 
review. Agreed guidelines then attend Obstetrics 
Directorate for ratification and Divisional board. All 
guidelines go through the Policy Review Group 
(PRG) 

Maternity guidelines are reported through Policy Review Group 
(PRG) following multi professional review and discussion at the 
Maternity Guidelines Group.  All new and amended guidelines go 
through the governance process in the Care Group and are 
reviewed at Speciality Meetings, Maternity Forum and approved 
finally at Care Group Board.   Any guidelines that do not currenly 
follow NIC guidelines are updated and any decision to deviate 
from NICE guidance is reviewed through the normal governance 
process and reported through the Trust governance  guideline 
process.

Any concerns are brought to Maternity Guidelines and 
Governance to be discussed and action plan made

Continue current  
process

Green 
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Please confirm that your Director/Head of Midwifery is responsible and accountable to an executive director and describe how your organisation meets the maternity leadership requirements set out by the 
Royal College of Midwives in Strengthening midwifery leadership: a manifesto for better maternity care

MIDWIFERY LEADERSHIP 

The Head of Midwifery is accountable to the Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals.  The DoN is the exec board lead for maternity.                                                                                                             The seven 
steps to strengthen midwifery leadership 
1 A Director of Midwifery in every trust and health board, and more Heads of Midwifery across the service. 
Kim O’Keeffe is the Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals.  The Head of Midwifery reports directly to the DoN and has access at all times to highlight concerns or discuss issues.  The Director of Nursing, 
Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals is the Board person responsible for maternity services.  She attends national and regional events. 
2 A lead midwife at a senior level in all parts of the NHS, both nationally and regionally
There is a Chief Nurse for England and a Regional Chief Nurse for the South West.  Both roles have strong links with RCHT maternity services and the DoN and HoM. 
3 Consultant midwives
The trust have a Consultant Midwife for Vulnerable Women.  This role has the autonomy to lead the improvements for women and families with significant health inequalities such as perinatal mental health, BAME, learning 
disability and deprivation. 
4 Specialist midwives in every trust and health board
RCHT have a number of specialist midwife roles for perinatal mental health, vulnerable women and families, birth reflections, diabetes, antenatal screening, professional midwifery advocate, practice development and a midwife 
role in the LMS. The WREN team 'Women requiring Extra Nurturing' is made up of specialsit midwives with additional training to provide support for women and families in groups that experience health inequalities.  The WREN 
team provide care to women and families under perinatal mental health pathways of care, bereavement, BAME, gypsy traveller and learning and physical disability.  This team is expanding and funding has been secured for 
Maternal Mental Health Services working collaboratively with mental health services in Cornwall and in the South West region.   The Safeguarding midwifery team lin with the wider childrens' services.  The Head of Midwifery is 
the SRO for the  'Best Start in Life' Programme cross working collaboration with Public Health, Cornwall Council, Children's Services, Early Years and a number of charitable and voluntary agencies in respect of parents, babies and 
young children.
5 Strengthening and supporting sustainable midwifery leadership in education and research
Maternity services maintain close links with Plymouth University.  The practice development specialist midwife links with the educational tutors and sits on clinical placement meetings and the midwifery student programme 
meetings including the Plymouth University Midwifery curriculum development team meetings .  The PDM also sits on the  NMC midwifery course approval meetings with Plymouth University.   The Research and Clinical School 
have a rolling agenda item at the Trust's Maternity Forum 
PDM took part in the South West regional joint meetings with HEE, Higher Education Institutions and placement providers to develop a framework for students returning as employees during the first COVID wave.  The HoM is a 
member of the education board meetings. 
RCHT have key education roles including Practice Development, Clinical Skills Facilitators, Professional Midwifery Advocate Team including a full time role, two midwifery ambassadors, trainee midwife sonographers, and a 
trainee advanced practitioner role.
The Consultant Midwife, Head of Midwifery and Practice development Lead Midwife are members of the Clinical School and links research and improvement through the Trust and the Universities.  Research is actively 
encouraged and midwives have entered 400 words initiative.  The leadership team have been active members of the Trust's Quality Improvement Hub and have driven forward a number of QI improvements using the 
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 Executive Summary 
 

Meeting: Trust Board in Public Date:  04.02.21 
Report Title:  COVID-19 Infection, Prevention 

and Control Board Assurance 
Framework 

Agenda 
Item: 

13.1 

Author: Louise Dickinson Deputy Director of Nursing Midwifery and 
AHPs, DIPC 
 

Executive Lead: Kim O’Keeffe, Deputy CEO, Director of Nursing, Midwifery and 
Allied Health Professionals CRCHT/CFT 

 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives Tick 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

 

  
Purpose of the Report  
Approve   Discuss  Note  
NHS England has developed the Infection Prevention and Control Board Assurance 
Framework to help providers assess themselves against the guidance as a source of 
internal assurance that quality standards are being maintained.  The framework 
allows identification of any areas of risk and shows the corrective actions taken in 
response.  The tool therefore can also provide assurance that organisational 
compliance has been systematically reviewed. 
 
Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
This update was presented, discussed and approved at the Joint Quality Assurance 
Committee 26 January 2021. 
  
Summary of key points  
The Infection Prevention and Control Board Assurance Framework covers ten areas 
of PHE and other related guidance which includes: 
• Systems are in place to manage and monitor the prevention and control of 

infection. These systems use risk assessments and consider the susceptibility of 
service users and any risks posed by their environment and other service users  

• Provide and maintain a clean and appropriate environment in managed premises 
that facilitates the prevention and control of infections  

• Ensure appropriate antimicrobial use to optimise patient outcomes and to reduce 
the risk of adverse events and antimicrobial resistance  

Page 197 of 294



OFFICIAL:SENSITIVE 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

• Provide suitable accurate information on infections to service users, their visitors 
and any person concerned with providing further support or nursing/ medical care 
in a timely fashion 

• Ensure prompt identification of people who have or are at risk of developing an 
infection so that they receive timely and appropriate treatment to reduce the risk 
of transmitting infection to other people 

• Systems to ensure that all care workers (including contractors and volunteers) 
are aware of and discharge their responsibilities in the process of preventing and 
controlling infection  

• Provide or secure adequate isolation facilities 
• Secure adequate access to laboratory support as appropriate 
• Have and adhere to policies designed for the individual’s care and provider 

organisation  that will help prevent and control infections 
• Have a system in place to manager the occupational health needs and 

obligations of staff in relation to infection. 
 

The Trust is in the main compliant with many of the key lines of enquiry, there have 
been gaps in compliance with correct wearing of face coverings and social 
distancing in offices/meeting rooms which have been identified via outbreaks and not 
all bed spaces meet the 2 metre distancing. 
 
A daily team brief has been introduced as a reminder of how teams need to work to 
meet PPE and social distancing requirements, several communication messages 
have been issued via the Coronavirus Communications, CEO Vlogs, Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals Blogs in weekly newsletter and 
COVID Wardens are in place to monitor compliance. 
 
Bed spaces have been adapted to create as much space as possible by relocating 
and removing some of the furniture; in addition hard plastic screens have been 
installed between each bed space (medi-screens). 
 
What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
Is the Board assured that actions are being taken appropriately in response to each 
of the key lines of enquiry? 
  
Key risks 
Increased number of COVID-19 cases identified after admission resulting in an 
increase in the number of outbreaks with subsequent increase in the number of 
nosocomial cases. 
 
Increased number of outbreaks resulting in closed beds affecting bed capacity. 
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Recommendations and reasons  
The Board is recommended to: 
• note the assessment and mitigations in place to address any gaps identified.  

  
 
Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

Potential impact on all staff and patient groups. BAME 
colleagues and patients have been identified as at 
increased risk of Covid-19 infection. 
 

Environmental 
considerations 

Increased use of disposable PPE has an impact on the 
Environment. 
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Foreword 
 
NHS staff should be proud of the care being provided to patients and the way in which 
services have been rapidly adapted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Effective infection prevention and control is fundamental to our efforts.  We have developed 
this board assurance framework to support all healthcare providers to effectively self-assess 
their compliance with PHE and other COVID-19 related infection prevention and control 
guidance and to identify risks.  The general principles can be applied across all settings; 
acute and specialist hospitals, community hospitals, mental health and learning disability, 
and locally adapted. 
 
The framework can be used to assure directors of infection prevention and control, medical 
directors and directors of nursing by assessing the measures taken in line with current 
guidance.  It can be used to provide evidence and also as an improvement tool to optimise 
actions and interventions. The framework can also be used to assure trust boards. 
 
Using this framework is not compulsory; however its use as a source of internal assurance 
will help support organisations to maintain quality standards. 
 
 

 
 
Ruth May 
Chief Nursing Officer for England  
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1. Introduction 
 
As our understanding of COVID-19 has developed, PHE and related guidance on required 
infection prevention and control measures has been published, updated and refined to reflect 
the learning.  This continuous process will ensure organisations can respond in an evidence-
based way to maintain the safety of patients, services users and staff. 
 
We have developed this framework to help providers assess themselves against the 
guidance as a source of internal assurance that quality standards are being maintained.  It 
will also help them identify any areas of risk and show the corrective actions taken in 
response.  The tool therefore can also provide assurance to trust boards that organisational 
compliance has been systematically reviewed. 
 
The framework is intended to be useful for directors of infection prevention and control, 
medical directors and directors of nursing rather than imposing an additional burden.  This is 
a decision that will be taken locally although organisations must ensure they have alternative 
appropriate internal assurance mechanisms in place. 

 
2. Legislative framework 
 

The legislative framework is in place to protect service users and staff from avoidable harm 
in a healthcare setting.  We have structured the framework around the existing 10 criteria set 
out in the Code of Practice on the prevention and control of infection which links directly 
to Regulation 12 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 
2014. 

The Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 places wide-ranging duties on employers, who are 

required to protect the 'health, safety and welfare' at work of all their employees, as well as 

others on their premises, including temporary staff, casual workers, the self-employed, 

clients, visitors and the general public.  The legislation also imposes a duty on staff to 

take reasonable care of health and safety at work for themselves, for others, and to co-

operate with employers to ensure compliance with health and safety requirements.  

  

Robust risk assessment processes are central to protecting the health, safety and welfare of 

patients, service users and staff under both pieces of legislation.  Where it is not possible to 

eliminate risk, organisations must assess and mitigate risk and provide safe systems of 

work.  In the context of COVID-19, there is an inherent level of risk for NHS staff that are 
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treating and caring for patients and service users and for the patients and service users 

themselves in a healthcare setting.  All organisations must therefore ensure that risks are 

identified, managed and mitigated effectively.
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Infection Prevention and Control board assurance framework RCHT 

 
1. Systems are in place to manage and monitor the prevention and control of infection. These systems use risk 

assessments and consider the susceptibility of service users and any risks posed by their environment and other 
service users  
 

Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 
Systems and processes are in place to 
ensure: 
 

• infection risk is assessed at the front 
door and this is documented in patient 
notes 

 

ED process in place – patients risk 
assessed at triage. 
 

None identified  

SDMA patients risk assessed on 
arrival. 

Surgical patients risk assessed on 
arrival 
 
All patients have a COVID-19 swab 
taken on admission.  
 
Dashboard in place on RADAR. 
 
(Evidence; documentation in 
notes, swab results, dashboard) 
 

• Patients with possible or confirmed 
COVID-19 are not moved unless this is 
essential to their care or reduces the 
risk of transmission 

As per the pathways that have 
been put in place; patients do not 
leave a red (blue) or amber zones 
unless this is for clinical reasons 
and has been agreed with the  
IPAC Team 
 

None identified Staff have the ability to 
raise concerns / incident 
reporting – should this 
be required. 
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(Evidence: pathways agreed in 
ICC, outbreak meeting minutes) 

• compliance with the national guidance 
around discharge or transfer of 
COVID-19 positive patients 

SERF forms completed which also 
included information on patient 
status. 
 
(Evidence SERF form) 
 

None identified  

Information leaflets for patients 
 
(Evidence – leaflet ) 
 

None identified  

All patients being discharged to a 
Care Home are screened prior to 
discharge. 
 
(Evidence – Swab results) 
 

None identified  

• Monitoring of IPC practices, ensuring 
resources are in place to enable 
compliance with IPC 

COVID-19 audits taking place 
PPE is available for staff to use as 
per PHE guidance 
 
(Evidence – stock inventory 
and daily stock sheet, audit 
results, COVID-19 Wardens in 
place) 
 

None identified  

• Monitoring of compliance with PPE 
Guardians / Safety Champions to 
embed and encourage best practice 

88 COVID-19 wardens in post 
(commenced in Dec 2020) 
 
(EVIDENCE – COVID-19 Warden 
induction programme, contracts) 
 

None identified  

• Staff testing and self-isolation Staff lateral flow testing in place None identified  
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strategies are in place and a process 
to respond if transmission rates of 
COVID 

 
In-house Track and Trace Team 
advising on isolation. 
 
Staff pathways in place to access 
PCR testing 
 
(Evidence – Lateral flow 
database, Agreement with 
Cornwall Ambulance for staff 
testing) 
 

• Training in IPC standard infection 
control and transmission based 
precautions are provided to all staff 

Included in Trust Induction and 
mandatory updates 
 
(Evidence – training materials 
and attendance database) 
 

None identified  

• IPC measures in relation to COVID-19 
should be included in all staff Induction 
and mandatory training 

Additional COVID-19 specific 
materials being added to both 
Mandatory training and Induction 
 
 
(Evidence – training materials 
and attendance database) 

 

More specific COVID-19 
information not included. 

Additional materials will 
be in place by the end of 
January 2021 

• All staff are regularly reminded of the 
importance of wearing face masks, 
hand hygiene and maintaining physical 
distance both in and out of work 

Regular reminders are issued on 
staff daily COVID-19 brief 
 
Posters visible across the 
organisation 
 
CEO Vlogs often address issues 
raised and reminders 
 

None identified Staff have the ability to 
raise concerns / incident 
reporting – should this 
be required. 
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Weekly Blog in Joint Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and AHP has 
addressed this issue on occasion. 
 
TEAM Talk- has addressed this 
issue on occasion 
 
(Evidence – posters across the 
site, COVID-19 daily all user 
communication brief, recorded 
CEO Vlogs, Joint DoN 
Newsletter/s, recordings of 
TEAM Talks) 
 

• all staff (clinical and non-clinical) are 
trained in putting on and removing 
PPE; know what PPE they should 
wear for each setting and context; and 
have access to the PPE that protects 
them for the appropriate setting and 
context as per national guidance 

PPE is available for staff to use as 
per PHE guidance. 
 
(Evidence stock inventory) 
 
Daily inventory checks of stock 
availability in place  
 
(Evidence daily stock sheet) 
 
Information on what PPE to wear 
has been issued via the ICC 
 
(Evidence ICC Communications) 
 
Information on how to ‘donn’ and 
‘doff’ has been issued. 
 
(Evidence ICC Communications) 
 
Fit testing has been carried out 

None identified  
 

 

Page 207 of 294



9  |  IPC board assurance framework 
 

throughout the Trust.  
 
(Evidence: record log) 
 

• National IPC guidance is regularly 
checked for updates and any changes 
are effectively communicated to staff in 
a timely way 

ICC receive any updated guidance 
via SW EPPR. 
 
DIPC has signed up to receive any 
new Gov.uk documents and 
reviews as and when received. 
 
Regional / National attendance at 
CEO, MD; DoN, DIPC where 
updates are discussed and 
communicated out 
 
(Evidence: Emails and ICC 
Communications) 
 

None identified  

• changes to guidance are brought to 
the attention of boards and any risks 
and mitigating actions are highlighted  

Any changes are raised at the ICC 
meetings and information circulated 
via the ICC and COVID-19 daily 
Communication. 
 
Where risks are identified these are 
mitigated where possible.  Where 
mitigation is not possible then risks 
are formally recorded. 
 
Previous IPC Board Framework 
compliance discussed at sub board 
and board meetings 
 
(Evidence: Communication 
emails, risk register, QAC and 

None identified  
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Board agenda’s and minutes) 
 

• risks are reflected in risk registers and 
the Board Assurance Framework 
where appropriate 

The Corporate Risk Register and 
the BAF reflect the key issues 
identified by the Incident Control 
Centre. 
 
The Risk Manager regularly 
reviews the project risk register 
held by the ICC and escalates any 
significant issues. 
 
(Evidence: BAF risk ID 3754 
CRR risk ID 3754, 7749 and 7751) 
 

None identified  

• robust IPC risk assessment processes 
and practices are in place for non 
COVID-19 infections and pathogens 

IPC team use ICNET Clinical 
Surveillance Software to monitor on 
a daily basis other alert organisms 
and are responding accordingly. 
 
(Evidence: ICNet software) 
 

None identified  

Side room areas available for 
patients where IPAC requirements 
are in place. 
 
(Evidence: hospital floor plans) 
 

 

A priority list of organisms has been 
devised that has been approved by 
the microbiologist in the event that 
the availability of isolation facilities 
becomes a challenge. 
 
(Evidence priority list) 
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The review of reportable healthcare 
associated infection has been 
reviewed and a new process is in 
place. 
 
(Evidence:  review of cases) 

None identified  

that Trust CEOs or the executive 
responsible for IPC approve and 
personally signs off, all data 
submissions via the daily nosocomial 
sitrep. This will ensure the correct and 
accurate measurement and testing of 
patient protocols are activated in a 
timely manner. 

Daily sitrep reviewed by Director of 
Operations and signed off by CEO; 
or in the absence of Deputy CEO / 
Director of Nursing Midwifery and 
AHPs or Medical Director. 
 
(Evidence: email confirming 
approval) 
 

None identified  

ensure Trust Board has oversight of 
ongoing outbreaks and action plans 

Outbreak debriefs carried out. 
Outbreak briefing to QAC in 
January 2020.  
 
(Evidence- Debrief minutes, QAC 
agenda and dedicated Report) 
 

None identified  

 
2. Provide and maintain a clean and appropriate environment in managed premises that facilitates the prevention and control of 

infections  
 

Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 
Systems and processes are in place to 
ensure: 

   

• designated teams with appropriate 
training are assigned to care for and treat 

Clinical staff have been 
designated to work on ‘red’ 
areas. Where this has not been 

Occasional staffing gaps Twice daily staffing reviews. 
Attended by one of the Senior 
Nursing Corporate Team. 
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patients in COVID-19 isolation or cohort 
areas 

possible, due to small teams, 
these areas have been visited 
last. 
 
(Evidence: Rosters, safe care 
notes) 
 

 
System approach to the 
deployment of staff when / where 
required. 
 
Staff have the ability to escalate 
staffing concerns / incident 
reporting – should this be required. 
 
 

All staff have been instructed in 
the use of PPE via ICC 
communications directing them 
to the PHE videos. Posters 
have been issued to all ward 
areas. IPAC team have 
provided training. 
 
(Evidence ICC 
Communications local 
training records) 
 

None identified  

Where appropriate teams have 
been instructed in the use of 
FFP3 masks. 
 
(Evidence – training logs) 
 

None identified 
 

 

• designated cleaning teams with 
appropriate training in required 
techniques and use of PPE, are 
assigned to COVID-19 isolation or cohort 
areas.  

As above – cleaning teams 
have been designated to red 
areas. 
 
(Evidence: Mitie staff roster) 
 

  None identified Staff have the ability to raise 
concerns / incident reporting – 
should this be required. 

IPAC Team have provided 
training to the domestic 
services on the use of PPE. 
 

None identified  
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(Evidence: training 
presentation, records of 
attendance) 
 

• decontamination and terminal 
decontamination of isolation rooms or 
cohort areas is carried out in line with 
PHE and other national guidance 

24/7 team in place for terminal 
cleaning who have been 
appropriately trained. PHE 
guidance followed. 
 
(Evidence: Roster for 24/7 
team, helpdesk log, terminal 
clean policy.) 

None identified  

• increased frequency  at least twice daily 
of cleaning in areas that have higher 
environmental contamination rates as set 
out in the PHE and other national 
guidance 

Enhanced cleaning in place in 
areas with confirmed/ 
suspected COVID-19.  
 
Additional cleaners have been 
recruited to ensure additional 
cleaning to toilet facilities. 
 
(Evidence: cleaning records) 
 

None identified Currently scoping the procurement 
of an updated HPV misting 
machine to further enhance and 
speed up deep cleaning 
requirements 

• cleaning is carried out with neutral 
detergent, a chlorine-based disinfectant, 
in the form of a solution at a minimum 
strength of 1,000ppm available chlorine, 
as per national guidance. If an alternative 
disinfectant is used, the local infection 
prevention and control team (IPCT) 
should be consulted on this to ensure 
that this is effective against enveloped 
viruses 

Actichlor plus used throughout 
the hospital. 
 
Clinell wipes introduced to 
support cleaning in areas 
where there are difficulties with 
ventilation. 
 
(Evidence: Cleaning records) 

None identified  

• manufacturers’ guidance and 
recommended product ‘contact time’ 
must be followed for all cleaning/ 

Cleaning programmes are in 
line with manufacturer 
guidance. 
 

None identified 
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disinfectant solutions/products (Evidence: guidance 
documents,) 
 
Ward teams aware of products 
to be used. 
 
(Evidence: orders and 
deliveries) 
 

• as per national guidance: ‘frequently 
touched’ surfaces, e.g. door/toilet 
handles, patient call bells, over-bed 
tables and bed rails, should be 
decontaminated at least twice daily and 
when known to be contaminated with 
secretions, excretions or body fluids o 
electronic equipment, e.g. mobile 
phones, desk phones, tablets, desktops 
and keyboards should be cleaned at 
least twice daily rooms/areas where PPE 
is removed must be decontaminated, 
timed to coincide with periods 
immediately after PPE removal by 
groups of staff (at least twice daily) 

Enhanced cleaning in place for 
areas with suspected/confirmed 
COVID-19. 
 
November 2020 – ratification of 
cleaning wipes and introduction 
of Clinell universal wipe 
 
Several all user 
communications issued 
regarding the need to clean 
frequently touched items and 
referenced in CEO Vlogs. 
 
(Evidence: cleaning records, 
all user communications, 
recordings of CEO Vlogs) 

 
Electronic equipment is cleaned 
using recommended materials.  
Hand held devices shared 
between patients are cleaned 
after each use. 
 
(Evidence:  cleaning 
materials available on wards) 
 
On most wards PPE is doffed in 
the patient bays/rooms (as per 

Gaps in compliance 
identified via outbreak 
meetings 

Daily team brief to be introduced 
from 20 January 2021 issued via 
ICC. 
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national guidance) that are 
cleaned twice daily. 
 

• linen from possible and confirmed 
COVID-19 patients is managed in line 
with PHE and other national guidance 
and the appropriate precautions are 
taken 

Linen is bagged in accordance 
with PHE guidance. 
 
Monthly checklist of compliance 
completed by the IPAC Team. 
 
(Evidence:  
COVID-19 audit results). 
 

 . 

• single use items are used where possible 
and according to Single Use Policy 

Where possible single use 
items are used as per the 
single use policy. 
 
Monthly checklist of compliance 
completed by the IPAC Team. 
 
 
(Evidence; single use policy, 
audit results) 
 

None identified  

• reusable equipment is appropriately 
decontaminated in line with local and 
PHE and other national policy 

Re-usuable equipment is 
appropriately decontaminated 
in line with local, PHE and 
national guidance. 
 
Monthly checklist of compliance 
completed by the IPAC team. 
 
 
(Evidence:  Central Sterile 
Supplies Department 
Reports.  Communication 
briefings regarding the 
cleaning of reusable 
equipment. Audit results) 

Gaps in compliance 
identified via outbreak 
meetings 

Daily team brief to be introduced 
from 20 January 2021 issued via 
ICC. 
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• ensure cleaning standards and 

frequencies are monitored in non-clinical 
areas with actions in place to resolve 
issues in maintaining a clean 
environment 
 

Audit process in place 
 
(Evidence – Facilities KPIs) 

None identified  

• review and ensure good ventilation in 
admission and waiting areas to minimise 
opportunistic airborne transmission 

Windows in waiting areas and 
ward areas opened if deemed 
appropriate by Ward Leaders / 
Nurse in Charge / Managers.  
 
Liaising with AE ventilation 
regarding trial of ventilation 
system. 
 

Awaiting results of Estates 
assessment 

 

• there is evidence organisations have 
reviewed the low risk COVID-19 
pathway, before choosing and decision 
made to revert to general purpose 
detergents for cleaning, as opposed to 
widespread use of disinfectants 

Due to COVID-19 prevalence 
all of the hospital is cleaned 
with Actichlor plus. No decision 
to change made. 

None identified  

 
3. Ensure appropriate antimicrobial use to optimise patient outcomes and to reduce the risk of adverse events and antimicrobial 

resistance  
 
Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 

Systems and process are in place to ensure:    

• arrangements around antimicrobial 
stewardship are maintained 

We continue to promote 
antimicrobial stewardship 
practices during COVID-19 as 
per pre COVID-19. Specifically 
during COVID procalcitonin has 
been introduced to support 

None identified  
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clinicians with withholding or 
early stopping of antibiotics in 
COVID-19 patients. The 
antibiotic pharmacist remotely 
reviewed COVID-19 and NON-
COVID patients with low 
procalcitonin.  
 
Where antibiotics looked not to 
be indicated these patients 
were discussed with ward 
doctors and a plan agreed to 
either stop or complete a short 
course length – with an aim to 
optimise antibiotic prescribing.  
 
Guidelines on managing 
bacterial pneumonia in COVID-
19 have been reviewed and 
presented the NICE to the 
Grand Round 
 
(Evidence audit results, 
presentation to Grand 
Round)  

 
• mandatory reporting requirements are 

adhered to and boards continue to 
maintain oversight 

Mandatory reporting of 
infections continues via the 
Data Capture System. Details 
included in the Board IPR. 
 
(Evidence DCS data Board 
IPR) 
 

None identified  
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Provide suitable accurate information on infections to service users, their visitors and any person concerned with providing further 
support or nursing/ medical care in a timely fashion 

 
Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 

Systems and processes are in place to ensure    

• implementation of national guidance on 
visiting patients in a care setting 

Guidance implemented at the 
outset of COVID-19 as per 
guidance. Information 
circulated to staff via daily 
communication. Information on 
Trust website.  Two weekly / 
monthly reviews of the 
guidance has taken place and 
reviewed by the Executive 
Team/s and approved by The 
Clinical Practitioners Cabinet. 
 
Updated December 2020 to 
allow additional partner 
attendance with Maternity 
scans 
 
(Evidence: Trust Website 
information. Paper/s to 
Executive Board/s, Clinical 
Practitioners Cabinet and 

None identified  
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Board on visiting) 
 

• areas in which suspected or confirmed 
COVID-19 patients are where possible 
being treated in areas clearly marked 
with appropriate signage and have 
restricted access 

Warning and informing 
messages are displayed in all 
areas, particularly at front doors 
and in ward areas and on the 
website.   
 
(Evidence: posters at 
entrances, security within 
hospitals) 
 

None identified  

• information and guidance on COVID-19 
is available on all Trust websites with 
easy read versions 

Information for staff and 
patients is available on Trust 
websites.   
 
Easy read versions also 
available 
 
(Evidence:  Trust website) 

None identified  

• infection status is communicated to the 
receiving organisation or department 
when a possible or confirmed COVID-19 
patient needs to be moved 

Information on status captured 
on the SERF form. The COVID-
19 status of patients is shared 
including with the transport 
department in order that they 
are able to transport patients in 
appropriate vehicles 

 
(Evidence: SERF form) 
 

Audit of transport requests  

• there is clearly displayed and written 
information available to prompt patients’ 
visitors and staff to comply with hands, 
face and space advice. 

All communal areas and 
corridors have notices and floor 
markings. 
Non-clinical areas have posters 
 
(Evidence – posters and floor 

None identified  
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markings) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Ensure prompt identification of people who have or are at risk of developing an infection so that they receive timely and appropriate 
treatment to reduce the risk of transmitting infection to other people  

 
Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 

Systems and processes are in place to 
ensure: 

 

   

• screening and triaging of all patients 
as per IPC and NICE Guidance within 
all health and other care facilities must 
be undertaken to enable early 
recognition of COVID-19 cases. 

All admission areas triage and 
have clear pathways for 
segregation of COVID-19 and 
non-COVID-19 patients. 
 
All patients are screened on 
day 1, 3 and 5 in line with 
national guidance.  
 
(Evidence – Radar report 
pulled by bed meeting to 
monitor compliances and any 
lapses actioned by divisional 
leads) 
 

None identified  
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• front door areas have appropriate 
triaging arrangements in place to cohort 
patients with possible or confirmed 
COVID-19 symptoms and to segregate 
them from non COVID-19 cases to 
minimise the risk of cross-infection 

Key questions asked of all 
patients on arrival to allow 
appropriate segregation of 
patients within the department 
and wider hospital. 
 
(Evidence ED sticker, Flow 
chart, ED SOP for COVID-19) 

None identified  

• staff are aware of agreed template for 
triage questions to ask 

Key questions asked of all 
patients on arrival to allow 
appropriate segregation of 
patients within the department 
and wider hospital. 
 
(Evidence ED sticker, Flow 
chart, ED SOP for COVID-19) 
 

None identified  

• triage undertaken by clinical staff who 
are trained and competent in the 
clinical case definition and patient is 
allocated appropriate pathway as soon 
as possible 
 

• face coverings are used by all 
outpatients and visitors 

Staff undertaking triage are 
trained and aware of the 
national definition and 
associated symptoms for 
COVID 19 
 
All entrances to the hospital 
have masks for visitor/patient 
use 
 

None identified  

• face masks are available for patients 
with respiratory symptoms 

National guidance followed for 
both staff and patients. 
 
All patients encouraged to wear 
masks unless unable to due to 
condition 
 
(Evidence: masks available 
on the wards and entrances 
to hospital and departments. 

None identified  

Page 220 of 294



22  |  IPC board assurance framework 
 

Guidance for staff on use of 
face masks for patients.  
 
Patient information leaflet. 
 

• provide clear advice to patients on use 
of face masks to encourage use of 
surgical facemasks by all inpatients in 
the medium and high-risk pathways if 
this can be tolerated and does not 
compromise their clinical care 

All wards encourage patients to 
wear face masks. 
 
 
(Evidence – patient mask 
leaflet and staff guidance) 

None identified  

• ideally segregation should be with 
separate spaces, but there is potential to 
use screens, e.g. to protect reception 
staff 

Screens in use on all reception 
areas. Masks worn where not 
yet in place. 
 
(Evidence; Screens in use) 
 

None identified  

• for patients with new-onset symptoms, it 
is important to achieve isolation and 
instigation of contract tracing as soon as 
possible 

Patients with new onset 
symptoms are swabbed and 
isolated. If positive contact 
tracing is carried out and 
patients isolated for 14 days as 
per guidance. 
 
(Evidence: outbreak meeting 
minutes) 
 

None identified  

• patients that test negative but display or 
go on to develop symptoms of COVID-19 
are segregated and promptly re-tested 
and contacts traced. 

Zoning in place to isolate this 
group of patients and contact 
tracing is in place. All patients 
in this category are cared for on 
Wheal Prosper until second 
swab result or clinical review 
rules out COVID-19. 
 
(Evidence pathway protocol 
V7, outbreak meeting 

None identified  
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minutes) 
 

• patients that attend for routine 
appointments who display symptoms of 
COVID-19 are managed appropriately 
 

Process in place to assess for 
COVID-19 for those patients 
who have to attend for face to 
face appointments.  
Most OP appointments are 
virtual. 
 
Attend Anywhere has been 
introduced as an electronic 
solution to face to face 
consultation 

 
(Evidence: OPD questions,  
processes and patient 
feedback) 
 

None identified  

 
 

5. Systems to ensure that all care workers (including contractors and volunteers) are aware of and discharge their responsibilities in 
the process of preventing and controlling infection  

 
Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 

Systems and processes are in place to 
ensure: 

   

• separation of patient pathways and 
staff flow to minimise contact between 
pathways. For example, this could 
include provision of separate 
entrances/exits (if available) or use of 
one-way entrance/exit systems, clear 
signage, and restricted access to 
communal areas 

Measures in place to maintain 
segregation. This includes 
segregated staff rest rooms for 
different pathways on ward 
areas. 
 
Ward doors have signage to 
ensure segregation from 
positive pathway areas 

Rest facilities for doctors not 
always available 

Separate rest rooms for doctors, 
being sourced through preventing 
COVID-19 transmission group, 
(January 2021) 
Additional provision of space being 
sourced to replace the ‘tent’ rest 
area based outside of Tower 
Block; due to building works was 
removed. 
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(Evidence: outbreak 
meetings, ward posters) 
 

• all staff (clinical and non- clinical) have 
appropriate training, in line with latest 
PHE and other guidance, to ensure their 
personal safety and working 
environment is safe 

All guidance is reviewed by 
IPAC to determine relevance.  
This is then shared with staff 
via the ICC through verbal and 
formal written briefs. PHE 
videos circulated to staff, 
posters circulated to staff. 
 
(Evidence:  IPAC advice to 
ICC, communications 
briefings, posters, website, 
COVID shelf) 
 

None identified  

• all staff providing patient care are trained 
in the selection and use of PPE 
appropriate for the clinical situation and 
on how to safely don and doff it 

As above None identified  

• a record of staff training is maintained  Local records are kept, FFP3 
training records on ESR. 
 
(Evidence: Local records, 
ESR) 
 

None identified  

• appropriate arrangements are in place 
that any reuse of PPE in line with 
the CAS alert is properly monitored and 
managed  

Draft Policy approved by ICC 
ready for use if required. 
Processes have been 
developed locally. 
 
(Evidence: Policy) 
 

None identified  

• any incidents relating to the re-use of Situation has not yet arisen – None identified Written briefing available in the 
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PPE are monitored and appropriate 
action taken 

but have written a briefing 
should the need arise. 
 
(Evidence: Briefing available 
in the ICC) 
 
 

ICC – if required (in line with 
national guidance). 

• adherence to PHE national guidance on 
the use of PPE is regularly audited  

Monthly audits by IPAC Teams.  
COVID-19 Wardens in place for 
each Care Group.  
Contact Tracing Team; ask the 
question during Contact 
Tracing. 
 
 
(Evidence; List of COVID-19 
Wardens, contact tracing 
questionnaire) 
 

  

• adherence to PHE national guidance 
on the use of PPE is regularly audited 

• hygiene facilities (IPC measures) and 
messaging are available for all 
patients/individuals, staff and visitors 
to minimise COVID-19 transmission 
such as: 

• hand hygiene facilities including 
instructional posters 

• good respiratory hygiene measures 
• maintaining physical distancing of 2 

metres wherever possible unless 
wearing PPE as part of direct care 

• frequent decontamination of 
equipment and environment in both 
clinical and non-clinical areas 

Monitoring via COVID-19 audits 
 
COVID-19 Wardens in place 
 
Hand wash and gel dispensers 
have method guides attached. 
 
Staff are advised to follow PHE 
guidance. 
 
IPAC Team are still undertaking 
ward visits and challenge 
where hand hygiene not 
adhered to 
Quanta audits have continued 
to monitor hand hygiene 
compliance. 
 
(Evidence: Trust 

None identified  
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• clear advice on use of face coverings 
and facemasks by 

• patients/individuals, visitors and by 
staff in non-patient facing areas 

• staff regularly undertake hand hygiene 
and observe standard infection control 
precautions 

communications, Quanta 
audits, COVID-19 Audits, 
COVID-19 Wardens) 
 

• Hand dryers in toilets are associated 
with greater risk of droplet spread than 
paper towels. Hands should be dried 
with soft, absorbent, disposable paper 
towels from a dispenser which is located 
close to the sink but beyond the risk of 
splash contamination, as per national 
guidance 

 There are no hand dryers in    
the ward environments. 
 
 
 
 
(Evidence: Environmental 
audits) 

None identified in clinical 
areas. 

Hand driers are installed in public 
toilets, from an environmental 
perspective and from a fire safety 
perspective  
 

• guidance on hand hygiene, including 
drying, should be clearly displayed in all 
public toilet areas as well as staff areas 

Posters on hand hygiene are 
available. Wipes to be provided 
in staff toilets to ensure each 
person cleans before/after use 
 
(Evidence: Posters in public 
toilets, ICC daily COVID-19 
meeting slides 11.01.21)) 
 

Audit of all areas to check 
posters are available. 

Audit to be completed by end of 
January 2021 to ensure posters 
and items are available. 

• staff understand the requirements for 
uniform laundering where this is not 
provided for on site 

Staff have been issued with 
guidance on washing uniform 
separately from other 
household linen, in a load not 
more than half the machine 
capacity and at the maximum 
temperature the fabric can 
tolerate, then ironed or tumble 
dried. Uniform Bags have been 
made available for staff. 
 
(Evidence: COVID-19 

None identified  
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communications) 
 

• all staff understand the symptoms of 
COVID-19 and take appropriate action in 
line with PHE and other national 
guidance if they or a member of their 
household display any of the symptoms. 

Staff are regularly reminded of 
the symptoms of COVID-19 
and the action to take in line 
with PHE guidance through 
briefings, Trust 
communications, FAQs and 
COVID shelf. 
 
(Evidence:  COVID-19 
Communications and ICC 
communications, COVID 
shelf FAQs) 
 

None identified  

• a rapid and continued response 
through ongoing surveillance of rates 
of infection transmission within the 
local population and for 
hospital/organisation onset cases (staff 
and patients/individuals) 

Daily Covid 19 meetings lead 
by ICC 
 
Combined RCHT/CFT outbreak 
meetings with CCG attendance 
 
Weekly system oversight 
meetings in place 
 
Weekly information produced 
by Information services and 
shared across the organisation 
with a weekly Teams briefing 
provided. 
 
(Evidence – System 
Oversight meeting minutes, 
Slide deck from information 
services) 
 

None identified  

• positive cases identified after 
admission that fit the criteria for 
investigation should trigger a case 

This definition is being used for 
outbreak investigation    
 

None identified  
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investigation. Two or more positive 
cases linked in time and place trigger 
an outbreak investigation and are 
reported. 
 

(Evidence: NHSE/I returns on 
national outbreak system) 

• robust policies and procedures are in 
place for the identification of and 
management of outbreaks of infection 

Outbreak Policy in place 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 

6. Provide or secure adequate isolation facilities 
 

Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 

Systems and processes are in place to 
ensure: 

   

• patients with suspected or confirmed 
COVID-19 are isolated in appropriate 
facilities or designated areas where 
appropriate 

 

Zoning is in place to 
accommodate patients with 
suspected or confirmed 
COVID-19 in the in-patient 
areas. These areas are 
reviewed on a weekly basis. 
Dedicated area identified in ED 
for patients with suspected or 
confirmed COVID-19. 
 
(Evidence: Ward zoning 
plans) 
 

None identified  

• areas used to cohort patients with 
suspected or confirmed COVID-19 are 
compliant with the environmental 
requirements set out in the current 

Not all bed spaces are more 
than 2 metres apart.  
 
 

Implementation of 2 metre 
social distancing 

Furniture re-arranged to facilitate 
greater segregation, use of 
mediscreens in place. 
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PHE national guidance 

• patients with resistant/alert organisms 
are managed according to local IPC 
guidance, including ensuring appropriate 
patient placement  

The Infection Prevention and 
Control Team monitor alert 
organisms daily via the ICNet 
surveillance system. A priority 
list has been produced in the 
event that side room availability 
is reduced. 
 
(Evidence – ICNet 
information, priority list) 
 

None identified  

 
7. Secure adequate access to laboratory support as appropriate 

 
Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 
There are systems and processes in place 
to ensure: 

   

• testing is undertaken by competent and 
trained individuals 

Testing is carried out by 
registered staff. Guidance on 
the correct way to take a swab 
has been produced and issued. 
 
(Evidence: COVID-19 
communication and staff 
video) 
 

None identified  

• patient and staff COVID-19 testing is 
undertaken promptly and in line with 
PHE and other national guidance 

Testing is requested in line with 
guidance and arranged by 
Occupational Health for staff. 
Patients are tested on 
admission or pre-admission for 
elective cases and if they show 
symptoms. 
 

None identified  
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Staff lateral flow testing 
implemented December 2020 
 
(Evidence: Staff testing 
proforma, pre-op testing 
process, Lateral flow staff 
results database) 
 

• screening for other potential infections 
takes place 

MRSA screening has been 
reduced to meet national 
guidance (RCHT still had a 
detailed screening programme). 
Diarrhoea risk assessments 
remain in place to assess for 
other infections. CPE screening 
remains in place. 
 
(Evidence: laboratory results, 
Comms email March 2020 
from Dr Bendall/Dr Vanstone) 
 

None identified  

 
8. Have and adhere to policies designed for the individual’s care and provider organisation  that will help prevent and control 

infections 
 

Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 

Systems and processes are in place to 
ensure that: 

   

• staff are supported in adhering to all IPC 
policies, including those for other alert 
organisms 

IPAC Team have continued 
with their daily surveillance and 
visits to wards. Seven day 
service has been in operation 
throughout the pandemic. 
 
IPAC training is included in 

None identified  
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induction and in mandatory 
training. 
 
Review and update of policies 
programme resumed to ensure 
policies based on current 
research 

 
(Evidence: mandatory 
training and induction 
sessions, IcNet records) 
 

• any changes to the PHE national 
guidance on PPE are quickly identified 
and effectively communicated to staff 

All guidance is reviewed by 
IP&C to determine relevance.  
This is then shared with staff 
through verbal and formal 
written briefs. 
 
(Evidence: COVID 
Communications) 
 

None identified  

• all clinical waste related to confirmed or 
suspected COVID-19 cases is handled, 
stored and managed in accordance with 
current national guidance   

Waste is disposed of as per 
National Guidance 
 
(Evidence: ward visits, 
COVID-19 audits) 

None identified  

• PPE stock is appropriately stored and 
accessible to staff who require it 

PPE is stored centrally through 
the PPE store 
 
(Evidence:  PPE store and 
distribution arrangements) 
 

None identified  

Stock levels are monitored 
three times per week 
 
(Evidence: stock control 
lists) 
 

None identified  
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Central ordering process in 
place with mutual aid between 
teams and between health and 
social care system. 
 
(Evidence: stock control 
process) 
 

None identified  

 
 
 
 

9. Have a system in place to manager the occupational  health needs and obligations of staff in relation to infection 
 

Key lines of enquiry Evidence Gaps in assurance Mitigating Actions 
Appropriate systems and processes are in 
place to ensure: 

   

staff in ‘at-risk’ groups are identified and 
managed appropriately including ensuring 
their physical and psychological wellbeing is 
supported 

BAME Risk assessment 

• We have taken the decision 
to include BAME colleagues 
into the vulnerable and at risk 
groups and are asking 
managers to have 
conversations with all BAME 
colleagues as they would for 
all within the vulnerable 
group; 
 

• We have updated our risk 
assessment which supports 
managers with these 
conversations to ensure they 
understand the concerns and 
needs of our BAME 

 New COVID-19 Vaccination 
Handbook will be circulated to all 
staff this month January 2021. 
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colleagues and their families; 
 

• BAME colleagues may wish 
to stay working with their 
team and if that is their 
preference, and we are 
supporting these decisions 
and complete a risk 
assessment to support 
individual choices. Additional 
PPE has been provided e.g. 
use of power assisted hoods; 

 
• There is some evidence that 

vitamin D deficiency may 
increase the risk of COVID-
19 infection, hospitalisation 
and mortality. Recognising 
that BAME colleagues are 
more likely to experience a 
vitamin D deficiency the Trust 
are taking a supportive, 
proactive and positive 
approach by offering these 
colleagues vitamin D 
supplements, on a no 
obligation basis; 

 
• In early May we sent out a 

letter to a number of 
colleagues outlining the steps 
we are taking to support the 
wellbeing of our Black, Asian 
and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
colleagues at this time in light 
of the emerging evidence of 
the disproportionate impact 
of COVID-19 on the BAME 
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community; 
 

• We held a Q&A session on 
Monday 1June at 1.00pm 
where a small panel including 
Kate Shields were available 
online to answer staffs 
questions in relation support 
being provided for BAME 
colleagues. We saw good 
engagement and 
participation from colleagues 
which prompted the offer to 
BAME colleagues to access 
vitamin D testing as well as 
increasing representation for 
our BAME Network; 

 
• Shielding staff have been 

routinely contacted by the 
Employee Relations team to 
have a welfare check - this 
was especially useful at the 
start of COVID-19 as it 
helped to identify people who 
needed help with shopping 
etc. as well as checking their 
mental health. 
 

  
(Evidence: Letter from CEO, 
Risk assessments, Vitamin 
D process, outcome of Q&A 
session) 
 

• staff required to wear FFP reusable 
respirators undergo training that is 
compliant with PHE national guidance 

Training programme for fit 
testing and reusable respirators 
has been delivered. Records 

None identified  
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and a record of this training is maintained 
 

available on ESR. 
 
(Evidence: ESR records) 
 

• consistency in staff allocation is 
maintained, with reductions in the 
movement of staff between different 
areas and the cross-over of care 
pathways between planned and elective 
care pathways and urgent and 
emergency care pathways, as per 
national guidance 

Staffing reviewed twice daily at 
safe care meetings and 
allocated accordingly. All 
attempts made to ensure staff 
do not move wards 
unnecessarily.   
 
(Evidence: staff rosters, Safe 
Care notes) 
 

This can be challenging at 
times due to staff absence 

Staff would be allocated only when 
all associated risks have been 
reviewed at Safe Care and for the 
full shift, not part shift. 
 
Safecare meeting has Senior 
Corporate Nursing attendance 
 
Staff have the ability to escalate 
staffing concerns / incident 
reporting – should this be required. 
 
 

• all staff adhere to national guidance on 
social distancing (2 metres) wherever 
possible, particularly if not wearing a 
facemask and in non-clinical areas 

There have been several 
messages issued via the ICC 
regarding social distancing.  
 
Face masks mandatory now 
except single occupancy office. 
Guidance on office use issued 
via ICC (wc 11.01.21) 
 
Social distancing posters 
displayed throughout the 
organisation. Social Distancing 
Cell exists to support this 
objective. 
 
 (Evidence: Risk 
assessments, signage, 
Coronavirus communication) 
 

Outbreak situations have 
identified non-adherence to 
this.  

New daily briefing for all areas to 
be issued via ICC 19.01.21 

• consideration is given to staggering staff 
breaks to limit the density of healthcare 

Staggering of breaks has been 
suggested in the COVID 

No all areas adhering to this 
identified in outbreak 

New daily briefing for all areas to 
be issued via ICC 19 January 2021 

Page 234 of 294



36  |  IPC board assurance framework 
 

workers in specific areas communication. 
 

(Evidence:  COVID-19 
Communication) 
 

meetings 

• staff absence and well-being are 
monitored and staff who are self-isolating 
are supported and able to access testing 
 

Shielding staff have been 
routinely contacted by the 
Employee Relations team to 
have a welfare check - this was 
especially useful at the start of 
COVID-19 as it helped to 
identify people who needed 
help with shopping etc. as well 
as checking their mental health 
and overall wellbeing. 
 
(Evidence: letters to 
individuals) 
 

None identified  

• staff that test positive have adequate 
information and support to aid their 
recovery and return to work 

Staff are contacted directly by 
Occupational Health or the 
Contact Tracing Team and are 
provided with the relevant 
information to support their 
return to work. 
 
(Evidence; Occupational 
health records) 
 

None identified  
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Executive Summary 

Meeting: Trust Board in Public Date: 04.02.21 

Report Title: NHS England Key Actions: 
Infection Prevention and Control 
and Testing 

Agenda 
Item: 

13.2 

Author: Louise Dickinson; Deputy Director of Nursing Midwifery and 
AHPs / Director of Infection, Prevention and Control 

Executive Lead: Kim O’Keeffe; Deputy Chief Executive Officer RCHT, Interim 
Joint Director of Nursing Midwifery and AHPs RCHT / CFT 

 

Alignment to Strategic Objectives  Tick 
box(es) 

Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

x 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

x 

  

Purpose of the Report  

Approve   Discuss  Note x 

The Key Actions: Infection Prevention and Control and Testing was first issued by 
NHS England on 17 November 2020 as a means of ensuring Trust Boards are aware 
of their responsibilities with regards Infection Prevention and Control practices and 
Testing as part of the COVID-19 response. Initial compliance response was returned 
on the 18 December 2020 to NHSE/I in line with the national ask. This has 
subsequently been updated on 23 December 2020 and the details below provide 
RCHT’s response to the ten key actions.  
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Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 

Infection Prevention and Control Board Assurance Framework which covers these 
key actions in more detail was presented to the Quality Assurance Committee in 
January 2021 and is an agenda item at February 2021 Trust Board. 

  

Summary of key points  

The NHSE Key Actions highlight 10 priorities for Trusts to be undertaking in 
response to the COVID -19 Pandemic. These include: 
 

• Infection control practices; 
• Social distancing; 
• Use of PPE; 
• Movement of patients throughout the Trust; 
• Daily submission of Covid-19 data; 
• Ward environment; 
• Staff testing; 
• Patient testing; 
• System overview of practice and Board Assurance Framework; 
• Review of System performance. 

 
The report highlights how the Trust is maintaining compliance against each of these 
actions. 

What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 

Is the Board assured that the Trust is compliant against each of these actions? 

Key risks 

Increased number of COVID-19 cases identified after admission resulting in an 
increase in the number of outbreaks with subsequent increase in the number of 
nosocomial cases. 
 
Increased number of outbreaks resulting in closed beds affecting bed capacity. 
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Recommendations and reasons  

The Board is recommended to:  

• note the Board’s responsibilities with regards Infection Prevention and Control 
practices and Testing as part of the COVID-19 response 

 

 

Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

Potential impacts on vulnerable clients in particular the 
elderly as they are at increased risk of infection. 

Environmental 
considerations 

 Increased use of PPE which impacts on the environment.  
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Key Actions: Infection Prevention and Control and Testing 
 

Royal Cornwall Hospitals NHS Trust Updated Response – January 2021 
 

Introduction 

The Key Actions: Infection Prevention and Control and Testing was first issued by NHS 
England on 17 November 2020 as a means of ensuring Trust Boards are aware of their 
responsibilities with regards Infection Prevention and Control practices and Testing as part 
of the COVID-19 response. Initial compliance response was returned on the 18 December 
2020 to NHSE/I in line with the national ask. This has subsequently been updated on 23 
December 2020 and the details below provide RCHT’s response to the ten key actions.  

It is the board’s responsibility to ensure that: 

 
1. Staff consistently practice good hand hygiene and all high touch surfaces and 

items are decontaminated multiple times every day, with systems in place to 
monitor adherence.  

 
Trust Response: 
We have issued guidance on several occasions of the need to wash hands and 
decontaminate high touch areas.  In addition we have evidence of communication 
issued from the ICC meetings, central communications, CEO Vlogs and Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals Blogs in weekly Newsletters on 
several occasions . COVID-19 audits are undertaken on a monthly basis with results 
fed back to each Triumvirate with oversite at the Infection Control Committee. 

 
2. Staff maintain social distancing in the workplace, when travelling to work 

(including avoiding car sharing) and to remind staff to follow public health 
guidance outside of the workplace. 
 
Trust Response: 
There are regular reminders of the national advice on social distancing.  There are 
posters displayed throughout the organisation to this effect. There is a social 
distancing group working to make sure the Trust is compliant.  A Safety Briefing 
‘Learning from COVID’ was issued Trust wide; social distancing and avoiding car 
sharing/ or use off appropriate PPE/Numbers etc. was included in this briefing. The 
Preventing COVID-19 Transmission Group is reviewing how staff can work in the 
same office and be safe. The advice from this group is that all staff who can must 
work from home; if they cannot every effort must be made to ensure single person 
occupancy of offices; where this is not possible (is not for some clinical teams) 
hands, face, space MUST be followed along with frequent cleaning of the 
workstation. COVID Champions from all teams are easily identified from name 
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badges across the three sites and are visible across the organisation and check and 
challenge as well as support staff. The Chief Executive’s VLOG and Director of 
Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals Blogs in weekly newsletters has 
also re-enforced these messages on several occasions. 

3. Staff wear the right level of PPE when in clinical settings, including use of face 
masks in non-clinical settings. Movement of staff between COVID and non-
COVID areas is minimised. 

 
Trust Response: 
National guidance on the use of PPE is issued to staff via the ICC and is available on 
the electronic platform; the COVID- 19 shelf. Further guidance has been issued with 
regards the use of face masks in non-clinical settings on a number of occasions. 
Posters are in situ; hands, face, space. COVID Wardens have been introduced to 
support points 2 and 3. Monthly COVID Check lists are completed in clinical areas. 
Consideration is given to which pathway staff are working on when re-deploying / 
allocating staff via the safe care meetings. 
 

4. Moving patients increases their risk of transmission of infection. For urgent 
and emergency care, hospitals should adopt pathways that support minimal or 
avoid patient bed/ward transfers for the duration of their admission (unless 
clinically imperative). The exception will be patients who need a period of care 
in a side room or other safe bed while waiting for their COVID test results. On 
occasions when it is necessary to cohort COVID or non-COVID patients 
because of bed occupancy, then reliable application of IPC measures must be 
implemented. It is also imperative that any vacated areas are cleaned as per 
guidance. 

 
Trust Response: 
For any patient who is clinically suspected of COVID-19; but has a negative swab on 
admission is not transferred to a base ward until a further negative result has been 
received. This is evidenced in our pathway flow chart. All patients are not moved to a 
base ward until their COVID-19 result is known. Where positive cases are confirmed 
on admission the area has a terminal clean prior to next occupancy. Where patients 
are transferred due to the need to cohort, IPC measures are implemented as 
required. 

 
 

5. Daily data submissions have been signed off by the Chief Executive, the 
Medical Director or the Chief Nurse, and the Board Assurance Framework is 
reviewed and evidence of reviews is available. 

 
Trust Response: 
This is an alert trigger in place to notify the CEO of any nosocomial cases. Sign off is 
via the CEO, or in the absence of the CEO, Deputy CEO / DON, Director of 
Operations or Medical Director. 
 
The IPC Board Assurance Framework has been reviewed by the Trust Board and is 
due to be presented again at the Quality Assurance Committee in January 2021 prior 
to Trust Board in February 2021. Quarterly reviews thereafter will be presented.  
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6. Where bays with high numbers of beds is in use, they must be risk assessed 
and where 2 metres cannot be achieved, means of physical segregation of 
patients are strongly considered. The concept of ‘bed, chair, and locker’ 
should be implemented. All wards should be effectively ventilated.  

Trust Response: 
All bed spaces have been reviewed and furniture re-positioned in 4 bedded bays to 
allow for 2 metre social distancing. In 6 bedded bays, bed to bed measurements 
meet 2 metre social distancing however if patients sit out in their chairs this is not 
always maintained. To address this, furniture has been repositioned and plastic 
medi-screens have been purchased and installed. Negative pressure ventilation is in 
place in our proposed co-horted COVID-19 positive ward. On all other areas, 
windows are encouraged to be opened. 
 

7. Staff testing: 
 
a. Implementation of twice weekly lateral flow antigen testing for NHS patient 

facing staff. Whilst lateral flow technology is the main mechanism for staff 
testing, this can continue to be used alongside PCR and LAMP testing. 

 
  
  Trust Response: 

Lateral flow testing has now commenced across the Trust with staff recording their 
results twice a week. 

 
PCR testing is used for any staff member with suspected symptoms or contacts 
identified by our contact tracing team or as part of any outbreak situation.  

 
  LAMP testing is not yet available to us. 

 
 

b. If your trust has a high nosocomial rate you should undertake additional targeted 
testing of all NHS staff, as recommended by your local and regional infection 
prevention and control/Public Health team. Such cases must be recorded, 
managed and reported using agreed regional/national escalation systems. 

 
Trust Response: 
We undertake targeted testing of all NHS staff when outbreaks have occurred. Any 
staff outbreaks are recorded on the national recording system. 

 
8. Patient Testing: 

 
• All patients must be tested at emergency admission, whether or not they 

have symptoms;  
 

• Those who go on to develop symptoms of COVID-19 after admission must 
be retested at the point symptoms arise. 

 
• Those who test negative upon admission must have a second test 3 days 

after admission, and a third test 5-7 days post admission;  
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• Sites with high nosocomial rates should consider testing COVID negative 
patients daily.  

 
• Patients being discharged to a care home must be tested 48 hours prior to 

discharge and must only be discharged when their test result is available. 
Care homes must not accept discharged patients unless they have that 
person’s test result and can safely care for them. 

 
• Elective patient testing must happen within 3 days before admission and 

patients must be asked to self-isolate from the day of the test until the day 
of admission. 

 
Trust Response: 
All patients who are admitted as an emergency, are tested on admission, and if 
negative again on day 3 and day 5. There is an electronic system available to all staff 
to monitor when patients swabs are due. 

 
All elective cases are swabbed 3 days prior to admission with an instruction to self-
isolate until they are admitted. 
 
Any patient who develops symptoms during their hospital stay has a COVID-19 swab 
taken. 
 
Any patient who is transferred to a Care Home is swabbed 48 hours prior to 
discharge. 

 
 

9. Systems 
 

Local systems must: 
Assure themselves, with commissioners that a Trust’s infection prevention and 
control interventions (IPC) are optimal, the Board Assurance Framework is 
complete, and agreed action plans are being delivered. 
 
Trust Response: 
System DIPC is invited to all outbreak meetings to have oversight of interventions.  
Weekly DIPC to DIPC meetings established.  

 
10.  Review system performance and data; offer peer support and take steps to 

intervene as required. 
 

Trust Response: 
Weekly system oversight group in place led by System DIPC where any 
issues/concerns/ request for support can be escalated. 
 

 
Date: 
25 January 2021 
Author: 
Louise Dickinson – Deputy Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals / 
DIPC 
Approved: 
Kim O’Keeffe – BEM 
Interim Joint Director of Nursing, Midwifery and Allied Health Professionals RCHT / CFT. 
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Executive Summary 
 

Meeting: Trust Board in Public Date: 04.02.21 
Report Title: Freedom to speak up Quarter 3 

Report 2020/21 
Agenda 
Item: 

14 

Author: Joanne Burton, Freedom to Speak Up Guardian 
Executive Lead: Kerry Eldridge, Director of People and OD 
 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives Tick 

box(es) 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

x 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

x 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

x 

  
Purpose of the Report  
Approve  x Discuss x Note  
The purpose of the report is to discuss and note the quarter 3 report from the 
Freedom to Speak Up Guardian. 
  
Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
Quarterly reports on Freedom to Speak up matters are reported to Trust Board. This 
report focuses on quarter 3, October-December 2020. 
  
Summary of key points  
• During October-December there have been 28 concerns raised 
• 12 of these concerns have been raised on the ‘work in confidence 

app’(anonymous) 
• 16 of these concerns have been raised directly with the Guardian. 
• Ancillary/maintenance colleagues have raised the most concerns this quarter, 

followed in equal numbers by nurses and administrative colleagues 
• Behaviours and relationship issues are the categories of concern that have most 

frequently been raised. 
• There are now 43 trained Freedom to Speak Up champions who are based over 

all three of our hospital sites and represent our diverse range of colleagues. 
• The Corporate care group have had the most concerns raised this quarter (9 

concerns)  
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What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
Are we creating a culture supportive of speaking up, where all staff promote and 
encourage colleagues to raise concerns at the earliest opportunity, and regard 
speaking up as a positive opportunity for learning and improvement?  
  
Key risks 
The organisation risks not receiving the concerns of staff in certain groups if they do 
not feel safe and supported in raising concerns and worry about detriment if they 
speak up. This could have a direct impact on patient care and the experience of staff 
at work. 
  
Recommendations and reasons  
The Board is recommended to: 
• note the quarter 3 report from the Freedom to Speak Up Guardian and the issues 

raised 
• endorse the Guardians recommendation to make the new training from the 

National Guardian’s Office mandatory for staff 
• note RCHT’s current index score for Freedom to Speak Up and comparative 

position   
 

   
 
 
Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

This paper is particularly relevant to the delivery of 
Equality and diversity in that Freedom to speak up relies 
upon a fair and open culture that supports all staff, 
including those with protected characteristics to speak up . 

Environmental 
considerations 

No direct implications. 
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Freedom to speak up Quarter 3 Report 2020/21 

 

1. Purpose  
The purpose of this report is to give an update on Freedom to Speak Up over all 
three of the hospital sites. This update includes how many concerns are being 
raised, the categories of those concerns and the staff groups and care group where 
colleagues raising concerns are based. The report will also give an update on 
Speaking up during the pandemic.  
 
2. Background and Links to Previous Papers 

• The external review by the National Guardians office 
• The action plan resulting from that review (signed off at June 2020 board 

meeting) 
• The quarterly report to trust board 
• The internal audit (April2017-April 2019)  

 
 
3. Executive Summary 
In Quarter 3, 28 concerns were raised, 12 on the ‘work in confidence app’ (procured 
in May2020) and 16 directly with the Guardian.  This compares to 26 raised in the 
same quarter 2019/20. The breakdown of these is detailed in charts 1-4 below. The 
distribution is similar across staff groups and categories of concern. As with previous 
quarters, the majority of cases raised during this quarter were issues regarding 
relationships and behaviours. A key difference between quarters is the rise from two 
concerns in the corporate care group to nine in this quarter.  
 
The Anonymous App. 
The anonymous ‘work in confidence’ App introduced in May2020 is being well used 
by a variety of staff groups. It provides colleagues with a choice of colleagues  to 
raise their concerns with. Concerns are dealt with in a timely way, as responders are 
notified by email and text message when a concern is awaiting their response. We 
assume that the number of increased anonymous cases may mean colleagues are 
worried that they may suffer detriment as a result of raising concerns. If detriment 
does occur they will be much less likely to speak up again, this has the potential to 
negatively affect the culture around speaking up and the persons work experience 
potentially effecting patient care. Our culture needs to be one whereby all staff feel 
safe to raise concerns. 
 
The definition of detriment is ’the state of being harmed or damaged. ’Examples of 
detriment following speaking up may be in relation to job prospects, negative 
behaviours from colleagues and an adverse impact on wellbeing .If colleagues who 
have spoken up to the Guardian feel they have suffered detriment  the Guardian 
would ensure this was investigated and lessons learned, but we must consider the 
wider speaking up that occurs across our hospitals. A healthy culture is key when 
considering if colleagues feel safe to raise concerns without the fear of detriment. 
Leaders at every level need to foster a supportive culture .The new NGO training 
and our own Being Brilliant leadership programme will play an important part in 
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encouraging and educating on a healthy speak up culture. Regular stories at board 
will also provide insight into how it feels to speak up at RCHT. 
 
National Speak Up Month 
October was national speak up month, a month lead by the National Guardians 
Office (NGO) to promote speaking up. Unlike the previous year when the Guardian 
and Champions were very visible within our hospitals we held various pop up virtual 
and some face to face sessions over all of our 3 sites. The purpose of these 
sessions was to promote speaking up and ensure colleagues know of options 
available to them, and meet the team. We participated in the National Guardians’ 
twitter ABC’ of speaking up to raise awareness and again promote speaking up. The 
team of champions promoted speaking up in their areas, this included talking about 
speaking up in team huddles and cake baking! 
 
Covid-19 Pandemic 
Throughout the Covid -19 pandemic there has been increased communication 
regarding health and well-being and this has included information on speaking up 
.The Freedom to Speak up service continues to thrive using phone conversations 
and video calls where appropriate. The Guardian continues to work in an informal 
way, supported by Organisational Development colleagues using facilitated 
conversations to often resolve issues and help colleagues form healthier 
relationships with each other, during the last quarter this has worked successfully via 
teams .We have again been  supporting several colleagues to have ‘difficult 
conversations’ with their direct line managers. The Guardian continues to work 
closely with the Organisational Development team and other key colleagues as 
relevant on themes that emerge in departments, the aim being to improve colleagues 
working environment and safeguard patient care.  

 
Freedom to speak up Champions 
The Guardian continues to receive ’referrals’ from our trained champions who 
represent all of our staff groups, the champions do not have a case load but offer 
support and guidance to colleagues who want to speak up. (Appendix 1) Weekly 
Bios have been communicated for each champion complete with a photo and 
contact details and some friendly information to promote and engage colleagues with 
this supportive team.  The Freedom to Speak up team currently meets on a monthly 
basis, to exchange ideas and provide a healthy space for discussion and support. 
The Guardian has arranged various learning during these sessions including ‘having 
difficult conversations’ and in March 2021 a session on basic coaching skills. 

 
NHS Staff Survey 
Each NHS Trust in England is given an Index Score by the NGO based on a small 
subset of questions within the NHS staff survey. The NGO recognise a higher score 
as being a measure of a healthy FTSU culture which in turn is an indicator of a high 
performing trust. 
 
The survey questions that have been used to make up the FTSU index are:  

 
• % of staff responded "agreeing" or "strongly agreeing" that their organisation 
treats staff who are involved in an error, near miss or incident fairly (question 
17a)  
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• % of staff responded "agreeing" or "strongly agreeing" that their organisation 
encourages them to report errors, near misses or incidents (question 17b)  
• % of staff responded "agreeing" or "strongly agreeing" that if they were 
concerned about unsafe clinical practice, they would know how to report it 
(question 18a)  
• % of staff responded "agreeing" or "strongly agreeing" that they would feel 
secure raising concerns about unsafe clinical practice (question 18b)  
 
The Index score at RCHT in 2019 was 75%.Early indications from last year’s staff 
survey suggest that we have made improvements in the above mentioned 
questions, however this places the Trust in the bottom quartile of this 
ranking.(The lowest score being 68% and the highest 87%.) 
 
Training 
New training modules have been endorsed by the National Guardians Office. The 
training is provided through eLearning and includes: 
 

1. Speak up (for all staff) 
2. Listen Up (for all managers), and  
3. Follow up (for Board members) 

 
These are short sessions and the board is requested to consider making these 
mandatory, as this education is key for all staff ,to support a safe culture where 
speaking up is business as usual and enables colleagues to feel better at work 
and provide safe patient care. 
 
Freedom to Speak up data for quarter 3 (October-December 2020) 
 
Chart 1. Freedom to Speak Up Q3 Cases 
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Chart 2. Category of Concern  
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Chart 3. Staff Groups Raising Concerns  
 

 
 
 
Chart 4. Concerns Raised by Care Group 
 

 
 

4. Areas of Risk 
• Fear of detriment may prevent colleagues from raising concerns; this could affect 

wellbeing at work, morale, retention and have a direct impact on patient care. 
• Experiencing detriment as a result of speaking up could negatively affect the 

reputation of Freedom to Speak up leading to a culture which does not trust and 
support speaking up. 

• Feeling unsafe to speak up can negatively impact on colleagues work experience 
and also on patient care and indicates that the culture at RCHT is not supportive of 
speaking up in all areas. 
 

5. Link to Trust Objectives and Corporate/Board Assurance Framework Risks  
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Freedom to speak up links directly to the NHS People plan, our Organisational 
development plan, and supports the ‘well led ‘domain’ of assessment by the Care 
Quality Commission.  

 
6. Governance  

Data regarding number of cases, categories of concern, and staff groups is 
submitted to the National Guardians Office on a quarterly basis by the Guardian. 
 

7. Responsibility 
Operational lead: Joanne Burton, Freedom to Speak up Guardian 
Executive Lead: Kerry Eldridge –Director of People and Organisational Development 
 
8. Recommendations 
The Board is recommended to receive the report, to note the issues raised, and 
consider the approach to the new NGO training, and also to note the current index 
score. 

 
 

 
Name and Title of Author: Joanne Burton Freedom to Speak up Guardian 

 Date: January 2021 
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Appendix 1: 
 
The Freedom to speak up Guardian and champions 
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Executive Summary 
 

Meeting: Trust Board in Public Date: 04.02.21 
Report Title: Board Assurance Framework and 

Corporate Risk Management 
Report 

Agenda 
Item: 

15 

Author: Samantha Chalmers – Risk Manager 
Executive Lead: Bernadette George –Director of Integrated Governance 
 
Alignment to Strategic Objectives Tick box(es) 
Brilliant Care - Always providing safe, effective and compassionate 
care, where we listen and learn to provide an excellent patient 
experience and reduce avoidable harm. 

X 

Brilliant Improvement - Instilling a culture of quality improvement 
where everyone feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of 
our patients. 

X 

Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive environment to 
attract, develop and retain brilliant people. 

X 

  
Purpose of the Report  
Approve  x Discuss X Note  
This report provides an update on the risks against the strategic pledges and the 
most significant risks to the Trust’s ability to optimise survival and minimise 
unnecessary harm from Covid-19. It also provides a summary of the top rated risks 
on the corporate risk register. 
  
Consultation – other meetings discussed with and outcome of discussion: 
Board Assurance Framework risks circulated to executive risk holders prior to 
submission. 
Corporate Risk Register reviewed and approved at Executive Board November 
2020. 
Board Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk Register reviewed at Audit and 
Risk Assurance Committee 14 January 2020. 
  
Summary of key points  
The Board Assurance Framework has also been revised during October, November 
and December 2020 in light of the ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. A 
review of the Health and Safety Strategic Risk was requested by the Audit and Risk 
Committee on the 14 January 2020. A deep dive of this risk will take place at the 
Trust Board Informal on the 28 January and a verbal update will be provided at the 
Trust Board. 
 
There have been minor changes to the wording of the Covid-19 risk (3754) and the 
financial position risk (7287). The rating of the capital investment risk (7375) and the 
Covid-19 RTT risk (6418) have been reduced to reflect the current position. The risk 
relating to the integrated care system (7353) has increased.   
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The risk rating in relation to (7302) Environment Agency/CQC/HSE Compliance re 
Radioactive Materials - Condition of Premises was reviewed at the Audit and Risk 
Committee as a matter of escalation to the Trust Board. Since the Audit and Risk 
Committee the business case has been approved in principle and will be put forward 
in the risk prioritisation process for consideration in the 2021 /2022 Capital 
Programme which will take place on the 28 January with a further update provided at 
the Trust Board. 
 
At the request of the Trust Board a further review of the Covid-19 risk (3754) took 
place on 8 January 2021 with the Interim Director Of Operations, Director Of 
Integrated Governance and Risk Manager. The strategic risk remains unchanged in 
terms of score but will be reviewed again in 2/52 as the Trusts hospital response to 
wave 2 continues in preparation for the February Trust Board. 
 
A summary of the top rated risks in the corporate risk register and progress against 
them is listed in the paper below including 1 new Covid-19 related risk (7927 – virus 
testing). 
 
What is the key question(s) for the meeting to consider? 
Do the principal risks articulated in this report accurately reflect the key operational 
and strategic risks facing the organisation? 
  
Key risks 
The principle risks to the organisation form the substance of the BAF and are 
described in detail below. The highest rated risks in the Trust at the end of 
December 2020 are: 
 

• 8040 There are underlying unsafe conditions that have an impact on Fire 
Safety  

• 7302 Environment Agency/CQC/HSE Compliance re Radioactive Materials - 
Condition of Premises 

• 4301 ED crowding 
• 7703 Delays to transfer CAMHS patients out of the Emergency Department 

(ED) 
• 7968 Recent structural fire risk identified requiring major works on Neonatal 

Unit (NNU) 
  
Recommendations and reasons  
The Board is recommended to: 
• approve the changes to the current strategic risks following executive review 

during October November and December 2020 and 8 January 2021. Approve a 
further review in 2/52 given the dynamic Covid-19 situation and Health and 
Safety strategic risk at the February 2021 Trust Board meeting. 

• approve the changes made to the corporate risk register.  
• note the current position on the top rated risks on the corporate risk register and 

the updated position in relation to the 7302 Environment Agency/CQC/HSE 
Compliance re Radioactive Materials - Condition of Premises following review at 
the 2021/2022 Capital Programme prioritisation process meeting.  
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Equality and Diversity 
Statement 

Covid -19 has highlighted national health inequalities that 
the Trust is working to overcome with health partners. 
 

Environmental 
considerations 

There are a number of risks that have an environmental 
impact; in addition, the extra use of PPE will have an 
impact on the production of waste at the Trust. The Trust 
is working to minimise the environmental impacts of these 
risks. 
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1. Purpose  
 
This report provides an update on the risks against the strategic pledges and the 
most significant risks to the Trust’s ability to optimise survival and minimise 
unnecessary harm from Covid-19. It also provides a summary of the top rated risks 
on the corporate risk register (CRR). 
 
2. Background and Links to Previous Papers 
 
This report aims to provide the committee with an update on the top rated risks on 
the CRR as at 30th December 2020, and the Board Assurance Framework (BAF). 
 
Covid -19 has had a significant impact on existing risks to the Trust. This includes: 
 

• The effect of any national changes to lockdown restrictions; 
• The expected winter 2020 surge in general demand for secondary health 

care; 
• The delayed, or deferred, treatment of non-Covid -19 patients; with elective 

care recommencing and an increase in emergency cases;  
• The increased potential for a second and third wave Covid-19 infection ‘spike’; 

and 
• Overall capacity restrictions caused by adherence to ‘social distancing’ 

proximity restrictions, imposed by national guidance. 
 

Key Terms Used in this Report: 

       Board Assurance Framework (BAF): Key document which records the 
principal risks to strategic objectives. The BAF also provides the Board with 
sources of assurance that controls are working effectively. 

Corporate Risk Register (CRR): A register of all operational risks with 
scores of 15 or more or those deemed to have an organisational wide impact. 

 
Current risk score: Assessment of current risk score with current mitigation 
in place using 5(c) x5(l) risk matrix.  

Principal risk: A risk which threatens achievement of the Trust’s strategic 
objectives. 

Risk scores: 
1-3=’Low risk’ 
4-6=’Moderate risk’ 
8-12=’High risk’ 
15-25=’Extreme risk’ 

Target risk score: The estimated achievable risk score when all actions are 
completed. 

 

Page 255 of 294



5 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 
The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) and the corporate risk register have been 
revised during November and December 2020 in light of the ongoing impact of the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  
 
Changes to the BAF are listed in section 4 including one increase (7353 – integrated 
care system) and two reductions (7357 –capital investment and 6418 – Covid-19 
RTT). A summary of the top rated risks and progress against them is listed in section 
6 below including one new Covid-19 related risk (7927 – virus testing). 
 
4. Areas of Risk – Board Assurance Framework (BAF) 

 
The purpose of the BAF is to enable the Board to ensure that assurance is received 
that principal risks are being managed effectively. The 2020/21 BAF and the 
principal risks have been developed in consideration of the strategic goals outlined in 
the Trust’s 2019-22 Strategy. 
 
The BAF was reviewed by the executives during October, November and December 
2020. The outcomes are summarised below. 
 

• Minor amendments to the wording of the Covid-19 risk ID 3754 
• The wording of the description for the financial balance risk ID 7827 has been 

altered 
• The rating of the capital investment risk ID 7357 has been reduced to reflect 

the evolving position from 16 to 12 
• The Covid -19 RTT risk (6418) has reduced from 20 to 16 
• The integrated care system risk (7353) has increased from 12 to 16 and now 

features on the corporate risk register 
 
Other risks in the BAF have been subtly amended to reflect those discussions and 
any changes have been highlighted. 
 
The Trust Strategy has identified three strategic goals and now has eighteen 
organisational pledges (including a pledge relating to Covid-19) that the Trust has 
committed to deliver in order to achieve the strategic goals. The principal risks are 
aligned to these goals: 
 
 

 
 
 

Pledge Principal Risk Score 
Brilliant Care  16 
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Pledge Principal Risk Score 
BC 1.1: Provide care that is safe and 
avoids harm 
 
Risk ID 7013 

There is a risk that the Trust will not be able 
to deliver high quality, harm free, 
compassionate care to patients. This is due 
to; ongoing recruitment challenges and the 
use of temporary staff. 
 

↔ 

Brilliant Care 
BC 1.4: Provide clinically effective 
care, which minimises delay and the 
amount of time people have to spend 
in our care 
 
Risk ID 7016 
 

 
There is a risk that demand outstrips capacity 
and the Trust will not be resilient at times of 
surge and extremis, which will adversely  
impact on the quality of care delivered, 
impacting the Trusts ability to deliver a range 
of constitutional standards. 
 

16 
↔ 

Brilliant Care 
BC 1.4: Provide clinically effective 
care, which minimises delay and the 
amount of time people have to spend 
in our care 
 
Risk ID 6418 
 

 
There is a parent risk that the Trust's RTT 
performance and elective waiting times will 
significantly deteriorate. This is caused by 
loss of both capacity and activity in response 
to the Covid-19 pandemic. This could lead to 
an increase in waiting list and RTT Patient 
Tracking List size and length, resulting in 
considerable delays to both diagnosis and 
treatment. This could cause patient harm, as 
well as stress for our workforce. 
 

  16 
↓ 

Brilliant Care 
BC1.5: Work with our health and care 
system to improve the health of our 
community 
 
Risk ID 7353 
 

 
There is a risk that the lack of alignment 
between organisational strategies/priorities 
will limit the scale and pace of our progress 
towards an integrated care system for CIOS 
Health and Care Partnership. 

16 
↑ 

Brilliant Care 
BC 1.6: Provide an environment that 
is clean and welcoming.  
 
Risk ID 6752 

 
Risk that our building, equipment and digital 
infrastructure are not fit for purpose nor 
provide a safe and effective environment to 
deliver health care due to insufficient capital 
resource 
 

16 
↔ 

Brilliant Care 
BC 1.7 Optimising survival and 
minimising unnecessary harm from 
Covid-19 
 
Risk ID 3754 

 
There is a risk that the requirement to 
manage our patients (red/amber/green) in 
response to Covid-19 and the adjustments to 
the hospital state has impacted on patient 
flow. This is caused by holding patients whilst 
awaiting results, the conversion of estate to 
critical care (limiting availability for non- 
critical care patients) and the complexity of 

16 
↔ 
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Pledge Principal Risk Score 
maintaining capacity across Covid-19 positive 
and Covid-19 negative wards.  
 
(New text below) 
Leading to delays in medical and surgical 
admissions, patient harm, loss of staff due to 
sickness, delayed care pathways, 
preventable death and the potential to move 
patients where their covid-19 result is not 
known 
 
Formerly: Leading to delays in medical and 
surgical admissions, patient harm, loss of 
staff due to burn out and sickness, delayed 
care pathways, preventable death and the 
potential to move patients where their Covid 
result is not known. 
 

Brilliant Improvement 
(formerly Brilliant People) 
 
BI3.1 
 
Ensure that everyone has the 
capability and capacity to pursue 
quality improvements for our patients 
 
(Formerly 
BP 2.1:  Provide great leadership and 
support to help colleagues be the 
best they can be. 
 
BP 2.3:  Make sure colleagues 
receive feedback to know how they 
are doing 
 
BP 2.4:  Provide development to help 
colleagues learn and grow 
 
BP 2.6:  Are true to our values and 
create a brilliant place to work) 
 
Risk ID 7019 
 

 
There is a risk that we have insufficient 
change management capacity and capability 
and inconsistent to deliver the pace and 
change of style required to deliver brilliant 
care. 
 
 

12 
↔ 

Brilliant People 
BP 2.2: Create a safe environment so 
colleagues feel supported to speak 
up 
 

 
There is a risk that our culture change isn't 
sufficient to deliver brilliant care 
 

9 
↔ 
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Pledge Principal Risk Score 
Risk ID 7354 
 
Brilliant People  
BP 2.5: Provide an environment that 
supports colleague safety, health & 
wellbeing 
 
Risk ID 7492 
 

 
There is a risk that the systems and 
processes of health and safety are not 
understood or embedded at all levels of the 
organisation 
This is caused by insufficient specialist 
knowledge and resources to rectify identified 
gaps which has been compounded by 
historical issues 
This could lead to harm to patients or staff, 
regulatory action and reputational damage for 
the Trust 
 

16 
↔ 

Brilliant Improvement 
BI3.1 Spend our money wisely. 
 
Risk ID 7287 

 
Risk that the Trust does not achieve its 
financial target which will result in lost 
income, additional debt and a longer period of 
time to recover to a cumulative breakeven 
position. In relation to Covid-19: 
 
(new text below) 
 
The Trust has a £6.9m deficit financial plan 
for Month 7 to Month 12. The key risk to this 
is that it is based on low levels of Covid-19 
activity. If this increases the Trust could see 
higher costs to cover staff absence. The Trust 
could also be penalised under the Elective 
Incentive Scheme.  
 
The Trust will continue to fail in its statutory 
duty to breakeven cumulatively. Failure to 
meet the current financial plan could result in 
cash shortfalls or the need for additional 
funding, failure to meet system targets, 
increased scrutiny from regulators and 
contractual breaches 
 
 
Formerly: The financial framework originally 
in place to July has been extended to 
September. The financial framework from 
October onwards has not yet been finalised 
although is likely to be based on system-level 
spend. There is a risk that there may be 
unrecoverable revenue costs due to 
unmitigated impacts on performance and 

12 
↔ 

Page 259 of 294



9 
 

Pledge Principal Risk Score 
statutory compliance and how the Trust 
recovers its performance.  
 
This is caused by the Trust being unable to 
manage or identify the potential gaps and 
shortfalls in revenue link to its Covid response 
and the financial architecture.  
As with not achieving savings targets or 
overspending in other ways, this could result 
in failure to meet statutory duty to meet 
financial targets, fines or fees from regulators 
or contractual breaches) 

Brilliant Improvement 
BI 3.2:  Use innovation and 
technology to improve the quality, 
experience and cost of care. 
 
Risk ID 7357 
 

 
Risk that the Trust is not able to afford capital 
investment to enable it to ensure that service 
continuity is maintained, statutory regulations 
are adhered to and services are improved 
through the use of technology where 
possible. 
 
Trust is not able to deliver major estates 
projects including HIP2 and Progressive 
Recovery Unit schemes and would need to 
request re-proofing of funding 
 

12 
↓ 

Brilliant Improvement 
BI 3.3: Grow the Trust’s national 
reputation for excellence in research 
and development 
 
Risk ID 7024 

 
Lack of clinical buy-in/engagement with 
research will result in patients not having an 
opportunity to take part in trials that may 
enhance their quality of life / wellbeing now or 
in the future. Secondly the Trust does not 
maximise income to be reinvested into clinical 
care.  
    

6 
↔ 

Brilliant Improvement 
BI 3.5: Celebrate achievement and 
will create a culture that enables 
continuous improvement. 
 
Risk ID 7018 

 
There is a risk that staff do not know about or 
feel that they are able to contribute to the 
continued improvement of the organisation 
caused by insufficient communication and 
engagement of staff in decision making, 
linked to the pace of change required. 
 

12 
↔ 
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5. Corporate Risk Register (CRR) Covid-19 
 
The Corporate Risk Register is reviewed monthly by the executive board.  
 
The most significant risk to the Trust at the present time remains the impact of the 
Coronavirus on the Trust’s ability to provide services and to safeguard staff well-
being. The impact of Covid-19 on the Trusts ability to meet referral to treatment 
times (RTT) remains a significant concern and features in two extreme rated risks 
(Risk ID 7847 – Covid-19 related RTT at SMH and 6418 – Referral to Treatment 
(RTT) & Elective Waits Delays overarching risk on the BAF). There is also a new risk 
related to Covid-19 and respiratory virus testing capacity and capability (Risk ID 
7927). 
 
The overarching Covid-19 risk ID 3754 remains on the BAF at 16 (Extreme). The key 
control remains the use of expertise, and dynamic responsive plans with strong 
leadership and ownership from the executive team. 
 
Covid-19 planning and preparedness is managed through the Incident Control 
Centre (ICC) at RCHT, in close liaison with our partners, to achieve a Cornwall-wide 
response. 
 
The Risk Manager reviews all risks held by the Incident Control Centre (ICC) on a 
regular basis and cross reference them with existing risks on Datix where required.  
 
Table 1: Corporate Risk Register – Covid-19 

Corporate Risk Description Risk 
Score 

Target 
Risk 

Score 

Executive Lead 

Risk remains stable at 15 
(Risk ID 7847) 
 
There is a risk that the COVID-19 pandemic 
will impact on the elective Orthopaedic 
service due to the following: 

• Delay of all urgent and routine new 
outpatient appointments 

• Delay of all urgent and routine follow 
up appointments 

• Delay of all diagnostic appointments 
• Delay of all patients receiving any type 

of treatment 
• Cancellation of all urgent and routine 

15 

↔ 

9 

Chief Operating 
Officer 
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elective surgery 
• Transfer of Trauma Service to St 

Michaels Hospital  
This will potentially cause the following 
impact the following: 

• Unable to achieve patient’s RTT due 
minimal elective capacity during 
pandemic 

• Potential delays when the service 
restarts 

• Delay to diagnostic appointments 
which form part of the Consultant’s 
management plan 

Any or all of the above have the potential to 
cause harm to patients in delaying their RTT 
pathway 
 
NEW risk rated 16 
(Risk ID 7927) 
 
There is a risk that RCHT and Cornwall will 
have insufficient capability and capacity for 
Covid-19, flu and respiratory virus testing. 
This is caused by a single high throughput 
analyser with limited back up capacity and 
could lead to loss of testing capacity with a 
subsequent impact on patient safety, patient 
flow and management of community flu and 
Covid-19 outbreaks 
 

16 

NEW 

6 

Chief Operating 
Officer 

Reduced from 20 to 16 (BAF risk) 
(Risk ID 6418) 
 
UPDATED TO REFLECT COVID-19 
IMPACT. There is a risk that the Trust's RTT 
performance and elective waiting times will 
significantly deteriorate. This is caused by 
loss of both capacity and activity in response 
to the Covid-19 pandemic. This could lead to 
an increase in waiting list and RTT Patient 

16 

↓ 

12 

Chief Operating 
Officer 
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6.  Corporate Risk Register (CRR) non-Covid-19 
 
At time of reporting there were 31 extreme rated risks that were open and finally 
approved on Datix. The highest rated risks on the CRR are all rated 20 and are as 
follows: 

• 8040 There are underlying unsafe conditions that have an impact on Fire 
Safety  

• 7302 Environment Agency/CQC/HSE Compliance re Radioactive Materials - 
Condition of Premises 

• 4301 ED crowding 
• 7703 Delays to transfer CAMHS patients out of ED 
• 7968 Recent structural fire risk identified requiring major works on NNU 

 
 
Table 2 –Corporate Risk Register (CRR) – Non-Covid-19 

Tracking List size and length, resulting in 
considerable delays to both diagnosis and 
treatment. This could cause patient harm, as 
well as stress for our workforce. 

Corporate Risk Description Risk 
Score 

Target 
Risk 

Score 

Executive Lead 

Risk remains stable at 20  
(Risk ID 8040) 
 
There is a risk that… existing unsafe 
conditions will not be adequately managed. 
This is caused by… a failure to undertake 
identified remedial works and no assurance 
on how works have been prioritised. This 
could lead to… multiple statutory breaches, 
prosecutions, reputational damage, harm to 
staff and patients and damage to buildings 
and infrastructure. 

20 8 

Chief Operating 
Officer 
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Risk remains stable at 20 
(Risk ID 7302) 
 
There is a risk that the Trust will be found to 
be in breach of legislative requirements 
regarding the safe use of radiation & control 
of radioactive contamination due to the poor 
condition & layout of premises. 
 
This is caused by: 
1) Aging and physical degradation of the 
fabric of the premises and associated 
equipment being end of life (facility dates 
from 2003) 
2)  “Historic” facility which was not 
purpose designed & does not meet modern 
standards for clinical use of radioactive 
materials, particularly contamination 
controlled areas exit directly onto public 
spaces. 
 
This could lead to:  
Enforcement action by Environment Agency 
(Environmental Permitting Regulations) or 
enforcement action by HSE (Ionising 
Radiations Regulations) – risk of loss of 
clinical services inc. those supporting cancer 
pathways.  The facility was noted as barely 
compliant by EA in Apr 2019 and **re-
inspection by EA will occur in Apr 2021**.  
HSE have served improvement notices 
against Chester and Liverpool on this issue. 
 
Adverse inspection outcome from CQC 
specialist radiation inspectors (IRMER team), 
resulting in “inadequate” in the safe domain 
and loss of Clinical Imaging’s “outstanding” 
rating.  We are **expecting a CQC inspection 
in early 2021** as part of a planned 
programme of inspection of radiotherapy 
services (inc. radionuclide therapies which 

20 8 

Medical Director 
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are delivered by Nuc Med) of the SW region. 
 
Avoidable radiation exposure to members of 
staff or patients 
 
Delay in replacing the end of life “Brightview” 
gamma camera which is linked as it lays 
within this footprint, risking terminal failure 
and loss of ~1/3rd of clinical service capacity. 
Risk remains stable at 20  
(Risk ID 4301) 
 
There is a risk that ED will need to 
accommodate more patients than capacity 
allows due to increased attendances and exit 
block. This is caused by poor flow throughout 
the hospital and will lead to the inability to off 
load ambulances due to insufficient trolley's, 
and patients queuing in the corridor which will 
cause a delay in the assessment and 
treatment for potentially life threatening 
illnesses. It also compromises the privacy 
and dignity of patients and delays ambulance 
crews being released to attend their next 
calls.  
 

20 

↔ 

8 

Chief Operating 
Officer 

This risk remains stable at 20 
(Risk ID 7703) 
 
There is a risk that CAMHS patients will 
receive inappropriate care or interventions, or 
be managed in an environment where their 
welfare needs will not be met 
This is caused by a failure of collaborative 
system working across the local health 
economy in managing an effective response 
to an escalating patient in ED 
This could lead to patient distress, increased 
length of stay, negative impact on staff 
morale, poor reputation for the Trust and poor 

20 

↔ 

8 

Chief Operating 
Officer 
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7. Governance  
 
The Trust has a statutory and regulatory requirement to ensure that all significant 
risks are recorded and that appropriate mitigating action is taken to safeguard the 
people and property of the Trust and our patients and visitors. The Trust has a risk 
management policy to support staff and risk is a key agenda item for all trust 
committees and groups. 
 
8. Responsibility 
 
Bernadette George, Executive Director of Integrated Governance 
 
8. Recommendations 
 
The Committee is invited to: 
 
• approve the changes to the current strategic risks following executive review 

during October November and December 2020 and 8 January 2021. Approve a 
further review in 2/52 given the dynamic Covid-19 situation and Health and 
Safety strategic risk at the February 2021 Trust Board meeting. 

• approve the changes made to the corporate risk register.  
• note the current position on the top rated risks on the corporate risk register and 

the updated position in relation to the 7302 Environment Agency/CQC/HSE 
Compliance re Radioactive Materials - Condition of Premises following review at 
the 2021/2022 Capital Programme prioritisation process meeting. 

 
 
Name and Title of Author: Samantha Chalmers, Risk Manager 
Date:8th January 2020 

patient experience 
 

This risk remains stable at 20 
(Risk ID 7968) 
 
There is a risk that in the event of a fire on 
the neonatal unit those patients could not be 
safely evacuated in time. 
This is caused by inadequate fire protection 
infrastructure. 
This could lead to significant harm to patients 
and staff. 
 

20 

↔ 

3 

Chief Operating 
Officer 
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BAF 2020/21

 7013

QAC DoN
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 4 5 20
Current 4 4 16
Appetite 2 4 8
Approach

RAG

AMBER

AMBER

RED
GREEN

RED
RED

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Tolerance 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Matron rounds and feedback mechanisms 

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received

Care Group monthly performance reports
Integrated Performance report to Board

Ward to Board Framework
Being Brilliant Staff development programme

The Trust's Performance Assurance Framework (PAF)

Patient Experience surveys - sent to Heads of Nursing

Ward Accreditation Programme - Aspire is embedded in all inpatient wards with roll out toED, 
outpatients, critical care, paediatrics and maternity

Quality Assurance Committee reportsTwice daily SAFER care meeting and appropriate redeployment of staff

HR Organisational Development reports to People and Organisational Development 
Committee and Board

"Safety Huddles" in place in all inpatient units to identify high risk patients. Twice yearly establishment review and biannual safer staffing report
Friends and Family Test (FFT)

CQC Scrutiny Group meetings and the associated Integrated Action Plan 

Monthly Ward Accreditation reports and action plans to QAC and quarterly to Board

Date Risk Reviewed 22.09.2020
Rationale: Likelihood has been scored at 4. 
Consequence has been scored at 4 because the Trust 
continues to report a significant number of incidents that 
result in moderate - severe harm 
Target score corrected.TREAT

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

Safe, Effective, Caring  Responsive & Well -Led 

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

Transformation Board

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Strategic Aim 1: Brilliant Care -  Always providing safe, 
effective and compassionate care, where we listen and learn 
to provide an excellent patient experience

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

1.1 Pledge 

Provide care that is safe and avoids harm

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People There is a risk that the Trust will not be able to consistently deliver high 
quality , harm free, compassionate care to patients. This is due to; 
ongoing recruitment challenges and the use of temporary staff.

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain

Current Performance 
Ward to Board framework
Care group performance framework
Package of safety metrics on IPR

Additional Comments
There is additional capacity and the piece of work undertaken to redeploy staff, as well as the work 
done to flex up and flex down capacity for buisness as usual. Due to lower numbers the harm profile 
will reduce and the go up again as activity increases.

The red assurances remain red due to the current performance position in the IPR Nursing vacancy position continues to improve 
Quarterly ward to board report showed no significant degradation
Improvement in CQC action plan

Gaps in control

Overarching recruitment plan
Temporary staff and associated agency costs
Roster Planning

Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance

Template review for all inpatient wards - October 2020

Allocate team to visit to re-educate teams on roster function and compliance. - COMPLETED
9 International recruits started Sep 2020 - further cohort due Oct 2020
Allocate Rostering action plan

Current Safer Care SOP and staffing escalation procedure published in Documents Library

Operational Workgroup Group meet fortnightly

Review of staffing including within corporate teams and review of management and study 
days as appropriate - Meeting took place on 1/10/19 relating to E-Rostering

0

0.5

1

A0

10

20

A M J J A S O N D J F M
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 7016

FPC COO
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 5 5 25
Current 4 4 16
Appetite 3 3 9
Approach

     RAG
AMBER

AMBER
RED

AMBER
AMBER

RED
AMBER
GREEN

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Tolerance 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9

Gaps in control

capacity and demand modelling 
RTT Recovery Plans at specialty level
Diagnostic Recovery Plan 
Ongoing daily capacity management calls (Bronze) New daily operational management calls. Revised 
escalating calls incorporating regular gold calls

Timed pathways continues to reduce waiting times 

Review Care Group led Trust operational weekly 4 hour meetings
Newton Europe work to improve flow. 

All IPR commentary provided from Care Groups

Summary report to be provided to Operational Board from PTL meeting (following same principles of 
RTT report to Board) 

 Embrace programme has superseded 4hr recovery programme to ensure system 
response

Weekly RTT PTL meeting

QIDB and recovery plans being created by the Care Groups

Matrons and Service Managers daily walk rounds

System oversight

System wide flow improvements to ensure bed availability for elective procedures

RTT incomplete performance continues to deteriorate as projected - currently at 52.3%, 
depending on new clock starts projections remain 41-45% at end of July.

This risk has been reviewed in relation to the RTT and Covid risks and the inherent consequence has 
been increased to 5 given the potential for both covid and seasonal surge to overlap and impact on 
this risk. This has not changed the current risk with mitigations.

RTT  18 week performance

The joint infrastructure is not generating the service improvements at the pace required 
and the number of patients inappropriately care for in the acute environment has not 
reduced
Type 1 performance against 4 hr standard
System wide performance 

Maintaining little to no 52 week waits

Delivering 62 day cancer standard
Delivering 2 week wait 

Patient experience report
Current complaints performance

Current Performance Additional Comments

Positive assurances received

Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

Referral to Treatment (RTT) & Cancer - Recovery plans Cancer Board reports
Operational Board Reports

Brilliant Improvement Board reports

A& E Delivery Board
Planned Care Delivery Board

CQC Domain
Safe, Effective , Responsive & Well-Led

Key controls to mitigate threat:

1.4  Pledge

Provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of 
time people have to spend in our care

Brilliant Care

Date Risk reviewed 21.07.2020
Rationale: Likelihood has been scored at 4 as the 
resilience risk is likely  Consequence has been scored as  
4 major , as a result of  quality of care provided and 
regulatory compliance impact.

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Sources of assurance 

Strategic Aim 1: Brilliant Care -  Always providing safe, 
effective and compassionate care, where we listen and 
learn to provide an excellent patient experience

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals

Performance Metrics - Performance Assurance Framework (performance standards)

TREAT

PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

Planned Care Board reportsHarm Review Panel process

There is risk that demand outstrips capacity and the Trust will not be 
resilient at times of surge and extremis, which will adversely  impact on 
the quality of care delivered. leading to  the Trusts ability to deliver a 
range of  constitutional standards.

Brilliant  Improvement

Brilliant  People

4hr performance meeting implemented using RTT principles for detailed check and 
challenge with Care Groups

Gaps in assurance

RTT Cancer Recovery plans submitted to Cancer Board Capacity and demand modelling 
used for service planning
DM01 performance is tracked and reported at the RTT meeting with recovery plans being 
worked up 

 System wide revision of escalation calls implemented daily to support flow

Cancer Board

Integrated Performance Report - commentary provided from Care Groups

ICNARC reports
SAFER care bundle 

0

0.5

1
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BAF 2020/21

 6418

FPC COO
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 5 5 25
Current 5 4 20
Appetite 3 4 12
Approach

     RAG
AMBER

AMBER
AMBER

RED

AMBER
GREEN

AMBER
RED

AMBER

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 3 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 12 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20
Tolerance 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

Strategic Aim 1: Brilliant Care -  Always providing safe, 
effective and compassionate care, where we listen and 
learn to provide an excellent patient experience

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

1.4  Pledge

Provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time 
people have to spend in our care

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People There is a parent risk that the Trust's RTT performance and elective 
waiting times will significantly deteriorate. This is caused by loss of both 
capacity and activity in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This could 
lead to an increase in waiting list and RTT Patient Tracking List size and 
length, resulting in considerable delays to both diagnosis and treatment. 
This could cause patient harm, as well as stress for our workforce.

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain
Safe, Effective , Responsive & Well-Led

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

Planned Care Delivery Board

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead
Date Risk reviewed 15.12.2020
Rationale: Likelihood has been scored at 5 and increased 
to reflect Covid-19 impact on elective services as the 
resilience risk is likely . The current consequence has 
been scored as 4 major, as a result of the current and 
projected delays as well as reported incidents of potential 
harm.

TREAT

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 
Fortnightly CEO led QIDB meetings, focusing on Care Group recovery plans Performance Metrics - Performance Assurance Framework (performance standards)

Weekly COO led referral to Treatment (RTT) & Cancer meetings A& E Delivery Board reports 
Harm Review Panel process Planned Care Board reports
Cancer Board - RTT Cancer Recovery plans submitted to Cancer Board Capacity and 
demand modelling used for service planning

QIDB and performance reported in the Integrated Performance Report

Matrons and Service Managers daily walk rounds with Matron of Flow  to support flow and National operating standards and discharge planning audits
fortnightly  System Wide Incident Command Centre which oversees the full system 
response and sub groups
ICNARC reports
Operational Board Reports

Cancer Board reports

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received

Current Performance Additional Comments
16/11/2020 Although RTT has improved to 73.9% (October)the risk remains – our 52 week 
waits have increased, with our long waiting patients expected to increase further over the 
next few months.

Performance is currently improving but number of long waiters are increasing

Recovery plans do not yet project sufficient activity to achieve hold steady state. Outpatient 
non-face to face activity % reducing.
Session throughput (outpatients and electives) constrained by social distancing & health 
and safety (such as air changes between patients) requirements i.e. more sessions are 
required to deliver the same amount of pre-Covid activity, but access to clinical spaces is 
(or has been, in some cases) restricted. Harm review compliance with Trust level SOP not 
evidenced in all specialties/CGs.

Non-face to face outpatient activity increased significantly.
Diagnostic performance increasing.
Elective theatre activity increasing more rapidly than in the majority of other providers.
Projections, plans and trajectories in place and refreshed routinely.

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance
Ability to switch activity back on at pace and achieve pre-Covid levels of activity.
Ability to centrally monitor and report on completion of Harm Reviews in line with the Trust 
level SOP.

Design Team in place to increase theatre activity and throughput.
GM SROs in place to maximise use of Duchy capacity and re-open Bodmin Treatment Centre.
System wide clinical physical environment capacity mapped and shared with Care Groups to enable 
them to access additional space.
Access to CFT outpatient departments released, process agreed and 1st clinics to proceed w/c 08/07.
Outpatient Transformation Programme projects accelerated to enable streamlined vetting of all 
referrals including internal (completed in May), triaging to and maximising of non-face to face 
alternatives supported by implementation of Patient Portal.
Social distancing cell established by ICC to provide guidance and solutions to enable maximisation of 
safe throughput.
Expanding use of Bookwise to achieve a central view of outpatient template across all outpatient 
departments including establishing brokering processes as specialties compete for space.
Triumvirate sign off required for outpatient F2F activity so only essential activity in OPD capacity.
Harm Review process reinvigorated with all Care Groups, Harm Review Panel to be reinstated. 
Central monitoring process and tool to be developed and implemented.
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FPC DS&P
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 4 4 16
Current 4 4 16
Appetite 2 4 8
Approach

RAG
AMBER
AMBER

AMBER
AMBER
GREEN
GREEN

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 16
Tolerance 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

7353

Date Risk reviewed 29.12.2020

Strategic Aim 1: Brilliant Care -  Always providing safe, 
effective and compassionate care, where we listen and 
learn to provide an excellent patient experience

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

1.5 Pledge

Work with our health and care system to improve the health of our 
community 

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

A& E Delivery Board
Planned Care Board
One Vision Board
Transformation Board
System Oversight Board

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

There is a risk that the lack of alignment between organisational 
strategies/priorities will limit the scale and pace of our progress towards 
an integrated care system for CIOS Health and Care Partnership

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain
Safe, Effective , Responsive & Well-Led

Rating has been escalated to reflect failure of controls; 
This is principally relates to not having an agreed system 
wide clinical strategy.

TREAT

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

Strategic Outline Case for integration between CFT and RCHT has been submitted to NHSE/I and 
we are awaiting feedback - probably in the new year.

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received
The Covid-19 crisis has expedited system working with the delivery of patient pathways 
across organisations/health sectors. There is a risk that the system players do not act to 
embed/make sustainable these changes.

Annual Plans which received positive feedback
CCG has expressed support for RCHT-CFT integration
Successful New Models of Care workshops with system partners

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance

Current Performance Additional Comments

Pace of Change of CIOS Health & Care Partnership Strategies 
Lack of Board/CIOS Health & Care Partnership oversight of implications of system level 
working at RCHT Trust Board
Resources to support delivery of RCHT-CFT Integration Programme in process of being 
secured but not yet in place
New Models of Care programme still in development

Alignment of system wide strategic objectives and risks 
Development of 5 year long term plan
CFT Integration Programme
PCN Engagement
Working with KPMG and system partners on a stocktake of work across the system to inform the 
development of the New Models of Care Programme

System-wide Integrated Performance Reports

System Leadership Board
Dedicated Urgent Care, Planned Care and Chidren's Care resource which reports into the 
System Board

CIOS Health & Care Partnership Reports - Planned Care/Urgent Care, One Vision 
  

Regular interface with PCN Leaders

Trust Board

Integration Committee/Executive Integration GroupBlock contract with the KCCG - CQUINs
Joint approach to Annual Planning for LTP

Integration Programme between CFT & RCHT Cornwall Public Health indicators 

New Models of Care Programme
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 6752

FPC CFO
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 5 4 20
Current 4 4 16
Appetite 2 4 8
Approach

 RAG

AMBER

AMBER
AMBER
GREEN

Quarterly Estates and Facilities Report to Finance and Performance Committee GREEN
GREEN
GREEN
AMBER
GREEN
GREEN

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Tolerance 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Capital programme funding now set at £56m
STP Way forward funding bids confirmed for Lowen ward, women's children's
Estates Board
Being Brilliant Board

Internal Audit Programme
Mitie Monthly performance reports

Risk Assessment process for Capital Planning

Health & Safety walk rounds 
Health & Safety Governance structure and training in place
Business continuity plans

Matron Rounds feedback

IPAC Audits

Mitie Contract Management Ward Accreditation reports and action plans

Strategic Aim 1: Brilliant Care -  Always providing safe, 
effective and compassionate care, where we listen and 
learn to provide an excellent patient experience

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

1.6 Pledge 

Provide an environment that is clean and welcoming. 

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People Risk that our building equipment and digital infrastructure are not fit for 
purpose nor provide a safe and effective environment to deliver health 
care due to insufficient capital resource.
    

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain
Safe, Effective,  Responsive & Well -Led Risk linked to corporate risk 7288

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership
Strategic Estates Group

 TREAT

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Ward Accreditation Programme - Aspire is embedded in inpatient wards

Date Risk Reviewed 10.12.2020
The Trust approved its capital programme for 2020-21 in 
May and it has been updated and reprioritised since. The 
last update was presented to the Trust Board in December 
2020. The original programme identified the need for £6m 
of estates related investment, some of which relates to 
improvements in the environment. The Month 7 capital 
programme allows for £8.5m of Estates investment. The 
delivery of this programme now needs to be monitored and 
the funds re-priorotised by the Director of Estates / Estates 
Board accordingly to address the highest areas of 
concern. 

Annual capital expenditure prioritised programme - Reviewed at M4Backlog maintenance programme

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

Health and Safety Audits

Cleaning Audits
PLACE reports

PLACE Inspections

Mitie service provider quality and performance audits

IPAC reports

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received

Prioritised national funding

Matrons rounds & feedback mechanisms 

Current Performance Additional Comments
Capital Programme has been approved with an affordable level of investment in estates to 
maintain or improve environment.

Capital programme has been reviewed at M7. Additional investment to be made in relation to 
Critical Infrastructure Risk projects (£1.7m).

Capital investment has been prioritised to provide funding for the environment. However, the 
total required is more than the Trust has funding for and so the investments needs to be 
carefully prioritised during the year. 

Reassessent of investment required for estates investment underway with the Director of 
Estates

Monthly performance report to Finance and Performance Committee on Mitie performance.

Quarterly reports to Finance and Performance Committee on delivery of the Estates programme.

Review of the capital programme each month to update the Finance and Performance Committee on 
additional funding and risks.

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance
Availability of sufficient capital funding to deliver comprehensive estates improvement 
programme pending review by the Director of Estates

Progress cases in relation to Lowen / MRI and Women and Childrens hospital which will have  a long 
term improvement on the environment.
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 3754

QAC COO
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 5 5 25
Current 4 4 16
Appetite 3 4 12
Approach

 RAG

GREEN

GREEN
GREEN
GREEN

IPAC guidance for how to move patients out of the holding area without a test result

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Consequence 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 20 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Tolerance 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12

AMU rapid testing process

Strategic Aim 1: Brilliant Care -  Always providing safe, 
effective and compassionate care, where we listen and learn 
to provide an excellent patient experience

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

REF Pledge 

Optimising survival and minimising unnecessary harm from Covid-19 

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain
Safe, Effective,  Responsive & Well -Led 

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership
Quality Assurance Committee

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

There is a risk that… the requirement to manage our patients 
(red/amber/green) in response to covid and the adjustments to the 
hospital state has impacted on patient flow. 
This is caused by… holding patients whilst awaiting results, the 
conversion of estate to critical care (limiting availability for non critical 
care patients) and the complexity of maintaining capacity across covid 
positive and covid negative wards. 
Leading to… delays in medical and surgical admissions, patient harm, 
loss of staff due to sickness, delayed care pathways, preventable death 
and the potential to move patients where their covid result is not known

    

Date Risk Reviewed 09.12.2020
The current risk reflects the intra pandemic wave and may 
be re-adjusted if the R number changes.

 TREAT

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

Additional ITU capacity identified Performance measures identified in the Covid-19 dashboard
Staff upskilling in place - clinical and non-clinical The Trust has undertaken the required exercises to ensure that the plans are tested and   
Re-deployment process established All the plans have been approved via two check-and-challenge sessions and the plans 

            Staff testing now in place RTT recovery plan with approved trajectories
Digital space for collocated work with health economy partners
Leading indicators dashboard
Centralised stocks of PPE
Extra staffing (flexed from other areas)
Extra security arrangements 

Care Group owned response plans which are signed off through a check and challenge sessio        

Local manufacture of supplies and sourcing locally
Innovative working
Revamping the care pathway

Additional Comments

New SOPs

Covid presentation is significantly lower than forcast
Elective recovery is on track

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance

Tighter stock procedures
Plans assessed daily

Number of breached waiting for a bed There is a functioning and established incident command centre. All departments have updated their 
plans and are learning from them. There is a ward/department to Incident Command Centre to wider 
systems structure established. The incident command control centre is utilising QI methodology to 
manage workstreams to enable the Trust to respond to the Covid19 threat.

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received

Tests are not always sufficiently rapid to enable timely moves
Consultant capacity to undertake medical reviews daily (due to social distancing procedures 
extending the time taken to do the reviews)
Social distancing impact on outpatient clinic capacity

Ward usage plan is owned at Care Group level with clinical oversight and reviewed at least we

ITU capacity may not meet demands if additional capacity is not delivered in time for peak 
demand
staffing levels will not be inline with normal working practice
Ability to provide the same theatre capacity (sessions and throughput) as pre COVID

1. Regular senior leader briefing sessions which are then used for specialty briefings in Care Groups
2. Regular all user communications
3. Regular workforece planning meeting with all care groups and continuation of the existing Safer 
Nurse Staffing meetings
4. Enhanced weekend planning

Current Performance 
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P&OD DS&P
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 4 4 16
Current 3 4 12
Appetite 2 4 8
Approach

RAG
TBC

AMBER
GREEN
GREEN

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Tolerance 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Additional transformation resource being sought. (Paper submitted to FPC 21.09.20)
Creating a strategic partners to support with provision of transformation resource. 

QI training provide to all new starters at Trust Induction

Brilliant Improvement Strategy published and being implemented 

QI clinical Fellow posts created 

Brilliant Improvement Board (BIB) reestablished Oct 2020 

IPR metrics
Current Performance Additional Comments

The significant challenges presented by Covid 19 mean that operational and clincial capcaity is further stretched 
currently. 

PMO reporting on transforamtion has now been designed but is yet to be implemented. PMO reporting 
will commence in October 2020. 

Completion of first 100 staff on the Being Brilliant Programme and launched first 1000 staff. These sessions are 
now being delivered by the QI team thorugh a combination of face to face and online to adhere to social 
distancing requirements.
New Induction programme being finalised to include QI 
Transformation resource plan is in development  - Board Informal agreed the resource plan in principle in 
September 2020. Resource plan being taken to FPC on 21st September for approval.

Gaps in assurance

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance

Positive assurances received
Transformation portfolio in infancy and therefore too early to assess impact. Staff Survey improvements

Patient survey improvements
QI training compliance rates very high

QI module on the being brilliant leadership development porgramme for first 100 leaders 
Four Transformation porgrammes established under one Transformation portfolio and being overseen 

      

Improvement KPIs in IPR QI team established April 2018 to provide QI capability and Capacity 
QI training compliance ratesA network of 150+ QI ambassadors across the Trust who are trained in QI and embedded in Care 

    Brilliant Improvement Strategy  - compliance with milestonesTrust Board provided with QI training

Transformation programme dellivery reported through PMO status reports to BIB and FPC  
     

Rationale: Likelihood has been scored at 3 because the full set 
of required change resource has not yet been recruited.  
Consequence has been scored at 4 because delivering our 
transformation programme is a key enabler for delivering 
Brilliant Care and therefore failure to deliver the planned 
transformation put our Brilliant Care Strategy at risk. 

TREAT

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

Date Risk reviewed 18.09.2020

In house, PMO established to oversee Transformation Portfolio July 2020. 

CQC Domain

Safe, Effective, Responsive & Well-Led

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Strategic Aim 3: Brilliant Improvement  - Instilling a culture of 
quality improvement where everyone feels empowered to make 
changes for the benefit of our patients 
2.1 Pledge  
Provide great leadership and support to help colleagues be the best they can be.

2.3 Pledge  
Make sure colleagues receive feedback to know how they are doing

2.4 Pledge  
Provide development to help colleagues learn and grow

2.6 Pledge  
Are true to our values and create a brilliant place to work

3.1 Pledge 

Ensure that everyone has the capability and capacity to pursue quality improvements 
for our patients 

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

Brilliant Care Current Principal Risk
There is a risk that we have insufficient change management capacity and 
capability and inconsistent to deliver the pace and change of style required to 
deliver brilliant care 

Brilliant  People

Brilliant  Improvement
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7354


P&OD HRD
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 4 4 16
Current 3 3 9
Appetite 2 3 6
Approach

RAG
GREEN

GREEN
GREEN
GREEN

GREEN
GREEN
AMBER

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Consequence 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Risk rating 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
Tolerance 6 6 6 8 8 8 8 8 8

Internal audit of FTSU

Strategic Aim 2: Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive 
environment to attract, develop and retain brilliant people 

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

2.2 Pledge  

Create a safe environment so colleagues feel supported to speak up

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People There is a risk that our culture change isn't sufficient to deliver brilliant care. 

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

Safe, Effective, Responsive, Caring & Well-Led

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Freedom To Speak Up Guardian Freedom to  Speak Up reports
Freedom To Speak Up Champions Freedom to Speak Up Action Plan Board cycles include FTSU action plan
Raising Concerns Freedom To Speak Up Policy

Date Risk reviewed 23/09/2020
Likelihood scored at a 3 as the OD plan needs to be embedded 
and consequence is a 4 major if colleagues are not raising 
concerns which could result in harm 

TOLERATE/ TREAT

Gaps in assurance

Current Performance Additional Comments

Guardian has had national guidance training

Freedom To Speak Up included on induction and manager's passport

Organisational Development plan implementation

 'Tell Kate' initiative

Early Intervention Team

HR People Partners in place to support organisational development implementation

Increase of informal reporting
Early intervention service -  increase noted of facilitated conversations
Increased formal mediations
Increase in staff engagement - eg. OD roadshows

Significant progress has been made against key actions. Assurances come via higher level of FTSU reporting 
and early resolution.

The Trust needs to maintain confidentiality of those who speak up.
Training on National Guidance 

Guardian in place
Regular reporting to People and Organisational Development  Committee
Professional Standards reports to Board
HR Organisational Development reports
Bimonthly HRD report
Annual FTSU report

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance
No specialist KPIs for FTSU in Performance Framework
People and Organisational Development Strategy Independent culture reviews have taken place in individual areas - further areas to be identified

Positive assurances received

Freedom To Speak Up incident reports
Freedom To Speak Up intranet page

Trust's Organisational Development Plan Committee People Organisational Development  reports 

National Guardian Office action plan 

NED Lead for FTSU

Professional standards report to Board

Bi Monthly NGO update and report against action plan
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P&OD COO
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 5 4 20
Current 4 4 16
Appetite 2 4 8
Approach

RAG
AMBER
AMBER
AMBER
AMBER
AMBER

TBC
TBC
TBC
TBC

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Consequence 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 12 12 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
Tolerance 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Strategic Aim 2: Brilliant People - Working together in a supportive 
environment to attract, develop and retain brilliant people 

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

2.5 Pledge  

Provide an environment that supports colleague safety, health & wellbeing 

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People There is a risk that the systems and processes of health and safety are not 
understood or embedded at all levels of the organisation
This is caused by insufficient specialist knowledge and resources to rectify 
identified gaps which has been compounded by historical issues
This could lead to harm to patients or staff, regulatory action and reputational 
damage for the Trust

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain

Health and Safety Strategy 
Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

TOLERATE/ TREAT

Safe, Effective, Responsive & Well-Led

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

A& E Delivery Board
Planned Care Board

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Improvements in RiDDOR reporting process
Regular meetings between Director of Operations and H&S lead

Date Risk reviewed 15.12.2020
Rationale: This risk has increases to reflect the escalated 
operational and estates risks that have been identified and are 
on the Corporate Risk Register.

Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance
No current TNA for individual staff or roles
No visible closure process for the actioning of raised concerns
No common system for reporting and monitoring work related ill health or accident
Competency frameworks tend to be focussed on patient related activities

Written commitment from executives 'statement of safety'
Refresh of statement of intent
Communication strategy out to the organisation about the action plan
Action plan to be tracked through H&S Committee and People and OD committee

Competency frameworks
Implemented interim management arrangement
Increased number of H&S audits being carried out
Mandatory training programme

Health surveillance feedback
Closure rate for actions at committee and board

Current Performance Additional Comments

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received

Monthy Trust safety leadership team

Accident frequency rates There is a significant multi-pronged improvement plan that tackels the whole of the Health and Safety agenda 
and working through it mitigates significant area of concern.
This risk has been revised following informal board 2nd July to reflect the escalated operational and estates 
health and safety risks

Leadership culture will take time to resolve (introduction of external consultants)
The closure loop for audits is not currently in place

Gaps in control

Suite of health and safety related risk assessments
Leadership roles with safety responsibilities evidenced in JDs
Suite of policies, procedures and other processes relating to specific regulations or activities
Incident reporting and risk management system
H&S committee- action focussed with attendance across all care groups to understand and review 
Health and Safety issues

External Review report received by new H&S Committee with action plan tracked through 

H&S Committee chaired by Board member
Annual audit programme and process

H&S Committees has been revised in line with recommendations from external review

Near misses rates
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FPC CFO

Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 4 4 16
Current 3 3 9
Appetite 2 3 6
Approach

RAG
AMBER

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Consequence 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Risk rating 16 16 12 9 9 9 9 9 9
Tolerance 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6

Strategic Aim 3 Strategic Aim : Brilliant Improvement  - 
Instilling a culture of quality improvement where everyone 
feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of our 
patients.

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

3.1  Pledge 

Spend our money wisely.

Brilliant Care Current Principal Risk 
Brilliant  People Risk that the Trust does not achieve its financial target which will result in 

lost income, additional debt and a longer period of time to recover to a 
cumulative breakeven position.

The Trust has a £6.9m deficit financial plan for Month 7 to Month 12. The 
key risk to this is that it is based on low levels of Covid activity. If this 
increases the Trust could see higher costs to cover staff absence. The 
Trust could also be penalised under the Elective Incentive Scheme. 

The Trust will continue to fail in its statutory duty to breakeven 
cumulatively. Failure to meet the current financial plan could result in cash 
shortfalls or the need for additional funding, failure to meet system targets, 
increased scrutiny from regulators and contractual breaches

The financial framework originally in place to July has been extended to 
September. The financial framework from October onwards has not yet 
been finalised although is likely to be based on system-level spend. There 
is a risk that there may be unrecoverable revenue costs due to unmitigated 
impacts on performance and statutory compliance and how the Trust 
recovers its performance. 
This is caused by the Trust being unable to manage or identify the 
potential gaps and shortfalls in revenue link to its Covid response and the 
financial architecture. As with not achieving savings targets or 
overspending in other ways, this could result in failure to meet statutory 
duty to meet financial targets  fines or fees from regulators or contractual 

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain

Effective, Responsive & Well-Led 
Use of  Resources  Framework 

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

E health Programme Board
Digital Transformation Board

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Date Risk reviewed 10.12.2020
Risk has been reviewed in light of the changes from Covid 
on the stability of the Local Health Economy.

 TREAT

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 
Monthly Care Group Performance Review Meetings , including financial performance and 
Quality and Cost Improvement Plan (QCIP) delivery

Finance Committee Reports (includng updates on savings plans and delivery). 

Scheme of Delegation, clear processes for investment requests and business case approval to 
ensure scrutiny of benefits prior to approval.
CIP PMO in place and regular CIP meeting scheduled to scrutinise and challenge service level 
plans and delivery to the plans.
 Standing Financial Instructions and Standing Orders including clear financial controls 
measures.
Agency Task and Finish Group - scrutiny of agency expenditure.

Transformational savings opportunities are identified through "Shaping Our Future" programme 
to manage system wide control totals to return the whole health economy to financial balance.

 Work force approvals processes are in place to control recruitment of all posts including 
agency and locum staff.
Workforce Transformation Board to deliver the People and OD QCI Plan

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received

Current Performance Additional Comments
On plan as at Month 7. None.

The financial plan has been set to allow for delivery of the elective plan although this will be 
dependent on levels of  Covid in the hospital.

Financial framework in place for M1 to M6 meaning that the Trust can operate at breakeven for that 
period. 

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance
Budget is set on low levels of Covid.
Uncertainty over cost of insourcing, outsourcing or paying for weekend work to recover the RTT 
position. 

Monitoring of activity. Monitoring of financial performance. Monitoring of Covid activity and staff 
absence.  
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FPC CFO

Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 5 4 20
Current 3 4 12
Appetite 2 4 8
Approach

RAG
AMBER
AMBER
AMBER
GREEN
GREEN

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 3 3
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 16 16 16 16 16 16 12 12 12
Tolerance 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Medical Equipment Board
Capital Delivery Group
Finance Committee Reports from each of the above

Finance Committee Reports (includng updates from capital sub-groups)

The demand for capital investment is changing rapidly, both in relation to additional capital 
spend for Covid-19 response and how much of the approved capital programme can be 
delivered due to social distancing and site access.

Funding for Women and Children's Hospital and West Cornwall Hospitals design fees not yet 
confirmed. 

Significant additional funding provided and so detailed assessment of whether projects can be 
delivered needed in December and close monitoring for the rest of the year.

Gaps in control

Capital Programme 2020-21 for F&P Committee and Trust Board
Review of Capital Programme - M7 - reported to Trust Board in December

Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance
Set and monitor affordable Capital Programme taking into account service risks. This has been done 
for 2020-21 and the programme is reviewed each month. 

Update on capital programme reported to F&P Committee and Trust Board. 

Link the Trust's need for investment to capital applications made through the CIOS Health & Care 
Partnership Programme

Explore all opportunities for external funding including through DH-led private funding streams

Receive approval from DH for MRI/Lowen project, Women and Children's Hospital and West Cornwall 
Hospitals schemes. Obtain support for Health Infratstructure Programme 2 (HIP2) strategic outline 
case when drafted. 

Monitor changes in capital regime and ensure that STP reviews take place quickly.

E Health Programme Board reports

The value of the Capital Programme for 2020-21 is £17.8m for internally funded schemes and 
£42m for externally funded schemes. Expected to operate within CRL at present. Risk now 
exists with ability to invest in 2021 for PDC funded schemes and beyond and impact on service 
delivery if investments cannot be made. 

Current Performance Additional Comments

Gaps in assurance

Capital available does not meet prioritised programme over the medium term, especially in 
relation to Estates, Medical Equipment and E-Health projects. The capital programme has been 
re-set in light of the change in the capital funding regime with funding now set an an STP level. 

Emerging risk on 2021-22 capital programme given cost of PRU and site enabling schemes 
that will put significant pressure on 2021-22 programme. 

Positive assurances received

 Digital Strategy & IT programme

Bid for ED Resus scheme has been made which has been successful. This has eased the pressure 
on the capital programme for 2020-21. Contingency has been re-assessed to prioritise funding. 
MS Teams roll-out enabled nationally and not currently at Trust's expense. The Trust is in contact with 
NHSI in relation to funding for PDC funded schemes. 
Funding not yet confirmed for 2021-22, either CDEL or sources of PDC.

Brilliant  People

Brilliant  Improvement

Digital Transformation Board Reports

Trust is not able to deliver major estates projects including HIP2 and 
Progressive Recovery Unit schemes and would need to request re-profing 

of funding

10.12.2020

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

HSLA funding has been confirmed . ED Resus funding 
confirmed. PRU funding confirmed. Additional funding 
provided in relation to Covid response and critical 
infrastrcuture risks. Risk remains as the Trust still does not 
have a funding solution for a new EPR. A bid for the ED 
Resus scheme has been made. 

Estates Board
E Health Programme Board

CQC Domain

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 

E health Programme Board
Digital Transformation Board

 TREAT

Date Risk reviewed

Executive Lead

Strategic Aim 3 Strategic Aim : Brilliant Improvement  - 
Instilling a culture of quality improvement where everyone 
feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of our 
patients.

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

3.2  Pledge 

Use innovation and technology to improve the quality, experience and cost of 
care. 

Brilliant Care

Committee Providing Assurance

Risk that the Trust is not able to afford capital investment to enable it to 
ensure that service continuity is maintained, statutory regulations are 
adhered to and services are improved through the use of technology where 
possible.

Linked to risk 7855

Current Principal Risk 

Effective, Responsive & Well-Led 
Use of  Resources  Framework 
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FPC DS&P
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 2 4 8
Current 2 3 6
Appetite 2 2 4
Approach

RAG
GREEN
GREEN
GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

GREEN

AMBER

GREEN

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Consequence 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Risk rating 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Tolerance 6 6 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Current contribution to the Trust financial position is not where it needs to be with a £500k loss rather 
than the expected profit.

A number of the actions to improve multi agency research projects are likely to be delayed or impacted by Covid 
19. RD&I are now pro actively opening trials across multiple services as the clinical services are beginning to 
resume some normality, and clinical engagement and support to do this has been excellent. CRN R&D internal 
audit has been cancelled due to the CRN restrictions on site visits. 

Current Performance Additional Comments

Positive assurances received
CRN Regional Benchmark reports
Audit reports of research studies

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance
Research is not fully embedded in all Care Groups within the Trust.
Research is de-prioritised at times of acute hospital pressure - to utilise Research Nurses for frontline 
care.
Through lack of engagement, not fully utilising all opportunities for research and a lack of clinical 
interest in taking on new trial activity.

The Trust is also working with the University of Exeter to gauge potential opportunities that could be explored 
through the pooling of clinical trials and developing a memorandum of undertanding to support closer partnership 
working for early 2020.
 
Finance department providing support to R&D team to reduce losses and to allow the department to operate as a 
stand alone commercial entity.

Current Principal Risk 

Governance Research Lead - Governance SMT meeting held monthly
Research Team's audit function to monitor status R&D group reports to Clinical Effectiveness Committee

Annual audit provides good assurance however the last audit did not show the desired position.
Gaps in assurance

Dedicated research programmed activity (PA's)/time in Clinician's Job Plans
National Institute for Health Research's (NIHR) 7 High Level Objectives & the associated Trust Goals

CRN Performance Management Framework

Governance SMT reports and minutes

Annual R&D internal audit

R&D strategy

Research Director and full Research Team to embed research into all  Clinical Teams

Recruitment to trials is the responsibility of the  Principal Investigator of the Research Project - this is 
supported through the Research Nurse assigned to the project

Recruitment to clinical trials performance against target

Monthly CRN  meeting & performance reports & minutes 

Research Team's  Business Continuity Plan Performance against NIHR 7 High level Objectives & Trust Goals

Key controls to mitigate threat: Sources of assurance 
Research Senior Management Team (RSMT) meetings - weekly
Clinical Research Network ( CRN)  meetings - monthly Research Development and Innovation - Annual report 

Research Development and Innovation - Annual Business Plan

Committee Providing Assurance Executive Lead

Effective, Responsive & Well-Led 

Lack of clinical buy-in/engagement with research will result in patients not 
having an opportunity to take part in trials that may enhance their quality of life / 
wellbeing now or in the future. Secondly the Trust does not maximise income to 
be reinvested into clinical care.

Date Risk reviewed 29.12.2020
Rationale: Following a review of the financial consequence, the 
inherent risk has been escalated to reflect the revised value 
however this does not affect the current position.

TOLERATE

Strategic Aim 3 Strategic Aim : Brilliant Improvement  - Instilling a 
culture of quality improvement where everyone feels empowered 
t  k  h  f  th  b fit f  ti t

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

3.3 Pledge

Grow the Trust’s national reputation for excellence in research and development;

Brilliant Care

Brilliant  People

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

Clinical  Research Network South West Peninsula (CRN)
Academic Health science Network (AHSN)
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POD HRD
Risk rating Likelihood Consequence Total
Initial 4 4 16
Current 3 4 12
Appetite 2 4 8
Approach

RAG
GREEN
AMBER
AMBER

AMBER
AMBER
GREEN
AMBER

SCORE: A M J J A S O N D J F M
Likelihood 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Consequence 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Risk rating 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Tolerance 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

E health Programme Board
Digital Transformation Board

Outputs from "Improve Well " initiative Communication & Engagement Strategy & additional senior HR capacity

Organisational Development Plan 
Sources of assurance 

TREAT

Rationale: Likelihood has been scored at 3   Consequence 
has been scored at 4 as staff engagement is a major risk .

People and OD Committee reports

Date Risk reviewed

Strategic Aim 3 Strategic Aim : Brilliant Improvement  - 
Instilling a culture of quality improvement where everyone 
feels empowered to make changes for the benefit of our 
patients

Delivery supports RCHT Strategic Goals PRINCIPAL THREATS TO DELIVERY

3.5  Pledge 

Celebrate achievement and will create a culture that enables continuous 
improvement.

Brilliant Care Current Principal Risk 

Brilliant  Improvement

CQC Domain

Committee Providing Assurance

Links to CIOS Health & Care Partnership

Brilliant  People

Executive Lead

Team Talks

QI Hub Launched Performance Reviews

Effective, Responsive & Well-Led 
Use of  Resources  Framework 

Key controls to mitigate threat:

Sep-20

There is a risk that staff do not know about or feel that they are able to 
contribute to the continued improvement of the organisation caused by 
insufficient  communication and engagement of staff  in decision making, 
linked to the pace of change required. 

Innovation Breakfasts

Being Brilliant and Leadership Development Programme 

Wonderwall and Joy corridor

OD Plan not fully embedded Continue training QI Ambassadors

New 'Den @ RCHT' process to encourage staff to put forward suggestions for funding bids

Change appraisal process to include QI sections

Service strategies in development - Clinical strategy COMPLETED
New Induction process in development
Brilliant people strategy in delvelopment

Annual Staff Awards

IWL awards
Learning from Excellence

Additional Comments

NHSI Cultural Survey - SCORE results & Action Plan progress
Improving Working Lives Group reports 

Current Performance 

Encouragement of staff to take part in National Awards
Changed induction to include additional QI information 

Gaps in control Actions being taken to address gaps in control / assurance

"Improve Well" Application introduced 

Freedom to Speak up Guardians & Champions established 

Staff survey results
People Transformation Board reports into Brilliant Improvement Board

Trust Board Walkabouts

Medical Lead for QI appointed

NHSI Culture Survey - SCORE findings and Action Plans 

Clinical teams have been engaged and enabled during the covid pandemic to make transformational 
changes and implovements on rapid basis using the foundation of the culture change work that has 
occurred over the last 12 months. There is good assurance from the staff survey that QI approach is 
embedded. Celebrations of achivement happen monthly via team talks and annualy via the Brilliant 
You festival.

Detailed Service strategies are needed for all specialties
People Strategy

QI Hub Launch
Staff survey results
Feedback from Brilliant You Festival and RCHT Feast evenings

Staff Engagement Roadshows

Staff survey results positive

Gaps in assurance Positive assurances received
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Key

High
Full assurance provided over the effectiveness of 
controls.

Medium
Some assurances in place or controls are still maturing 
so effectiveness cannot be fully assessed at this 
moment but should improve

Low
Assurance indicates poor effectiveness of controls.

Updates in red text by Executive Owner
Updates in green text- approved by Board
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ID Group Specialty (NPSA) Description Likelihood (current)
Consequence 

(current)

Rating 

(current)

Risk level 

(current)
Risk Type Executive Lead Key controls currently in place Progress against actions Likelihood (Target)

Consequence 

(Target)

Rating 

(Target)

Risk level 

(Target)
Risk owner Review date

4301
Urgent, Emergency and 

Trauma
Emergency Department

There is a risk that ED will be unable to offload ambulances due 

to the increased amount of patients within the department who 

are waiting for an in-patient bed. This is caused by reduced bed 

capacity due to Covid, high number of delayed transfers of care 

and low numbers of patient who are medically fit for discharge. 

Currently there are periods of high ambulance demand and low 

discharges from base ward beds. This is compromising the 

privacy and dignity of patients who are having to be seen and 

treated whist still in situ on the ambulance and delays for 

ambulance crews being released to attend their next call. 

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Major 20 Extreme Patient Safety

 zDirector of Operations 

zDirector of Operations

QIDB programme has been launched with interim COO to focus on 3 main 

workstreams: flow in; flow through and flow out. AMD for urgent care is 

supporting actions within the emergency department and SDMA to increase 

efficiency both within the department and SDMA pathways.

New RAT nursing role and clearer allocation of junior medical staff

Escalation policy for both ambulance handover and ED surge.  Attendance at 

daily bed management meetings of ED nurse in charge. 

A flexible mobile nurse triage team who aim to achieve 15 minute triage and 

handover target with daily reporting and validation.  

Increased nurses establishment to recognise increased attendances

Sepsis performance monitored and actions taken to ensure all patients 

receive treatment within 1 hour

SWAST HALO attends department to support handover daily from 1200.

Computers at patient side in each cubicle to assess patient need.

Action cards developed for RCHT ED in times of surge and delayed handovers.

Weekly operational meeting in place with SWAST. Electronic handover from 

ambulance crews implemented in RATS bays, COWs to enable same process 

when in periods of high demand. 

Since the reduction of the bed base due to covid we 

have been experiencing a higher number of 12 hour 

trolley wait breaches and on average 7000 hours lost 

per month in APD (aggregated patient delay) within the 

department.

ECAS standards are being significantly affected when 

APD and exit block are high.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High Mrs Johanna Susan Floyd 10/12/2020

7703
Urgent, Emergency and 

Trauma
Emergency Department

There is a risk that CAMHS patients will receive inappropriate 

care or interventions, or be managed in an environment where 

their welfare needs will not be met due to a delay in transfer.

This is caused by a lack of capacity across the local health 

economy in managing an effective response to an escalating 

patient in ED

This could lead to patient distress, increased length of stay, 

negative impact on staff morale, poor reputation for the Trust 

and poor patient experience

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Major 20 Extreme Patient Safety

CAMHS Crisis team on site 0800-2000

Sowenna unit opened.

Patients holisitic needs being met by the ED nursing team.

There is a multi agency response to this risk and several 

incidents that have occurred in the last 6 months 

including several separate workstreams.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High  Owen McCormack 10/12/2020

7302 Clinical Support Services Clinical & Radiation Physics

There is a risk that the Trust will be found to be in breach of 

legislative requirements regarding the safe use of radiation & 

control of radioactive contamination due to the poor condition & 

layout of premises.

This is caused by:

1)	Aging and physical degradation of the fabric of the premises 

and associated equipment being end of life (facility dates from 

2003)

2)	 “Historic” facility which was not purpose designed & does not 

meet modern standards for clinical use of radioactive materials, 

particularly contamination controlled areas exit directly onto 

public spaces.

This could lead to: 

Enforcement action by Environment Agency (Environmental 

Permitting Regulations) or enforcement action by HSE (Ionising 

Radiations Regulations) – risk of loss of clinical services inc. those 

supporting cancer pathways.  The facility was noted as barely 

compliant by EA in Apr 2019 and **re-inspection by EA will occur 

in Apr 2021**.  HSE have served improvement notices against 

Chester and Liverpool on this issue.

Adverse inspection outcome from CQC specialist radiation 

inspectors (IRMER team), resulting in “inadequate” in the safe 

domain and loss of Clinical Imaging’s “outstanding” rating.  We 

are **expecting a CQC inspection in early 2021** as part of a 

planned programme of inspection of radiotherapy services (inc. 

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Major 20 Extreme

Statutory 

Compliance
 Adam Wheeldon

A combined SBC/OBC for refurbishment of the department has been 

submitted.

Interim controls

----------------

Review wider departmental access arrangements:

1) Re-provide staff toilets in Medical Physics.

Review personal contamination monitoring arrangements

1)	Weekly audit and report to team meeting of hand monitoring carried out 

at end of shift

2)	Provided hand-foot monitor to improve contamination monitoring

Review area contamination monitoring arrangements

1)	Provide additional 4 monitors for room monitoring

2)	CIA’s doing a check of each room at the end of morning and afternoon 

sessions

3)	Waiting room has been included as end of day monitoring task

4)	Introduced task-based monitoring, e.g. injection rooms at end of a series 

of injections

Review interim mitigations re hot lab/dispensing

1)	Consider bench-top isolator for therapy dispensing

The project team are developing a proposal to phase 

this project over 2 financial years in order to improve 

affordability whilst urgently addressing the regulatory 

requirements – this proposal is anticipated to go to 

Building Brilliance in January

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High  Trevelyan Foy 01/01/2021

7968
Women, Children & Sexual 

Health
Neonatology

There is a risk that in the event of a fire on the neonatal unit that 

patients could not be safely evacuated in time..

This is caused by inadequate fire protection infrastructure.

This could lead to significant harm to patients and staff.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Catastrophic 20 Extreme
Health, Safety, 

Security and Fire

Planned decant of the neonatal unit to an alternative location while remedial 

works and undertaken.

Estates and fire team are inputting on a daily basis.

Weekly fire evacuation exercises

Monitor and ensure closure of all fire doors, declutter unit and shift leaders to 

monitor.

Strengthened BCP plans for decant

Risk discussed with Women and Children General 

Manager and determined that risk score was calculated 

and entered incorrectly. Risk score therefore re-

calculated and record amended accordingly.

Although there are some corrective controls in place, 

the impact on the potential for a catastrophic outcome 

is negligible. 

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Moderate 3 Low  Sarah Rattigan 11/02/2021

8040 Estates & Facilities Trustwide

There is a risk that… existing unsafe conditions will not be 

adequately managed.

This is caused by… a failure to undertake identified remedial 

works and no assurance on how works have been prioritised.

This could lead to… multiple statutory breaches, prosecutions, 

reputational damage, harm to staff and patients and damage to 

buildings and infrastructure.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Catastrophic 20 Extreme
Health, Safety, 

Security and Fire

•	Fire training on induction and annual refresher training for staff and e-

learning available 

•	L1m fire alarm system installed throughout most of the Trust

•	No smoking on site

•	Fire Response Team

•	Monthly fire warden inspection is completed by fire wardens 

Reduction of fire loading in high risk areas

This risk has been re-scored on the basis that there are 

two types of fire considered (high consequence but low 

likelihood and high likelihood and low consequence). 

This risk is based on large scale uncontrolled fires as a 

result of the lack of fire stopping. 

The risk remains uncontrolled due to the remaining 

gaps in fire containment.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High  Ricky  Daniel 27/10/2020

7891 Corporate
CITS - Informatics 

Programme

There is a risk that clinical decisions will be taken by clinicians 

without the knowledge of all of the clinical information that the 

trust holds on the patient. 

This is caused by clinical information being contained in a variety 

of clinical IT systems with many staff not having access to all of 

the clinical systems where important information is siloed and 

the Trust does not have a single repository with all clinical 

information fed in from the discrete clinical systems.

This could lead to delayed or incorrect diagnoses being made 

and inappropriate or delayed treatment being delivered to the 

patient which could result in significant patient harm

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme IM&T

There are no current controls to this except clinicians knowing that 

information might be in clinical systems and therefore asking for access to this 

information

Issues with existing interface into IMS maxims prevents 

quick resolution of these issues. An upgrade/patch to 

the Maxims system will be required and that may not be 

delivered until early 2021. Work on the supplying 

systems to provide outbound interfaces continues

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Major 4 Moderate  Ian Nicholls 20/01/2021
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ID Group Specialty (NPSA) Description Likelihood (current)
Consequence 

(current)

Rating 

(current)

Risk level 

(current)
Risk Type Executive Lead Key controls currently in place Progress against actions Likelihood (Target)

Consequence 

(Target)

Rating 

(Target)

Risk level 

(Target)
Risk owner Review date

7927 Clinical Support Services Pathology

There is a risk that RCHT and Cornwall will have insufficient 

capability and capacity for covid-19, flu and respiratory virus 

testing. This is caused by a single high throughput analyser with 

limited back up capacity and could lead to loss of testing capacity 

with a subsequent impact on patient safety, patient flow and 

management of community flu and covid-19 outbreaks

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Equipment

There is limited local back up contingency on alternative analsyers, plus the 

option of using off site testing in the Pathology network on occassion, in a 

crisis.

This risk is covid related.

There is currently 1 unreliable analyser The department 

tried to buy another one via capital  but was not able to 

national procurements

Now due a nationally allocated 2nd piece of kit 

14.12.20, BUT still tbc

Will probably 

happen  / recur 

but it is not a 

persisting issue

Minor 8 High Dr Gemma Vanstone 31/12/2020

7947 Clinical Support Services Pathology

There is a risk of Clinisys Winpath failure due to the current 

version which the Trust has which is not compatible with the 

latest operating systems, SQL databases and 64 bit.  

The current version (V5) is end of life in 2023 but the above 

issues means that this will likely be sooner.

This could lead to severe impact on Pathology service and the 

potential loss of the service due to LIMS failure.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme IM&T

Working on 64 bit compatibility issues with CITS.

Explore possibility of moving the SQL database to a newer version.

South west network working on the procurement of a new LIMS within the 

next 2 years.

Together with CITS - Pathology IT have patched the pathology servers with 

IPS.

Explore upgrading Winpath version to v5.34

Control measure in place are listed as 1-4 below.  There 

may be a chance of upgrading Winpath to a slightly 

newer version 1.       Working on 64 bit compatibility 

issues with CITS. 2.       Explore possibility of moving the 

SQL database to a newer version. 3.       South west 

network working on the procurement of a new LIMS 

within the next 2 years. 4.       Together with CITS - 

Pathology IT have patched the pathology servers with 

IPS. 5.       Explore upgrading Winpath version to v5.34

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Major 12 High  Bruce Daniel 30/04/2021

7869 Trustwide Trustwide

There is a risk that… the Trust will not fulfil its obligations under 

the HASAWA 1974 and associated legislation relating to the 

Management of Contractors such CDM regulations

This is caused by… a systemic failure in operational estates to 

control and manage contractors working on behalf of the 

Operational Estates Department

This could lead to… prosecution/HSE intervention or harm to 

patients, visitors, staff or contractors or adverse press coverage 

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme
Health, Safety, 

Security and Fire

The Trust has new senior management

There is a Management of Contractors Policy (expired April 2020)

Risk Assessments & Method Statements (RAMS) are adequately reviewed and 

approved by Estates with a process in place.

Robust specifications are required for all future works, with full agreement 

and approval at the appropriate level.

All new projects are following the Trust procurements processes with 

involvement from Procurement to ensure compliance.

Actions for this risk are recorded on the Trusts 

overarching plan for improving health and safety. 

Revised RAMS process are now in place and provides 

more control over works and specifications.

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Major 12 High  Ricky  Daniel 25/09/2020

7870 Estates & Facilities Trustwide

There is a risk that… the existing operational estates team do not 

have capacity to provide the trust with the required level of 

assurance given the size of the organisation and their portfolio

This is caused by… historical gaps in estates planning, leadership, 

management, training and procedures

This could lead to… failure to provide the required level of 

statutory compliance, multiple breaches in health and safety 

legislation and potential for staff to burn out and or leave the 

Trust

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Estates

•	Newly appointed senior engineer with significant experience outside the NHS

•	New appointed interim Director of Estates & Facilities with significant NHS 

experience

•	An existing junior team will with the willingness to change and improve the 

estates service.

•	Close working relationship with H&S and Strategic estates

•	Senior Management Team now in place with a vision and drive to change and 

improve the service.

Actions for this risk are recorded on the Trusts 

overarching plan for improving Health and Safety. 

Weekly risk reviews with key staff and the appointment 

of new staff are progressing.

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Moderate 9 High  Ricky  Daniel 13/11/2020

7353 Trustwide

There is a risk that the lack of alignment between organisational 

strategies/priorities will limit the scale and pace of our progress 

towards an integrated care system for CIOS Health and Care 

Partnership

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

System Leadership Board					

Dedicated Urgent Care, Planned Care and Chidren's Care resource which 

reports into the System Board					

Regular interface with PCN Leaders				

Integration Programme between CFT & RCHT			

Block contract with the KCCG - CQUINs				

New Models of Care Programme					

Rating has been escalated to reflect failure of controls; 

This is principally relates to not having an agreed system 

wide clinical strategy.Strategic Outline Case for 

integration between CFT and RCHT has been submitted 

to NHSE/I and we are awaiting feedback - probably in 

the new year.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High  Ceri Evans 29/01/2021

7357 Trustwide Trustwide

Risk that the Trust is not able to afford capital investment to 

enable it to ensure that service continuity is maintained, 

statutory regulations are adhered to and services are improved 

through the use of technology where possible.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

E Health Programme Board

Estates Board

Medical Equipment Board					

Capital Delivery Group					

Finance Committee Reports from each of the above		

Digital Strategy & IT programme					

The value of the Capital Programme for 2020-21 has 

been set at  £17.6m for internally funded schemes. This 

has not changed although significant additional funding 

has been made available for other projects taking the 

total programme value up to £56m.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High  Ceri Evans 23/10/2020

7492 Trustwide
There is a risk that the culture of health and safety is not 

understood or embedded 

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Workforce

Health and Safety Strategy 					

Competency frameworks					

Implemented interim management arrangement					

Increased number of H&S audits being carried out					

Mandatory training programme					

Suite of health and safety related risk assessments					

Leadership roles with safety responsibilities evidenced in JDs					

Suite of policies, procedures and other processes relating to specific 

regulations or activities					

Incident reporting and risk management system					

H&S committee- action focussed with attendance across all care groups to 

understand and review Health and Safety issues					

Monthy Trust safety leadership team					

There is a significant multi-pronged improvement plan 

that tackels the whole of the Health and Safety agenda 

and working through it mitigates significant area of 

concern.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High  Sandrea Mosses 24/09/2020

7615 Specialist Medicine Nephrology / Renal

There is a risk that the reverse osmosis water production system 

which provides purified water to the Dialysis Unit will fail 

unexpectedly.

This is due to age and obsolescence of spare parts. This 

equipment needs replacing now and probably should have been 

before now.

This could lead to a sudden and unexpected failure and no 

possibility of repair. This will mean the Dialysis Unit will not be 

able to function with huge impact to patient safety.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Equipment Business continuity plan in place for failure of dialysis unit.

Approval for funding given, procurement acting upon 

this for shortest timescale. 20/10/20

3/12/20 - review date changed to 30/4/20 when 

installation should be completed

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Negligible 1 Low Mr Bill Thornton 30/04/2020

7160 Clinical Support Services Sterile Service

All four sterilizers and clean steam generators are at the end of 

life and the recommendations by the Authorising Engineer 

Decontamination are to replace.

This means that failure of the electronic controls or fracture of 

the chamber is certain due to the age of the sterilizers. 

Because all four Sterilization are the same age, there is an 

increased probability that they would all fail around the same 

time.

Sterilizer failure would reduce or stop all sterilization for 

reusable medical devices for the Trust and impact SLAs with 

other organisations.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Equipment

Equipment maintained by specialist staff within the department.

Equipment is checked prior and following use and tested daily/weekly/ 

quarterly.

Contingency plan with Derriford for excess capacity if a single machine fails.

Retrofitted parts sourced to replace some failed parts.

Ring fenced spending from capital has been identified 

that will ensure that these machines are replaced by the 

end of the year.

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Moderate 3 Low  Matthew Dyer 30/09/2020
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3754 Corporate Infectious diseases

There is a risk that… the requirement to manage our patients 

(red/amber/green) in response to covid and the adjustments to 

the hospital state has impacted on patient flow. 

This is caused by… holding patients whilst awaiting results, the 

conversion of estate to critical care (limiting availability for non 

critical care patients) and the complexity of maintaining capacity 

across covid positive and covid negative wards. 

Leading to… delays in medical and surgical admissions, patient 

harm, loss of staff due to burn out and sickness, delayed care 

pathways, preventable death and the potential to move patients 

where their covid result is not known.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme
Service / Business 

Disruption
  zChief Operating Officer

Additional ITU capacity identified

Staff upskilling in place - clinical and non-clinical		

Re-deployment process established				

Staff testing now in place					

Digital space for collocated work with health economy partners	

Leading indicators dashboard					

Centralised stocks of PPE					

Extra staffing (flexed from other areas)			

Extra security arrangements 					

Local manufacture of supplies and sourcing locally		

Innovative working					

Revamping the care pathway					

New SOPs					

Tighter stock procedures					

Plans assessed daily					

Care Group owned response plans which are signed off through a check and 

challenge session with executive and then executive sign off

Ward usage plan is owned at Care Group level with clinical oversight and 

reviewed at least weekly					

AMU rapid testing process					

IPAC guidance for how to move patients out of the holding area without a test 

result					

There is a functioning and established incident 

command centre. All departments have updated their 

plans and are learning from them. There is a 

ward/department to Incident Command Centre to 

wider systems structure established. The incident 

command control centre is utilising QI methodology to 

manage workstreams to enable the Trust to respond to 

the Covid19 threat.

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Major 12 High Mr Matthew Overton 23/10/2020

3913 Clinical Support Services
Clinical Technology 

(Medical Physics)

There is a risk that: Equipment will not serviced and maintained 

on time

This is caused by: the potential for insufficient workforce 

capacity.  This occurs as:

1) Maintenance is reliant on a small number of staff with 

specialised skills, performance against KPIs is therefore volatile 

with staff sickness/absence. This is particularly so for more 

specialised higher risk devices.

2) The Trust does not have robust mechanisms to identify and 

resource the servicing of new "additional" medical equipment 

purchased by the Trust or by charity - there is therefore an 

organic growth in the size of the asset base.

3) A number of service developments (i.e. increases in the 

equipment asset base) are currently unresourced, these include

-SDMA

-ED reconfiguration

-PRU

-Bodmin Treatment centre

-Additional equipment in response to Covid

-Critical Care Expansion and PACU (subject to BC approval)

This could lead to: 

i) increased risk of device failures, resulting in increased risk of 

patient harm and/or impact on service continuity

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

 zInterim Medical Director 

zInterim Medical Director

RCHT has undertaken an audit to produce a definitive asset register, 

supported by RFID technology.  Assets have been stratified on the asset 

register into very high risk/high risk/medium risk/low risk categories and 

relevant KPI's set.

DVRG request for additional staffing

A large quantity of new additional medical equipment 

has come into the Trust without associated resource for 

maintenance being conferred.  This includes: SDMA,ED 

reconfiguration, PRU, Bodmin Treatment centre, 

Additional equipment in response to Covid, Critical Care 

Expansion and PACU (subject to BC approval). PRU and 

crit care expansion/PACU are particularly pertinent 

examples as equipment has been bought ahead of any 

business case being completed which would confer 

resource as identified therein. We have a particularly 

high capacity and resilience risk around maintenance of 

ventilators – we have 2 technicians and the asset base 

has doubled this year. Acknowledging the long time 

taken to get someone into post (advert, interview, 

notice period, training) vs the immediate service need, 

the recommendation is that we proceed “at risk” with 

an additional technician post ahead of the business 

case and funding process playing out.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High  Trevelyan Foy 01/01/2021

6418 Corporate
Contracting Performance 

and Intelligence

UPDATED TO REFLECT COVID-19 IMPACT. There is a parent risk 

that the Trust's RTT performance and elective waiting times will 

significantly deteriorate. This is caused by loss of both capacity 

and activity in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This could 

lead to an increase in waiting list and RTT Patient Tracking List 

size and length, resulting in considerable delays to both 

diagnosis and treatment. This could cause patient harm, as well 

as stress for our workforce.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

  zChief Operating Officer

"Moved from fortnightly to weekly RTT/access performance management 

meetings in place - Divisional level and Chief Operating Officer-led. Patient 

Access Policy in place supported by e-learning. Routine waiting list validation 

processes in place at a specialty level to manage backlogs. Additional capacity 

plans worked up at specialty level.

NHSI intensive support team have closed down their 'support' for the 52 week 

wait reduction as zero waits were achieved.

SOPs for harm reviews have been developed and are being implemented

Aspiration to achieve 90% in 2019/20 - both PTL and >18 week backlog are 

reducing (slowing % improvement) but some concern about >40 week wait 

increases from May.

11/05/20 - weekly RTT/Access Exec-led meeting remains in place reviewing 

PTL and waiting lists, monitoring backlog and waiting list data quality. Clinical 

Harm Review SOP in place.

performance is currently improving but number of long 

waiters are increasing

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Major 12 High Mrs Claire Florey 25/09/2020

6766 Trustwide Trustwide

There is a risk of patient harm due to delays in the transmission 

of discharge summaries to GPs which contain potentially time 

sensitive clinical information and actions for GPs/primary care. 

This is caused by not meeting the timeliness standard (24 hours) 

and carrying a backlog of not transmitted summaries due to a 

combination of process, capacity and user error issues. This 

could lead to patient harm, breaching of contractual obligations 

(the contractual standard is 24 hours) and reputational harm for 

the Trust as well as inconvenience for GPs and poor patient 

experience.

This is a parent risk - the risk at specialty level will vary and the 

expectation is those risks will be recorded on the appropriate 

registers.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Patient Safety   Chief Nurse (Inactive User)

1. Improved reporting has been developed to enable divisions/directorates to 

understand and performance manage their backlogs and 24 hour 

performance.

2. Discharge summary backlogs are included on the Performance Assurance 

Framework and challenged at an Executive level in the Divisions' monthly 

Performance Reviews.

3. A Task & Finish Group has been set up with delegated responsibility from 

Trust Management Group to provide a framework for improvement.

2020 - included in Performance Reviews and Operational Board. 2019/20 

performance was most improved year to date.

There is an ongoing QI programme related to discharge 

summaries with the results to be presented at QAC

Task & Finish Group set up to review and develop 

reporting, provide framework for Divisions to develop 

and implement actions plans improvement trajectories.

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Major 4 Moderate Mrs Gillian Derrick 30/09/2020

6846
Anaesthetics, Critical Care 

and Theatres
Anaesthetics

There is a risk that patient awareness during surgery or post 

operative delirium  may occur. 

This risk can be reduced by the use of BIS (depth of anaesthesia 

monitors)or EEG waveform monitoring and spectral edge 

frequency analysis, to be used in high risk patients or those 

having Total Intravenous Anaesthesia (TIVA). If awareness/ 

delirium occurs this can lead to Post Traumatic Stress Disorder 

and prolonged stay with increased risk of morbidity.  The 

consequences of concern and distraction to anaesthetists whose 

training has established routine use with this equipment is 

creating stress and fatigue amongst this group.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Patient Safety   ZMedical Director

There are currently 4 BIS monitors at RCH,  2 based in Trauma, 1 in Tower & 1 

in the Newlyn unit. There are currently 4 BIS monitors at RCH,  2 based in 

Trauma, 1 in Tower & 1 in the Newlyn unit. 

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Moderate 3 Low  Russell Evans 22/09/2020
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7013
Director of Nursing 

(Historic)
Trustwide

There is a risk that the Trust will not be able to consistently 

deliver high quality , harm free, compassionate care to patients. 

This is due to; on-going recruitment challenges, high use of 

temporary staff.

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme Quality   Chief Nurse (Inactive User)

Ward Accreditation Programme - Aspire is embedded in all inpatient wards 

with roll out to outpatients					

Twice daily SAFER care meeting and appropriate redeployment of staff					

"Safety Huddles" in place in all inpatient units to identify high risk 

patients.					

Friends and Family Test (FFT)					

CQC Scrutiny Group meetings and the associated Integrated Action Plan 

					

Matrons rounds & feedback mechanisms 					

The Trust's Performance Assurance Framework (PAF)					

Safer Care SOP and staffing escalation procedure has been reviewed and is in 

governance processes, published in Documents Library					

Review of staffing including within corporate teams and review of 

management and study days as appropriate - Meeting took place on 1/10/19 

relating to E-Rostering	

				

Ward to Board Framework		

			

Being Brilliant Staff development programme					

Patient Experience surveys - sent to Heads of Nursing	

Operational Workgroup Group meet fortnightly				

There is additional capacity and the piece of work 

undertaken to redeploy staff, as well as the work done 

to flex up and flex down capacity for business as usual. 

Due to lower numbers the harm profile will reduce and 

the go up again as activity increases.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Major 8 High   Chief Nurse (Inactive User) 30/09/2020

7016 Trustwide Trustwide

There is risk that demand outstrips capacity and the Trust will 

not be resilient at times of surge and extremis, which will 

adversely  impact on the quality of care delivered. leading to  the 

Trusts ability to deliver a range of  constitutional standards.	

				

				

				

				

				

				

Will probably happen  / 

recur but it is not a 

persisting issue

Major 16 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

 zDirector of Operations 

zDirector of Operations

4hr performance meeting implemented using RTT principles for detailed check 

and challenge with Care Groups 

Harm Review Panel process					

System wide revision of escalation calls implemented daily to support 

flow					

SAFER care bundle 					

Operational Board					

Cancer Board					

System oversight					

Matrons and Service Managers daily walk rounds			

Embrace programme has superseded 4hr recovery programme to ensure 

system response					

RTT Cancer Recovery plans submitted to Cancer Board Capacity and demand 

modelling used for service planning

DM01 performance is tracked and reported at the RTT meeting with recovery 

plans being worked up 

System wide flow improvements to ensure bed availability for elective 

procedures				

QIDB and recovery plans being created by the Care Groups					

This risk has been reviewed in relation to the RTT and 

Covid risks and the inherent consequence has been 

increased to 5 given the potential for both covid and 

seasonal surge to overlap and impact on this risk. This 

has not changed the current risk with mitigations.

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Moderate 9 High

 zDirector of Operations 

zDirector of Operations
23/10/2020

5936 Clinical Support Services Clinical Microbiology

There is a risk that the CL3 laboratory may fail its H&S checks and 

not be compliant with HSE regulations and therefore risk 

subsequent sanction. This is caused by the age and wear/tear of 

the structure. 

The impact of this is multiple - samples would have to be sent 

elsewhere for diagnosis of tuberculosis. This would have a cost 

implication as well as a delay to diagnosis for patients. 

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Moderate 15 Extreme

Infection 

Prevention

"The air pressure of the lab is routinely monitored and external checks are 

performed regularly. 

There is an informal agreement with the Microbiology department at Exeter 

that they would process our samples for a short period. "

Testing done by ARENA works on room integrity  completed in house 5.6.18

HSE are in today, CL3 room failed smoke test yesterday, 

estates are looking at trying another fix

Mitigation is the lab is sending work away, RA’s in place 

etc

Longer term plan is for new build as part of relocation 

project

£100k allocated this year as start of replacement, now 

overtaken by the relocation project, so need the above 

interim fix to work for a couple of years

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Moderate 3 Low Dr Gemma Vanstone 31/12/2020

7068
Anaesthetics, Critical Care 

and Theatres
Anaesthetics

Hazard: No capnography for sedated or anaesthetised patients 

in recovery.

1: Harm: Clinical: Delayed recognition of airway obstruction  (life-

threatening). Likelihood: Rare. Consequence: Major. (Risk: 

2x4=8)

2: Harm: Clinical: Delayed recognition of airway obstruction (non 

life-threatening). Likelihood: Daily. Consequence: Minor. (Risk: 

5x2=10)

3: Harm: Clinical: No capnography for ITU ventilated patients in 

recovery. Likelihood: 3 monthly. Consequence: Moderate. (Risk: 

3x3=9)

4: Harm: Non adherence to national guidelines. Likelihood: Daily. 

Consequence: CQC critical reporting & failure to achieve strategic 

goals eg ACSA accreditation. (Risk: 5x3=15)

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Moderate 15 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

  ZMedical Director

One to one recovery nursing. Strong resistance to ITU outliers & involvement 

of critical care staff with patient care.

Borrowing capnography kit from ITU

Procurement of monitoring with this ability

Business case written to support introduction of 

capnography monitoring in recovery areas 22/06/2020 

Reviewed, risk raised at Governance Huddle, NJ to chase 

timescales. 04/05/2020 reviewed, no change until 

monitors installed 06/04/2020 reviewed, risk remains 

due to monitor rllout being paused due to covid

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Moderate 6 Moderate  Russell Evans 22/09/2020

7189
Anaesthetics, Critical Care 

and Theatres

Critical (Intensive) Care 

(ITU)

There is a risk that patients come to harm due to lack of access 

to higher care post operative beds as highlighted by National 

GIRFT Report where RCH is an outlier. 

This is caused by inadequate higher level care capacity. 

This could lead to same day cancellations, delay in treatment 

and/or increased risk of unexpected post operative critical care 

admission from a ward area. 

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Moderate 15 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

  ZMedical Director

The use of recovery beds as an overnight area to look after this patient 

cohort. 

Continued staff recruitment as part of critical care business case

Limitation of elective surgical admissions daily

Pre-operative assessment 

Constructing further business case for critical care expansion and post 

anaesthetic care unit expansion

The GIRFT reviews have a scheduled process of review 

where the outstanding actions are updated against a 

log and rag rated until completion. This process is 

ongoing and this risk is reviewed monthly by the care 

group.

04/05/2020 Reviewed - no change currently 

06/04/2020 reviewed risk remains currently

03/03/2020 Reviewed by Re - NELA still confirms we are 

an outlier risk remains.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Moderate 6 Moderate  Russell Evans 30/09/2020

7219
Urgent, Emergency and 

Trauma
Emergency Department

Risk: Children who cannot be safely discharged from the ED to 

have an urgent OP CAMHS assessment wait too long for their 

emergency assessment by CAMHS. There is no out of hours 

cover for emergency assessment.

Cause: children are no longer admitted to a paediatric ward to 

wait for a CAMHS assessment.

This has lead to children spending several hours in the ED waiting 

for CAMHS assessments, often overnight, in an inadequate 

environment, which is a poor experience for the child, their 

parents/carers and the staff. There is no parity of esteem for 

mental illness in this scenario.

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Moderate 15 Extreme Patient Safety

Mrs Chief Nurse Chief 

Nurse

CAMHS are now based on site 8-8 but provide on call service only outside of 

these hours.

ED staff are exploring all avenues to safely discharge the patients - home, 

support in the community and urgent CAMHS appointments within a few 

days.

Sowenna unit has opened and helped with capacity but there are periods 

where this is full and significant delays are experienced in the ED.

There is a multi agency response to this risk and several 

incidents that have occurred in the last 6 months 

including several separate workstreams.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Moderate 6 Moderate  Owen McCormack 10/12/2020
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7670
Women, Children & Sexual 

Health
Gynaecology

There will continue to be service failures to meet cervical 

screening standards for patients with high grade cervical disease 

and delay treatment in these patients. In addition, there will be 

continual service failures to meet the contractual obligations 

required by the cervical screening programme at RCHT.

This is caused by… Failure to plan for the increase in workload 

caused by the conversion to primary HPV meaning that there is 

insufficient clinical capacity.

This could lead to… Reputational damage to the trust, censure 

from the regulators including the CQC/SQAS/NHS England, harm 

to patients and escalation to NHS England director of 

commissioning operations.

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Moderate 15 Extreme Public Confidence Dr Richenda Tisdale

1-2 additional appointments for high grade patients added to every list

Additional weekend and evening clinics 

Colposcopy nursing staff conducting overtime for existing clinics (20hrs per 

week)

28/05/2020 SQAS/PHE/NHSE updated with progress on equipment and 

staffing business case. SQAS/PHE/NHSE assured that we are progressing with 

the actions. 

16/07/2020 SQAS/PHE/NHSE updated with information regarding the 

approval of the staffing resource (Band 8A and Band 5).

Trust is required to provide further evidence that we are progressing with 

recruitment and appointment into these posts.

Band 5 nurse successfully redeployed into post.

Band 8a post out to advert - advert time extended to 

increase likelihood of appointment into post. Team 

currently reviewing whether this could be a 

developmental role. No applicants so far.

Equipment has been delivered.

Covid impact resulted in reduction of referrals to the 

service from April to October. Which resulted in 

accommodation of 2ww referrals within the 

recommended timeframes. However the "catchup" 

phase has resulted in 3000 additional cytology samples 

being received each week at the Bristol lab who were 

already operating at 130% capacity on re invitation of 

patients for screening. This is likely to result in an surge 

of referrals at RCHT over the coming weeks.

This risk is also associated with an outstanding non 

conformance from and inspection in October 2018. This 

will only be resolved on appointment of the band 8a. To 

prevent further escalation to the director of 

commissioning for NHSE RCHT has been keeping PHE 

and SQAS updated with our progress and to date are 

satisfied with how we are moving forward.

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Negligible 3 Low Miss Leonie Jane Glinski 04/01/2021

7834 Corporate CITS - Technical Support

There is a risk that malicious code could encrypt or wipe Clinical 

Imaging data stored on the data centre. This is due to the fact 

that the current IT solution has no provision for backups and 

PACS is updating data dynamically and constantly. This could 

lead to a major failure of PACS affecting services for over a day.

Might happen or recur 

occasionally
Catastrophic 15 Extreme IM&T F Add CITS data centre to PACS cluster nodes

This will probably 

never happen / 

recur

Catastrophic 5 Moderate  Robert Phillips 30/10/2020

7847 St Michael's Hospital (SMH) St Michael's Hospital (SMH)

There is a risk that the COVID pandemic will impact on the 

elective Orthopaedic service due to the following:

Delay of all urgent and routine new outpatient appointments

Delay of all urgent and routine follow up appointments

Delay of all diagnostic appointments

Delay of all patients receiving any type of treatment

Cancellation of all urgent and routine elective surgery

Transfer of Trauma Service to St Michaels Hospital 

This will potentially cause the following impact the following:

Unable to achieve patient’s RTT due minimal elective capacity 

during pandemic

Potential delays when the service restarts

Delay to diagnostic appointments which form part of the 

Consultant’s management plan

Any or all of the above have the potential to cause harm to 

patients in delaying their RTT pathway

 


Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Moderate 15 Extreme

Compliance 

(Quality and 

Safety)

Urgent new referrals continue to be received and treated as normal

Clinical reviews of long waiting routine new patients to ensure no harm likely

Telephone assessments where appropriate for new and follow up patients

Clinical reviews of all elective surgical waiting lists

Regular RTT meetings with director of operation for the trust to review 

position.

20/08/2020 RTT incomplete performance continues to 

deteriorate as projected - currently at 52.3%, depending 

on new clock starts projections remain 41-45% at end of 

July.

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Moderate 9 High  Chloe Parr 01/10/2020

7868 Estates & Facilities Trustwide

There is a risk that… identified gaps in the fire management 

arrangements will not be adequately managed.

This is caused by… a lack of evidence for a robust governance 

system and no assurance on how effective the management 

system is and how well it has been implemented.

This could lead to… multiple statutory breaches, prosecutions, 

reputational damage.

Might happen or recur 

occasionally
Catastrophic 15 Extreme

Health, Safety, 

Security and Fire

•	Ratified Fire safety Policy

•	Fire Safety Management & weekly assurance group with Attendance reports 

to Health & Safety Committee. 

•	Fire Safety Advisor in post

•	Compliance tracking of fire training 

•	Fire alarm service contract management in place

•	Annual Board fire safety report includes fire drill compliance 

•	Review and monitoring of monthly fire warden inspections

•	New FRA to PAS 79 implemented

* Appointed Authorising Engineer for Fire Safety.

Oversight of the risk by CQC and HSE

This risk was disaggregated by the fire safety subgroup 

so it now only reflects the management arrangements.

Do not expect it to 

happen / recur 

but it is possible it 

may do so

Catastrophic 10 High  Ricky  Daniel 27/10/2020

7884 St Michael's Hospital (SMH) Theatres & Recovery

There is a risk that patients will not be able to have their surgery 

in a timely manner, or that they will require a potentially 

avoidable blood transfusion.

This is caused by a lack of staff trained with the appropriate cell 

salvage skills.

This could lead to patients having a delay to their surgery, a 

deterioration of their condition or the requirement of a blood 

transfusion that otherwise could be avoided. 

Will undoubtedly happen / 

recur, possibly frequently
Moderate 15 Extreme Patient Safety

Theatre manager is reviewing skill mix of staff

Theatre manager is trying to arrange training for staff

try to maintain level of training to ensure all relevant 

staff are current 

Might happen or 

recur occasionally
Moderate 9 High  David Riches 24/09/2020
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 Corporate Risks Register and Risk Oversight Dash Board 

Lead Director / 

Division
Current

Date risk 

Identified
≤6 8 9 10 12 15 16 ≥20

Dates to achieve 

target risk score
Strategic Objectives

Clinical Support 

Services
7302 Environment Agency/CQC/HSE Compliance re Radioactive Materials - Condition of Premises  Trevelyan Foy 20 Apr-19 m t Jan-21

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Estates & Facilities 8040 There are underlying unsafe conditions that have an impact on Fire Safety  Ricky  Daniel 20 Oct-20 m t Oct-20

0

Urgent, Emergency 

and Trauma
7703 Delays to transfer CAMHS patients out of ED  Owen McCormack 20 Feb-20 m t Dec-20

0

Urgent, Emergency 

and Trauma
4301 ED Exit Block Mrs Johanna Susan Floyd 20 Jun-12 m t Dec-20

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Women, Children 

& Sexual Health
7968 Recent structural fire risk identified requiring major works on NNU  Sarah Rattigan 20 Jul-20 m t Feb-21

0

Anaesthetics, 

Critical Care and 

Theatres

6846 Risk of patient awareness for those at high risk as well as having TIVA  Russell Evans 16 Jun-18 m t Sep-20

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Clinical Support 

Services
3913 Corporate-level risk: Insufficient Workforce Capacity for Medical Equipment Maintenance & Servicing  Trevelyan Foy 16 Jan-12 m t 1 Jan-21

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Clinical Support 

Services
7927 Covid-19 and respiratory virus testing capacity and capability Dr Gemma Vanstone 16 Jul-20 m t Dec-20

0

Clinical Support 

Services
7947 Pathology LIMS (Winpath) incompability with current operating systems across RCHT  Bruce Daniel 16 Aug-20 m t Apr-21

0

Clinical Support 

Services
7160 Sterile Services Porous Steam Sterilizers  Matthew Dyer 16 Nov-17 m t Sep-20

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Corporate 3754 Coronavirus (Covid-19) Mr Matthew Overton 16 Oct-11 m t Oct-20

Partnership: Offer integrated care as close to 

home as possible, People: Attract develop and 

retain excellent staff, Quality: To provide 

Corporate 6418 Referral to Treatment (RTT) & Elective Waits Delays Mrs Claire Florey 16 Aug-17 m t Sep-20

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Corporate 7891 Siloed Clinical Information in Clinical IT Systems  Ian Nicholls 16 Jun-20 m t Jan-21

0

Director of Nursing 

(Historic)
7013 Principal Risk  -  Brilliant Care -1.1 Provide care that is safe and avoids harm-  - Compliance with regulatory standards   Chief Nurse (Inactive User) 16 Oct-18 m t Sep-20

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Estates & Facilities 7870 There is not the capacity or capability within the existing Operational Estates team to provide the required level of statutory  Ricky  Daniel 16 Jun-20 m t Nov-20

0

Specialist Medicine 7615 Renal Unit Reverse Osmosis Water Production System - Obsolete Mr Bill Thornton 16 Jun-19 m t Apr-20

0

Trustwide 6766 Delayed or not sent discharge summaries Mrs Gillian Derrick 16 Mar-18 m t Sep-20

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care, Resources: Make the best use of 

all of our resources

Trustwide 7869 Failure to comply with the requirements of the Trust’s Management of Contractors Policy  Ricky  Daniel 16 Jun-20 m t

#

Sep-20

0

Trustwide 7353 Failure to maximise the benefits of system working  due to incongruence of clinical service strategies  Ceri Evans 16 May-19 m t Jan-21
0

Trustwide 7016 Principal Risk  - Briliant Care 1.4 Provide clinically effective care, which minimises delay and the amount of time people have 
 zDirector of Operations zDirector of 

Operations
16 Oct-18 m t Oct-20

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care

Trustwide 7357 Principal Risk 3.2 Use innovation and technology to improve the quality experience and cost of care  Ceri Evans 16 May-19 m t Oct-20
0

Trustwide 7492 Principal Risk Brilliant People 2.5  Sandrea Mosses 16 Apr-19 m t Sep-20
0

Anaesthetics, 

Critical Care and 

Theatres

7068 Capnography Anaesthesia (linked to risks 6911 & 7038)  Russell Evans 15 Nov-18 m t Sep-20
Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care, Resources: Make the best use of 

all of our resources
Anaesthetics, 

Critical Care and 

Theatres

7189 GET IT RIGHT FIRST TIME (GIRFT) CRITICAL CARE  Russell Evans 15 Jan-19 m t Sep-20
0

                            Key

           Indicates movement in the month; 
    t    Diamond indicates current score;
    m   Circle indicates target risk score
     #    Hash symbol column indicates number of 
overdue actions 
     Indicates no open actions. 
             Indicates closed risk or reduced score and 
removed from CRR

 Corporate Risk Register: 

Corporate Risk Register 

Principal risks

Corporate Risk Register
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06.4_CRR dashboard Tracker - 30-12-2020

12/01/2021

 Corporate Risks Register and Risk Oversight Dash Board 

Lead Director / 

Division
Current

Date risk 

Identified
≤6 8 9 10 12 15 16 ≥20

Dates to achieve 

target risk score
Strategic Objectives

                            Key

           Indicates movement in the month; 
    t    Diamond indicates current score;
    m   Circle indicates target risk score
     #    Hash symbol column indicates number of 
overdue actions 
     Indicates no open actions. 
             Indicates closed risk or reduced score and 
removed from CRR

 Corporate Risk Register: 

Corporate Risk Register

Clinical Support 

Services
5936 Risk of Cat 3 laboratory not sealed appropriately Dr Gemma Vanstone 15 Apr-16 m t Dec-20

0

Corporate 7834 PACS Disaster Recovery Backups  Robert Phillips 15 Mar-18 m t Oct-20
0

Estates & Facilities 7868 There are inadequate Fire safety management arrangements  Ricky  Daniel 15 May-20 m t Oct-20
0

St Michael's 

Hospital (SMH)
7847 Covid related RTT risks  Chloe Parr 15 Apr-20 m t Oct-20

0

St Michael's 

Hospital (SMH)
7884 Lack of Cell salvage trained staff at SMH  David Riches 15 Jun-20 m t Sep-20

0

Urgent, Emergency 

and Trauma
7219 CAMHS patients waiting in the ED for assessment  Owen McCormack 15 Oct-18 m t Dec-20

Partnership: Offer integrated care as close to 

home as possible, People: Attract develop and 

retain excellent staff, Quality: To provide 
Women, Children 

& Sexual Health
7670 Failure to meet two week referral target for high grade colposcopy patients and failure to meet compliance - lack of capacity Miss Leonie Jane Glinski 15 Jan-20 m t Jan-21

Quality: To provide compassionate, safe, 

effective care
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January February March
Monday 1 1
Tuesday PD 1 1 2 2

Wednesday PD 1 2 PD 2 3 3
Thursday PD TBI PD TBI (G09) TB (G09) PD TB (G09) TB (G09) PD TB (TBC)

Friday 4 2 PD 4 5 5
Saturday 4 1 5 3 5 2 6 6

Sunday 5 2 6 4 1 6 3 7 7
Monday 6 3 7 PD 5 2 7 PD 4 8 PD 8
Tuesday 7 4 8 6 3 8 5 9 9

Wednesday 8 5 PD 9 7 4 9 6 PD 10 PD 10
Thursday 9 6 POD (BHMR) 8 PD TB (G09) 10 TB (G09) PD 11 11

Friday 10 7 PD 11 9 6 11 8 PD 12 PD 12
Saturday 11 8 12 10 7 12 9 13 13

Sunday 12 9 13 11 8 13 10 14 14
Monday ARAC (BHMR) 10 14 12 9 FPC (BHMR) 11 15 15
Tuesday CFC (BHMR) 11 CFC (BHMR) 13 10 POD (BHMR) CFC (BHMR) 16 CFC (BHMR)

Wednesday PD 15 12 16 PD 14 PD 11 QAC (BHMR) PD 13 17 17
Thursday PD 16 13 APM (G09) PD ARAC (BHMR) 12 17 PD ARAC (BHMR) 18 ARAC (BHMR)

Friday 17 14 18 PD 16 PD 13 18 15 19 19
Saturday 18 15 19 17 14 19 16 20 20

Sunday 19 16 20 18 15 20 17 21 21
Monday PD 20 17 PD FPC (BHMR) 19 16 21 18 PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR)
Tuesday 21 18 22 20 CFC (BHMR) 22 19 QAC (BHMR) 23

Wednesday 22 19 QAC (BHMR) 21 18 23 20 POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR)
Thursday 23 20 24 22 19 24 21 25 TB (G09)

Friday 24 21 25 23 20 22 26 26
Saturday 25 22 26 24 21 26 23 27 27

Sunday 26 23 27 25 22 27 24 28 28
Monday FPC (BHMR) 24 28 PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) 29
Tuesday QAC (BHMR) 25 29 QAC (BHMR) TBI (BHMR) PD 29 QAC (BHMR) 30

Wednesday 29 26 30 POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) PD 30 27 31
Thursday TB (G09) 27 29 26 31 TB (G09)

Friday 31 28 30 27 29
Saturday 29 31 28 30

Sunday 30 29 31
Monday Board to Board
Tuesday

To Be Confirmed

BHMR

TBC
HWIC Health and Wellbeing Innovation Centre

Kerry Eldridge
Mairi McLean

Lynsey Neave

Comments
POD 24th February 2021 - Time change 14:00-17:00

Time

09:00-12:00
14:00-16:00
16:30-18:15

Kerry EldridgeSarah Pryce
Paul Hobson

Sally May
Kim O'Keeffe

Sally May
Lynsey Neave

Mairi McLean
Margaret Schwarz

Richard Stephenson
Sarah Newton

Lynsey Neave
Lynsey Neave
Lynsey Neave

Chair of Meeting Committee Secretary Executive Lead

10:00-17:00 Kate ShieldsSiân MillardMairi McLean

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee
Finance and Performace Committee

Time

12:45-17:00
14:00-17:00
13:00-16:00

Trust Board (Public and Committee)

Key

TB
TBI

QAC
FPC

ARAC
POD
CFC

APM

10:00-17:00

BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY

Quality Assurance Committee RCHT and Joint
Trust Board Informal

HWIC 1st October 2020 - Venue is Perranporth Room, HWIC

Charitable Funds Committee
Annual Public Meeting
Paper Deadline
Bedruthan House Meeting Room

PD

People and Organisational Development Committee

RCHT Trust Board and Committees Meeting Dates 2020-21

BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY

July August October DecemberSeptember November
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Monday 1
Tuesday 1 2 1 1

Wednesday 2 1 3 PD 1 2 2
Thursday TB (G09) TB (G09) PD TB (G09) PD TB (TBC) PD TB (TBC) PD TB (TBC) TB (TBC) PD TB (TBC)

Friday 4 2 3 1 5 PD 3 4 4
Saturday 3 1 5 3 4 2 6 4 1 5 5

Sunday 4 2 6 4 1 5 3 7 5 2 6 6
Monday 7 PD 5 2 6 PD 4 8 6 PD 3 7 PD 7
Tuesday 6 4 8 6 3 7 5 9 7 4 8 8

Wednesday 7 5 PD 9 7 4 8 6 PD 10 8 5 PD 9 9
Thursday 8 TB (TBC) PD 10 8 TB (G09) 9 TB (TBC) 11 9 TB (TBC) PD 10 10

Friday 9 7 PD 11 9 6 10 8 PD 12 10 7 PD 11 11
Saturday 10 8 12 10 7 11 9 13 11 8 12 12

Sunday 11 9 13 11 8 12 10 14 12 9 13 13
Monday 12 10 14 12 9 13 11 15 FPC (BHMR) 10 14 14
Tuesday 13 PD CFC (BHMR) 15 CFC (BHMR) 10 CFC (BHMR) 12 CFC (BHMR) POD (BHMR) CFC (BHMR) 15 CFC (BHMR)

Wednesday PD 14 PD 12 16 PD 14 PD 11 PD 15 PD 13 17 QAC (BHMR) PD 12 16 PD 16
Thursday PD 15 13 17 PD ARAC (BHMR) PD 12 PD 16 PD ARAC (BHMR) 18 16 ARAC (BHMR) 17 PD ARAC (BHMR)

Friday PD 16 PD 14 18 16 PD 13 17 PD 15 19 17 PD 14 18 18
Saturday 17 15 19 17 14 18 16 20 18 15 19 19

Sunday 18 16 20 18 15 19 17 21 19 16 20 20
Monday 19 17 PD FPC (BHMR) 19 16 20 18 PD FPC (BHMR) 20 17 PD FPC (BHMR) 21
Tuesday 20 18 POD (BHMR) 20 17 21 19 23 21 18 POD (BHMR) 22

Wednesday 21 19 QAC (BHMR) 21 18 22 20 QAC (BHMR) 22 19 QAC (BHMR) 23
Thursday 22 20 24 22 19 23 21 TBI (TBC) PD 23 20 24 24

Friday PD 23 PD ARAC (BHMR) 25 23 PD 20 24 22 26 24 21 25 25
Saturday 24 22 26 24 21 25 23 27 25 22 26 26

Sunday 25 23 27 25 22 26 24 28 26 23 27 27
Monday FPC (BHMR) FPC (BHMR) 28 PD FPC (BHMR) FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) 29 PD FPC (BHMR) 28 FPC (BHMR)
Tuesday QAC (BHMR) 25 29 QAC (BHMR) POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) 30 25 QAC (BHMR)

Wednesday POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) 30 28 QAC (BHMR) TBI (TBC) POD (BHMR) 29 QAC (BHMR) TBI (TBC)
Thursday PD 29 TBI (G09) TBI (G09) 26 30 28 PD 30 TBI (TBC) 31

Friday 30 28 30 27 29 31 28
Saturday 29 31 28 30 29

Sunday 30 29 31 30
Monday 31
Tuesday 31

Wednesday

PD
BHMR

TBC
School Holidays

Paper Deadline
Bedruthan House Meeting Room
To Be Confirmed

APM Mairi McLean
CFC Paul Hobson Kerry EldridgeLynsey Neave14:00-16:00

16:30-18:15
Charitable Funds Committee
Annual Public Meeting

POD Sarah Pryce
ARAC Sarah Newton Sally May

Kerry EldridgeLynsey Neave
Lynsey Neave13:00-16:00

09:00-12:00People & Organisational Development Committee
Audit & Risk Assurance Committee

FPC Richard Stephenson
QAC Margaret Schwarz Kim O'Keeffe

Sally MayLynsey Neave
Lynsey Neave12:45-17:00

14:00-17:00
Quality Assurance Committee RCHT and Joint
Finance and Performance Committee

TBI Mairi McLean
TB Mairi McLean Kate ShieldsSiân Millard10:00-17:00Trust Board (Public and Committee)

Trust Board Informal

Chair of MeetingKey Time Committee Secretary Executive Lead

BANK HOLIDAY BANK HOLIDAY

RCHT Trust Board and Committees Meeting Dates 2021-22

April May June July August September October November December January February March

BANK HOLIDAY
BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY BANK HOLIDAY
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January February March

Monday 1 1
Tuesday PD 1 1 2 2

Wednesday PD 1 2 PD 2 3 3
Thursday PD TBI PD TBI (G09) TB (G09) PD TB (G09) TB (G09) PD TB (TBC)

Friday 4 2 PD 4 5 5
Saturday 4 1 5 3 5 2 6 6

Sunday 5 2 6 4 1 6 3 7 7
Monday 6 3 7 PD 5 2 7 PD 4 8 PD 8
Tuesday 7 4 8 6 3 8 5 9 9

Wednesday 8 5 PD 9 7 4 9 6 PD 10 PD 10
Thursday 9 6 POD (BHMR) 8 PD TB (G09) 10 TB (G09) PD 11 11

Friday 10 7 PD 11 9 6 11 8 PD 12 PD 12
Saturday 11 8 12 10 7 12 9 13 13

Sunday 12 9 13 11 8 13 10 14 14
Monday ARAC (BHMR) 10 14 12 9 FPC (BHMR) 11 15 15
Tuesday CFC (BHMR) 11 CFC (BHMR) 13 10 POD (BHMR) CFC (BHMR) 16 CFC (BHMR)

Wednesday PD 15 12 16 PD 14 PD 11 QAC (BHMR) PD 13 17 17
Thursday PD 16 13 APM (G09) PD ARAC (BHMR) 12 17 PD ARAC (BHMR) 18 ARAC (BHMR)

Friday 17 14 18 PD 16 PD 13 18 15 19 19
Saturday 18 15 19 17 14 19 16 20 20

Sunday 19 16 20 18 15 20 17 21 21
Monday PD 20 17 PD FPC (BHMR) 19 16 21 18 PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR)
Tuesday 21 18 22 20 CFC (BHMR) 22 19 QAC (BHMR) 23

Wednesday 22 19 QAC (BHMR) 21 18 23 20 POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR)
Thursday 23 20 24 22 19 24 21 25 TB (G09)

Friday 24 21 25 23 20 22 26 26
Saturday 25 22 26 24 21 26 23 27 27

Sunday 26 23 27 25 22 27 24 28 28
Monday FPC (BHMR) 24 28 PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) 29
Tuesday QAC (BHMR) 25 29 QAC (BHMR) TBI (BHMR) PD 29 QAC (BHMR) 30

Wednesday 29 26 30 POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) PD 30 27 31
Thursday TB (G09) 27 29 26 31 TB (G09)

Friday 31 28 30 27 29
Saturday 29 31 28 30

Sunday 30 29 31
Monday Board to Board
Tuesday

To Be Confirmed

BHMR

TBC

HWIC Health and Wellbeing Innovation Centre

Kerry Eldridge

Mairi McLean

Lynsey Neave

Comments
POD 24th February 2021 - Time change 14:00-17:00

Time

09:00-12:00

14:00-16:00

16:30-18:15

Kerry EldridgeSarah Pryce

Paul Hobson

Sally May

Kim O'Keeffe

Sally May

Lynsey Neave

Mairi McLean

Margaret Schwarz

Richard Stephenson

Sarah Newton

Lynsey Neave

Lynsey Neave

Lynsey Neave

Chair of Meeting Committee Secretary Executive Lead

10:00-17:00 Kate ShieldsSiân MillardMairi McLean

Audit and Risk Assurance Committee

Finance and Performace Committee

Time

12:45-17:00

14:00-17:00

13:00-16:00

Trust Board (Public and Committee)

Key

TB

TBI

QAC

FPC

ARAC

POD

CFC

APM

10:00-17:00

BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY

Quality Assurance Committee RCHT and Joint

Trust Board Informal

HWIC 1st October 2020 - Venue is Perranporth Room, HWIC

Charitable Funds Committee

Annual Public Meeting

Paper Deadline

Bedruthan House Meeting Room

PD

People and Organisational Development Committee

RCHT Trust Board and Committees Meeting Dates 2020-21

BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY

July August October DecemberSeptember November
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Monday 1

Tuesday 1 2 1 1
Wednesday 2 1 3 PD 1 2 2

Thursday TB (G09) TB (G09) PD TB (G09) PD TB (TBC) PD TB (TBC) PD TB (TBC) TB (TBC) PD TB (TBC)
Friday 4 2 3 1 5 PD 3 4 4

Saturday 3 1 5 3 4 2 6 4 1 5 5
Sunday 4 2 6 4 1 5 3 7 5 2 6 6

Monday 7 PD 5 2 6 PD 4 8 6 PD 3 7 PD 7
Tuesday 6 4 8 6 3 7 5 9 7 4 8 8

Wednesday 7 5 PD 9 7 4 8 6 PD 10 8 5 PD 9 9
Thursday 8 TB (TBC) PD 10 8 TB (G09) 9 TB (TBC) 11 9 TB (TBC) PD 10 10

Friday 9 7 PD 11 9 6 10 8 PD 12 10 7 PD 11 11
Saturday 10 8 12 10 7 11 9 13 11 8 12 12

Sunday 11 9 13 11 8 12 10 14 12 9 13 13
Monday 12 10 14 12 9 13 11 15 FPC (BHMR) 10 14 14
Tuesday 13 PD CFC (BHMR) 15 CFC (BHMR) 10 CFC (BHMR) 12 CFC (BHMR) POD (BHMR) CFC (BHMR) 15 CFC (BHMR)

Wednesday PD 14 PD 12 16 PD 14 PD 11 PD 15 PD 13 17 QAC (BHMR) PD 12 16 PD 16
Thursday PD 15 13 17 PD ARAC (BHMR) PD 12 PD 16 PD ARAC (BHMR) 18 16 ARAC (BHMR) 17 PD ARAC (BHMR)

Friday PD 16 PD 14 18 16 PD 13 17 PD 15 19 17 PD 14 18 18
Saturday 17 15 19 17 14 18 16 20 18 15 19 19

Sunday 18 16 20 18 15 19 17 21 19 16 20 20
Monday 19 17 PD FPC (BHMR) 19 16 20 18 PD FPC (BHMR) 20 17 PD FPC (BHMR) 21
Tuesday 20 18 POD (BHMR) 20 17 21 19 23 21 18 POD (BHMR) 22

Wednesday 21 19 QAC (BHMR) 21 18 22 20 QAC (BHMR) 22 19 QAC (BHMR) 23
Thursday 22 20 24 22 19 23 21 TBI (TBC) PD 23 20 24 24

Friday PD 23 PD ARAC (BHMR) 25 23 PD 20 24 22 26 24 21 25 25
Saturday 24 22 26 24 21 25 23 27 25 22 26 26

Sunday 25 23 27 25 22 26 24 28 26 23 27 27
Monday FPC (BHMR) FPC (BHMR) 28 PD FPC (BHMR) FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) PD FPC (BHMR) 29 PD FPC (BHMR) 28 FPC (BHMR)
Tuesday QAC (BHMR) 25 29 QAC (BHMR) POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) 30 25 QAC (BHMR)

Wednesday POD (BHMR) QAC (BHMR) 30 28 QAC (BHMR) TBI (TBC) POD (BHMR) 29 QAC (BHMR) TBI (TBC)
Thursday PD 29 TBI (G09) TBI (G09) 26 30 28 PD 30 TBI (TBC) 31

Friday 30 28 30 27 29 31 28

Saturday 29 31 28 30 29

Sunday 30 29 31 30

Monday 31

Tuesday 31

Wednesday

PD

BHMR

TBC

School Holidays

Paper Deadline

Bedruthan House Meeting Room

To Be Confirmed

APM Mairi McLean

CFC Paul Hobson Kerry EldridgeLynsey Neave14:00-16:00

16:30-18:15

Charitable Funds Committee

Annual Public Meeting

POD Sarah Pryce
ARAC Sarah Newton Sally May

Kerry EldridgeLynsey Neave

Lynsey Neave13:00-16:00

09:00-12:00People & Organisational Development Committee

Audit & Risk Assurance Committee

FPC Richard Stephenson
QAC Margaret Schwarz Kim O'Keeffe

Sally MayLynsey Neave

Lynsey Neave12:45-17:00

14:00-17:00
Quality Assurance Committee RCHT and Joint

Finance and Performance Committee

TBI Mairi McLean

TB Mairi McLean Kate ShieldsSiân Millard10:00-17:00Trust Board (Public and Committee)

Trust Board Informal

Chair of MeetingKey Time Committee Secretary Executive Lead

BANK HOLIDAY BANK HOLIDAY

RCHT Trust Board and Committees Meeting Dates 2021-22

April May June July August September October November December January February March

BANK HOLIDAY
BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY

BANK HOLIDAY BANK HOLIDAY
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Glossary of Terms 
 
 

Acronyms / Terms used in Reports 

AQP Any Qualified Provider  

BAF Board Assurance Framework  

CE Chief Executive 

CIOS Cornwall & Isles of Scilly 

CIP Cost Improvement Programme  

CNS Clinical Nurse Specialists 

COO Chief Operating Officer 

CFT Cornwall Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

CQC Care Quality Commission  

CSDP Clinical Site Development Plan 

CQUIN Commissioning for Quality and Innovation 

CT Computerised Tomography (a type of body scan) 

DBS Disclosure Barring Service (replaced CRB) 

DNA Did Not Attend 

DoF Director of Finance 

DH Department of Health 

DOSA Day of Surgery Admission 

DPGME Director of Postgraduate Medical Education  

DTOC Delayed Transfer of Care 

ECIP Emergency Care Improvement Programme 

ED Emergency Department 

ESD Early Supported Discharge 

FFT Friends and Family Test 

FTE Full-Time Equivalent 

FUW Follow-up waiting 

GP General Practitioner  

HRD Director of HR  

HSCIC  Health and Social Care Information Centre 
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HSMR Hospital Standardised Mortality Ratio 

I&E Income and Expenditure  

IPR Integrated Performance Report 

IWL Improving Working Lives 

KCCG Kernow Clinical Commissioning Group 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 

LIA Listening Into Action 

LoS  Length of stay 

LTFM Long Term Financial Model 

MD Medical Director 

MDT Multi-Disciplinary Team  

MSSA Methicillin-sensitive Staphylococcus aureus (a bacteria) 

Never Events Never Events are serious incidents that are entirely 
preventable because guidance or safety recommendations 
providing strong systemic protective barriers are available 
at a national level, and should have been implemented by 
all healthcare providers. 

NHSCFA NHS Counter Fraud Authority 

NHSE NHS England 

NHSI NHS Improvement 

NHSP NHS Professionals 

NHSR NHS Resolution ( formerly the NHSLA - NHS Litigation 
Authority)  

NIHSS National Institutes of Health Stroke Scale  

NR Non Recurring  

OD Organisational Development  

PAF Performance Assurance Framework  

PDR Performance Development Review  

QIDB Quality Improvement Delivery Board 

PSF Provider Sustainability Fund 

QIP Quality Improvement Programme 

QIPP Quality, Innovation, Prevention, Productivity 

RAG Red Amber Green  

RIDDOR Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous 
Occurrences Regulations 
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RTT Referral To Treatment 

SAFER Bundle The SAFER patient flow bundle blends five elements of 
best practice. It’s important to implement all five together for 

cumulative benefits. The five elements are: 
S – Senior review. All patients will have a senior review 
before midday by a clinician able to make management and 
discharge decisions. 
A – All patients will have an expected discharge date and 
clinical criteria for discharge. This is set assuming ideal 
recovery and assuming no unnecessary waiting.  
F – Flow of patients will commence at the earliest 
opportunity from assessment units to inpatient wards. 
Wards that routinely receive patients from assessment units 
will ensure the first patient arrives on the ward by 10 am. 
E – Early discharge. 33% of patients will be discharged 
from base inpatient wards before midday.  
R – Review. A systematic multi-disciplinary team review of 
patients with extended lengths of stay (>7 days – ‘stranded 
patients’) with a clear ‘home first’ mindset. 

SBARD tool Situation, Background, Assessment, Recommendation, 
Decision tool 

SHMI Summary Hospital Level Mortality Indicator 

Schwarz Rounds Schwartz Rounds provide a structured forum where all 
staff, clinical and non-clinical, come together regularly to 
discuss the emotional and social aspects of working in 
healthcare. 

SI Serious Incident 

SMH St Michael’s Hospital  

SLA Service Level Agreement  

SRO Senior Responsible Officer 

STP Sustainability Transformation Partnerships (formerly Plans) 

VTE Venous thromboembolism (Blood clot) 

WCH West Cornwall Hospital  
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